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The Virginia Register is an official state publication issued
every other week throughout the year. Indexes are published
quarterly, and the last index of the year is cumulative. The
Virginia Register has several functions. The new and amended
sections of regulations, both as proposed and as finally adopted,
are required by law to be published in The Virginia Register of
Regulations. In addition, the Virginia Register is a source of other
information about state government, including all emergency
regulations and executive orders issued by the Governor, the
Virginia Tax Bulletin issued periodically by the Depariment of
Taxation, and nhotices of public hearings and open mestings of
state agencies.

ADOPTION, AMENDMENT, AND REPEAL OF REGULATIONS

An agency wishing to adopt, amend, or repeal regulations must
first publish in the Virginia Register a notice of intended regulatory
action; a basis, purpose, substance and issues statement; an
economic impact analysis prepared by the Depatiment of
Planning and Budget; the agency's response to the economic
impact analysis; a summary; a notice giving the public an
opportunity to comment on the proposal, and the text of the
proposed regulation,

Following publication of the proposal in the Virginia Begister,
the promulgating agency receives public comments for a
minimum of 60 days. The Govemor reviews the proposed
regulation to determine if it is necessary to protect the public
health, safety and welfare, and if it is clearly written and easily
ungerstandable. If the Governor chooses to comment on the
proposed regulation, his comments must be transmitted to the
agency and the Registrar no later than 15 days following the
completion of the 60-day public comment period. The Governor's
comments, if any, will be published in the Virginia Register. Not
less than 15 days following the completion of the 80-day public
comment period, the agency may adopt the proposed regulation.

The appropriate standing committee of each branch of the
General Assembly may mest during the promulgation or final
adoption process and file an objection with the Registrar and the
promulgating agency. The objection will be published in the
Virginia Register. Within 21 days after receipt by the agency of a
legislative objection, the agency shall file a response with the
Registrar, the objecting legislative committee, and the Governor.

When final action is taken, the agency again publishes the text
of the regulation as adopted, highlighting all changes made to the
proposed regulation and explaining any substantial changes made
since publication of the proposal. A 30-day final adoption period
begins upon final publication in the Virginia Register.

The Governor may review the final regulation during this time
and, if he objects, forward his objection to the Registrar and the
agency. In addition to or in lieu of filing a formal objection, the
Governor may suspend the sffective date of a portion or all of a
regulation until the end of the next regular General Assembly
session by issuing a directive signed by a majority of the
members of the appropriate standing commitiees and the
Governor.  The Govemnor's objection or suspension of the
regutation, or both, will be published in the Virginia Register. If
the Governor finds that changes made to the proposed regulation
have substantial impact, he may require the agency to provide an
additional 30-day public comment period on the changes. Notice
of the additional public comment period required by the Governor
will be published in the Virginia Register.

The agency shall suspend the regulatory process for 30 days
when it receives requests from 25 or more individuals to solicit
additional public comment, unless the agency determines that the
changes have minor or inconsequential impact.

A regulation becormnes effective at the conclusion of the 30-day
final adoption period, or at any other later date specified by the
promulgating agency, unless (i} a legislative objection has been
filed, in which event the regulation, unless withdrawn, becomes
effective on the date specified, which shail be after the expiration

of the 21-day extension period; (i) the Governor exercises his
authority to reguire the agency to provide for additional public
commaeant, In which event the ragulation, unless withdrawn,
becomes effective on the date specified, which shall be after the
axpiration of the period for which the Govemor has provided for
additional public comment; (iH} the Goveinor and the General
Assembiy exarcise their authority o suspend the effective date of
a ragulation until the end of the next regular legislative session; or
(iv) the agency suspends the regulatory process, in which event
the regulation, unless withdrawn, becormnes effective on the date
specified, which shall be after the expiration of the 30-day public
comment period.

Proposed regulatory action may be withdrawn by the promul-
gating agency at any time before the regulation becomes final,

EMERGENCY REGULATIONS

If an agency demonsirates that (i) there is an immediate threat
to the public’s health or safety; or (i) Virginia statutory law, the
appropriation act, federal law, or federal regulation requires a
regulation to take effect no later than (a) 280 days from the
enactment in the case of Virginia or federal law or the
appropriation act, or (b} 280 days from the effective date of a
federal ragulation, it then requests the Governor's approval to
adopt an emergency regulation. The emergency regulation
becomes operative upon its adoption and filing with the Registrar
of Regulations, unless a later date is specified. Emergency
regulations are limited fo addressing specifically defined situations
and may not exceed 12 months in duration. Emergency
regulations are published as soon as possible in the Register.

During the time the emergency status is in effect, the agency
may proceed with the adoption of permanent reguiations through
the usual procedures. To begin promulgating the replacement
regulation, the agency must (i) deliver the Notice of Intended
Regulatory Action to the Registrar in time to be published within
60 days of the effective date of the emergency regulation; and {ii)
deliver the proposed regulation to the Registrar in time to be
published within 180 days of the effective date of the emergency
regulation. if the agency chooses not to adopt the regulations, the
emergency status ends when the prescribed time limit expires.

STATEMENT

The foregoing constitutes a generalized statement of the
procedures to be followed. For specific statutory language, it is
suggested that Article 2 (§ 9-6.14:7.1 et seq.) of Chapter 1.1:1 of
the Cede of Virginia be examined carefully.

CITATION TO THE VIRGINIA REGISTER

The Virginia Register is cited by volume, issue, page number,
and date. 12:8 VA.R. 1096-1106 January 8, 1996, refers to
Volume 12, Issue 8, pages 1096 through 1106 of the Virginia
Register issued on January 8, 1996.

"The Virginia Register of Regulations® (USPS-001831) is
published bi-weekly, except four times in January, April, July and
Ccetober, for $100 per year by the Virginia Code Commission,
General Assembly Building, Capitol Square, Richmond, Virginia
23218. Telephone {804) 786-3591. Second-Class Postage Rates
Paid at Richmond, Virginia. POSTMASTER: Send address
changes to The Virginia Register of Regulations, 910 Capitol
Street, 2nd Floor, Richmond, Virginia 23219.

The Virginia Register of Regulations is published pursuant to
Article 7 (§ 9-6.14:22 et seq.) of Chapter 1.1:1 of the Code of
Virginia. Individual copies, if available, may be purchased for
$4.00 each from the Registrar of Regulations.

Members of the Virginia Code Commission: Joseph V. Gartlan,

fr., Chairman; W. Tayloe Murphy, Jr., Vice Chairman; Robert L.

Calhoun; Russeli M. Carneal; Bernard S. Cchen; Jay W.
DeBoer; Frank S. Ferguson; E. M. Milier, Jr.; Jackson E.
Reasor, Jr.; James B. Wilkinson.

Staff of the Virginia Register: E. M. Miller, Jr., Acting Registrar of
Regulations; Jane D. Chaffin, Deputy Registrar of Regulations.
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NOTICES OF INTENDED REGULATORY ACTION

Symbol Key
T Indicates entries since last publication of the Virginia Regisfer

DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE AND CONSUMER
SERVICES (BOARD OF)

Notice of Intended Regulatory Action

Notice is hereby given in accordance with § 9-6.14:7.1 of the
Code of Virginia that the Board of Agriculiure and Consumer
Services intends to consider amending regulations entitled: 2
VAC 5-180-10 ef seq. Ruies and Regulations Governing
Pseudorabies in Virginia. Pseudorabies is a disease that
exacts a high death toll among the animals it infects, many of
which are domesticated animals. Among the animals that
can be infected with pseudorabies are catile, sheep, dogs,
cats, and notably, swine. There is no known evidence that
humans can contract pseudorabies. Most kinds of animals
infected with pseudorabies die before they can infect other
animals (death usually occurs within 72 hours after infection).
Swine are a different matter. Although pseudorabies can kill
swine (the younger the swine, the higher the rate of
mortality), they can also recover from the disease and spread
it to other swine and to other kinds of animals. Virginia's
regulations to eradicate pseudorabies from swine are part of
a national program designed to rid the nation of
pseudorabies. This regulation provides rules to govern the
program for the eradication of pseudorabies from swine in
Virginia. The purpose of the contemplated regulatory action
is to review the regulation for effectiveness and continued
need including, but not limited to, a proposal to allow Virginia
to participate in the national program to eradicate
pseudorabies at whatever stage s circumstances at a
particular time would allow -- whether stage 1 or stage 5, or
any stage in between. The agency invites comment on
whether there should be an advisor appointed for the present
regulatory action. An advisor is (i} a standing advisory panel,
(i) an ad-hoc advisory panel, {iii} a consuliant with groups,
(iv} a consultant with individuals, or (v} any combination
thereof. The agency intends to hold a public hearing on the
proposed regulation after publication.

Statutory Authority: §§ 3.1-724, 3.1-726 and 3.1-730 of the
Code of Virginia.

Public comments may be submitted until 8:30 a.m. on August
26, 1996, to Dr. W. M. Sims, Jr.,, Department of Agriculture
and Consumer Services, Division of Animal Industry
Services, P.O. Box 1163, Richmond, VA 23218-1163.

Contact: T. R. Lee, Program Supervisor, Depariment of
Agriculture and Consumer Services, Office of Veterinary
Services, P.Q. Box 1163, Richmond, VA 23218-1183,
telephone (804) 786-2483.

VAR. Doc. No. R96-388; Filed May 28, 1996, 2:30 p.m.

STATE AIR POLLUTION CONTROL BOARD

Notice of intended Regulatory Action

Notice is hereby given in accordance with § 9-6.14:7.1 of the
Code of Virginia that the State Air Pollution Control Board
intends to consider promuigating regulations entitted: ¢ VAC
§-500-10 et seq. Exclusionary General Permit for Federal
Operating Permit Program. The purpose of the proposed
action is to develop a general permit that will become a
legally enforceable mechanism for stationary sources subject
to the federal operating permit program (Article 1 of ¢ VAC 5-
80-10 et seq.) to be excluded from the program provided they
maintain their actual annual emissions at a specified level
that is less than the potential to emit applicability thresholds
for the federal operating permit program. A public meeting
will be held by the deparment in the Training Room,
Department of Environmental Quality, 629 East Main Street,
Richmond, Virginia, at 10 a.m. on August 7, 1996, to discuss
the intended action. Unlike a public hearing, which is
intended only to receive testimony, this meeting is being heid
to discuss and exchange ideas and information relative to
regulation development. The department wiil form a technical
advisory committes to assist in the development of the
regulation. If you desire to be on the commitiee, notify the
agency coniact in writing by 4:30 p.m. on August 8, 1996,
and provide your name, address, phone number and the
organization you represent (if any). Notification of the
composition of the technical advisory committee will be sent
to all applicants. If you wish to be on the committee, you are
encouraged to attend the public meeting mentioned above.
The primary function of the commitiee is to develop a
recommended reguiation for departiment consideration
through the collaborative approach of regulatory negotiation
and consensus, After publication in the Virginia Register of
Regulations, the depariment will hold at least one public
hearing to provide opportunity for public comment on any
regulation drafted pursuant fo this noftice.

Statutory Authority: § 10.1-1308 of the Code of Virginia.

Public comments may be submitted until 4:30 p.m. on August
8, 1996, to the Director, Office of Air Program Development,
Department of Environmental Quality, P.O. Box 10009,
Richmond, VA, 23240,

Contact: Robert A. Mann, Director, Office of Air Program
Development, Depariment of Environmental Quality, P.O.
Box 10009, Richmond, VA, 23240, telephene (804) 698-
4419, toli-free (800) 592-5482, FAX (804) 698-4510, or (804)
698-4021TDD &
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Notices of Intended Regulatory Action

BOARD FOR COSMETOLOGY

t Notice of iniended Hegulatory Action

Notice is hereby given in accordance with § 9-6.14:7.1 of the
Code of Virginia that the Board for Cosmetology intends to
consider amending regulations entitied: 18 YAC 55-20-10 et
seq. Board for Coamelology Regulations. The purpose of
the proposed action is to rovise examination language 1o
incorporate reference to the Public Procurement Act and to
simplify provisions of current reguiations. The agency
intends to hold a public hearing on the proposed regulation
after publication.

Statutory Authority: § 54.1-1zuz of the Cods of Virginia.
Public comments may be submitted until September 5, 1996,

Contact: Karen W. O'Neal, Assistant Director, Board for
Cosmetology, 3600 W. Broad St, Richmond, VA 23230,
telephone (804) 367-8509, FAX (804) 367-2475 or (804) 367-
9783TDD B

VA.R. Doc. No. R98-479; Filed July 8, 1998, 11:58 a.m.

DEPARTMENT OF CRIMINAL JUSTICE SERVICES
(CRIMINAL JUSTICE SERVICES BOARD)

1 Notice of Intended Regulatery Action

Notice is hereby given in accordance with § 9-8.14:7.1 of the
Code of Virginia that the Criminal Justice Services Board
intends to consider amending regulations entitied: 6 VAT 20-
20-10 et seq. Rules Relating io Compulsory Minimum
Training Stendards for Law-Enforcement Officers. The
purpose of the proposed action is to amend the regulations
relating to minimum training standards for law-enforcement
officers to update these based on the 1995 job task analysis
which identified the knowledge, skills, and abilities required to
perform the duties of the position at a minimally acceptabie
level. Updated standards and training will be consistent with
performance expectations for law-enforcement officers in the
Commaonwealth that best meet the goal of maintaining public
safety. The agency intends to hold a public hearing on the
proposed regulation after publication.

Statutory Authority: § 9-170 of the Code of Virginia.

Public comments may be submitted until September 5, 1996,
to Lex Eckenrode, Deputy Director, Bureau of Operations,
Department of Criminal Justice Services, 805 East Broad
Street, Richmond, Virginia 23219,

Contact: Judy Kirkendall, Job Task Analysis Administrator,
Department of Criminal Justice Services, 805 E. Broad 5t.,
Richmond, VA 23219, ielephone (804) 786-3003 or FAX
(804) 371-8981.

VA.R. Doc. No. R96-494; Filed July 17, 1998, 10:02 a.m.

DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION (STATE BOARD OF)

Notice of Intended Regulatory Action

Notlce Is hersby given in accordance with § 9-6.14:7.1 of the
Code of Virginia that the State Board of Education intends to
consider amending reguiations entitted: & VAC 20-130-10 ot
seq., Regulations Establishing Standards for Accrediting
Public Schools In Virginis. The purpose of the proposed
action is to ensure improved compliance with the Standards
of Quality which require the Board of Education to promulgate
regulations establishing standards for accraditing public
schools in Virginia. The board sesks to amend the existing
standards of accreditation to focus the accreditation and
evaluation of schools more strongly on student academic
achievement and school level progress toward meeting the
academic objectives in the slandards of learning recently
adopted by the board. The Board of Education will hold
preliminary public hearings in August to receive suggestions
from the public for revisions to the accrediting standards.
The specific dates, times, and location will be published in a
future issue of the Virginia Register, as well as announced at
the July 25 Beard of Education mesting and advertised
through the state media. Spsskers are requested to provide
their comments in writing, if pessible, at the time they speak.
Comments wili also be received by mail at the Board of
Education, P.O. Box 2120, Hichmond, Virginia 23218-2120.
In addition to these preliminary public hearings, the board will
hold additional hearings following publication of the proposed
revisions to the reguiations.

Statutory Authority: §§ 22.1-16, 22.1-19 and 22.1-253.13:3 B
of the Code of Virginia.

Public comments may be submitted unil September 30,
1996,

Contact: Lin Corbin-Howerton, Policy Director, Department
of Education, P.O. Box 2120, Richmond, VA, 23218-2120,
telephone {B04) 225-2543, ioll free (800) 292-3820 or FAX
(804) 225-2053.

DEPARTMENT QF FORESTRY

T Notice of Intended Regulatory Action

Notice is hereby given in accordance with § 9-6.14:7.1 of the
Code of Virginia that the Depanment of Forestry intends to
consider repealing regulations entitled: 4 VAC 5-40-10 ot
seg. Slate Forests Hegulations. The purpose of the
proposed action is to repeal regulations that regulate uses,
maintain order and preserve the conditions of all state forests
including the roads, ponds, iakes, streams, rivers, beaches,
food patches and recreational areas where the public may
visit. The Department of Foreslry believes that current laws
provide sufficient protection over its varied interests and
allows the full enjoyment without degradation to the state
torest resources. The department also believes that a
separate regulation to administer state foresis is redundant
with many public safety laws and is not necessary. The

Virginia Register of Regulations
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Notices of Intended Regulatory Action

agency does not intend to hold a public hearing on the
proposed repeal of the reguiation after publication.

Statutory Authority: § 10.1-1101 of the Code of Virginia.
Public comments may be submitted until September 9, 1996.

Contact: Ronald Jenkins, Administration Officer,
Department of Forestry, P.O. Box 3758, Charlottesville, VA
22903, telephone (804) 977-6555, FAX (804) 293-2768, or
(804) 977-6555/TDD &

VA.R. Doc. No. R96-492; Filed July 17, 1996, 9:44 a.m.

1 Notice of intended Regulatory Action

Notice is hereby given in accordance with § 9-6.14:7.1 of the
Code of Virginia that the Department of Forestry intends to
consider repealing regulations entitled: 4 VAC 5-60-10 et
seq. Reforestation of Timberlands. The purpose of the
proposed action is to repeal the regulations that provide for
the administration of resources, i.e., personnel, equipment,
materials and supplies. These regulations provide for the
protection, preservation and perpetuation of the state’s forest
resources. The regulations were recommended for repeal
after the Executive Order 15(94) review revealed that state
law provides necessary guidance to administer the state
reforestation program and protect the state’'s forest
resources. The agency does not intend to hold a public
hearing on the proposed repeal of the regulation after
publication.

Statutory Authority: § 10.1-1101 of the Code of Virginia.
Public comments may be submitted until September 9, 1996.

Contaci: Ronald Jenkins, Administration Ofificer,
Department of Forestry, P.O. Box 3758, Charlottesville, VA
22903, telephone (B04) 977-6555, FAX (804) 293-2768, or
{804) 977-6555/TDD &

VA R. Doc. No. R96-493; Filed July 17, 1996, 9:44 a.m.
STATE BOARD OF JUVENILE JUSTICE

Notice of Intended Regulatory Action

Notice is hereby given in accordance with § 9-6.14:7.1 of the
Code of Virginia that the State Board of Juvenile Justice
intends to consider repealing regulations entitled: 6 VAC 35-
40<10 et seq. Predispositional and Postdispositionai
Group Home Standards. The purpose of the proposed
action is to provide an integrated approach to the regulation
of juvenile residential facilities by repealing these standards
for predispositional and postdispositional group homes, to be
replaced by a new, consolidated regulation governing all
classes of juvenile residential facilities. The agency intends
to hold a public hearing on the proposed regufation after
publication.

Statutory Authority: §§ 16.1-309.9 and 66-10 of the Code of
Virginia.

Public comments may be submitted until August 9, 1996,

Contact: Donald R. Carignan, Policy Coordinator,
Department of Juvenile Justice, P.O. Box 1110, Richmond,
VA, 23208-1110, telephone {(804) 371-0743 or FAX (804)
371-0773.

VA.R. Doc. No. R86-429; Filed June 14, 1996, 1:18 p.m.

Notice of intended Regulatory Action

Notice is hereby given in accordance with § 9-6.14:7.1 of the
Code of Virginia that the State Board of Juvenile Justice
intends to consider amending regulations entitted: € VAC 35-
60-10 et seq. Minimum Standards for Virginia

, Delinquency Prevention and Youth Development Act
“Grants Programs. The purpose of the proposed action is to

update this existing regulation to reflect changes in the focus
of offices on youth, and to give such offices on youth greater
flexibility in achieving program goals. The agency does not
intend to hold a public hearing on the proposed regulation
after publication.

Statutory Authority: §§ 66-10 and 66-30 of the Code of
Virginia.

Public comments may be subritted until August 9, 1996.

Contact: Donald R. Carignan, Policy Coordinator,
Department of Juvenile Justice, P.O. Box 1110, Richmond,
VA, 23208-1110, telephone (804) 371-0743 or FAX (804)
371-0773.

VA.R. Doc, No. R96-422; Filed June 14, 1996, 1:18 p.m.

Notice of Intended Regulatory Action

Notice is hereby given in accordance with § 9-6.14:7.1 of the
Code of Virginia that the State Board of Juvenile Justice
intends to consider repealing reguiations entitled: 6 VAC 35-
70-10 et seq. Learning Center Standards (Juvenile
Correctional Center Standards). The purpose of the
proposed action is to provide an integrated approach to the
regulation of juvenile residential facilities by terminating these
learning center standards and other separate regulations, to
be replaced by a new, consolidated regulation governing all
classes of juvenile residential facilities. The agency intends
to hold a public hearing on the proposed regulation after
publication.

Statutory Authority: § 66-10 of the Code of Virginia.
Public comments may be submitted until August 9, 1996.

Contact: Donald R. Carignan, Policy Coordinator,
Department of Juvenile Justice, P.O. Box 1110, Richmond,
VA, 23208-1110, telephone (804} 371-0743 or FAX (B04)
371-0773.

VA.R. Doc. No. R96-428; Filed June 14, 1996, 1:19 p.m.

Notice of Intended Regulatory Action

-Notice is hereby given in accordance with § 9-6.14:7.1 of the

Code of Virginia that the State Board of Juvenile Justice
intends to consider repealing regulations entitled: 6 VAC 35-
80-10 et seq. Holdover Standards. The purpose of the
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proposed action is to terminate this regulation which govems
"holdover” operations that are intended to provide short-term
placemsant for juveniles who do not mesi the criteria for
detention. To the extent that standards are necessary for
such operations, they will be provided through a consolidated
regulation governing nonresidential programs and services
for juveniles in the community. The agency intends to hold a
public hearing on the propesed regulation after publication.

Statutory Autharity: § 66-10 of the Code of Virginia.
Public comments may be submitted until August 8, 1996,

Contact: Donald R. Carignan, Policy Coordinator,
Depariment of Juvenile Justice, P.O. Box 1110, Richmond,
VA, 23208-1110, telephone 804) 371-0743 or FAX (804)
371-0773.

VA.R. Do, No. R96-424, Filed June 14, 19986, 1:18 p.m.

Motice of Intended Regulatory Action

Notice is hereby given in accordance with § 9-6.14:7.1 of the
Code of Virginia that the Staie Board of Juvenile Justice
intends to consider repealing regulations entitled: & VAC 35-
9010 =t seq. Standards for Postdispositional
Confinement for Secure Detention and Court Service
Units. The purpose of the proposed action is to provide an
integrated approach 1o the regulation of juvenile residential
tacilities by repealing these standards for postdispositional
confinement of juveniles, and other separate regulations, and
issuing in their place a new, consolidated regulation
governing all classes of juvenile residential facilities. The
agency intends to hold a public hearing on the proposed
ragulation after publication.

Statutory Authority: §§ 16.1-284.1 and 66-10 of the Code of
Virginia.
Public comments may be submitted until August 9, 1996,

Contact: Donald R. Carignan, Policy Coordinator,
Department of Juvenite Justice, P.O. Box 1110, Richmond,
VA, 23208-1110, telephone (804) 371-0743 or FAX {B04)
371-0773.

VAR Doe. No. R96-4268; Filad June 44, 1996, 1:19 p.m.

Notice of Intended Ragulatory Action

Motice is hereby given in accordance with § 9-6.14:7.1 of the
Code of Virginia that the State Board of Juvenile Justice
intends to consider repealing regulations entitled: & YAC 35-
100-10 et seq. Standards for Secure Detention. The
purpose of the proposed action is to provide an integrated
approach to the regulation of juvenile residential facilities by
repealing these standards for secure detention, along with
other separate regulations, to be replaced by a new,
‘consolidated regulation governing all classes of juvenile
residential faciliies. The agency intends to hold a public
hearing on the proposed regulation after publication.

Statutory Authority: §§ 16.1-284.1 and 66-10 of the Code of
Virginia.

Public comments may be submitted untit August 9, 1996,

Contact: Donald R, Carignan, Policy Coordinator,
Department of Juvenile Justice, P.O. Box 1110, Richmond,
VA, 23208-1110, telephone (804) 371-0743 or FAX (804)
371-0773. '

VAR, Dac, No. R86-425; Filed June 14, 1996, 1:19 p,m.

+ Notice of intended Regulatory Action

Notice is hereby given in accordance with § 8-6.14:7.1 of the
Code of Virginia that the State Board of Juvenile Justice
intends to consider amending regulations entitled: & VAC 35-
110-10 et seq. Minimum Standards tor Court Service in
Juvenile and Domestic Relations District Courts. The
purpose of the proposed action is to update existing
standards for court service units, and possibly incorporate
into this reguiation additional standards to be developed for
community sanclions and services pursuant to the Virginia
Juvenile Community Crime Control Act, as well as standards
for outreach detention. The agency intends to hold a public
hearing on the proposed regulation after publication.

Statutory Authority: §§ 16.1-233 through 16.1-235; 16.1-
309.9 and 66-10 of the Code of Virginia.

Public comments may be submitted until September 6, 1996,

Comntact: Donald R. Garignan, Policy Coordinator,
Department of Juveniie Justice, P.O. Box 1110, Richmond,
VA, 23208-1110, telephone (804) 371-0743 or FAX {804)
371-0773.

VA.R. Doc. No. R98-481; Filed July 15, 1996, 1:08 p.m.

Notice of Intended Reguiatory Action

Notice is hereby given in accordance with § 9-6.14:7.1 of the
Code of Virginia that the State Board of Juvenile Justice
intends to consider repealing regulations entitied: & VAC 35-
120-1C et seq. Standards for Family Group Homes. The
purpose of the proposed action is to provide an integrated
approach to the regulation of juvenile residential facilities by
terminating these standards for family group homes and
other separate regulations, to be replaced by a new,
consolidated regulation governing all classes of juvenile
residential facilities. The agency intends to hold a public
hearing on the proposed ragulation after publication.

Statutory Authority: §§ 16.1-309.9 and 66-10 of the Code of
Virginia. '

Public comments may be submitted until August 9, 1996.
Contact: Donald R. Carignan, Policy Coordinator,
Department of Juvenile Justice, P.O. Box 1110, Richmond,

VA, 23208-1110, telephone (804) 371-0743 or FAX (804)
371-0773.

VAR, Doc. Mo. RO6-427: Filed Jung 14, 1895, 1:19 p.m.

Notice of Intended Regulatory Action

Notice is hereby given in accordance with § 9-6.14:7.1 of the
Code of Virginia that the State Board of Juvenile Justice
intends to consider repealing regulations entitted: & VAG 35-

Virginia Register of Regulaiions

3066



Notices of Intended Regulatory Action

130-10 et seq. Standsrds for Outreach Detention. The
purpose of the proposed action s to provide a
comprehensive regulatery approach to nonresldential
programs and services for juveniles before the court, by
repealing these standards for outreach detention as =&
separate regulation, and incorporating their essential
provisions into expanded standards for count services. The
agency intends to hold a public hearing on the proposed
regulation after publication.

Statutory Authority: §§ 16.1-311 and 68-10 of the Code of
Virginia.

Public comments may be submitted until August 9, 1996.

Contacl: Donald R. Carignan, Policy Coordinator,
Depantment of Juvenile Justice, P.O. Box 1110, Richmond,
VA, 23208-1110, telephone (804) 371-0743 or FAX (804)
371-0773.

VA.R. Doe. No. R96-421; Filed June 14, 1996, 1:18 p.m.

Notice of Intended Regulatory Action

Notice is hereby given in accordance with § 3-6.14:7.1 of the
Code of Virginia that the State Board of Juvenile Justice
intends to consider promulgating regulations entitled: 6 VAC
35-140-10 et seq. Standards for Juvenile Residerntial
Facilities. The pumpose of the proposed action is to
consolidate in one regulation simplified standards goveming
the operation of all types of juvenile residential facility
overseen by the Board of Juvenile Justice. This new
regulation will replace standards for secure detention,
standards for postdispositional confinement for secure
detention and court service units; predispositional and
postdispositional group home standards; standards for family
group homes; and standards for juvenite correctional centers,
formerly known as learning center standards. The agency
intends to hold a public hearing en the proposed regulation
after publication.

Statutory Authority: §8§ 16.1-284.1, 16.1-309.9 and 66-10 of
the Code of Virginia.

Public comments may be submitted until August 9, 1996.

Contact: Donald R. Carignan, Policy Coordinator,
Department of Juvenile Justice, P.O. Box 1110, Richmond,
- VA, 23208-1110, telephone (804) 371-0743 or FAX (804)
371-0773.

VA.R. Doc, No. R96-423; Filed June 14, 1996, 1:18 p.m.
DEPARTMENT OF MINES, MINERALS AND ENERGY

Notice of intended Regufatory Action

Notice is hereby given in accordance with § 9-6.14:7.1 of the
Code of Virginia that the Department of Mines, Minerais and
Energy intends to consider amending regulations entitied: 4
VAC 25-150-10 et seq. Gas and Oil Regulation. The
purpose of the proposed action is to amend the Department
of Mines, Minerals and Energy's (DMME) regulations
governing permitting, operations, plugging, and site

-10 et seq.

restoration of gas and oil exploration and development wells,
gathering pipelines and associated facilities. The regulations
are necessary to protect the public health and safety from
adverse effects of gas and oil exploration and production
activities. The amendments will impiement the
recommendation Identified during DMME's regulation review
under Executive Order Fifteen (94). The recommendations
will strearmline the regulatory process, eliminaie unnecessary
regulatory requirements, clarify language, and implement
changes based on DMME, gas and oil operator, and citizen
experience impiementing the regulation  since it -was
promulgated in 1891, Copies of the regulatory review report
are available at the DMME, Division of Gas and Qil in
Abingdon and DMME office in Richmond. The agency
intends to hold a public hearing on the proposed regulation
after publication.

Statutory Authority:  §§ 45.1-161.3 and 45.1-361.27 of the
Code of Virginia. :

Public comments may be submitted until August 7, 1896,

Contact: B. Thomas Fulmer, Oil and Gas Inspector,
Department of Mines, Minerals and Energy, Division of Gas
and Oil, 230 Charwood Drive, P.O. Box 1416, Abingdon, VA,
24212, telephone (540) 676-5423, FAX (540} 676-5459, or
{800) 828-1120 (VA Relay Center)/TDD &8

VIRGINIA PUBLIC TELECOMMUNICATIONS BOARD

Netice of Intended Regulatory Action

Notice is hereby given in accordance with § 9-6.14:7.1 of the
Code of Virginia that the Virginia Public Telecommunications
Board intends to consider repealing regulations entitled: VR
410-01-02, Master Plan for Public Telecommunications,
1973. The purpose of the proposed action is to repeal the
1873 plan. The revised version adopted in 1991 is not a
regulation. The agency intends to hold a public hearing on
the proposed repeal of the regulation after publication.

Statutory Authority: § 2.1-563.25 of the Code of Virginia.

Public comments may be submitted untii September 30,
1996.

Contact: Suzanne J. Piland, Public Telecommunications
Branch Manager, Deparnment of information Technology, 110
South 7th Street, Richmond, VA, 23218, ielephone (804)
371-5544 or FAX (B04) 371-5556,

REAL ESTATE APPRAISER BOARD

1 Notice of Intended Regulatory Action

Notice is hereby given in accordance with § 9-6.14.7.1 of the
Code of Virginia that the Real Estate Appraiser Board intends
fo consider amending regulations entitled: 18 VAT 130-20-
Real Estate Appraiser Board Rules and
Regulations. The purpose of the proposed action is to
provide for less burdensome alternatives than current
regutations while still protecting the health, safety and welfare
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of the public and complying with state and tederal mandates.
The agency intends to hold a public hearing on the proposed
regulation after publication.

Statutory Authority: § 54.1-2013 of the Code of Virginia.
Public comments may be submitted until September 5, 1996.

Contact: Karen O'Neal, Assistant Director, Real Estate
Appraiser Board, 3600 W. Broad St., Richmond, VA 23230,
telephone (804) 367-2039, FAX (804) 367-2475, or (804)
367-9753TDD R

VA.R. Doc. No. R96-480; Filed July 8, 1956, 11:58 a.m.
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PUBLIC COMMENT PERIODS REGARDING STATE AGENCY REGULATIONS

Eftective July 1, 1995, publication of notices of public comment perfods in a newspaper of.
general circulation in the state capital is no longer required by the Administrative Process Act (§
9-6.14:1 et seq. of the Code of Virginia). Chapter 717 of the 1995 Acts of Assembly sliminated
the newspaper publication requirement from the Administrative Process Act.
Register of Regulations, the Registrar of Regulations has developed this section entitied “Public
Comment Periods - Proposed Regulations” to give notice of public comment periods and public
hearings to be held on proposed regulations. The notice will be published ance at the same
time the proposed regulation is published in the Proposed Regulations section of the Virginia
Register. The notice will continue to be carried in the Calendar of Events section of the Virginia
Register until the public comment period and public hearing date have passed.

Notice Is given in compliance with § 8-6.14:7.1 of the Code of Virginia that the following public hearings and public comment
periods regarding proposed siate agency regulations are set to afford the public an opportunity to express their views.

In The Virginia

CRIMINAL JUSTICE SERVICES BOARD

October 8, 1996 - 9 a.m. -- Public Hearing

General Assembly Building, 810 Capitol Square, Richmond,
Virginia.

Cetober 4, 1996 -- Written comments may be submitted until
this date.

Notice is hereby given in accordance with § 9-6.14:7.1 of
the Code of Virginia that the Criminal Justice Services
Board intends to amend regulations entitied: 6 VAC 20-
170-10 et seq. Regulations Relating to Private
Security Services. The proposed amendments (i)
provide an opportunity for licensed businesses and
certified training schools to renew for a two-year time
period, resulting in a reduction of fees; (i) reduce the
application requirement for individuals who have
completed training and applied for certification as an
unarmed security officer; and {iii) allow the department to
issue a temporary license or certification to applicant
businesses and training schools, providing the
opportunity to enter the industry once initial requirements
have been met.

Statutory Authority: § 9-182 of the Code of Virginia.

Contact: Lex T. Eckenrode, Bureau Director, Depariment of
Criminal Justice Services, 805 East Broad Strest, 10th Floor,
Hichmond, VA 23219, telephone (804) 786-4000 or FAX
(804) 786-8981.

DEPARTMENT OF MEDICAL ASSISTANCE
SERVICES

Heproposed

September 4, 1996 -- Public commenis may be submitied
until this date.

Notice is hereby given in accordance with § 9-6.14:7.1 of
the Code of Virginia that the Deparment of Medical
Assistance Services intends to amend reguiations
entited: 12 VAC 30-30-100 et seq. Part i, Amount

Duration and Scope of Services; 12 VAC 30-70-10 et
seq. Methods and Siandards for Establishing
Payment Rates--Inpatient Hospital Care; and 12 VAC
30-80-10 et seq. Methods and Standards for
Establishing Paymeni Rates--Other Types of Care.
The purpose of the proposed amendments is to reduce
the lengths of inpatient hospital stays when medically
appropriate in compliance with amendments to the
budget, and revise the maternity length of stay and
follow-up visit policies to comply with new legisiation.

Statutory Authority: § 32.1-325 of the Code of Virginia,

Public comments may be submitted until September 4, 1896,
to Sally Rice, Department of Medical Assistance Services,
600 East Broad Street, Suite 1300, Richmond, Virginia
23219. '

Contact: Victoria P. Simmons or Roberta Jonas, Regulatory
Coordinators, Department of Medical Assistance Services,
1300 E. Broad St, Suite 1300, Richmond, VA 23219,
telephone (B04) 371-8850. ‘ _

LR B EEERN

October 4, 1996 -- Public comments may be submitied untii
this daie.

Notice is hereby given in accordance with § 9-6.14:7.1 of
the Code of Virginia thal the Department of Medical
Assistance Services intends to amend regulations
entitted: 2 VAC 30-120-70 et seq. Part ll, Home and
Community Based Services for Technology Assisted
Individuals. The purpose of the proposed amendments
is to (i) provide for the use of an objective scoring tool for
determining whether a patient requires substantial and
ongoing nursing setvices; (i) allow persons who were
eligible for the program prior to their 21st birhday to
remain in the program and continue io receive benafits
after they turn 21, providing they continue to meet certain
criteria; and (i) allow persons over 21, who are residing
in a specialized care nursing facility, to be admitied to
the program if the cost of their home care would be less
than the cost of their current care.
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Statutory Authority: § 32.1-325 of the Code of Virginia.

Public comments may be submitted until October 4, 1996, to
Michelle Baker, PDS, Department of Medical Assistance
Services, 600 East Broad Street, Suite 1300, Richmond,
Virginia 23219,

Contact: Victoria P. Simmons or Roberta Jonas, Regulatory
Coordinators, Department of Medical Assistance Services,
1300 E. Broad St, Suite 1300, Richmond, VA 23219,
telephone (804) 371-8850.

BOARD OF MEDICINE

August 9, 1996 - 8 a.m. -- Public Hearing
Department of Health Professions, 6606 West Broad Street,
5th Floor, Richmond, Virginia.

October 4, 1996 - Public comments may be submitted until
this date.

Notice is hereby given in accordance with § 9-6.14:7.1 of
the Code of Virginia that the Board of Medicine intends
to repeal regulations entitied: 18 VAC 85-100-10 et
seq., Certification of Radiological Technology
Practitioners, and adopt regulations entitled: 18 VAC
85-101-10 et seq. Regulations Governing the
Licensure of Radiologic Technelogists and
Radiologic Technologists-Limited. The board
proposes to repeal regulations for certification of
radiologic technologists and promuigate new regulations
tor the licensure of radiologic technologists and
radiologic technologists-limited as mandated by the 1994
Acts of the Assembly to be effective January 1, 1997, .

Statutory Authority: §§ 54.1-2400, 54.1-2900, 54.1-2956.8:1
and 54.1-2956.8:2 of the Code of Virginia.

Contact: Warren W. Koontz, M.D., Executive Director,
Board of Medicine, 6606 W. Broad St., Richmond, VA 23230-
1717, telephone (804) 662-7423, FAX (804) 662-9943, or
{804) 662-71977DD &
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PROPOSED REGULATIONS

For information concerning Proposed Regulations, see Information Pags.

Symboi Key
Roman type indicates existing text of regulations. falic type indicates proposed new toxt.
Language which has been stricken indicates proposed text for deletion.

CRIMINAL JUSTICE SERVICES BOARD

Title of Regulation: & VAC 20-170-10 et seq. Regulations
Heiatlng to Private Security Services (amending 6 VAC
20-170-10, 6 VAC 20-170-20, § VAC 20-170-50, 6 VAC 20-
170-60, 6 VAC 20-170-80, 6 VAC 20-170-80, 6 VAC 20-170-
100, 6 VAC 20-170-150, 6 VAC 20-170-200, § VAC 20-170-
210, 6 VAC 20-170-230 through 6 VAL 20-170-280, 6 VAC
20-170-340 through 6 VAC 20-170-400, 6 VAC 20-170-430,
6 VAL 20-170-460, 6 VAC 20-170-470, 6 VAC 20-170-480, 6
VAG 20-170-520 through 6 VAC 20-170-550, § VAC 20-170-
620 through 6 VAC 20-170-650, 6 VAC 20-170-730, 6 VAC
20-170-760, 6 VAC 20-170-770, 6 VAC 20-170-820, 6 VAC
20-170-830, 6 VAC 20-170-930 through 6 VAC 20-170-960,
6 VAC 20-170-1000; adding & VAC 20-170-45, 6 VAC 20-
170-55, 6 VAC 20-170-75, 6 VAC 20-i70-76, & VAC 20-170-
475, 6 VAC 20-170-615 through 6 VAC 20-170-618, 6 VAC
20-170-625, and & VAC 20-170-765; repealing 6 VAC 20-
170-220, 6 VAC 20-170-490, § VAC 20-170-500, 6 VAC 20-
170-510, & VAC 20-170-560 through & VAC 20-170-610,
and & VAC 20-170-840 through 6 VAC 20-170-890).

Statutory Authority: § 9-182 of the Code of Virginia.

Public Hearing Date: October 8, 1996 - 9 a.m,
Written comments may be submitted until October 4,
1986.
{See Calendar of Events section
for additional information)

Basis: Pursuant to the statuiory authority set forth by § 9-182
of the Code of Virginia, the Ciiminal Justice Services Board
{CJSB) will amend and revise its regulations relating to
private security services. The primary basis for amending the
regulations is to incorporate changes that, while continuing to
protect the public safety and welfare, allow the agency to
more expeditiously license and cerify individuals and
businesses who have fulfilled initial application requirements.

Purpose: The purpose of these regulations is to set forth a
regulatory program which mandates and prescribes
standards, requirements, and procedures that serve to
protect the public safety and welfare from unqualified,
unscrupulous, and incompetent persons engaged in the
activities of private security services.

Substance: The proposed amendments (i) provide an
opportunity for licensed businesses and certified training
schools to renew for a two-year time period, resulting in a
reduction of fees; (ii) reduce the application requirement for
individuals who have completed training and applied for
certification as an unarmed security officer; and (iii) allow the
department to issue a temporary license or certification to
applicant businesses and training schools, providing the
opportunity to enter the industry once initial requiremenis
have been met.

Issyes: The primary advantages that these reguiations
provide to the general public are; (i) sets forth standards,
procedures, and requirements that serve to protect the safsty
and welfare of the general public from deceptive or
misleading privaie security services business practiiioners,
and; (i) secures the public safely and weifare against
incompetent, unscrupulous and unqualified persons by
establishing methods of licensure, registration and
cerification that serve to enhance the competency of persons
performing or engaged in the activities of private security
services. A possible disadvantage of these regulations is
that the program it prescribes receives no moneys from the
general fund, therefore, the cost to administer the program
rmust be absorbed by the affected entities.

Estimated lmpact: The estimated number of persons
affected by the Regulations Helating to Private Security
Services is approximately 18,000 to 22,000. This includes
owners of private security businesses and training schools,
instructors, registered and certified individuals, and others
that may be engaged in the private security services industry.

As the proposed changes will refine particuiar application
requirements, there are no additional costs projected for
implementation and compliance oultside the normal operating
cosis of the program. In addition, these regulations do not
impact disproportionately upon any locality.

Department of Planning and Budget's Economic Impact
Analysis; The Department of Planning and Budget (DPB)
has analyzed the economic impact of this proposed
regulation in accordance with § 9-6.14:7.1 G of the
Administrative Process Act and Executive Order Number 13
(94). Section 9-6.14:7.1 G requires that such economic
impact analyses include, but need not be limited to, the
projected number of businesses or other entities to whom the
regulation would apply; the identity of any lecalities and types
of businesses or other entities particularly affected, the
projected number of persons and employment positions to be
affected, the projected costs to affected businesses or
entities to implement or comply with the regulation, and the
impact on the use and value of private property. The anaiysis
presenied below represents DPB's best estimate of these
econamic affects.

Summary of the Proposed Regulation. The proposed
regulation amends the existing regulation goveming
licensing, certification, and training requirements for the
private security service industry. The primary amendments
contained in the proposed regulation are as follows:

1. Certain licensing fees have been adjusted,

2. Temporary business licenses can be issued under
certain cireumstances;

3. Incidents involving the discharge of a firearm while on
duty must be reported in writing to DCJS;
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4, Individuals who have pricr felony or misdemeanor
convictions are prohibited from employment as unarmed
security officers, absent written approval by DCJS;

5. Persons employed as unarmed security officers must
apply for certification within 120 days of employment,
and firms are not permitted to employ such individuals
for meore than 150 days unless they have received
certification; and

6. The employment category of alarm correspondent is
no longer divided into ammed and unarmed alarm
respondents.

Estimated Economic Impact

ltem 1. The proposed regulation makes three amendments
to the current fee schedule. First, the fee for initial business
license has been changed from $600 to $518. The current
$600 license fee includes two $41 charges for processing two
sets of fingerprint cards. In the proposed regulation these
fingerprint card processing charges will be assessed
separately. This change will reduce overall licensing costs in
those situations where only one set of fingerprint cards is
necessary.

The second amendment to the current fee schedule permits
business and training schools to renew their licenses for
either one year, as in the current regulation, or two years.
Licensees who renew for two years will receive a $50
reduction in the total fee.

The third amendment to the current fee schedule is the
replacement of the annual $10 reneswal fee for instructors
with a $25 recertification fee every three years. This change
will result in a $5 fee reduction over the three year period.

ltem 2. "Although allowing private security firms to obtain
temporary licenses under certain circumstances cerainly
enhances regulatory flexibility, it is not anticipated to have
significant economic effect.

ltem 3. The requirement that private security firms report
incidents involving the discharge of a firearm while on duty to
DCJS will necessarily create a small increase in regulatory
compliance costs for affected firms. This increase in
compliance costs is certainly outweighed by the benefit to
public safety associaled with making the responsible
department aware of such incidents however.

ltems 4 through 6. ltems 4 through 6 are not anticipated to
have any significant economic effects.

Businesses and Entities Particularly Affected. The proposed
regulation particularty affects the approximately 800 private
security firms licensed to operate in Virginia and their
approximately 20,000 smployees.

Localities Particularly Affected. No localities are particularly
affected by the proposed regulation.

- Projected impact on Employment. The proposed regulation
is not anticipated to have a significant effect on employment.

Affects on the Use and Value of Private Property. The
proposed regulation is not anticipated to have a significant
effect on the use and value of private property.

Summary of Analysis. DPB anticipates thai the only
significant economic effect of the proposed amendments to
the current regulation will be a modest reduction in the
regulatory compliance costs associated with licensing fees.

Agency's Response to Department of Planning and Budget's
Econcmic Impact Analysis: The Department of Criminal
Justice Services concurs with the Economic Impact Analysis
prepared by the Department of Planning and Budgst as it
pertains to 6 VAC 20-170 (Regulations Relating to Private
Security Services).

Summary:

The primary proposed amendmenis incorporate
legislative changes including the definitions of "business
advertising material” and "license number” to establish
the regulatory procedure for complying with the law
requiring all advertisements by private security services
businesses to include their license number issued by
DCJS. In addition, legisiation provided individuals
requiring registration in any electronic security services
category a 90-day time period in which they may
complete the required entry-level training. Changes that
were not a result of legisiation, include provisions
allowing an option for a two-year renewal for businesses
and training schools, at a reduced fee; authorization for
DCJS to issue a temporary business license, training
school and instructor certification, provided basic
requirements are met; allowing individuals who have
completed security officer training to apply for
certification by DCJS without currently being employed
by a licensee, and establishing requirements; and
establishing the in-service ftraining requirements for
private security instructors and compliance agents.

PART [,
DEFINITIONS.

6 VAC 20-170-10. Definitions.

The following words and terms, when used in this chapter,
shall have the following meaning, unless the context clearly
indicates otherwise.

"Alarm respondent” means a natural person who responds
to the signal of an alarm for the purpose ol detecting an
intrusion of the home, business or property of the end user.

"Any person engaged in the business of providing or who
undertakes to provide" means any person who solicils
business within the Commonwealth of Virginia through
advertising, business cards, submission of bids, contracting,
public notice for private security services, directly or
indirectly, or by any other means.

"Armed security officer” means a security officer, as
defined below, who carries or has immediate access to a
firearm or other deadly weapon in the performance of his
duties.

"Armored car personnel” means persons who transport or
offer 1o transport under armed security from one place to
another, money, negotiabie instruments or other valuables in
a specially equipped motor vehicle with a high degree of
security and certainty of delivery.
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"Board” means the Criminal Justice Services HBoard or any
successor board or agency.

“Business  advertising material” meéns
directories, stalionery, business cards,
advertising and contracts.

ieiephone
local newspaper

"Central station dispatcher" means a naturai person whoe
monitors burglar alarm signal devices, burglar slarme or any
other electrical, mechanical or electronic device need to
prevent or detect burglary, theft, shoplifting, piiferage or
similar losses; used to prevent or detect intrusine: or used
primarily to summon aid for other emergencies.

“Certification” means a method of regulation whereby
cerain--individual-—persennel qualified individuals who are
eligible to be employed by a private security services
business or a private security training school ase-roquired-te

this chapter,

"Certified school director’ means the chief administrative
officer of a certitied training school.

"Cettified training school” means a training school which
provides instruction in at least the minimum training
mandated and is certitied by the department for the specific
purpose of training private security services business
personnel.

"Class" means a minimum of 50 minutes of instruction on a
particular subject.

"Combat load” means tactical loading of shotgun white
maintaining coverage of threat area.

"Compliance agemt” means a natural person who is an
owner of, or employed by, a licensed private security services
business. The compliance agent shall assure the compliance
of the private security services business with all applicable
requirements as provided in § 9-183.3 of the Code of Virginia.

*Courier" means any armed person who transports or
offers to transport from one place to another documents or
other papers, negotiable or nonnegotiable instruments, or
other small items of value that require expeditious service.

*Department” means the Department of Criminal Justice
Services or any successor agency.

‘Director” means the chief administrative officer of the
department.

"Electronic security business" means any person who
engages in the business of or undertakes to (i) install,
service, maintain, design or consult in the design of any
electronic security equipment to an end user; or {ii) respond
to or cause a response to electronic security squipment for
an end user,

“Electronic securily employee” means a natural person
who is employed by an electronic security business in any
capacity which may give him access to information
concerning the design, extent or status of an end user's
electronic security equipment.

“Electronic  security equipment' means electronic or
mechanical alarm signaling devices including burglar alarms
or holdup alarms or cameras used to detect intrusion,
concealment or theft.

“Electronic security sales represeniative” means a natural
person who sells electronic security equipment on behalf of
an electronic security business to the end user,

"Electronic security technician” means a natural person
who installs, setvices, maintains or repairs electronic security
equipment.

"Electronic security technician's assistant' means a natural
person who works as a laborer under the supervision of the
electronic security technician in the course of his normal
duties, but who may not make connections to any slectronic
security equipment.

"End user” means any person who purchases or leases
electronic security equipment for use in that person's home or
business.

"Firearms certification" means the verification of successful
completion of either initial or retraining requirements for
handgun or shotgun training, or both.

"Firm” means a business entity, regardiess of method of
organization, applying for a private security services business
license or for the renewal or reinstatement of same.

"Guard dog handier” means any person employed by a
private security services business to handle dogs in the
performance of duty in protection of property or persons.

“Incident” means an event which exceeds the normal
extent of one’s duties.

"In-service training requirement” means the compulsory in-
service training standards adopted by the Criminal Justice
Services Board for private security services business
personnel.

“License number’ means the official number issued to a
private  security services business licensed by ihe
department.

‘Licensed firm” means a business entity, regardless of
method of organization, which holds a valid private security
services business license issued by the depariment.

"Licensee” means a licensed private security services
business.

*On dufy" means that time during which a—registrant—or
unarmed—security—officer receives privafe security setvices

business personne! receive or is are entitled to receive
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compensation for employrnent for which a registration or
#ammg certlflcatlon is requwed aad»xhat—t;me—whﬂa—ha—rs

“Performance of his duties” means on duty in the context of
this chapter.

"Person" meansg any individual, group of individuals, firm,
company, corporation, partnership, business, trust,
association, or other legal entity.

"Personal protection specialist” means any person who
engages in the business of providing protection from bodily
harm to another.

"Principal” means any sole proprietor, efficer ordirssterof
tho-carparation individual listed as an officer or director with
the Virginia State Corporation Commission, member of the
association, or partner of a licensed firm or applicant for
licensure,

"Private investigator” means any person who engages In
the business of, or accepts employment to make,
investigations to obtain information on (i) ctimes or civil
wrongs; (i) the location, disposition, or recovery of stolen
property; (iii} the cause of accidents, fires, damages, or
injuries to persons or to property; or (iv) evidence to be used
before any court, board, officer, or investigative commitiee.

"Private securify services business” means any person
engaged in the business of providing, or who undertakes to
pravide, (i) armored car personnel, sscurity officers, personal
protection specialists, private investigators, couriers, or guard
dog handlers to another person under contract, express or
implied; or (ii) alarm respondents, central station dispatchers,
electronic security employees, electronic security sales
representatives or electronic security technicians to another
person under contract, express or implied.

"Private securily services business personnel” means each
employee of a private security services business who is
employed as an unarmed security officer, armed security
officet/courier, armored car personnel, guard dog handler
private investigator, personal protection specialist, alarm
respondent, central siation dispatcher, electronic security
employee, electronic securily sales representative, electronic

security technician or electronic security technician's
assistant.
"Registrant” means any individual who has met the

requirements for registration in any of the categories listed
under "registration category.”

"Reg:sr‘ratfon" means a method of reguiatlon whereby

minimum

having mer the
requirements for a particular registration category as set forth
in this chapter.

ident.vﬁes mdw:duals as

"Registration category” means any one of the following
categories: (i} armed security officer/courier, (ii) guard dog
handler, {iii} armored car personnel, {iv} private investigator,
(v} personal protection specialist, {vi) alarm respondent, (vii)

central station dispaicher, (vil) electronic security sales
representative, or {ix) electronic security technician.

"Security officer” means any parson employed by a private
security service business to safeguard and protect persons
and property or to preveni theft, loss, of concealment of any
tangible or intangible perscnal propery.

"Session” means a group of classes comprising the total
hours of mandated training in any of the following categories:
unarmed security officer, armed security officer/courier,
personal protection specialist, armored car personhel, guard
dog handler, private investigator, alarm respondent, central
station dispatcher, electronic security sales representative,
electronic security technician, electronic security technician's
assistant or compliance agent. '

“This chapter” means the Regulations Relating to Privale
Security Services (6 VAC 20-170-10 et seq.) as parn of the
Virginia Administrative Code.

“Training certification” means verification of the successful
completion of any training requirement established in this
chapter.

"Training requirement” means . any initial or retraining
standard established in this chapter.

*Unarmed security officer” means a security officer who
does not carry or have immediate access to a firearm or other
deadly weapon in the performance of his duties.

"Uniform” means any clothing with a badge, paich or
lettering which clearly identifies persons to any observer as
private security services business personnel, not law-
enforcement officers.

PAAT I
SCHEDULE COF FEES.

& VAC 20-170-20. Schedule of fees.

The fees listed below reflect the costs of handling,
issuance, and production associated with administering and
processing applications for licensing, registration, certification
and other administrative requests for services relating to
private security services.

Categories Feas
initial business license $600 85718
Business license renewal

Renewal for one year $250

Renewal for two years 3450
Initial compliance agent $126
Initial registration $76
Registration renewal _ $35
Initial training school $500
Training school renewal

Renewal for one year $250 -

Renewal for two vears $450
Instructor $91
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Instructor rerewal recertification $10 825
Initial unarmed security officer traiping cerification  §15
Unarmed security officer traiping certification renewal$15

Application for training exemption 325
Fingerprint card processing 3441
Additional registration categories 525
Replacement photo identification $15
Training completion roster form $10
Initial  Electronic  Security Technician's  Assistant
Certification $56
Electronic Security Technician's Assistant Certification
Renewal 515
Initial Electronic Security Employee Cerification $56
Electronic Security Employee Certification Renewal $15
PART iil.

RENEWAL EXTENSION PROVISIONS.

5 VAC 20-170-45. Extension of time period io meet
renewal requirements.

A.  An extension of the time period to meet renewal
requirements may be approved only under specific
circumstances which do not allow the private security
personnel, businesses, or iraining schools to complete the
required procedures within the prescribed time period. The
private security services person, business, or training school
shall be nonoperational during the period of extension. The
folfowing are the only circumstances for which extensions
may be granted:

1. liness,
2. Injury, or
3. Military service.
B. An application for extension shall:

1. Be submitted prior to the expiration date of the time
limit required for completion of the requirements; and

2. Indicate the projected date the person, business, or
training school wifl be able to comply with the
reguirements.

C. No extension will be approved for registrations,
certifications, or business licenses which have expired.

D. Applications for additional extensions may be approved
upon written request of the person, business, or training
school.

PART {#- 1V
LICENSING PROCEDURES AND REQUIREMENTS.

6 VAC 20-170-50. Initial licensing requirements for a
private security services business.

Each person seeking a license as a private security
services business shall file an application furnished by the
department accompanied by a nonrefundable application fee
of $800 $578. Each principal of the business entity applying
for a private security services business license must be listed
on the application and is responsible for the firm's adherence

to the Code of Virginia and this chapter. Each person
principal listed on the application shall ecomplete—a
Heplemental-businessliconse—applicatiorn—and submit his

fingerprint-sards—fingerprints on one completed set of two
fingerprint cards along with & the applicable nonrefundable
fea CAd- oo e 3y e ey 3 i

e Sditional .
initial business licenses shall be issued for a period not to
exceed 12 months. All forms shall be completed in full
compliance with the instructions provided by the department.
Applicants shali meet or exceed the requirements of 8-MAGC

ugh-6-YAC20-170-180 licensure as set forth

in this chapter prior to the issuance of a license.
6 VAC 20-170-55. Temporary business ficense.,

The department may issue a letter of temporary licensure
o businesses seeking licensure under § 9-183.3 of the Code
of Virginia for not more than 120 days while awaiting the
results of the state and national fingerprint search conducted
on the principals and compliance agent of the business,
provided the applicant has met the conditions and
requirements set forth in this part.

G VAC 20-170-60. Surety bond or insurance required.
Each person-seekingaliconse applicant for licensure as a

private security services business shall secure a surety bond
in the amount of $25,000, executed by a surety company
authorized to do business in Virginia, or a certificate of
insurance showing a policy of comprehensive general liability
insurance with a minimum coverage of $100,000 and
$300,000, issued by an insurance company authorized to do
business in Virginia. Documentation of continuous and
current coverage of the surety bond or comprehensive
general liability insurance must be filed and maintained with
the department.

6 VAC 20-170-75. Corporate authorization.

Each applicant for a license as a private securily services
business whose legal eniity is a corporation or limited liability
company shall, on a form provided by the department,
provide the identification number issued by the Virginia State
Corporation Commission for verification that the entity is
authorized to conduct business in the Commonwealth.

& VAC 20-170-76.
ficense number.

Private security services business

On or after July 1, 1997, ali private security services
businesses in the Commonwealifr shall include their license
number on all business advertising malerials.

6 VAC 20-170-80. Compliance agent required;
certification requirements; dulies and responsibilities;
restriction; retention and replacement.

A. Each firm applying for a license as a private secunty
services business shall designate at least one individual as
compliance agent who is not designated as compliance agent
for any other licensee. To become a compliance agent, an
individual shall file a properly completed application furnished
by the depariment and conform to the following requirements
and procedures:

1. Be a minimum of 18 years of age;

2. Have three years of managerial or supervisory
experience in a private security services business, or in a
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federal, state, or local law-enforcement agency, or in a
related field;

3. Successfully complete the applicable compliance
agent traimng requirements pursuant o E-WAG-2E-178-
BAG-M-and-6-VAG-20-170-856-J Part VI (6 VAC 20-170-
360 et saq ) of thrs chaptsr and achieve a passing score
on the compliance agent examination;

4. Be designated by a licensed private security services
business as its compliance agent;

5. Be in good standing In every jurisdiction where
licensed or registered in private security services; and

8. Submit his fingsrprints on two completed fingerprint
cards, as provided by the department, and & the
applicable nonrefundable application fee of-$426,

B. The compliance agent shall at alf times comply with the
foliowing:

1. Ensure that the licensed firm is in full compliance with
the Code of Virginia and this chapter;

2. Ensure that VSP Form-187 has been submitted io the
Virginia State Police for processing before the individual
may begin work, and maintain a copy in the firm's files
for each unarmed guavrd security officer as required by §
9-183.3 of the Code of Virginia;

3. Ensure the maintenance of documentary evidence
that each unarmed security officer or electronic security
techniclan’s assistant has complied with, or been
exempted from, the compulsory minimum training
standards as required by § 9-183.3 of the Code of
Virginia; -
4. Ensure that the licensed firm does not utilize or
otherwise employ any person as an unarmed security
officer or electronic security technician's assistant in
excess of 90 days prior ic the complstion of the
applicable compulsory minimum training standards;

5. Ensure that the licensed firm does not ulifize or
otherwise employ any person as an unarmed security
officer for which the VSP Form-167 reveals a felony or
misdemeanor conviction involving moral turpitude,
sexual offense, drug offense, physical injury or propertly
damage without written approval from the department;

6. Ensure that the licensed firm does not utilize or
otherwise employ any person as an unarmed securily
offfcer in excess of 150 days without the individual being
issued a certification as an unarmed security offfcer from
the depariment;

& 7. Maintain training, employment, and payroll records
which document the licensee’s compliance with the Code
of Virginia and this chapter;

& 8 Ensure that an irrevocable consent for the
department {0 serve as service agent for all actions filed
in any court in this Commonwealth is submitted to the
department within 30 days after the licensee moves to a
location oultside Virginia: and

4. On a form provided by the depariment, submit a
report of any incident in which any registrant has
discharged a firearm whilse on duly, excluding any
training exercise. This form shall be submitted by the
licensed firm within 10 days of completion of an
investigation of the Incident,

C. No individual shall be ceitied by the department as a
compliance agent for more than one licensea at any given
time.

D. 1. Each licensee shall maintain at least one individual
as a compliance agent who has met the requirements of
6 VAC 20-170-80 and has been certified by the
department.

2. Each licensee shall notify the depariment in writing
within 10 calendar days of the termination of employment
of a certified compliance agsnt,

3. Within 90 days of termination of the employment of a
licensee's sole remaining compliance agent, ihe licenses
shall submit the name of a new compliance agent who
has met the requirements of 6 VAC 20-170-80.

6 VAC 20-170-80. Criminal history records search.

Upon application for a privaie security services business
license, each compliance agent and principal of the applicant
firm shall submit to the department their fingerprints on one
completed set of two fingerprint cards en-forms provided by
the department, and a~$44 the appl:cable noprefundable fee
for each set sf-fir card ﬂé—the

department shali submli those fingerpnnts io the Virginia
State Police for the purpose of conducting a Virginia Criminal
History Records search and a National Criminal Records
search to determine whether the individual or individuals
have a record of conviction.

6 VAC 20-170-100. Unclassifiable fingerprint cards.

Fingerprints cards found to be unclassifiable will be
returned to the applicant. Action on the application will be
suspended pending the resubmittal of classifiable fingerprint
cards. The applicant sheuld shall be so notified in writing and
shall submit new fingerprint cards and & the applicable
nonrefundable fee of-$44 to the department belore the
processing of his application shail resume. However, no
such fee may be required if the rejected fingerprint cards are
included and attached to the new fingerprint cards when
resubmitted.

6 VAC 20-170-150. Change of ownership or entily.

A. Each licensee shall report in wtiting to the department
any change in its ownership or principals which does not
result in the creation of a new legal entity. Such written
report shall be received by the depariment within 30 days
after the occurrence of such change and shall include the
application form, fingerprint cards and & the applicable
nonrefundable fee of-$44 for each new individual.

B. A new license is required whenever there is any change
in the ownership or manner of organization of the licensed -
entity which results in the creation of a new legal entity.
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PARTM
RENEWAL-OFE LICENSE.

6 YAC 20-170-200. Renewal notiflcation; invalid license.

A. The department will mail to the last known address of
tha licensee a renewal notification. Failure of the licensee o
rensw prior to the expiration of the license shall be the sole
responsibility of the licensed firm's compliance agent.

B. A private security services business license not
renewed on or before the expiration date of the license shall
become nuli and void. Operating a private security services
business without a valid private security services business
license is a violation of § 8-183.3 of the Code of Virginia and
this-chapter, \

6 VAC 20-170-210.
reinstatement.

License expiration; renewal;

meaathsr Apphcanrs for hcense renewai shall havs the optron
of renewing for either a period not to exceed 12 months or a
period not to exceed 24 months.

B. Applications for license renewal should be received by
the department at least 30 days prior to expiration. License
renewal applications received by the department after the
expiration date shall be subject to all applicable

nonrefunclable renewal fees plus reinstatement fees,
C. The department may renew the a Elcense fer—a—pened

heense when the loEIowmg are recelved by the department
. A properly completed renewal application;

2. & The applicable nonrefundable license renewal fee

of8250; and

3. Documentation that the firm has in force a policy of
comprehensive general liability insurance or a surety
bond in at [east the amount required by 6 VAC 20-170-
60; documentation of continuous and current coverage of
the surety bond or comprehensive general liability
insurance must be filed and maintained with the
department.

D. Each compliance agent listed on the license renewal
application shall have satisfactorily completed all applicable
training requirements.

E. Each principal or compiiance agent listed on the license
renewal application shall be in good standing and free of
disciplinary action in every jurisdiction where licensed or
registered.

F. A renewal application received by the department within
180 days following the expiration date of the license shall be
accompanied by & the applicable nonrefundable renewal fee
o-$250 and a the nonrefundable reinstatement fee oF-$425.

G. No license shall be renewed or reinstated when the
application and fee are received by the department more than
180 days following the expiration date of the license. After
that date, the applicant shall meet all initial licensing
requirements.

H. The department may deny renewal or reinstatement of
a license for the same reason as it may refuse initial
licensurs or discipline a licenses.

PART V.
REGISTRATION PROCEDURES AND REQUIREMENTS.

6 VAC 20-170-230. Initial registration reguirements.

A. Individuals seeking registration under § 9-183.3 B of the
Code of Virginia shall file an application furnished by the
department which shall be accompanied by a the applicable
nonrefundable application fee of$78. Each applicant shall
meet or exceed the following requirements prior to the
issuance of a registration:

1. Be atleast 18 years of age;

2. Disclose 1o the depariment his physical address (a
post coffice box is not a physical address);

3. Submit his fingerprints on two completed fingerprint
cards enferms provided by the department; and
initial

4. {4y Successfully complete all training

requirements for each reglstratlon category requested—er
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B. Individuals seeking regisiration as alarm respondent,

central station dispatcher, electronic securily sales
representative or electronic security technician may be

employed for not more than 80 days while compleling the
compulsory minimum Iraining standards, provided the
individual has submitied his fingerprints on forms provided by
the department. An application for registration must be
received by the department within 10 calendar days of the
completion of the required training.

6 VAC 20-170-240. Additional
certifications.

categories and

have—boer—met: Ind;wduals seekmg cemffcatfon or
registration for additional categories must meet the following
requirements:

Successful complerron of apphcable enrry .fevel rrafmng
for each additional registration or certification category;

2. A properly completed application has been received
by the depariment;

3. The applicable nonrefundable fee has been received
by the department;

2- 4. Individuals may avoid paying a separate fee for
additional categories or certifications when the additional
registration categories or certifications are requested on
the application for registration renewal.

6 VAC 20-170-250. Criminal history records search,

Upon receipt of an initial registration application, the
department shall submit the fingerprints of the applicant to
the Virginia State Police for the purpose of conducting a
Virginia Criminal History Records search and a WNational
Criminal Records search io determine whether the applicant
has a record of conviction. Applicants  submitting
unclassifiable fingerprint cards shall be required to submit his
fingerprints on new fingerprint cards along with a the
applicable nonrefundable fee of-$41. However, no such fee
shall be required i the rejected fingerprint cards are included
and attached to the new fingerprint cards when resubmitted.
In the case of registration renewal application for armored car
personnel only, a Virginia Criminal History Records search
and a national criminal records search to dstermine whether
the applicant has a record of convicticn shall be conducted.

6 VAC 20-170-260. Temporary registration.

The department may issue a lefter of temporary
registration to individuals seeking registration under § 9-
183.3 of the Code of Virginia for not more than 120 days
while awaiting the results of the state and national fingerprint
search, provided the applicant has met the conditions and

requtrements set tonh |n 64%%@4—29—23@—%3@#6—‘4%

negative Pan‘ IV(6 VAC 20-170 50 et seq) of this chapter

6 VAC 20-170-270.
registrant.

Duties and responsibilities of

The registrant must at all times comply with the following:
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1. Cary a valid registration at all times while on dutys.
Individuals requiring registration as alarm respondent,
cantral station dispaicher, elsctronic securily sales
representative or slectronic security technician may be
employed for not more than 90 days while completing
the compulsory minimum training standards, provided
the individual has submitted his fingerprints on forms
provided by the department.  An application for
registration must be received by the department within
10 calendar days of the completion of the required
training.

2. Perform those duties authorized by his registration
only while employed by a licensed private security
services businass and only for the clients of the licensee.
This shall not be construed to prohibit an individual who
Is registered as an armed security officer from being
employed by a nonlicensee as provided for in § 9-183.2
of the Code of Virginias.

3. Camry or have immediate access to firearms while on
duty only while possessing a valid firearms certifications.

4. Carry a firearm concealed while on duty only with the
expressed authorization of the licensed private security
services business employing the registrant and only in
compliance with § 18.2-308 of the Code of Virginia;.

5. Transport, carry and utilize firearms while on duty only
in & manner which does not endanger the public health,
safety and welfare;.

6. Rsport to employer any incident in which the
registrant has discharged a firearm while on duty,
excluding any training exercise.

8. 7, It authorized to make arrests, make arrests in full
compliance with the jaw and using only the minimum
force necessary to effect an arrest;.

# 8. Engage in no conduct which through word, deed or
appearance suggests that a registrant is a law-
enforcement officer or other government official;.

&: 9. Display one's registration while on duty in response
to the request of a law-enforcement officer, department
persannel or client;, This shall not apply to armored car
personnel or personal protection specialists.

8. 10. Never perform any unlawful or negligent act
resulting in a loss, injury or death to any persons.

19. 11. Private security personnel are not required 1o
wear a uniform while on duty; however, if wearing the
military style or law-enforcement style uniform of a
private security licensee while on duty, that uniform must
have:

a. At least one insignia clearly identifying the name of
the licensed firm employing the individual and, except
armored car personnel, a name plate or tape bearing,
as a minimum, the individual's fast name and first and
middle initials attached on the outermost garment,
except rainwear worn only to protect from inclement
weather; and

b. No paich or other writing (i) containing the word
"police” or any other words suggesting a law-
enforcement officer, (i} containing the word "officer"
unisss used in conjunction with the words "security"; or
(iii) resembling any uniform patch or Insignia of any
duly constiiuted law-enforcement agency of  this
Commonwealth, its political subdivisions or of the
federal government. This restriction shall not apply to
individuals who are also dufy sworn special police
officers, to the extent that they may display words
which accurately represent that distinction;.

+H 12, lhilize a vehicle with flashing lights in the
conduct of a private security services business only as
provided in § 46.2-1025 of the Code of Virginia and-this
chapter '

Te

2. 13. Never use ot display the state seal of Virginia as
a part of any logo, stationery, business card, badge,
patch, insignia or other form of identification or
advertisermeant:.

13. 14. Mever display the uniform, badge or othe:r,_
insignia while not on dutys.

14. 15, 1 aatho—o pypins
Never prov:de informatton obtalned by any hcensed ftrm
and its employees to any person other than the client
who empleyed secured ihe services of the licensee ie
ebtainthat-intormalion; without the client's prior written
consent. Provision of information in response to official
requests from law-enforcement agencies, or from the
department, shall not constitute a violation of this
chapter. Provision of information to law-enforcement
agencies pertinent to criminal activity or to planned
criminal activity shall not constitute a violation of this
chapter;.

45- 16. Inform the department and compliance agent of
employer in writing within 30 days of pleading guilty or
nole contendere or being convicted or found guilty of any
felony or of a misdemeanor involving moral turpitude,
sexuzl offense, drug oifense, physical mjury or property
damage;.

15. 17. inform the department and compliance agent of
employer in writing within 30 days after having been
found guilty by any court or administrative body of
compeient jurisdiction to have viclated the private
security services business statutes or regulations of that
jurisdiction, there being no appeal therefrom or the time
for appeal having elapsed;.

4% 18. Acting as a registrard only in such a manner as
to not endanger the public health, safety and welfare;.

48: 19. Engage in no unethical, fraudulent, or dishonest
conduct;.

48. 20. Never represent as one's own a registration
issued to another individual, or represent oneself as
certified compliance agent of a licensee, training school,
schoo! director or instructor unless so certified by the
depariment;.

20. 21. Never falsify, or aid and abet others in falsifying,
training records for the purpose of obtaining a license,
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registration,  unammed--—seoeurity--——officer—training
certification, or certification as a compliance agent,
training school, school director or instructor.

6 VAC 20-170-280. Replacement photo identification.

Registered individuals seeking a replacement
identification shall submit to the department:

photo

1. A properly completed application; and

2. A The applicable nonrefundable processing fee of

6 VAC 20-170-340. Registration expiration, renewal,
reinstatement;-extensien-of time-period toreview.

A. The department will mail a renewal noiification to the
last known address of the registrant. Failure of the registrant
to renew prior to the expiration date of the registration shall
be the sole responsibility of the individual registrant.

B. A private security services registration not renewed on
or before the expiration date of the registration shall become
null and void. Performing private security services duties
withdut a valid private security services registration is a
violation of the Code of Virginia.

C. 1. All registrations issued aon or after July 1, 1993, shall
be valid for a period not to exceed 12 months.

2. All registrations issued prior to July 1, 1993, shall
expire on the expiration date of the registration.

D. 1. Applications for registration renewal should be
received by the department at least 30 days prior to
expiration. A registration renewal application received by
the department after the expiration date shall be subject
to all applicable nonrefundable renewal fees plus
nonrefundable reinstatement fees.

2. The department may renew the registration for a
period not to exceed 12 months from the expiration date
of the expiring registration when each applicant meets or
exceeds the following requirements:

a. Submit A properly completed renewal application to
is received by the depariment;

b. Successfully compleie the applicable training or
retraining requirements for each registration category
and each training certification requested; and

c. A The applicable nonrefundable registration
renewal fee o£$36 is received by the department.

E. 1. Registration renewal applications received within 180
days following the expiration date shall be accompanied
by a the applicable nonrefundable renewal fee of-$35
and a the applicable nonrefundable reinstatement fee of

2. No registration shall be renewed or reinstated when
the application for renewal and fee are received by the
department after 180 days following the expiration date
of the registration. After that date, the applicant shall
‘meet then current initial registration requirements.

3. The date on which the application and fee are
received by the department shall determine whether the
registrant is eligible for renewal or reinstatermnent or is
required to apply for initial registration.

4. The departiment may deny renewal or reinstatement
of a registration for the same reason as it may refuse
deny initial registration or discipline a registrant.

,;ppllaats s for—add tuel |af ' exie 1549 ’S' may —be
6 VAC 20-170-350.
renewal.

Firearms certification, expiration,

A. Firearms certification is required for all registrants who
cary or have immediate access 1o a firearm whife on duty.

A= B. An individual who has successfully completed the
handgun training requirements may submii a properly
completed application for registration with handgun
certification.

1. Handgun certification will be documented on the
registration and shall expire on the expiration date of the
registration.

2. The department may grant a handgun certification

a. Upon receipt of a properly completed application;
and

b. Satisfactory completion of the applicable handgun
training requirements.

B: C. An individual who has successfully met the handgun
training requirements, and has successfully completed the

shotgun training requirement, may submit a properly
completed application for registration with shoigun
certification.
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1. Shotgun certification will be documented on the
registration and shall expire on the expiraticn date of the
registration,

2. The department may grant a shotgun certitication

a. Upon receipt of a properly completed application;
and

k. Satisfactory completion of the applicable shotgun
training requirements.

S D. Al handgun and shotgun certifications shall be
issued for a period not to exceed 12 months and shall
become null and wvoid on the expiration date of the
registration. "Firearms endorsements" issued prior to July 1,
1993, shall become null and void on the expiration date of the
endersement,

B: E. The depariment may renew handgun and shotgun
certifications for a period not to exceed 12 months from the
expiration date of the registration:

1. Upon receipt of a properly completed registration
renewal application;

2. Satisfactory completion of ali applicable entry level
training, firearms retraining and applicable in-service
training requirements for all registration categories; and

3. A The applicable nonrefundable renewal fee ot-$35 is
received by the department. (Gnre-$36 The applicable
fee for registration renewal includes firearms
certifications if all requirements have been met.)

E- F. The department may deny renewal of a firearms
cettification for the same reason as it may retuse deny initial
firearms certification or discipline a registrant.

PART VI.
CERTIFICATION PROCEDURES AND REQUIREMENTS.

& VAC 20-170-360. Initial unarmed security officer
training certification requirements.

A. Each person employed or utilized as an unarmed
security officer shall successfully complete the compulsory
minimum training standards for unarmed security officers and
make application to the department for the issuance of an
unarmed security officer certification, except that such
persons may be employed for not more than 90 days while
completing the compulsory minimum training standards. For
unarmed security officers employed by a ficensed private
security services business, the department must receive an
application for certification within 120 days of employment.

B. Individuals seeking unarmed security officer certification
shall file an application provided by the department which
shall be accompanied by a the applicable nonrefundable
processing fee ef-$45. Each applicant shall meet or exceed
the following requirements prior to issuance of an unarmed
security officer centification:

1. Be at least 18 years of age;

2. Disclose to the department a physical address (a post
office box is not a physical address); and

3. Successfully complete the initial unarmed security
officer training requirement and, if appropriate, in-service
training requirements for unarmed security officers;-and.

C. Each person employed or utilized as an unarmed
security officer on or after July 13, 1994, shall comply with the
unarmed security officer training certification requirements.

6 VAC 20-170-370. Initial electronic security technrician's
assistant certification requirements.

A, No person shall be employed or utilized as an
electronic  security technician's assistant untl he has
submitted a fingerprint processing application and his
fingerprints on two cards provided by the deparment.

B. Each person employed or utiized as an electronic
security technician's assistant shall successfully complete the
compuisory minimum fraining standards for electronic
security technician's assistants and make application to the
department for the issuance of an electronic security
technician's assistant certification, except that such persons
may be employed for not more than 90 days while completing
the compulsory minimum training standards.

C. Individuals seeking certification as an electronic
security technician's assistant shall file an application
provided by the department which shall be accompanied by a
the applicable nonrefundable processing fee ef-$58. Each
applicant shall meet or exceed the following reguirements
prior to the issuance of an electronic security technician's
assistant certification:

1. Be at least 18 years of age;

2. Disclose to the department his physical address {a
post office box is not a physical address),

3. Submit his fingerprints on two completed fingerprint
cards provided by the department; and

4. Successfully complete the initial electronic security
technician's assistant training requirement.

6 VAC 20-170-380. Initial electronic security employee
certification requirements.

A. No person shall be employed or ulilized as an
electronic security employee untii he has submitied the
follewing to the department:

1. A fingerprint processing application with his
fingerprints on two fingerprint cards provided by the
department; and

2. A certification application indicating the applicant has
met or exceeded these requiremenis:

a. Be at least 18 years of age;

b. Disclose to the depariment his physical address (a
post office box is not a physical address); and
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¢. A The applicable nonrefundable application fee of

B. Each person must receive a temporary authorization
letter from the department before being employed or utilized
as an electronic security employee.

6 VAC 20-170-390. Criminal history records search.

B. Upon receipt of an initial application for certification as
electronic security technician's assistant or electronic security
employee, the department shall submit the fingerprints of the

applicant to the Virginia State Police for the purpose of .

conducting a Virginia Criminal History Records search and a
National Criminal Records search to determine whether the
applicant has a record of conviction. Applicants submilting
unclassifiable fingerprint cards shall be required to submit his
fingetprints on new fingerprint cards along with a the
applicable nonrefundable fee et-$4+. However, no such fee
shall be required if the rejected fingerprint cards are included
and attached to the new fingerprint cards when resubmiited.

6 VAC 20-170-400. Duties and responsibilities of certified
uniarmed  security  officers, electronic  security
technician's assistants, and electronic security
employees.

The wunarmed security officer, electronic security
technician's assistant and electronic security employee must
at all times comply with the following:

1. Carry a valid certification card at all times while on
duty except under the provisions of § 9-183 D or § 9-183
F of the Code of Virginia;

2. Perform those duties authorized by this chapter only
while employed by a licensed private security services
business and only for the clients of the licensee. This
shall not be construed to prohibit an individual who is
employed as an unarmed security officer from being
employed by a nonlicensee as provided for in § 8-183.2
of the Code of Virginia;

3. Never carry or have immediate access to firearms
while on duty;

4. Engage in no conduct which through word, deed or
appearance falsely suggests that an unarmed security
officer, elecironic security ftechnician’s assistant or
elecitronic security employee is a law-enforcement officer
or other government official;

5. Display one's certification while on duty in response to
the request of a law-enforcement officer, department
personnel or client;

6. Never perform any unlawful or negligent act resulting
in a loss, injury or death to any person;

7. Private security personnel are not required to wear a
uniform while on duty; however, if wearing the law-
enforcement style or military style uniform of a private
security licensee while on duty, that uniform must have:

a. At least one insignia clearly identifying the name of
the licensed firm employing the individual and a name
plate or tape bearing, as a minimurn, the individual's
last name and first and middle initials attached on the
outermost garment, except rainwear worn only to
protect from inclement weather; and

b. No patch or other writing (i) containing the word
"police” or any other words suggesting a law-
enforcement officer; (ii} containing the word "officer”
unless used in conjunction with the word "security"; or
(iiy resembling any uniform patch or insignia of any
duly constituted law-enforcement agency of this
Commonwealth, its political subdivisions or of the
federal government. This restriction shall not apply o
individuals who are also duly swormn special police
officers, to the extent that they may display words
which accurately represent that distinction;

8. Utilize a vehicle with flashing lights in the conduct of a
private security services business only as provided in §
46.2-1025 of the Code of Virginia;

9, Never use or display the state seal of Virginia as a
part of any logo, stationery, business card, badge, patch,
insignia or other form of identification or advertiserment;

10. "Never display the uniform, badge or other insignia
while not on duty;

11. Inform the department in writing within 30 days of
pleading guilty or nolo contendere or being convicted or
found guilty of any felony or of a misdemeanor involving
moral turpitude, sexual offense, drug offense, physical
injury or property damage;

12. Inform the depariment in wriling within 30 days after
having been found guilty by any court or administrative
body of competent jurisdiction to have violated the
private security services business statutes or regulations
of that jurisdiction, there being no appeal therefrom or
the time for appeal having elapsed;

13. Acting as an unarmed security officer, elecironic
securily technician's assistant or elecironic security
employee only in such a manner as to not endanger the
public hea!ih, safety and welfars;

14. Engige in no unethical, fraudulent, or dishonest
conduct;

15. Never represent as one's own cerlification issued to
another individual, or representing oneself as a certified
compliance agent of a licensee, school direcior or
instructor unless certified as such by this depariment;

16. Never falsify, or aid and abet others in falsifying,
training records for the purpose of obtaining a license,

registration,  unarmed— security —officer—training
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certification, or cerification as a compliance agent,
training school, school director or instructor.

8 VAC 20-170-430. Replacement photo identification.

Unarmed security officers, electronic security technician's
assistants or elecironic security employees seeking a
replacement photo identification shail submit to the
department:

1. A properly completed application; and
2. A The applicable nonrefundable processing fee 95—34-5

6 VAC 20-170-480.
reinstatement.

Certification expiration, renewal,

A. The department will mail a renewal notification to the
last known address of the individual. Failure of the individual
o renew prior to the expiration date of the certification shali

" be the sole responsibility of the individual.

B. A certification not renewed on or before the expiration
date of the eemﬁsate cemﬁca!‘:on shall become null and vold

C. A certification shall be valid for a period not lo exceed
24 months from the date of issue. All such cerdlifications shall
expire on the expiration date of the certification.

D. 1. An application for certification renewal must should
be received by the depariment at least 30 days prior to
expiration. Certification applications received by the
department after the expiration date shall be subject to
all applicable nonrefundable renewal fees plus
reinstatement fees.

2. The department may renew a cerlification for a period
not to exceed 24 months from the explratlon date of the
certification:

a. Upon receipt of a properly completed renewal
application;

b. Satisfactory complstion of the in-service training
requirements; and

c. A The applicable nonrefundable renewal fee oi-§15
is received by the department,

E. 1. Renewal applications received within 180 days
following the expiration date shall be accompanied by a
the applicable nonrefundable renewal fee of-315 and a
the applicable nonrefundable reinstatement fee of $2:80.

2. No certification shall be renewed or reinstated when
the application for renewal and fee are received by the
department after 180 days following the expiration date
of the certification. After that date, the applicant shall
meet then current initial certification requirements.

3. The date on which the application and fee are
received by the department shall determine whether the
individual is eligible for renewal or reinstatement or is
required to apply for initial certification.

4, The department may deny renewal or reinstatement
of a certification for the same reason as it may refuse the
initial certification or discipline an unarmed security
officer.

PART Vil.
COMPULSORY MINIMUM TRAINING STANDARDS FOR
PRIVATE SECURITY SERVICES BUSINESS PERSONNEL,

Article 1.
Registration/Certification Category Requirements.

& YAC 20-170-470. Entry level training.

Each person employed by a private security services
business or applying to the department for registration as an
armed security officer/courier, personal protection specialisi,
armored car personnel, guard dog bhandler, privaie
investigator, alarm respondent, central station dispaicher,
electronic security sales representative, or electronic security
technician as defined by § 9-183.1 of the Cods of Virginia, or
applying 1o the department for training certification as an
unarmed security officer or cerlification as an electronic
security technician’s assistant as required by § 9-183.3 of the
Code of Virginia, or for cenification as a compliance agent as
required by § 9-183.3 of the Code of Virginia, who has not
met the compulsory minimum training standards prior o July
13, 1894, must meet the compulsory minimum training
standards herein establrshed unless prowded for o-ahsiwase
in accordance with & ' 3 s

490-of this-ohapter 6 VAG 20170475,
6 VAC 20-170-475. In-service training.

A. Each person registered with the depariment as an
armed securily officer/courier, personal protection speacialisi,
armored car personnel, guard dog handler, private
investigator, afarm respondent, central stalion dispaichesr,
elecironic securily sales represeniative, electronic sectirify
fechnician, or applying to the department for cedificalion as
an unarmed securily officer or electronic security technician's
assistant, or certified by the department lo act as a
compliance ageni, shall complete the compulsory in-service
training standard once during each 24-month period of
registration or certification as determined by the deparimeni.

B. Compliance agent.

1, Individuals who completed eniry leve! training afier
July 1, 1993, must complete in-service training within
each 24-month period following the initial entry level
training date.

2. Individuals who were ceriified as compliance agsnis
prior to July 1, 1993, must complete compliance ageni
in-service training within each 24-month period folfowing
the original in-service training date.

3. In-service training must be compleled within 12
months prior to the established training due date.

4. Individuals who fail to complete in-service iraining
prior to the established fraining due date may complsts
in-setvice training within 90 days after the established
fraining due dafe if a completed in-service training
enroliment application and a $25 delinquent training fea
is received by the department.
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C. Instrucior.

1. Aff private security instructors Initially certified prior to
December 31, 1994, must complete instructor in-service
iraining prior to his certification expiration in the year
1997 and thereaffer within each 36-month period of
cerlification.

2. Al private securily instructors initially centified after
January 1, 1985, but before December 31, 1996, must
complete instruclor In-sarvice iraining prior to his
certification expiration in the year 2000 and thereafter
within gach 36-month period of certification.

3. Al private security instructors initially ceriified on or
after January 1, 1897, must complete instructor in-
service iralning within each 36-month period following
ceiification.

6 YAC 20-170-480. Exemplions.

A. Persons who meet the statutory requirements as set
forth in § 9-182 of the Code of Virginia may apply for a partial
exemption from  the compulsory training standards.
individuals requesting such partial exemption shall file an
application furiished by the department and include the
applicable nonrefundable application fee of$26. The
deparirmeri may issue such pariial exemption on the basis of
individual quaiifications as supported by required
documentation. Those applying for and recelving exemptions
must comply with all regulations promulgated by the board.
Each person receiving a partial exemption must apply to the
depariment for registration within 12 months from the date of
issuance, otherwise the partial exemption shall become null
and void, The following are the requirements for qualification
for a partial exemplion from the compulsory training
standards:

1. Entry level raining.

+ a. Persons having previous employment previously
employed as law-enforcement officers who have not
terminated or bean terminated from said employment
more than five years prior to the application date must
submit official documentation of the foliowing with the
application for partial exemption:

& (1) Completion of law-enforcement entry level
training, and

. {(?) Five continuous years of law-enforcement
employment provided such employment as a law-
enforcement officer was not terminated due to
misconduct or incompetence.

2: b Perzons having previous fraining or employment
in any of the classifications defined in § 9-183.1 of the
Code of Virginia must submit official documentation of
ihe following with the application for partial exemption:

# (1} Completion of previous private security
training, which has been approved by the
department and which meets or exceeds the
compuisory minimum fraining standards
promulgated by the board, or

b- (2} Five years continuous employment in the
category for which partial exemption is soughi,
provided such employment was not terminated due
to misconduct or incompetence.

2. In-service iraining. Persons who have compieted
training which meels or exceeds the compulsory
minimum tralning standards promulgated by the board
for the in-service lraining required for the individuals
particular category may be authorized credit for such
training, provided the training has been completed within
24 months of the expiration date of the registration
perfod during which in-service ftraining is required.
Official documentation of the following must accompany
the application for partial in-service training credit:

a. Job-relaled training sessions which meet or exceed
Department of Criminal Justice Services standards
and are offered by institutions, asscciations, or private
firms may be approved for partial in-service training
credit.

b. Applications for partial in-service training credit
shall include information relating to the sponsoring
organization and a copy of the training schedule. The
schedule shall contain the dates, times, subject matter
and instructor for each session.

3. Prior firearms credit. Persons having previous
department-approved  firearms  training may be
authorized credit for such training which meets or
exceeds the compulsory minimum training standards for
private security services business personnel, provided
such training has been completed within the 12 months
preceding the date of application. Official docurnentatiorn
of completion of department approved firearms lraining
and qualification at a Virginia criminal justice agency,
academy or correclional depariment must accompany
the application for partial in-service iraining credit.
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> (Repealed.)

Compulsory minimum entry fevei

6 VAC 20-170-520.
tralning by category.

Total haurs do not include time for examinations, practical
exercises and range qualification. Refer to 6 VAC 20-170-
540 for the minimum training requirements for each category.

Unarmed security officer - 16 hours

Armed security officer/coursier - 24 hours
Armored car personnel - 20 hours

Guard dog handler - 28 hours

Private investigator - 60 hours

Persanal protection sbecial.ist - 68 hours
Unarmed-Alarm respondent - 18 hours
Armed-alarm-respondent—24-hours

Central station dispatcher - 8 hours

Electronic security sales representative - 8 hours
Electronic security technician - 14 hours
Electronic security technician's assistant - 4 hours
Compliance agent - 6 hours

6 VAC 20-170-530. Compulsory minimum in-service

training by category.
Total hours do not include time for examinations. Refer to 6
VAC 20-170-550 for the minimum in-service training

requirements for each category.
Unarmed security officer - 4 hours
Armed security officer/courier - 4 hours
Armored car personnel - 4 hours
Guard dog handier - 8 hours
Private investigator - 8 hours
Personal protection specialist - 16 hours
Yrarmed Alarm respondent - 4 hours
Arrmed-alarm-respondeant-—4-Hours
Central station dispatcher - 4 hours
Electronic security sales representative - 4 hours
Electronic security technician - 8 4 hours
Electronic security technician's assistant - 2 hours
Compliance agent - 4 hours

Instructor - 8 hours

& VAC 20-170-540.
reguiremanis.

Minimum entry level training

A, Core subjects. The entry level curriculum for unarmed
security offlcer armed secunty officer/courier, guard dog
handler, urarme £FA - fe--armed and alarm
respondent sets forth the following arsas identitied as:

Core-sublests

Administration and security orientation/regulations - 2
hours

b eyt gpeee
Trots

l.egal authority and arrest authority and procedures - 6
hours

Emergency and defensive procedures - 8 hours
Written examination

Total hours (excluding exam) - 16 hours

B. Armed security officar/courier.

1. Core subjects - 16 hours

2. Entry level handgun training (refer to Article 2 (6 VAC
20-170-615 ot seq.) of this part) - 8 hours

3. Entry level shotgun training, If applicable (refer to
Article 2 (6 VAC 20-170-615 et seq.) of this part) - T hour

Total hours {excluding examination, shotgun} classroom
instruction and range qualification) - 24 hours

C. Armored car personnel. _ o
1. Armored car otientation/state regulations - 3 hours
2. Armored car procedures - 3 hours

3. Whritten examination

4. Entry-level firearms training {6\AG-20-170-540-B)
(refer to Ariicle 2 (6 VAC 20-170-615 st seq. ) of this part)
- 8 hours

Total hours (excluding
quaiification) - 20 hours

examinations and range
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D. Guard dog handler.

1.  Prerequisites for guard dog handler entry levei
{official documentation required):

a. Successful completion of the core subjects
curriculum (6-VAG20-470-540 subsection A of this
section) - 16 hours

b. Successful completion of basic obedience training

2.  Following successful complstion of the above
prerequisites, each guard dog handler must also comply
with the following requirements:

a. Demonstration of proficiency. The student must
demonstrate his proficiency in the handling of a
security canine to satisfy the minimum standards - 2
hours

Evaluation by a certified private security guard dog
handler instructor and
Basic obedience retraining

b. Guard dog handler orieniation/legal authority - 4

 hours
c. Canine patrol techniques - 6 hours
d. Written examination '
Total hours (excluding examinations) - 28 hours
E. Private investigator,
. investigator orientation/regulations - 8 hours
. Collecting and reporting information - 6 hours

1
2
3. General investigative technigues - 20 hours
4, Interviewing technigues - 8 hours

5

Criminal law, procedure and rules of evidence - 8
hours

6. Civil law, procedure and rules of evidence - 10 hours

7. Wrillen—comprehensive-examipation Three practical

field exercises

8. Fhree-practicaHlicld-exercises Written comprehensive

examination

Total hours in classroom {excluding written eéxamination
~ and practical exercises) - 60 hours

F. Personal protection specialist.  Each—personal
toct .y I \ b with 4

1. Personal protection orientation - 4 hours

2. Assessment of threat and protectee vulnerability - 8
hours

3. Legal authority and issues - 16 hours
4, Protecfive detail operations - 28 hours
5. Emergency procedures - 12 hours

a. CPR- 8 hours

b. Emergency first aid
c. Defensive preparedness
d. Emergency relocation
6. Performance evaluation - Five practical exercises

7. Written examination

Total hours (excluding written examination and
performance evaluation) - 68 hours

hours

L H. FElectronic security subjects. The enifry level
electronic security subjects curriculum for central station
dispatcher, electronic securily sales representative, electronic
security technician and electronic secunity technician’s
assislant sets forth the following areas identified as:

1. Orientation
2. Code of Virginia
3. Regulations Relating to Private Security Services
4. Intreduction to electronic sécurity
5. Written examination
Total hours (excluding examination) - 4 hours
< I. Central station dispatcher,

1. Electronic security subjects (refer to 8- ¥AG-20-170~
546-d subsection H of this section) - 4 hours

2. Central station dispatcher subjects - 4 hours
a. Duties and responsibilities

b. Communications skills
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¢. Emergency procedures
d. False alarm prevention
3. Written examination
Total hours {exctuding examination) - 8 hours
¥- J. Electronic security sales representative.

1. Electronic security subjects (refer to 8- MAG-20-170-
540-d subsection H of this section) - 4 hours

2. Electronic security sales representative subjects - 4
hours

a. Duties and responsibilities
b. System design/components
¢. False alarm prevention
3. Writlen examination
Total hours {(excluding examination) - 8 hours
& K. Electronic security technician. Each—slesukenie
: - ' -
1. Electronic security subjects {refer to 6-VAC-20-170-
540-J subsection H of this section) - 4 hours

2. Electronic security technician subjects - 10 hours
. Duties and responsibilities
. Electronics

. Controf pansls

o O o @

. Protection devices and application

e. Test equipment

—+

Power and grounding
g. National electrical code
h. Job safety
i. False alarm maragement prevention
3. Written examination
Total hours (excluding examination) - 14 hours
M- L. Compliance agent.

1. Industry overview and responsibilities: regulations
review, business practices, ethical standards, records
requirements and other related issues - 6 hours

2. Written examination

Totat hours (excluding written examination) - 6 hours

6 VAC 20-170-550.
training requirements.

Compulsory minimum in-service

A. Core subjects. Unarmed security officer/armed secuirity
officer/courier/unarmed alarm  respondent/ammed—alarm
tespondent.

Legal authority/regutations-review - 2 hours
Job related training - 2 hours
Total hours - 4 hours
B. Armored car personnel.
Legal authority - 2 hours
Armored car precedures - 2 hours
Total hours - 4 hours
- C. Guard dog handler.

Basic obedience evaluation and retraining - 2 hours

Legal authority/regulationsreview - 2 hours
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- -Job related training - 2 hours Techniques of insiruction delivery including practical

e . exercises - 6 hours
Canine patrol techniques - 2 hours

Total hours - 8 hours

6 VAC 20-170-560.
(Repecaled.)

Total hours - 8 hours

D. Private investigator.

Legal authority/issues-{edl—and-eriminaliregulations

reviewcivil and criminal law issues - 4 hours
Investigative procedures - 4 hours
Total hours - 8 hours

E. Personal protection specialist
Regulationsreview—1-houy
Legal authority and issues - 2 hours
Protective detail operations - 10 hours
Emergency procedures - 3 hours
Total hours - 16 hours

F. Central station dispatcher
~od ! . . )
Job related training/false alarm pravention --3-howrs
Total hours - 4 hours

G. Electronic security sales representative
Code-andregulationreview--1-hour
Job related training/false alarm prevention —3-hows
Total hours - 4 hours

H. Electronic securily technician
Code-and-regulation-review—-hour
Job related training/false alarm prevention ~3-hows
Total hours - 4 hours

I. Electronic security techniciah’s assistant
Job related training
Tofal hours - 2 hours

J. Compliance agent. _
Fotal—4-hours

Industry overview and responsibiliies, regulations
review, business practices, ethical standards, records
requiremenis, and other related issues

Total hours - 4 hours
K. Instructor.

Regulations review, legal issues, ethical standards
records requirements and other related topics - 2 hours
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6 VAC 20 170 590 Personal- protestion--spescialist

6 VAC 20-170-600. Guard-deg-handierbasic-obedience
eva»luahenaad—re#mﬁng»%hems (Repealed.)

6 VAC 20-170-610.
(Repealed.)

Nficati training.
) , | toni Y
8T . . . (o 5 Ineludi
Yotat-hours{exsluding testing)—8-hours
Article 2.
Firearms Training Requirements.

6§ VAC 20-170-615.

Entry level firearms training
requirements,

A. Firearms certification is required for all private security
services business personnel who carry or have immediate

access lo a firearm while on duty. Each person who carries
or has immediate access to firearms while on duly shall
qualify with each type and caliber of firearm to which he has
access.

B. Handgun training.

1. The entry level handgun classroom training will
emphasize but not be limited to:

a. The proper care of the weapon;

b. Civil liability of the use of firearms;

c. Criminal fiability of the use of firearms,

d. Weapons retention;

e. Deadly force;

f. Justifiable deadly force;

g. Range safety;

h. Practical firearms handling; and

i. Principles of marksmanship.
Total hours (excluding written examination) - 8 hours
2. Written examination required.

3. No minimum hours are required for range
gualification. The purpose of the range qualification
course is fo provide practical firearms lraining fo
individuals desiring to become armed private security
services business personnel.

a. Prior to the date of range fraining, it will be the
responsibility of the school director to ensure that all
students are informed of the proper attire and
equipment to be worn for the firing range portion of the
training.

b. Ammunition - 60 rounds - factory loaded semi-
wadcutter or duty ammunition may be used for
practice or range qualification or both.

¢. Target - Sithouette (M-8, Transitional Target 2, full-
size B21, B21x or B-27) - Alternate largets may be
utitized with prior approval by the depariment.

d. With prior approval of the department, a reasonable
modification of the firearms course may be approved
to accommodate qualification on indoor ranges.

e. A cerntified firearms instructor must be on the range
during all phases of firearms training. There shall be
one firearms instructor per four shooters on the line.

f. Directional draw holsters only.
g. Scoring.

(1} M-8, Transitional Target 2, B21, B21x, B27 iarget
- (use indicated K-value) 8, 9, 10 X rings - value 5
points, 7 ring - value 4 points, other hiis on
silhouette - value 3 points: divide points scored by
maximum possible score o obtain decimal and
convert to percentage, e.g., 225 + 300 =.75 = 75%.
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{2} Q targets - any fired round striking the bottie area

to include its marked border - value 5 points - any

fired round striking outside the bottle area - value 3
points.

h. Course: Virginia Private Security Course of Fire for
Handguns.

{Strong/weak hand refers to the primary hand used in
firing the weapon. The opposite hand may be used for
support.) '

Target - Silhoustte (B21, B21X, B27), 60 rounds

Double action, except for single action semi-automatic
weapons.

Minimum qualifying score - 75%
Phase 1 -- 3 yards, point shoulder position, 18 rounds:
Load 6 rounds and holster loaded weapon.

On command, draw and fire 2 rounds (3 seconds)
repeat.

Load 6 rounds and holster Ioaded weapon.

On command, draw and fire 6 rounds with strong
hand.

Unload, reload 6 rounds and fire 6 rounds with weak
hand (25 seconds).

Phase 2 -- 7 yards, point shoulder posmon 24 rounds:
Load 6 rounds and holster loaded weapon

On command, draw and fire 1 round (2 seconds),
repeat. ' B

Load 6 rounds and holster loaded weapon.

On comimand, draw and fire 2 rounds (3 seconds)
repeat.

Load 6 rounds and holster loaden weapon.

On command, draw and fire.6 rounds, refoad 6 rounds,
fire 6 rounds (30 seconds).

Phase 3 -- 15 yards, 70 seconds, 18 rounds:
Load & rounds and holster loaded weapon.

On command, assume knesling position, draw and fire
& rounds with strong hand.

Assume standing position, unfoad, reload and fire 6
rounds from weak hand barticade position.

Unload, reload and fire 6 rounds from strong hand
barricade position (70 seconds).

{Kneeling position may be fired using barricade
posmon )

C. Shotguntraining.

1. The entry level shotgun classroom instruction will
-emphasize but not be limited to:

a. Safe and proper use and handling of shotgun;

b, Nomenciature; and
c. Posib‘bns and combat loading techniques.
Total hours - 1 hour

2. Neo minimum hours required for range firing. The
purpose of the range firing course is to provide practical
shotgun training to those individuals who carry or have
immediate access to a shotgun in the performance of
their duties.

3. For certification, 12 gauge, double aughi “00”
buckshot ammunition shall be used. Five rounds.

4. Scoring - 70% of available pellets must be within
silhouette.

5. Course: Virginia Private Security Course of Fire for
Shotguns.

No.
Distance  Posifion Rounds Target Time
Combat . Standing/ B-27
load & fire * 15 Yds.  Shoulder 3 Sithouette 20 sec.
Combat Knaeling/ B-27
load & fire 25 Yds.  Shoulder 2 Sithouette 15 sec.

6. A cerlified firearms instructor must be on the range
during all phases of firearms range training. There shall
be one centified firearms instructor per four shooters on
the line.

D. . Personal- protection specialist advanced handgun
training. In order to be eligible for the personal protection
specialist advanced handgun course of fire, each personal
protection specialist student must have completed entry level
handgun training and qualified on the Virginia private security
course of fire -for handgun by shooting a minimum score of
85%.

1. The entry level personal protection specialist
advanced handgun classroom tra:nfng will emphasize
but not be limited to:

a. Weapon selection and nomenclature;
b. Safety and functioning;
¢. Fundamentals of marksmanship review; and

d  -Decision making for the personal protection
specialist.

Total hours (excluding written examination} - 24 hours
2. Whritten examination required. '

3. No minimum hours required for range qualification.
The purpose of this course of fire is fo assess and
improve the tactical, protection-refated shooting skills for
personal protection specialist candidates seeking
ceftification to be armed. This course entails five
increasingly challenging slages of advanced firearms
exercises with a 92% score required for qualification,

The advanced handgun course of fire is comprised of the
following exercises:
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Shoot/don't shoot judgment;
Turn and fire drills;
Failure to stop drills;

Muiltipie target drills; and

@ o 6 T D

Judgmental shooting.

4. For all range practicals {stage two through stage
four), the student will fire at a man-size silhouette target
with the following requirements:

a. 4" diameter circle in head:

. 8" diameter circle in chest/body area;

b
c. Center points of circles - 13% inches apart;

. All rounds fired must hit within these circles; and
e

. Minimum 92% qualification score = 25 rounds lfotal
requiring 23 hits.

5. Scoring:
a. 25 points (1 round is good for 1 point).

b. 92% of shots must be "in circle” hits for a passing
grade (2 misses affowed on total course).

c. Shots not taken during stage five, when a "no-
shoot" situation is presented scores a poinl, just as an
accurate shot in a hostile situation.

d. 92% is 23 of 25 possible.

6. A certified personal protection specialist firearms
instructor must be on the range during all phases of
personal protection specialist advanced handgun
training. There shall be one certified personal protection
specialist firearms instructor per four students.

7. Virginia private security course of fire for personal
protection specialist.

a. Stage One: Shoot/don't shoot drill. Stage one of
the personal protection specialist advanced handgun
course of fire is conducted in a classroom using a 16
mm film or video cassette tape of firearms combat
scenarios to assess the student's decision making
capablility given job-related shool/don’t shoot incidents.

After the interaction of the scenarfo, the students must
explain all their commands and actions.

Dry-fire response from a weapon rendered safe should
be incorporated into the scenatio interaction.

b. Siage Two: Tum-and-fire drill. Stage two of the
personal protection specialist advanced handgun
course of fire is held at a firing range and consists of
turn-and-fire drills from varying distances (straight
draw hip holsters only).

Alt handguns are loaded with six rounds of ammunition
and safely holstered. Shoolers are positioned with
their backs to the targets, facing the instructor up-
range. The instructor will command all shooters to
walk alt a normal pace, directly away from the farget.

Upon the command "fire,” the students must quickly
furn while acquiring a firm grip on the weapon. Once
facing the target and in a slable position, they must
safely draw and fire two rounds at the designated
target circle. After shooting, while facing the target,
the student must reholster safely, then turn around to
face up-range, ready to confinue the exercise. The
*fire" commands will be called at 3-5 yards, 5-7 yards,
and then 8-10 yards.

¢. Stage Three: Failure to stop drill. Stage three of
the personal protection specialist advanced handgun
course of fire is held at a firing range and consists of
failure to stop drills fired from the seven-yard line
(straight draw hip holsters only).

All handguns are loaded with six rounds of ammunition
and are safely holstered. Shooters are positioned with
their backs to the targets, facing the instructor up-
range. The instructor will command all shooters to
walk at normal pace, directly away from the larget.
Upon the command “fire,” given at approximately the
seven-yard line, each shooter must safely fum around
while acquiring a firm grip on their weapon as
performed in the previous drill. Once facing the target,
the students will draw and fire iwo rounds at the 8-inch
body circle, and then one immediate round to the 4-
inch head circle.  The student will then safely
reholster. The drill will be repeated three times.

d Stage Four: Multiple target identification drill.
Stage four of the personal protection specialist
advanced handgun course of fire is held at a firing
range and consists of multiple target identification drills
fired from varying distances (straight draw hip holsters

only).

Each shooter will line up on a set of three targets.
Only two shooters at one time can complete this
exercise on a standard 10-12 station range. However,
smaller ranges may allow for only 1 shoofer at a time.

Each handgun is loaded with 8 rounds of ammunition
and safely holstered. The shooters are positioned with
their backs to the targets, facing the instructor up-
range. The instructor will command all shooters to
walk at a normal pace, directly away from the targets.
Upon the command "left," ‘"right," or "center,” the
student must again turn around safely while
establishing a firm grip on the weapon. Then, once
stable, the student must quickly draw and fire 2 rounds
at the designated circle on the "called” farget ("L," "R,"
"C"). Then, the shooter, while still facing the targets,
must safely reholster, turn around to face up-range,
and continue the exercise. Each two round pair must
be fired within 4 seconds of the called command.
Direction commands will be called at 3-5 yards, 5-7
yards, and then 8-10 yards.

e. Stage Five:r Judgmental shooting. This drilf
combines the skills developed in the prior four stages.
The shoofer will be required to safely tumn and fire at a
"photograph” type target which may be either friendly
or hostile. It requires hostile largets fo be sfopped
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using deadly force. Necessily (Immediate jeopardy) is
presumed for this exercise. This slage allows the
instructor to evaluate the decision-making capability of
the student as well as his shooling accuracy and
safety.

Shooter is placed on the 10-yard line facing the
Instructor with the target to his rear. The target will be
placad at any location along the range target line and
should not be seen by the student until he is given the
“tum" command during the drill. Each shooter has the
opportunity fo complete this drill four times. Each
decision is worth one point. If he shoots at a hostile
target, a hit anywhere on that target will score the
point. If a friendly target is presented, It is clearly a no-
shoot situation and the student should merely holster
safely to score the point. There is a four-second time
fimit at this stage for any "shoot" situation.

The instructor may choose to allow each shooter only
two opportunities to complete this drill and place two
targets downrange for each. Four poinis or hits are
still necessary at this stage for the total score. If two
largets are used, then the time limit is raised to six
seconds, regardless of whether two hostile targets are
used or one hostile with one friendly. This allows the
instructor the opportunity to challenge a stronger
shooter.

6 VAC 20-170-616. Firearms retraining.
A. Handgun retraining.

1. All armed private security services business
personnel must salisfactorily complete two hours -of
firearms classroom training and range training, and
requalify as prescribed in 6 VAC 20-170-615 for handgun
within the 12-month period immediately preceding the
expiration date of his registration.

2. Approved schools providing handgun refraining must
meet the requirements of Part Vil (6 VAC 20-170-620 et
seq.) of this chapter,

3. Handgun classroom retraining.
Range qualification - (no minimum hours required)

Total hours (excluding range qualification and shotgun
classroom training) - 2 hours

B. Shotgun refraining.

1. Al armed private security services business
personnel must satisfactorily complete one hour of
classroom training and range training, and requalify with
the shotgun as prescribed in 6 VAC 20-170-615, if
applicabie.

2. Approved schools providing handgun retraining must
meet the requirements of Part Vill (6 VAC 20-170-620 et
seq.) of this chapfer.

3. Shotgun classroom retraining.
Range quaiification - (no minimum hours required)

Total hours (excluding range qualification) - 1 hour

C.  Parsonal protection specialist advanced handgun
retraining.

1.  Personal protection specialist advanced handgun
course of fire (not including range qualification)

a. Legal authority and decision making - 4 hotirs

b. Handgun safety,
development - 4 hours

marksmanship  and  skill

Total hours (excluding range qualification) - 8 hours

Aricle 3.
Guard Dog Handlser Retraining.

6 VAC 20-170-617. Guard dog handler retraining.

Each guard dog handler regisirant shall comply annually
with the requirement for basic obedience evaluation and
retraining (refer to Arncle 1 (6 VAC 20-170-470 st seq.) of this

part).

Guard dog handler basic obedience evaluation and
refraining

Total hours - 2 hours
6 VAC 20-170-618 and 6 VAC 20-170-6819. Reserved,

PART VIII.
PRIVATE SECURITY SERVICES TRAINING SCHOOLS.

Aticle 1.
School Certification.

6 VAC 20-170-620. Initial requirements for the
cenrtificaiion of a private security services training school,

In accordance with § 9-182 of the Code of Virginia, the
department may cenify those schoois which on the basis of
curricula, instructors and facilities, provide training which
meets the compulsory minimum training siandards. Each
person seeking to certify a private security services training
school shall file an application, provided by the- departmeni,
accompanied by a the applicable nonrefundable fee of-$500.
Each principal of the business entity applying for cettification
as a private security services training school must be listed
onn the application and is responsible for the school's
adherence 1o the Code of Virginia and this chapter. Each
person listed on the application shall complete a
supplemental fingerprint processing application and submit
his fingerprints on one completed set of two fingerprint cards
atong with a the applicable nonrefundable fee of—84%

Certlflcatlons shall be |ssueci for a penod not to exceed 12
months. Ali forms shall be compleied in full compliance with
the instructions provided by the department. Applacants shall
meet or exceed all of the requirements contained in this part
prior to the issuance of a training school certification.

6 VAC 20-170-625. Temporary training school
certification.
The department may issue a leiter of temporary .

certification to a training school applicant for not more than
120 days while awaiting the results or the state and national
fingerprint search conducted on the principals of the business
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entity, provided the applicant has met the conditions and
requirements set forth in this par.

8 VAC 20-170-630. Certification requirements;
designation of school director; schoo! director duties
and responsibilities; retention and replacement of school
director.

A. Each person seeking to establish a certified private
security services training school shall designate a school
director. The school director shall be an individual, who is not
designated as school director for any other certified private
security services training school, and shall pessess current
certification as a private security instructor,

B. The cerified school director shall at all times comply
with the following:

1. Ensure that the certified training school is in full
compliance with the Code of Virginia and this chapter,

2.  Ensure that all sessions conducted meet the
requirements for mandated training;

3. Ensure that all instructors of the certified training
school have been cerified by the department as private
security instructors and instruct in accordance with the
Code of Virginia and this chapter;

4. Ensure that all training completion rosters are filed
with the department within seven business days of the
training completion date;

5. Ensure the maintenance of training, employment and.

payrolt records which document compliance with the
Code of Virginia and this chapter,

C. 1. Each cerified training school shall maintain an
individual as school director who has met the
requirements of this chapter and has been certified by
the department.

2. Each training school shall notify the department in
writing within 10 calendar days of the termination of
employment of a certified school director.

3. Within 90 days of termination of the school's certified
director, the school shall submit; on a form provided by
the department; the name of a new school director who
has met the requiremenits of this chapter.

6 VAC 20-170-640. Criminal history records search.

Upon application for certification as a private security
services training school, each training director and principal
of the applicant firm shall submit his fingerprints to the
department on one completed set of two fingerprint cards en
forms provided by the depariment, and a-$44 the applicable

nonrefundable processmg fee ter—eaeh—sexef—tmgewn—eafds

. The department shall submlt those
fingerprints to the Virginia State Police for the purpose of
conducting a Virginia Criminal History Records search and a
National Criminat Records search to determine whether the
individual has a record of conviction,

‘within 180 days following

6 VAC 20-170-850. Unclassifiable fingerprint cards.

Fingerprint cards found to be unclassifiable will be returned
to the applicant. Action on the application will be suspended
pending the resubmittal of classifiable fingerprint cards. The
applicant should be so nolified in writing and shall submit his
fingerprints on new fingerprint cards and a the applicable
nonrefundable fee of—$44 to the depariment before the
processing of his application shall resume. However, no
such fee may be required if the rejected fingerprint cards are
included and attached to the new fingerpiint cards when
resubmitted.

6 VAC 20-170-730.
reinstatement.

School expiration, renewal,

A. The department will mail a renewal application to the
last known address of the certified school director. Failure of
the certified school director to renew cerification prior to the
expiration date of the certification shall not be the
responsibility of the department.

B. A private security training school not renewed on or
before the expiration date of the certification shall become
null and void. Qperating a training school without valid
cerification is a violation of the Code of Virginia and this
chapter.

C. Al certifications granted to private security services
training schools shall be valid for a period not to exceed 42
24 months.

D. Applications for renewal must be received 30 days prior
to expiration. School renewal applications received by the
department after the expiration date shall be subject to all
applicable nonrefundable renewal fees plus nonrefundable
reinstatement fees.

E. Applicants for renewal of fraining school certification
shall have the option of renewing for either a period notf to
exceed 12 months or a period not to exceed 24 months.

+ F. The department may renew the certification of a
training school for a period not to exceed 42 24 months when

the following are—+eceived-by—the-department requirernents

are met.

& 1. A properly completed renewal application s
submiited to the department, and

b- 2 A The applicable nonrefundable renewal fee of
$250. js submitted fo the department;

2. 3. The certified school director and each certified
instructer listed on the school renewal application must
have satisfactorily completed all applicable instructor
training requirements:; and

3: 4. Each certified director, principal or certified
instructor listed on the school renewal application shall
be in good standing and free of disciplinary action in
every jurisdiction where licensed or certified.

E— G. A renewal application received by the department
the expiration date of the
certification shall be accompanied by a the applicable
nonrefundable renewal fee o£-3$250 and the nonrefundable
reinstatement fee o-8$425.
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2: H No training school shall be renewed or reinstated
when the renewal application and fee are received by the
department after 180 days following the expiration date of the
approval. After that date, the applicant shali meet then
current initial school cerification requirements.

3: . The date on which the application and fee are
received by the department shall determine whether the
applicant is eligible for renewal or reinstatement or is required
to apply for initial certification as a private security training
school.

Articie 2.
Instructor Certification.

& VAC 20-170-760. Certified instructors.

A, Instructors desiring to instruct in a certified training
school shall submit an application for instructor cettification.
The applicant must provide documentation of previous work
experience, instructor experience, training and education for
those subjects in which certification is requested. The

depariment will evaluate qualifications based upon the

justification provided. In addition, all instructor applicants
shalt meet the foliowing requirements and provide
docurnentation thereof:

1. Have a minimum of three years management or
supervisory experience with a private security services
business or with any federal, military police, state, county
or municipal law-enforcement agency, or in a related
field; or have a minimum of one year experience as an
instructor or teacher at an accredited educational
institution or agency in the subject matter for which
certification is requested, or in a related field;

2. Have a high school diploma or equivalent (GED);

3. Successful completion of an instructor development
program, within the three years immediately preceding
the date of the application, that meets or exceeds
standards established by the depariment; or successful
completion of an instructor development program longer
than three years prior to the date of application, and has
provided instruction during the three years immediately
preceding, or has provided instruction in a related field at
an institution of higher learning;

4, Submit his fingerprints on one set of two completed
fingerprint cards enferms provided by the department;
and

5. Submit a properly completed instructer application
and a fhe applicable nonrefundable apyplication fee of

B. 1In addition to the instructor gualification requirements
described in subsection A of this section, each firearms
instructor must have completed a firearms instructors school
specifically designed for Jaw-enforcement or private security
‘personnel.  Each firearms instructor candidate must provide

documentation of rangequalifieation-with a minimum range

qualification of 85% with each of the following:
- 1. Arevolver,

2. A semi-automatic handgun; and

3. Ashotgun,

The firearms instructor training must have been completed
within the three years immediately preceding the dale of the
instructor application; or in the event that the school
completion occurred prior to three years, the applicant shall
have provided firearms instruction during the three years
immediately preceding.

6 VAC 20-170-765. Temporary instructor certification.

The department may issue a letter of temporary
certification to an instructor applicant for not more than 120
days while awailing the results of lhe state and national
fingerprint search conducted on the applicant, provided the
applicant has met the conditions and requirements, set forth
in this part.

6 VAC 20-170-770. Crimina! history records search.

Upen receipt of an initial application for instrucior
certification, the department shali submit the fingerprints of
the applicant to the Virginia State Police for the purpose of
conducting a Virginia Criminal History Records search and a
national criminal records search to determine whether the
applicant has a record of conviction. Applicants submitting
unclassifiable fingerprint cards shall be required to submit
their fingerprints on new fingerprint cards along with a the
applicable nonrefundable fee of-$44. However, no such fee
shall be required if the rejected fingerprint cards are included
and attached te the new fingerprint cards when resubmitted,

6 VAC 20-170-820. Renewal-of instructorserification-
Registration/certification in-service fraining credit.

Hication—for : i e

B: Instructors certified to teach mandatory in-service
training classes, except firearms retraining, may receive
credit for hours towards the in-service training reguirements
for the categories for which they are currently registered.
instructors receive credit for classes in which they provide
instruction; issi i

—pen—submission—el-preper—decumentation—and
department—aperoval by submitting - thelr names on the

training completion roster for that session.

o-——Each-perser o8 Hied-as-a E.’.“a[.e Sec .ty strucio
shal-complote-the-inst He.ts SGortication —+oqu i '.EE. 9.5
Eas_e. b_e: H—atthet '.d calendar—year—folowing _'ta
Gerineatior a.nei_ every third Gane da. yed tleeallte ;"f
HWWMS%QWM j j ) -
6 VAC 20-170-830.
reinstatement.

Certification expiration, renewal,

A. The department will mail to the last known address of
the instructor a renewal notification. Failure of the instructor
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to renew prior to the expiration of the certification shall be the 6 VAC 20-170-850. Handgun-training: (Repealed.)

sole responsibility of the instructor.

A private security services instructor certification not
renewed on or before the expiration date shall become null
and void. Operating as a private security services instructor
without a valid private security services instructor certification
is a violation of the Code of Virginia and this chapter.

B. Al certifications issued to private security services
instructors shall be valid for a period not to exceed 42 36
months.

C. 1. Applications for renewal of instructor certification
must be received by the departiment at least 30 days
prior to expiration. Renewal applications received by the
department after the expiration date shall be subject to
all applicable nonrefundable renewal fees plus
reinstatement fees.

2. The department may renew the instructor certification
for a period not to exceed 32 36 months from the
expiration date of the certification when the following are
received by the department; '

a. A properly completed renewal application;

b. A The applicable nonrefundable renewal fee of
%10; and

c. Documentation that the instructor has met the
applicable recertification training standards.

3. Each instructor must have satisfactorily completed all
applicable training requirements.

4. Each instructor shall be in good standing and free of
disciplinary action in every jurisdiction where licensed,
registered or certified.

5. A renewal application received by the department
within 180 days following the expiration date of the
certification shall be accompanied by a the applicable
nonrefundable renewal fee o510 and a the applicable
nonrefundable reinstatement fee o+-$5-00.

6. No instructor certification shall be renewed or
reinstated when the application and fee are received by
the department more than 180 days following the
expiration date of the cerification. After that date, the
applicant shall meet all initial instructor certification
requirements.

7. The depariment may deny renewal or reinstatement
of an instructor for the same reascon as it may refuse
initial certification or discipline a licensee.

PARTAX:
FIREARMS TRAMNING:

6 VAC 20-170-840. Fireamms—training—requirements:
{(Repealed.)
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PART X.
CERTIFIED PRIVATE SECURITY SERVICES TRAINING
SCHOOLS ATTENDANCE AND ADMINISTRATIVE
REQUIREMENTS.

6 VAC 20-170-930. Examination and testing.

A. A written examination shall be administered at the
conclusion of each entry level training session. Each
examination shall include three fwo questions based on each
learning objective for the compulsory minimum training
session. The student must attain a minimum grade of 70% to
satisfactorily complete the training session.

B. Firearms classroom fraining shall be separately tested
and graded. Individuals must achieve a minimum score of
70% on the firearms classroom training examination.

C. Failure to achieve a minimum score of 70% on the
firearms classroom written examination will exclude the
individual from the firearms range training.

D. To successfully complete the firearms range training,
the individual must achieve a minimum qualification score of
75% of the scoring value of the target.

E. To successfully complete the private investigator entry
level training session, the individual must;

1. Complete each of the three graded practical
exercises required; and

2. Pass the written examination with a minimum score of
70%.

F.  To successfully complete the personal protection
specialist entry level training session, the individual must:

1. Complete each of the five graded practical exercises
required under Protective Detail Operations {the practical
exercises in total must be passed with 2 minimum 70%
score and must be successfully completed prior to the
written examination); and

2. Pass the written examination with a minimum score of
70%.

6 VAC 20-170-940. Training completion forms.

On forms provided by the department, each training
director shall issue an original training completion form to
each student who satisfactorily completes a training session,
no later than seven business days following the training
completnon date A—copy-—shal-be—retained-ontile—with-the
6 VAC 20-170-850. Training completion roster.

The school director shall submit fo the department a
private security training roster affirming each student's
successful completion of the session. The training
completion roster and the applicable nonrefundable fee shall
be received by the depariment within seven business days of
the completion date of an—appreved the training session.
One copy shall be retained on file with the approved certified
tramlng school for a mmlmum of three years Ihe

+S—$4-0~p9¥495¥6{‘~ The trammg complenon roster for each

sessfon must be accompanied by the
nonrefundable processing fee.

6 VAC 20-170-860. Sanctions.

applicable

The private security services Waining school director,
training school and instructor shall be subject to disciplinary
action for viclation or noncompliance with the Code of
Virginia and this chapter. Failure to file the forms and reports
required by the Code of Virginia and this chapter shail be a
basis for imposition of sanctions.

PART XI.
STANDARDS OF PRACTICE AND PROHIBITED ACTS.

6 VAC 20-170-1000. Prohibited acts.

It shall be unlawful for a person to engage in any of the
following acts. Each of the acts listed below is cause for
disciplinary action:

1. Violating or aiding and abetting others in violating the
provisions of Aricle 2.1 (§ 9-183.1 et seq.) of Chapter 27
of Title 9 of the Code of Virginia or this chapter.

2. Having committed any act or omission which resulted
in a private security license or registration being
suspended, revoked, not renewed or being otherwise
disciplined in any jurisdiction.

3. Having been convicted or found guilty, regardless of
adjudication in any jurisdiction of the United States, of
any felony or a misdemeanor involving moral turpitude,
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sexual offense, drug offense, physical injury, or property
damage, from which no appeal is pending, the time for
appeal having elapsed. Any plea of nolo contendere

shall be considered a conviction for the purpose of this -

chapter. The record of conviction certified or
authenticated in such form as to be admissible in
evidence under the laws of the jurisdiction where
convicted shall be prima facie evidence of such guilt.

4. Failing to inform the department in writing within 30
days of pleading guilty or nolo contendere or being
convicied or found guilty of any felony or of a
misdemeanor involving moral turpitude, sexual offense,
drug offense, physical injury or property damage.

5. Obtaining a license, license renewal, registration,
registration renewal, Haining certification, #aining
certification renewal, or certification to act as compliance
agent for a licensee, a training schooi, school director, or
instructor, through any fraud or misrepresentation.

6. Failing or refusing to produce to the deparment,
during regular business hours, for inspection or copying
any document or record in the compliance agent's or the
licensed firm's possession which is pertinent to the
records required to be kept by the Code of Virginia or by
this chapter.

7. Engaging in conduct which through word, deed, or
appearance falsely suggests that a private security

registrant or employee is a law-enforcement officer or

other government official.

8. Failing to inform the department in writing within 30
days after having been found guilty by any court or
administrative body of competent jurisdiction tc have
violated the private security services business statutes or
regulations of that jurisdiction, there being no appeal
therefrom or the time for appeal having elapsed.

. 9. Conducting a private security services business or
acting as a registrant or compliance agent in such a
manner as io endanger the public health, safety and
welfare.

10. Engaging in unethical, fraudulent or dishonest
conduct.

11. Falsitying, or aiding and abetting others in falsifying,
training records for the purpose of obtaining a license,
registration, certification, or certification as a compiiance
agent, training school, school director or instructor.

12. Representing as one's own a license issued to
another private security services business or a
registration issued to another individual, or representing
oneself as a certified compliance agent of a licenses,
training school, school director or instructor.

13. Employing individuals who do not possess a valid
registration issued by the department showing the
registration categories required to perform one's duties.
Individuals requiting registration as alarm respondent,
central sfation dispaicher, electronic security sales
representative or electronic security technician rmay be
employed for not more than 90 days while completing
the compulsory minimum training standards, provided

the individual has submitted his fingerprints on forms
provided by the department.  An application for
registration must be received by the department within
10 calendar days of the compleiion of the required
training.

14. Utilizing & person as an armed security officer who
has not successfully completed the compulsory minirmum
standards for armed security officers. or who does not
have a valid firearms certification,

15. Performing any unlawful or negligent act resuliing in
loss, injury or death to any person.

16. 1f wearing while on duty the law-enforcement style or
military style uniform of a private security licensee:

a. Which does not have at least one insignia clearly
identifying the name of the licensed firm employing the
individual and, except armored car personnel, a name
plate or tape bearing, as a minimum, the individual's
last name and first and middle initials attached on the
outermost garment, except rainwear womn only o
protect from inclement weather; and

b. Having a patch or other writing containing the word
"olice" or any other words suggesting a law-
enforcement officer, or ‘"officer," unless used in
conjunction with the word "security”; or resembling ainy
uniform patch or insignia of any duly constituted law-
enforcement agency of this Commonweaith, iis
political subdivisions or of the federal government.
This restriction shall not apply to individuals who are
also duly sworn special police officers, to the exient
that they may display words which accurately
represent that distinction.

17. Utilizing a vehicle for a private security services
business which uses or displays a fiashing light not
specifically authorized by the Code of Virginia.

18. Using or displaying the state seal of Virginia as a
part ‘of any licensed firm's logo, stationery, business
card, badge, patch, insignia or other form of identification
or advertisement.

19. Displaying of the uniform, badge o other insignia by
employees of licensed firms while not on duty.

Prowdmg mformatnon obialned by any Ilcensed flrm and
its employees to any person other than the client who
amployed secured the services of the licensee to-obiain
that-infermation; without the client's prior written consent.
Provision of infarmation in response to official requests
from law-enforcement agencies, or from the department,
shall not constitute a violation of this chapter. Provision
of information to law-enforcement agencies partinent fc
criminal activity or to planned criminal activity shall not
constitute a violation of this chapter.

21. The failure of a licensee's approved compliance
agent to at all times comply with the following:

a. Ensure that the licensed firm is at ali times in full
compliance with the Code of Virginia and this chapter;
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b. Ensure that the documentary evidence concerning
unarmed security officers required by § 9-183.3 D of
the Code of Virginia is maintained;

¢. Ensure that the documentary evidence concerning
electronic security technician's assistant required by §
8-1933 9-1833 E of the Code of Virginia is
maintained.

d. Ensure that the licensed firm does not utilize or
otherwise employ any person as an unarmed security
officer or electronic security technician's assistant in
excess of 90 days prior to the compietion of the
compulsory minimum training standards for unarmed
security officer or electronic security technician's
assistant; and

e. Maintain VSP Forms 167, training, empioyment and
payroll records which document the licensed firm's
compliance with the Code of Virginia and this chapter.

f. Ensure that the licensed firm does not utilize or
otherwise employ any person as an unarmed Security
officer for which the VSP Form-167 reveals a felony or
misdemeanor conviction involving moral furpitude,
sexual offense, drug offense, physical injury or
properly damage without written approval from the
depariment.

g. Ensure thal the licensed firm does not ulilize or
otherwise employ any person as an unarmed security
officer in excess of 150 days without the individual
being issued a cettification as an unarmed security
officer from the depariment.

22. Failure of the certified school director or cerified
instructor to comply with the following:

a. Conduct training in compliance with the compulsory
minimum training standards;

b. Utilize only certified training instructors;

¢. Provide only accurate and current instruction and
information to students;

d. Maintain and file with the department all records
required by the Code of Virginia and this chapter;

e. Ensure that the certified training school is in
compliance with the Code of Vitginia and this chapter;
or

f. Submit training completion rosters and fees to the
depariment within seven business days of the
completion of training.

23. Soliciting private security services business through
advertising, business cards, bidding on contracts, or
other means without having first obtained a private
secUrity services business license.

24, Failing to carry the private security photo
identification card at all times while on duty.

25. Failure of an individual to present his privaie security
- registration photo identification card while on duty in
response to the request of a law-enforcement officer,

department personnel or client. This shall not apply to
armored car personnel or persenal protection specialists.

EDITOR'S NOTICE: The forms used in administering the
Regulations Relating to Private Security Services (6 VAC 20-
170-10 et seq.) are listed below. Added, amended, or
deleted forms are reflected on the listing. The forms are
available for review at the office of the Registrar of
Regulations, General Assembly Building, 2nd Fiooy,
Richmond, Virginia, and at the Department of Criminal
Justice Services, 805 E. Broad Street, Richmond, Virginia.

inttial-Lisense-Application— Private Security Services Initiaf
Business {PSS-BL7-483} License Application (P55 LA 1.96)

[ -]
& ar . = s ) a 2| fa o
nale Y ' ¥ P

Irrevocable Consent for Service (PSS 7-493)

Fingerprint Processing Application {£85-FR-7-84} (PSS FP
1.96)

Application for Compliance Agent Training and Certitication

{RSSCAZ-84) (PS5 CA 1.96)

Private Security Services Business
Application {PS8-L:R-7-84} (PSS LR 1.956)
Application for Initial Private Security Registration {PSS-RA-Z-
84} (P55 RA 1.96)

Renewal Application for Private Security Registration {RSS
RR-7-84} (PSS RA 1.96)

; ' g ok T rainina_Cedification. Anplicat
{PSS-UAT-04)

Application for Partial Exemption from the Compulsory
Minimum Training Standards for Private Security Services

Business Personnel (PSS WA7-84) (P55 WA 1.96)

Private Security Training Completion Hoster {P8S-TGR} (P55
SA 1.96)

Private Security Instructer Cetification Application {RSSIS8-Z-
a4} (PSS IA 1.96)

Private Security instructor Certification Renewal Application

{R85-1R7-84; (PSS IR 1.96)

Private Security Services (RSS-G-0793}
Complaint Form (PSS C 1.96)

Applisation—for Duplicate/Replacement Photo Identification
PESICR-5-783} Application (PSS 2MP 1.96)

Private Security General Instructor School Application {(RSS
GH7-84) (PSS Gl 1.96)

Compliance Agent In-Service Training Enroliment {PSS-CT
(PSS CT 1.96)

Training Completion Form {PSSTCF7-94) (PSS TCF 1.96)

Private Security Services Certification Application (PSS U
1.96) :

License Renewal

Virginia Register of Regulations

3100




Proposed Regulations

Private Security Services Certification Henewal Application
(PSS UR 1.96)

Application for Additional Registration Category (PSS IMP
1.96)

Notification of Private Security Services Training Session
(PSS TN 1.96)

Private Security Services Training School Cettification
Application (PSS TA 1.96)

Private Security Services Training
Renewal Application (PSS TR 1.96)

General Instructor Re-Certification Training Enroliment (PSS
Gi2 1.96)

Private Security Personal Protection Specialist Advanced
Firearms Instructor School Application (PSS FI13 1.96)

Private Security Firearms Instructor School Application (PSS
Fl1.96)

Firearms Instructor Re-Certification Training Enrofiment (PSS
Fl2 1.96)

VA.R. Doc. No. R96-482; Filed July 16, 1896, 2:19 p.m.

School Certification

DEPARTMENT OF MEDICAL ASSISTANCE
SERVICES

REPROPOSED

EDITOR'S NOTICE: The Department of Medical Assistance
Services has proposed additional changes to the following
regulations from the amendments published in 12:12 VAR.
1629-1638 March 4, 1996. Differences between the
proposed and reproposed regulations are shown in brackets.
The initial public comment period ended May 4, 1996;
however, the agency is soliciting comments on the
reproposed regulations for an additional 30-day period
beginning August 5, 1996, and ending September 4, 1996.

Title of Regulations: State Plan for Medical Assistance
Relating to Reductions in Covered Inpatient Hospital and
Physician Services; Home Tomorrow Program; and
Maternity Length of Stay and Early Discharge.

12 VAC 30-50-10 et seq. Part lil, Amount, Duration and
Scope of Services (amending 12 VAC 30-50-100, 12 VAC
30-50-140, and 12 VAC 30-50-220).

12 VAC 30-70-10 et seq. Methods and Standards for
Establishing Payment Rates--Inpatient Hospital Care
{amending 12 VAC 30-70-50).

12 VAC 30-80-10 et seq. Methods and Standards for
Establishing Payment Rates-Other Types of Care
(adding 12 VAC 30-80-115).

Statutory Authority: § 32.1-325 of the Code of Virginia.

Public Hearing Date: N/A -- Public comments may be
submitted until September 4, 1996.

(See Calendar of Events section

for additional information)

Basis and Authority; Section 32.1-325 of the Code of Virginia
grants to the Board of Medical Assistance Services the
authority to administer and amend the Plan for Medical
Assistance.  Section 32.1-324 of the Code of Virginia
authorizes the Director of the DPepartment of Medical
Assistance Services {DMAS) to administer and amend the
Plan for Medical Assistance according tc the board's
requirements. The director approved, on July 16, 1996, the
initiation of a public comment period for the revised proposed
regulations. The Code of Virginia, in § 9-6.14:7.1 et seq,,
requires agencies to adopt and amend regulations subject to
public notice and comment when the action being taken does
not meet one of the statutory exemptions.

Subsequent to two separate emergency adoption actions, the
agency initiated the public notice and comment process as
contained in Article 2 for the APA. These related regulations
are being promulgated as one regulatory change through the
Article 2 process. The Code of Virginia, at § 9-6.14:4.1 C,
requires the agency to publish the Notice of Intended
Regulatory Action within 60 days of the effective date of the
emergency regulation if it intends to promulgate a permanent
replacement regulation. The Notice of Intended Regulatory
Action for this regulatory change was published in the Virginia
Register on Cctober 30, 1995.

The Govemor's 1995 amendments to the 1994-96
Appropriations Act included cost savings for Fiscal Year 1998
that must be achieved from a reduction in the average length
of stay for inpatient hospital services and a shorter stay for
obstetrical services for patients with uncomplicated vaginal
deliveries. These budget amendments are identified as
Numbers 710 and 712 respectively in the Dspariment of
Planning and Budget's budget system.

Chapter 201 of the 1996 Virginia Acts of Assembly requires
the Medicaid State Plan to provide for inpatient lengths of
stay for pregnant women in accordance with the “Guidelines
for Perinatal Care” as developed by the American Academy
of Pediatrics and the American College of Obstetricians and
Gynecologists. The language also requires payment for a
follow-up visit as recommended by the altending physician
within the time limits and in accordance with the guidelines.

Purpose: The purpose of this proposal is to make permanent
policies to reduce the lengths of inpatient hospital stays when
medically appropriate in compliance with amendments to the
budget, and to revise the maternity length of stay and follow-
up visit policies to comply with new legislation.

Summary and Analysis: The sections of the State Plan
affected by this action are Supplement 1 to Attachments
3.1A&B: Amount, Duration and Scope of Services (12 VAC
30-50-100: Inpatient Hospital Services; 12 VAC 30-50-140:
Physician's Services; and 12 VAC 30-50-220: Other
diagnostic, screening, preventive, and rehabilitative services,
other than those provided elsewhere in this plan); Attachment
4.19A: Methods and Standards for Establishing Payment
Rates (12 VAC 30-70-50: Hospital Reimbursement System);
and Attachment 419 B: Methods and Standards for
Establishing Payment Rate {12 VAC 30-80-115. Fee-for-
Service: Early Discharge Follow-up Visit for Mothers and
Newborns).
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DMAS completed an analysis of inpatient heospital claims
which showed that the length of stay for inpatient services
among Medicaid patients in Virginia, by admission diagnosis
and procedure performed, is higher than the lengths of stay
among patients covered by private insurance. By reducing
the average Medicaid length of stay in inpatient hospitals to
levels similar to that of patients with private insurance, DMAS
estimated that the Commonwealth could generate significant
cost savings in Medicaid expenditures. Based on this
analysis, the Governor included in his 1995 amendments to
the 1994-96 Appropriations Act two amendments reducing
the Medicaid budget by decreasing the average length of stay
tor inpatient hospital services from six days to five days and
by decreasing ihe length of stay for obstetric services to one
day.

DMAS has adopted a four-part approach to adjust Medicaid
policies to more accurately reflect current medical practice.
The four paits address the documentation of medical
necessity for hospital admissions exceeding three days, for
precperative stays, for weekend admissions based on the
redefinition of a weekend, and for obstetrical services. All of
these changes affect the State Plan for Medical Assistance
and are required to achieve the cost savings in FY 1996 as
required by the Governor's pudget amendments. The
advantage of these changes is that they enhance the
econcmical performance of Virginia's Medicaid Program by
preventing reimbursement for services that are not medically
nacessary.

Currently under the State Plan, DMAS requires hospitals to
submit documentation of medicat necessity fer claims for
inpalient hospital services on all admissions that exceed
seven days. The purpose of this requirement is to ensure
that the Virginia Medicaid Program is only reimbursing for
services that are truly medically necessary. In order to
decrease Medicaid's average length of stay, DMAS is
reducing the current standard for submission of
documentation of medical necessity from “admissions that
exceed seven days” to “admissions that exceed three days.”
Claims requiring this additional justification will continue to be
reviewed by DMAS utiiization review analysts to determine
the meadical necessity of the length of stay. Days that are
determined medically unnecessary by the utilization review
analyst are denied payment. The change in the medical
necessity documentation standard will require that hospital
providers of inpatient services submit medical justification for
all inpaiient hospital admissions that exceed three days. This
change is consisient with insurance practices under
indemnity and managed care plans.

A second change to the State Plan needed to achieve the
reduction in the average length of stay addresses medical
justification for preoperative stays. DMAS currently allows
payment for a one day stay prior to surgery without
“submission of decumentation of medical necessity. Only
siays beyond one day prior to surgery require medical
justification to be considered for payment. Since this policy
was promulgated in the early 1980s, medical practice has
changed so that preoperative stays are almost nonexistent.
The majority of preoperative procedures are now conducted
on an ouipatient basis. Therefore, DMAS is revising its policy
so that any admission for which preoperative days are

necessary be medically justified. Utilization review analysts
will review all preoperative days for medical necessity.

The third change to the State Plan needed to .achieve the
reduction in the average length of stay is to redefine a
weekend admission to be more consistent with current
medical practices. DMAS currently prohibits reimbursement
for weekend admissions unless medically justified. A
weekend admission is defined as an admission on Friday or
Saturday. By redefining a weekend admission to be an
admission on Saturday or Sunday, DMAS anticipates that
medically unnecessary admissions on Sunday will be
reduced or avoided, thereby reducing the overall average
Medicaid length of stay. Sunday admission must be for
medically justified emergencies. Not only will this change
prevent the payment of claims for medically unnecessary
admissions on Sunday, but it will aiso prevent hospitals from
having to provide documentation of medical necessity for
Friday admissions. At the time a weekend admission was
originaily defined, Friday was not a routine surgery day and,
therefore, any admission on a Friday had to be a medically
justified emergency. Medical practice has since changed, so
that Friday is now a routine day for surgery. Therefore, by
eliminating Friday from and adding Sunday lo the definition of
a weekend admission, DMAS' State Plan will be brought up-
to-date with current medical practices, which in turn will
contribute to the reduction in the average length of stay.
Saturday admissions will contunue to require documentation
of medical necessity.

The fourth change involves obstetrical services for patients
with uncomplicated deliveries. The Govemor's second
amendment mentioned above was also included to shorten
the stay for these services. The department originaliy
proposed to address this mandate in two ways. First, DMAS
addressed the requirements for documentation of medical
necessity for obstetrical admissions for uncomplicated
vaginal deliveries. DMAS proposed changing the standard
for submission of documentation to “admissions that exceed
one day.” At the time of the original proposal, this change
was consistent with insurance practices under indemnity and
managed care plans. Secondly, DMAS proposed that
hospitals be offered the option of participating in the Home
Tomorrow  Program. Noe ‘documentation of medical
justification would be required for dehverles billed under the
Home Tomorrow Progiam.

The Homé Tomorrow Program was the result of a pilot
program implemented successfully in several hospitals in the
Commonwealth in cooperation with the Virginia Hospital
Association (VHA). Beginning in 1992, the pilot program
consisted of a trial period of special obstetric services. These
pilots basically provided for one day of inpatient hospital care
(24 hours to 36 hours) to be followed by a home health visit
for those women and their newborns who met certain health
standards. The referenced home health visit was provided
either directly by the hospital's affiliated home health agency
or was contracted out by the hospital 10 a nonaffiliated home
health agency. The women selected for the trial Home
Tomorrow programs were those who were expected to have
normal vaginal deliveries, at term, without significant medical,
abstetric or peri- or post-natal complications, nor prolonged
labor or difficult instrument delivery and who delivered a.
healthy term infant, and also who had good social support
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systems. The services which were required to be covered
were the short inpatient stay followed by a home visit by
registered nurses trained in mother and infant assessments.
The nurses’ home visit assessments contained required
minimum components for both the new mother and newborn.
Also, these participating hospitals were reimbursed one fee
for these bundled services: inpatient hospital care for a
normal, uncomplicated vaginal delivery, home visit post-
delivery and any educational efforts provided at that time.

However, during the 1996 General Assembly session, new
legisiation was passed that supersedes the provisions of the
Home Tomorrow Program. Chapter 201 of the 1996 Virginia
Acts of Assembly requires the Medicaid State Plan to provide
for inpatient lengths of stay for pregnant women in
accordance with the “Guidelines for Perinatal Care” as
developed by the American Academy of Pediatrics and the
American College of Obstetricians and Gynecologists. The
language also requires payment for a follow-up visit as
recommended by the attending physician within the time
limits and in accordance with the guidelines. The language in
this legislation necessitates the replacement of the Home
Tomorrow Program with a new policy. Therefore, the
provisions of this regulatory change that relate to the Home
Tomorrow Program are being stricken from this package.

Under the new pelicy the Department of Medical Assistance
Services (DMAS) will cover matemity. inpatient hospital
charges as follows. DMAS will cover the day of delivery plus
an additional two days for a normal, uncomplicated vaginal
delivery without requiring documentation of medical
necessity. DMAS will cover the day of delivery plus an
additional four days without requiring decumentation of
medical necessity for cesarean births. Claims for any
additional days must be medically justified.

If the mother and newborn are discharged earlier than 48
hours after the day of delivery, DMAS will cover an early
discharge follow-up visit if recommended by the physician.
The visit must be provided in accordance with the “Guidelines
for Perinatal Care.” The mother and newborn must both
meet the criteria for early discharge to be eligible for the early
discharge follow-up visit. !f only the newborn is discharged
earlier than 48 hours, he must meet the early discharge
criteria to be eligible for the follow-up visit. This early
discharge follow-up visit does not affect or apply to any usual
postpartum or well-baby care provided to all new mothers
and babies, it is tied dirsctly to an early discharge.

Physicians have their choice of providers with whom they
coordinate to provide the early discharge follow-up visit,
within limitations. The care given at the follow-up visit must
be provided by, at a minimum, a registered nurse having
training and experience in maternal and child health. The
visit must be provided within 48 hours of discharge.

The early discharge follow-up visit is intended to provide for
care that would have been provided in the hospital in the
past. Since many neonatal problems do not become
apparent until several days following birth, the follow-up visit
provides an opportunity to check on the condition of the
mother and newbom shortly after they leave the care of the
hospital. In this way, the mother and newborn can return
home earlier, while being assured of quality care.

Issues: This program is expected to provide benefits to both
the providers and the Comsmonwealth. Medicaid recipients,
other than new mothers, who are hospitalized will not be
adversely affected by these changes since they reflect
current medical practice and are based on medical necessity.
New mothers and newborns may receive additional services
beyond current service lmits. The advantage of these
changes to the Commonwealth is that they enhance the
economical performance of Virginia's Medicaid Program by
preventing reimbursement for services that are not medically
necessary.

The disadvantage of this action is the increass in justification
of medical necessity. In addition to the increase in providing
medical justification, hospital providers will have to ensure
that medical staff, utilization review committee staff, and
reimbursement staff are aware of these changes. Medical
and nursing staif will need to ensure that medical justification
is documented in the chart.

The agency projects no negative issues involved in

implementing this proposed change.

Summary of Public Comments Received; DMAS' proposed
regulations were published in -the March 4, 1986, Virginia
Register for their public comment period from March 4, 198986,
to May 4, 1996. Comments were received from the Virginia
Department of Health and the Virginia Association for Home
Care. Both parties were concerned about the qualifications
of staff providing the home visits under the Home Tomorrow
Program. Description of the visit as a "comprehensive home
health visit" generated confusion over the differences
between this type of visit and a home health visit as provided
by a home health agency. DMAS had also identified the
description of this visit as an area of concern, However,
legislation passed by the 1996 General Assembly required
changes that supersede the provisions of the Home
Tomorrow Program. These comments have been considered
during the development of the policy that addresses the
General Assembly mandate. Both commenters were notitied
that the Home Tomorrow Program portions of this regulatory
package are not being finalized and that their comments were
being used in the development of the replacement policy.

Because of the substantive changes to this regulation as a
result of the new legislative mandate, the agency is
publishing the revised proposed regulation for an additional
comment petiod.

Fiscal/Budget Impact: The 1995 Appropriation Act reduced
DMAS' FY 1996 appropriation by $10 million ($5.0 million GF;
$5.0 million NGF) and authorized DMAS to reduce the .
average length of stay for inpatient hospital services from six
to five days. Also, DMAS FY 1996 appropriation was
reduced by $6 million ($3.0 million GF; $3.0 million NGF) and
DMAS was authorized to implement shorter hospital stays for
obstetrical services for uncomplicated vagina! deliveries.
DMAS achieved these savings by implementing the changes
under the authority of emergency regulations. This savings is
now reflected in the agency’s base budget.

Those affected by these changes include Medicaid providers
of inpatient hospital and maternity services, Medicaid
recipients who are hospitalized, and DMAS utilization review
staff.
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The Impact of lewering the threshold for providing medical
justification and requiring medical justification for all
preoperative days and Saturday/Sunday admissions is that
hospital providers will have to submit medical justification for

approximately 10,000 claims that previously did not require .

justification.  This estimate accoupts for the fact that
elimination of medical justification for Friday admissions will
result in a decrease of approximately 2,000 claims. Also,
instituting the more rigorous requirements for medical
justification will result in hospitals avoiding unnecessary
preoperative days and weekend admissions.

In addition to the increase in providing medical justification,
hospital providers will need to ensure that medical staff,
utiization review committee =taff, and reimbursement staff
are aware of these changes. Medical and nursing staff will
need to ensure that medical justification is documented in the
chart. If claims are submitted without the appropriate medical
justification, hospitals may experience an aging of their
accounts receivable untll the claim is resubmitied with the
proper justification,

The estimated 102,000 Medicaid
hospitatized annually will not be adversely affected by these
changes since they reflect current medical practice and are
based on medical necessity.

DMAS will reallocate one staff member to assist the
Utilization Review staff with the increased number of claims
io review. Therefore, no additional costs will be incurred by
DMAS for these changes.

This change will also affect all providers of maternity
services. The requirement for hospitals to submit additional
documentation after a specified number of days is current
policy. However, the number of days covered for a cesarean
birh is longer than the current limit, so this will represent a
loosening of requirements for those cases. The most
significant change is the arrangement for an early discharge
follow-up visit when appropriate. Only those hospitals that
have been participating in the Home Tamorrow Program have
an established procedure for arranging this visit. This wiil be
a new requirement for all other hospitals, physicians, and
clinics. In  addition, those hospitals that have been
participating in the Home Tomorrow Program have been
receiving an all-inclusive fee to cover both ihe inpatient
hospital services and the follow-up visit. This will no longer
be the case; hospitals will only be reimbursed for the
inpatient services provided, as defined under the provisions
of the inpatient hospital reimbursement methodology. The
provider of the eaily discharge follow-up visit must bill
separately, and will be reimbursed under a fee-for-service
methodology.

This policy change will represent an increase in the numbers
and types of providers who can offer the follow-up visit.
Jnder the Home Tomorrow Program, the criteria for the
arovider of the follow-up visit was not clearly defined. Many
of the comments received regarding the Home Tomorrow
program indicated concerns regarding the qualifications of
thogse providing the follow-up examinations. In addition,
because of the way in which the hospitals were reimbursed,
there was a financial incentive for the hospitals io utilize their
own nurses to provide the follow-up visit. DMAS considered
these comments regarding the existing program during the

recipients who are’

development of the new program. The new policy provides
criteria “for the provider of the follow-up visit, and, by
reimbursing ihe follow-up visit independently of the inpatient
services, removes the incertive for hospitals to utilize only
their own employees to provide the follow-up care. This will
allow other types of providers more opporiunity io participate
in this program than were able to participate in the Home
Tomorrow Program. '

This policy change will result in an overail increase In
services provided by hospitals, public health clinics and other
providers of the early discharge follow-up visit. The Home
Tomorrow Program required dismissal after only 24 hours 1o
qualify for the follow-up visit. The new policy requires a
follow-up visit be covered for recipients who remain in the
hospital up 10 48 hours after the day of delivery. By allowing
an extra day of inpatient care prior to discharge while still
being eligible for the follow-up visit, DMAS anticipates the
number of follow-up visits will increase under the new
program.

Currently, DMAS estimates coverage of approximately 1,212
follow-up visits under the Home Tomorrow Program during
the past year. Because these visits were part of an all- -
inclusive fee to the hospital, this number does not equate to a
direct dollar figure. In state Fiscal Year 1995, Medicaid
received 16,922 claims for normal vaginal deliveries that did
not exceed a three-day inpatient stay, and 5,335 claims for
cesarean births that did not exceed a five-day inpatient siay.
Based on these figures, the agency anticipates covering as
many as 22,250 early dischaige follow-up visits in fiscal year
1997, This is 21,045 more visits than provided under the
Home Tomorrow Program. -At a maximum reimbursement -
rate of $76.64 per visit, this could amount to an increase of
$1,612,888 in paymenis for this service. This estimate is
based on the assumption that this regulatory change will
result In increased follow-up visits and will not impact hospital
length of stay for deliveries. If this regulatory change does
affect the length of stay, the fiscal impact has the potentiai to

be greater. : :

There are no localities which are uniquely affected by these
regulations as they apply statewide.

Summary:

This proposal reduces the lengths of inpatient hospital
" stays when medically appropriate in compliance with
amendments to the budgef, and revises the maternity
length of stay and follow-up visit policies to comply with -
new legislation.

The Home Tomorrow Program was the result of a pilot
program implemented successfully in several hospitals in
the Commonwealih in cooperation with the Virginia
Hospital Association (VHA). Beginning in 1992, the pilot
program consisted of a irial period of special obstelric
services. These pilots basically provided for one day of
inpatient hospifal care (24 hours to 36 hours) fo be
followed by a home health visit for those women and

their newborns who met certain health standards. ‘

However, during the 1996 General Assembly sess'."on,
new legislation was passed thal requires changes to the
maternity length of stay and folfow-up visit policies.
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Chapters 155 and 201 of the 1996 Virginia Acts of
Assembly require the Medicald State Plan to provide for
inpatient lengths of stay for pregnant women in
accordance with the "Guidelines for Perinatal Care" as
developed by the American Academy of Pediatrics and
the American College of Obstetricians and
Gynecologisis. The language also requires payment for
a follow-up visit as recommended by the attending
physician within the time limits and in accordance with
the guidelines. The language in this legisiation
necessitales revisions to this agency's requlations.

Under the revised policy, if the mother and newbom are
discharged earlier than 48 hours aftsr the day of
defivery, DMAS will cover an early discharge follow-up
visit if recommended by the physician. The visit must be
provided in accordance with the "Guidelines for Perinatal
Care." Since many neonalal problems do not become
apparent until several days following birth, the follow-up
visit provides an opportunity to check on the condition of
the mother and newbom shortly after they leave the care
of the hospital. In this way, the mother and newborn can
return home earlier while being assured of qualily care.

12 VAT 30-50-100. Inpatient hospital services other than
those provided in an institution for mental diseases.

A. Medicaid inpatient hosp#tal admissions (lengths-of-stay)
are limited to the 75th percentite of PAS (Professional Activity
Study of the Commission on Professional and Hospital
Activities) diagnostic/procedure limits. For admissions under
£ four days that exceed the 75th percentile, the hospital must
atiach medicai justification records to the billing invoice to be
considered for additional coverage when medically justified.
For all admissions that exceed 7 three days up to a maximum
of 21 days, the hospital must attach medical justification
records to the billing invoice. (See the exception to
subsection F of this section.)

B. Medicaid does not pay the Medicare (Title XVill)
coinsurance for hospital care after 21 days regardless of the
length-of-stay covered by the other insurance. (See
exception to subsection F of this section.)

C. Beimbursement for induced aborions is provided in
only those cases in which there would be a substantial
endangerment to health or life of the mother if the fetus were
. carried to term.

d: Hospltat

cia|ms wnth an admmsaon date mere—than—ene—day prior to the
first surglcal date wM—-pené—fer—rewow—by—medmal—staﬁ—ta

= appre U ., regardiess of the
number of days prror to surgery, must be medically justified,
The hospital must write on or attach the justification to the
biling invoice for consideration of reimbursement for
additional all preoperative days. Medically justified situations
are those where appropriate medical care cannot be obtained
except in an acute hospital setting thereby warranting hospital
admission. Medically unjustified days in such admissions will
be denied.

E. Reimbursement will not be provided for weekend
{(Friday/Saturday/Sunday) admissions, unless medically

justified. Hospital claims with admission dates on FrAday-e+
Saturday or Sunday will be pended for review by medical staff
to determine appropriate medical justification for these days.
The hospital must write on or aitach the justification to the
billing invoice for consideration of reimbursement coverage
for these days. Medically justified situations are those where
appropriate medical care cannct be obtained except in an
acute hospital setting thereby warranting hospital admission.
Medically unjustified days in such admissions will be denied.

F. Coverage of inpatient hospitalization will be limited fo a
total of 21 days for all admissions within a fixed period, which
would begin with the first day inpatient hospital services are
fummished to an eligible recipient and end 60 days from the
day of the first admission. There may be multiple admissions
during this 60-day pericd; however, when total days exceed
21, all subsequent claims will be reviewed. Claims which
exceed 21 days within 60 days with a different diagnosis and
medical justification will be paid. Any claim which has the
same or similar diagnosis wili be denied. EXCEPTION:
SPECIAL PROVISIONS FOR ELIGIBLE INDIVIDUALS
UNDER 21 YEARS OF AGE: Consistent with 42 CFR 441.57,
payment of medical assistance services shall be made on
behalf of individuals under 2| years of age, who are Medicaid
eligible, for medically necessary stays in acute care facilities
in excess of 2i days per admission when such services are
rendered for the purpose of diagnosis and treatment of health
conditions identitied through a physical examination. Medical
documentation justifying admission and the continued length
of stay must be aftached to or written on the invoice for
review by medical staff to determine medical necessity.
Medically unjustified days in such admissions will be denisd.

Ried: Coverage
far a normal uncomphcated vagmal dehvaiy sha!l be limited
to the day of delivery plus an additional two days unless

additional days are medically justified.  Coverage for
cesarean births shall be limited to the day of delivery plus an
additional four days unless additional days are medically
Jjustified. ]

H. Reimbursement will not be provided for inpatient
hospitalization for those surgical and diagnostic procedures
listed on the mandatory outpafient surgery list unless the
inpatient stay is medically justified or meets one of the
exceptions. The requirements for mandatory outpatient
surgery do not apply to recipients in the retroactive eligibility
period.

I. For the purposes of organ transplantation, all similarly
situated individuals will be treated alike. Transplant services
for kidneys and corneas shall be covered for all eligible
persons. Transplant services for liver, heart, and bone
marrow transplantation and any other medically necessary

transplantation procedures that are determined to not be

experimental or investigational shali be limited to children
{under 21 years of age). Kidney, liver, heart, and bone
marrow transplants and any other medically necessary
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transplantation procedures that are deiermined to not be
experimental or investigational require preauthorization.
Comnea fransplants do not require preautherization. The
patiert must be considered acceptable for coverage and
treatment. The treating facility and transplant staff must be
recagnized as being capable of providing high quality care in
the performance of the - requested transplant.
Reimbursement for covered liver, hear, and bone marrow
transplant services and any other medically necessary
transplartation procedures that are determined to nol be
experimenial or investigational shall be a fee hased upon the
greater of a prospectively determined, procedure-specific flat
fee determined by the agency or a prospectively determined,
procedure-specific percentage of usual and customary
charges. The flat fee reimbursement will cover procurement
costs; all hospital costs from admission to discharge for the
transplant procedure; and total physician costs for all
physicians providing services during the transplant hospital
stay, including radiologists, pathologists, oncologists,
surgeons, efic. The flat fee reimbursement does not include
pre- and post-hospitalization for the transplant procedure or
pretransplant  evaluation.  Reimbursement for approved
transplant procedures that are performed out of state will be
made in the same manner as reimbursement for transplant
procedures performed in the Commonweaith.
Reimbursement for covered kidney and cornea transplants is
at the allowed Medicaid rate. Standards for coverage of
organ transpiant services are in 12 VAC 30-50-540.

J. The depariment may exempt portions or all of the
utilization review documentation requiremenis of subsections
A, D, E, F as it pertains to recipients under age 21, G, or Hin
writing for specific hospitals from time to time as part of their
ongeing hospital utilization review performance evaluation.
These exemptions are based on utilization review
periormance and review edit criteria which determine an
individual hospital's review status as specified in the hospital
provider manual. In compliance with fedetal regulations at 42
CFR 441,200, Subparts E and F, claims for hospitalization in
which sterilization, hysterectomy or abortion procedures were
periormed, shall be subject to medical documentation
requirements.

K. Hospitals qualifying for an exemption of all
documentation requiremenis except as described in
subsection J above shali be granted "delegated review
status" and shall, while the exemption remains in effect, not
be required to submit medical documentation to support
pended claims on a prepayment hospital utilization review
basis to the extent aliowed by federal or state law or
regulation. The feliowing audit conditions apply 1o delegated
review status for hospitals:

1. The department shall conduct periodic on-site post-
payment audits of qualifying hospitals using a statistically
valid sampling of paid claims for the purpose of reviewing
the medical necessity of inpatient stays.

2. The hospital shall make all medical records of which
medical - reviews will be necessary available upon
request, and shall provide an appropriate place for the
department's auditors to conduct such review.

3. The qualifying hospital will immediately refund to the
depariment in accordance with § 32.1-325.1 A and B of

the Code of Virginia the full amount of any initial
overpayment identified during such audit.

4. The hospital may appeal adverse medical necessity
and overpayment decisions pursuant to the current

" administrative process for appeais of post-payment
review decisions.

5. The department may, at its option, depending on the
utitization review performance determined by an audit
based on criteria set forth in the hospital provider
manual, remove a hospital from delegated review status
and reapply certain or all prepayment utilization review
documentation requirements.

12 VAC 30-50-140. Physician's services whether
furnished in the office, the patient's home, a hospital, a
skilled nursing facility or elsewhere.

A. Elective surgery as defined by the Program is surgery
that is not medically necessary to restore or materially
improve a body function.

B. Cosmetic surgical procedures are not covered unless
performed for physiological reasons and require Program
prior approval.

C. Routine physicals and immunizations are not covered
except when the services are provided under the Early and
Periodic Screening, Diagnosis, and Treatment (EPSDT)
Program and when a well-child examination is performed in a
private physician's office for a foster chitd of the local social
services department on specific referral from those
departments.

D. Psychiatric services.

1. Psychiatric services are limited to an initial availability
of 26 sesslons, with one possible extension (subject to
the approval of the Psychiatric Review Board) of 26
sessions during the first year of treatment. The
availability is further resiricted to no more than 26
sessions each succeeding year when approved by the
Psychiatric Review Board. Psychiatric services are
further restricted to no more than three sessions in any
given seven-day period.

2. Psychiatric services can be provided by psychiatrists,
clinical psychologists licensed by the State Board of
Medicine, psychologists clinical licensed by the Board of
Psychology, or by a licensed clinical social worker under
the direct supervision of a psychiatrist, licensed clinical
psychologist or a licensed psychologist clinical.

3. Psychological and psychiatric services shall be
medically prescribed treatment which is directly and
specifically related to an active written plan designed and
signature-dated by either a psychiatrist or a ciinical
psycholegist licensed by the Board of Medicine, a
psychologist clinical licensed by the Board of
Psychology, or a licensed clinical social worker under the
direct supervision of a licensed clinical psychologist, a
licensed psycholegist clinical, or a psychiatrist,

4. Psychological or psychiatric services shall be -
considered appropriate when an individual meets th
following criteria: ‘
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a. Requires treatment in order to sustain behavioral or
emotional gains or to restore cognitive functional
levels which have been impaired;

b.. Exhibits deficits in peer relations, dealing with
authority; is hyperactive; has poor impulse controi; is
clinically depressed or demonstrates other
dysfunctional clinical symptoms having an adverse
impact on attention and concentration, ability to learn,
or ability to participate in employment, educational, or
social activities;

¢. s at risk for developing or requires treatment for
maladaptive coping strategies; and

d. Presents a reduction in individual adaptive and
coping mechanisms or demonstrates extreme
increase in personal distress.

" 5. Psychological or psychiatric services may be provided
in an office or a mental health clinic.

E. Any procedure considered experimental is not covered.

F. Reimbursement for induced abortions is provided in
only those cases in which there would be a substantial
endangerment of health or life to the mother if the fetus were
carried to term.

G. Physician visits to inpatient hospital patients are limited
to a maximum of 21 days per admission within 60 days for
the same or similar diagnoses and is further restricted to
medically necessary inpatient hospital days as determined by
the Program. EXCEPTION: SPECIAL PROVISIONS FOR
ELIGIBLE INDIVIDUALS UNDER 21 YEARS OF AGE:
Consistent with 42 CFR 44157, payment of medical
assistance services shall be made on behalf of individuals
under 2| years of age, who are Medicaid eligible, for medicaily
necessary stays in acute care facilities in excess of 21 days
per admission when such services are rendered for the
purpose of diagnosis and treatment of health conditions
identified through a physical examination. Payments for
physician visits for inpatient days determined to be medically
unjustified wilt be adjusted.

H. Repealed.

[, Hepealed. Reimbursement shall not be provided for
physician services provided to recipients in the inpatient
setting whenever the facility is denied reimburserment.

-J.  Reimbursement will not be provided for physician
setvices performed in the inpatient setting for those surgical
or diagnostic procedures listed on the mandatory outpatient
surgery list unless the service is medically justified or meets
one of the exceptions. The requirements of mandatory
outpatient surgery do not apply to recipients in a retroactive
eligibility period.

K. For the purposes of organ transplantation, all similarly
situated individuals will be treated alike. Transplant services
for kidneys and corneas shall be covered for all eligible
persons. Transplant services for liver, heart, and bone
marrow and any other medically necessary transplantation
procedures that are determined to nhot be experimental or
investigational shall be limited to children (under 21 years of
age). Kidney, liver, heart, and bone marrow transplants and

any other medically necessary transplantation procedures
that are determined to not be experimental or investigational
require preauthorization. Comea transplants do not require
preauthorization. The patient must be considered acceptable
for coverage and treatment. The treating facility and
transplant staff must be recognized as being capable of
providing high quality care in the performance of the
requested transplant. Reimbursement for covered liver,
heart, and bone marrow transplant services and any other
medically necessary transplantation procedures that are
determined to not be experimental or investigational shall be
a fee based upon the greater of a prospectively determined,
procedure-specific flat fee determined by the agency or a
prospectively determined, procedure-specific percentage of
usual and customary charges. The flat fee reimbursement
will cover procurement costs; all hospital costs from
admission to discharge for the transplant procedure; and total
physician costs for ail physicians providing services during
the transplant hospital stay, including radiologists,
pathologists, oncologists, surgeons, etc. The flat fee
reimbursement does not inclucle pre- and post-hospitalization
for the transplant procedure or pretransplant evaluation,
Reimbursement for approved transplant procedures that are
performed out of state will be made in the same manner as
reimbursement for transplant procedures performed in the
Commonwealth. Reimbursement for covered kidney and
cornea transplants is at the aliowed Medicaid rate. Standards
for coverage of organ transplant services are in 12 VAC 30-
50-540.

12 VAC 30-50-220. Cther diagnostic, screening,
preventive, and rshabilitative services, Le., other than
those provided elsewhere in this plan.

A. Diagnostic services are not provided.

B. Screening services. Screening mammograms for the
female recipient population aged 35 and over shall be
covered, consistent with the guidelines published by the
American Cancer Society.

C. [ Preventivo-services-are-not provided. Maternity length
of stay and early discharge.

1. If the mother and newborn, or the newborn alone, are
discharged earlier than 48 hours after the day of
delivery, DMAS will cover one early discharge follow-up
visit as recommended by the physicians in accordance
with and as indicated by the “Guidelines for Perinatal
Care” as developed by the American Academy of
Pediatrics and the American College of Cbstetricians
and Gynecologists (1992). The mother and newborn, or
the newborn alone if the mother has not been
discharged, must meet the criteria for early discharge to
be eligible for the early discharge follow-up visit. This
early discharge follow-up visit does not affect or apply to
any usual postpartum or well-baby care or any other
covered care lo which the mother or newborn is eniitled:
it is tied directly to an early discharge. The criteria for an
early discharge are as follows:

a. Discharge criteria for early discharge of mother.

(1) Uncomplicated vaginal, full-term delivery
following a normal antepartum course,
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(2) Postpartum observation has sufficiently
documented a stable course, inciuding the following
observalions: '

(a} Vital signs are stable;

(b} Uterine fundus is firm, bleeding ({lochia) is
centrolled, of normal amount and color;

(c) Hemoglobin is greater than eight, hematocrit is .
greater than or equal lo 24 and estimafed blood

loss is not greater than 500 cc or blood loss does

not result in the patient being symptomatic for

anemia, ie.,  lightheadedness,  syncope,

fachycardia, or shortness of breath;

(d) Episiotomy/repaired laceration is not inflamed
and there is no evidence of infection or
hemaioma;

{e) Tolerating prescribed diet post delivery;

(f) Voiding without difficulty and passing flatus.
Bowe! sounds present; and

(g) if not previously obtained, ABC and Rh typing
must be done and, if indicated, the appropriate
amount of Rho(D) immunoglobin must be
administered.

b. Discharge criteria for early discharge of infant. The
newborn must be deemed normal by physical
examination and stable meeting the following criteria:

{1) Term delivery and weight is considered normal;

(2} Infant is able to maintain a stable body
temperature under normal conditions;

{3) Infant is able to take and lolerate feedings by
mouth and demonstrates normal sucking and
swallowing reflexes;

(4) Laboratory data must be reviewed to include:

(a) Maternal testing for syphilis and hepatitis B
surface antigen;

{b) Cord or infant blood type and direct Coombs
test {if the mother is Rho{D) negative, or is type O,
or if screening has nol been performed for
maternal antibodies,

{c) Hemoglobin or hematocrit and blood glucose
determinafions, as clinically indicated; and

(d) Any screening tests required by law; and

(5) Initial hepatitis B vaccine must have been
administered.

¢. Discharge criteria for early discharge of mother and
infant,

(1) Family members or other support persons must
be available to the mother for the first few days
following discharge;

(2) The mother or caretaker has demonstrated the
ability to care for her infant including feeding,

bathing, cord care, diapering, body temperature
assessment and measurement with a thermometer;

{3) The mother or caretaker has been taught basic
assessment skills, including necnatal well-being and
recognition of jliness, She verbalizes understanding
of possible complications and has been instructed fo
notify the appropriate practitioner as necessary; and

(4} A physician-directed source of continuing
medical care for both mother and baby must be
identified and arrangements made for the baby to be
examined within 48 hours of discharge.

2. The early discharge follow-up visit must be provided
as directed by ~a physician. The physician may
coordinate with the provider of his choice to provide the
early discharge follow-up visit, within the following
fimitations.  Qualified providers are those hospitals,
physicians, nurse midwives, nurse practitioners, federally
qualified heaith clinics, rural health clinics, and health
departments clinics that are enrofled as Medicaid
providers and are qualified by the appropriale state
authority for delivery of the service. The staff providing
the follow-up visit, at a minimum, must be a registered
nurse having training and experience in maternal and
child health. The visit must be provided within 48 hours
of discharge.

3. The visit must include, at a minimum, the following:

a  Maternal assessment must include, but is not
limited to:

(1) Vital signs;

(2) Assessment of lochia, height and firmness of the
uterus;

(3) Assessment of the episiotomy, if applicable;
(4) Assessment for and of hemorrhoids;
{5) Assessment of bowsel and bladder function;

(6) Assessment of the breasts, especially the
nipples if the mother is breast feeding. Assessment
of the mother's understanding of breast/nipple care
and understanding of proper care;

(7) Assessmemnt of eating habits for nutritional
balance, stressing good nuirition especially in the
breast feeding mother;

(8) Assessment for signs and symptoms of anemta
and, if present, notification of the responsible
physician for further instructions;

(9} Confirmation that the mother has an appointment
for a six-week postpartum check-up; and

(10) identification of the need for and make referrals
to the appropriate resources for identified medical,
social, and nutritional concerns and needs.

b.  Newborn assessment must include, but is not
I_imfteo' fo:

(1) Vital signs;
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(2) Weight;

(3) Examination of the umbilical cord and
circumcision, if applicable;

(4) Assessment of hydration status;

(5) Evaluation of acceptance and tolerance of
feedings, including the frequency of feeds and the
amount faken each feed. If possible, observation of
the mother or caretaker feeding the infant for
technique assessment;

(6) Assessment of bowel and bladder function;

(7} Assessment of skin coloration; if the infant
demonsirales any degree of jaundice, notification of
the physician for further instruction. If infant is pale,
mottled, lethargic, or with poor muscle tone,
immediate notification of the physician for further
instruction;

(8) Assessment of infant behavior, sleep/wake
patterns;

(9) Assessment of the quality of mother/infani
interaction, bonding;

{10) Blood samples for lab work, or a urine sample
as directed by state law, physician, or clinical
Jjudgment,

{11) Confirmation that the infant has an appointment
for routine two-week check up,

(12} Discussion with the mother or caretaker
planning for health maintenance, including
preventive care, periodic evaluations,
immunizations, signs and symptoms of physical
change requiring immediate attention and
emergency services available; and

{13} Identification of the need for and make referrals
fo any other existing appropriate resources for
identified medical, social and nutritional concerns
and needs. ]

D. Rehabilitative services.

1. Intensive physical rehabilitation.

a. Medicaid covers intensive inpatient rehabilitation
services as defined in subdivision D 1 d in facilities
certified as rehabilitation hospitals or rehabilitation
units in acute care hospitals which have been certified
by the Department of Health to meet the requirements
to be excluded from the Medicare Prospective
Payment System.

b. Medicaid covers intensive outpatient physical
rehabilitation services as defined in subdivision D 1 d
in facilities which are certified as Comprehensive
Outpatient Rehabilitation Facilities (CORFs).

¢. These facilities are excluded from the 21-day limit
otherwise applicable to inpatient hospital services.
Cost reimbursement principles are defined in 12 VAC
30-70-10 through 12 VAC 30-70-130.

d. An intensive rehabilitation program provides
intensive skilled rehabilitation nursing, physical
therapy, occupational therapy, and, if needed, speech-
language pathology, cognitive rehabilitation,
prosthetic-orthotic services, psychology, social work,
and therapeutic recreation. The nursing staff must
support the other disciplines in carrying out the
activities of daily living, utilizing correctly the training
received in therapy and furnishing other needed
nursing services. The day-to-day activities must be
carried out under the continuing direct supervision of a
physician with special training or experience in the
field of physical medicine and rehabilitation.

e. Nothing in this regulation is intended to preclude
DMAS from negotiating individual contracts with in-
state intensive physical rehabilitation facilities for those
individuals with special intensive rehabilitation needs.

f. For continued intensive rehabilitation services, the
patient must demonstrate an ability to aclively
participate in goal-related therapeutic interventions
developed by the interdisciplinary team. This shall be
evidenced by regular attendance in planned activities
and demonstrated progress toward the established
goals.

g. Intensive rehabilitation services shall be considered
for termination regardless of the preauthorized length
of stay when any of the following conditions are met:

{1}  No further potential for improvement is
demonstrated, The patient has reached his
maximum progress and a safe and effective
maintenance program has been developed.

{2) There is limited motivation on the part of the
individual or caregiver.

(3) The individual has an unstable condition that
affects his ability to participate in a rehabilitative
plan.

(4} Progress toward an established goal or goals
cannot be achieved within a reasonable period of
time.

{8) The established goal serves no purpose to
increase  meaningful functional or cognitive
capabilities.

(6) The service can be provided by someone other
than a skilled rehabilitation professional.

2. Community mental health services. Definitions. The
following words and terms, when used in these regulations,
shall have the following meanings unless the context clearly
indicates otherwise;

"Code" means the Code of Virginia.

"‘DMAS” means the Department of Medical Assistance
Services consistent with Chapter 10 (§ 32.1-323 et seq.) of
Title 32.1 of the Code of Virginia.

"DMHMRSAS" means Department of Mental Health,
Mental Retardation and Substance Abuse Services
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consistent with Chapter 1 (§ 37.1-39 st seq,) of Title 37.1 of
the Code of Virginia.

family support, and education within a supportive
and normalizing program structure and environment.

a. Mental health services. The following services,
with their definitions, shall be covered:;

(1) Intensive in-home services for children and
adolescents under age 21 shall be time-limited
interventions provided typically but not solely in the
residence of an individual who is at risk of being
moved into an out-of-home placement or who is
being transitioned tc home from out-of-home
placement due to a disorder diagnosable under the
Diagnostic and Statistical Manual of Mental
Disorders-l1i-R (DSM-11l-R). These services provide
crisis treatment; individual and family counseling; life
(e.g., counseling to assist parents to understand and
practice proper child nutrition, child health care,
personal hygiene, and financial management, etc.),
parenting (e.g., counseling to assist parents io
understand and practice proper nurturing and
discipline, and behavior management, etc.), and

communication skills (e.g., counseling to assist

parents fo understand and practice appropriate
problem-solving,  anger  management,  and
interpersonal interaction, etc.); case management
activities and coordination with other required
services; and 24-hour emergency respense. These
services shall be limited annually to 26 weeks.

(2) Therapeutic day treatment for children and
adolescents shall be provided in sessions of two or
more hours per day, to groups of seriously
emotionally disturbed children and adolescents or
children at risk of serious emotional disturbance in
order to provide therapeutic interventions. Day
treatment programs, limited annually to 780 units,
provide evaluation, medication education and
management, opportunities to learn and use daily
living skills and to enhance social and interpersonal
skills (e.g., problem solving, anger management,
community responsibility, increased impulse control
and appropriate peer relations, etc.), and individual,
group and family counseling.

(3) Day treaiment/partial hospitalization services for
adults shall be provided in sessions of two or more
consecutive hours per day, which may be scheduled
multiple times per week, to groups of individuals in a
nonresidential setting. These services, limited
annually to 780 units, include the major diagnostic,
medical, psychiatric, psychosocial and
psychoeducational treatment modalities designed
for individuals with serious mental disorders who
requite coordinated, intensive, comprehensive, and
multidisciplinary treatment.

(4) Psychosocial rehabilitation for adults shall be
provided in sessions of two or more consecutive
hours per day to groups of individuals in a
nonresidential selting. These services, limited
annually to 936 units, include assessment,
medication education, psychoeducation,
opportunities to learn and use independent living
skills and to enhance social and interpersonal skills,

() Crisis intervention shall provide immediaie
mental heaith care, available 24 hours a day, seven
days per week, to assist individuals who are
experisncing acute mental dysfunction requiring
immediate clinical atiention, This service's
objectives shall be o prevent exacerbation of a
-condition, to prevent injury to the client or others,
and to provide treatment in the context of the least
resirictive setting.  Crisis intervention activities,
limited annually to 180 hours, shall include
assessing the crisis situation, providing short-term
counseling designed io stabilize the individual or the
family unit or both, providing access to further
immediate assessment and follow-up, and linking
the individual and family with ongoing care to
prevent future crises. Crisis intervention services
may include, bui are not limited to, office visits,
home visits, preadmission screenings, telephone
contacts, and other client-related activities for the
prevention of institutionalization.

b. Mental retardation services/related conditions. Day
health and rehabilitation services shall be covered for
persons with MR or related conditions and the
following definitions shall apply:

Day health and rehabilitation services {limited to 780
units per year) shall provide individualized activities,
supports, training, supervision, and transportation
based on a written physician's order/plan of care to
eligible persons for two or more hours per day
scheduled multiple times per week. These services
are intended to improve the recipient's condition or to
maintain an optimal level of functioning, as well as to
ameliorate the recipient's disabilities or deficits by
reducing the degree of impairment or deperidency.
Therapeutic consultation to service providers, family,
and friends of the client around implementation cf the
physician's order/plan of care may be included as part
of the services provided by the day health and
rehabilitation program. The provider shall he licensed
by DMHMRSAS as a Day Supponrt Program. Specific
components of day health and rehabilitation services
include the following as needed:

(1) Self-care and hygiene skills;
(2) Eating and toilet training skills;
(3) Task learning skills;

(4) Community resource utilization skills (e.g.,
training in time, teiephone, basic computations with
money, warning sign recognition, and personal
identifications, etc.);

(5) Environmental and behavior skills (e.g., training
in punctuality, self-discipline, care of personal
belongings and respect for property and in wearing
proper clothing for the weather, efc.);

{6) Medication managemént;
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{7) Travel and related fraining to and from the
training sites and service and support activities;

(8) Skills related to the above areas, as appropriate
that will enhance or retain the recipient's functioning.

3. Coverage shall be provided for investigations by local
health depariments to determine the source of lead
contamination in the home as part of the management
and treatment of Medicaid-eligitle children who have
been diagnosed with elevated blood lead levels. Only
costs that are eligible for federal funding participation in
accordance with current federal regulations shall be
covered. Payments for environmental investigations
under this section shall be limited to no more than two
visits per residence.

12 VAC 30-70-50. Hospital reimbursement system.

The reimbursement system for
following compenents:

hospitals includes the

A. Hospitals were grouped by classes according to
number of beds and urban versus rural. (Three groupings for
rural - 0 to 100 beds, 101 to 170 beds, and over 170 beds:;
four groupings for urban - 0 to 100, 101 to 400, 401 to 600,
and over 600 beds.} Groupings are similar to those used by
the Health Care Financing Administration (HCFA) in
determining routine cost limitations.

B. Prospective reimbursement ceilings on allowable
operating costs were established as of July 1, 1982, for each
grouping. Hospitals with a fiscal year end after June 30,
1982, were subject to the new reimbursement ceilings.

The calculation of the initial group ceilings as of July 1,
1982, was based on available, allowable cost data for
hespitals in calendar year 1881. Individual hospital operating
costs were advanced by a reimbursement escalator from the
hospital's year end to July 1, 1982. After this advancement,
the operating costs were standardized using SMSA wage
indices, and a median was determined for each group.
These medians were readjusted by the wage index to set an
actual cost ceiling for sach SMSA. Therefore, each hospital
grouping has a series of ceilings representing one of each
SMSA area. The wage index is based on those used by
HCFA in computing its Market Basket Index for routine cost
limitations. '

Effective July 1, 1988, and until June 30, 1988, providers
subject to the prospective payment system of reimbursement
had their prospective operating cost rate and prospective
operating cost ceiling computed using a new methodology.
This method uses an allowance for inflation based on the
percent of change in the quarterly average of the Medical
Care Index of the Chase Econometrics - Standard Forecast
determined in the quarter in which the provider's new fiscal
year began.

The prospective operating cost raie is based on the
provider's allowable cost from the most recent filed cost
report, plus the inflation percentage add-on.

The prospeclive operating cost ceiling is determined by
using the base that was in effect for the provider's fiscal year
that began between July 1, 1985, and June 1, 1986. The
allowance for inflation percent of change for the quarter in

which the provider's new fiscal year began is added to this
base to determine the new operating cost ceiling. This new
ceiling was effective for all providers on July 1, 1986. For
subsequent cost reporting periods beginning on or after July
1, 1986, the last prospective operating rate ceiling
determined under this new methodology will become the
base for computing the next prospective year ceiling.

Effective on and after July 1, 1988, and until June 30,
1989, for providers subject o the prospective payment
system, the allowance for inflation shall be based on the
percent of change in the moving average of the Data
Resources, 'Incorporated Health Care Cost HCFA-Type
Hospital Market Basket determined in the quarter in which
the provider's new fiscal year begins. Such providers shall
have their prospective operating cost rate and prospective
operating cost ceiling estabiished in accordance with the
methodology which became effective July 1, 1986. Rates
and ceilings in effect July 1, 1888, for all such hospitals shall
be adjusted 1o reflect this change.

Effective on or after July 1, 1989, for providers subject to
the prospective payment system, the allowance for inflation
shall be based on the percent of change in the moving
average of the Health Care Cost HCFA-Type Hospital Market
Basket, adjusted for Virginia (R, as developed by Data
Resources, Incorporated, determined in the quarter in which
the provider's new fiscal year begins. Such providers shall
have their prospective operating cost rate and prospective
operating cost ceiling established in accordance with the
methodology which became effective July 1, 1986. Rates
and ceilings in effect July 1, 19889, for all such hospitals shall
be adjusted to reflect this change.

Effective on and after July 1, 1892, for providers subject to
the prospective payment system, the allowance for inflation,
as described above, which became effective on July 1, 1988,
shall be converted to an escalation factor by adding two
percentage points, (200 basis points) 8RI-¥42} to the then
current allowance for inflation. The escalation factor shall be
applied in accordance with the euwrrent inpatient hospital
reimbursement methodology in effect on June 30, 1992. On
July 1, 1992, the conversion to the new escalation factor shall
be accomplished by a transition methodology which, for non-
June 30 year end hospitals, applies the escalation factor to
escalate their payment rates for the months between July 1,
1992, and their next fiscal year ending on or before May 31,
1993.

The new method will still require comparison of the
prospective operating cost rate to the prospective operating
ceiling. The provider is allowed the lower of the two amounts
subject to the lower of cost or charges principles.

C. Subsequent to June 30, 1992, the group ceilings shall
not be recalculated on allowable costs, but shall be updated
by the escalator factor.

D. Prospective rates for each hospital shall be based upon
the hospital's allowable costs plus the escalator factor, or the
appropriate ceilings, or charges; whichever is lower. Except

to eliminate costs that are found to be unallowable, no

retrospective adjustment shall be made to prospective rates.
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Depreciation, capital interest, and education costs
approved pursuant to PRM-15 (§ 400), shall be considered
as pass throughs and not part of the calculation.

E. An incentive plan should be established whereby a
hospital wil be paid on a sliding scale, percentage for
percentage, up to 25% of the difference between allowable
operating costs and the appropriate per diem group celling
when the operating costs are below the ceilings. The
incentive should be calculated based on the annual cost
report.

The table below presents three examples under the new
plan:

Hospital's Difference Sliding Scale
Group  Aliowable Cost % of Incentive %
Ceiling Per Day $ Ceiling $ of Difference
$230.00 $230.00 -0- -0- -0- -0-
230.00 207.00 2300 10% 230 10%
230.00 172.00 57.50 25% 14.38 25%
230.00 143.00 76.00 33% 19.00 25%

F. There will be special consideration for exception to the

median operating cost limits in those instances where
extensive neonatal care Is provided.

G. Disproportionate share hospitals defined.

The following criteria shall be met before a hospltal Is
determined to be eligible for a disproportionate share
payment adjusiment.

1. Criteria.

a. A Medicaid inpatient utilization rate in excess of 8%
for hospitals receiving Medicaid payments in the
Commonwealth, or a low-income patient utilization rate
exceeding 25% (as defined in the Omnibus Budget
Reconciliation Act of 1987 and as amended by the
Medicare Catastrophic Coverage Act of 1988); and

b. Al least iwo obstetricians with staff privileges at the
hospital who have agreed to provide obstetric services
to individuals entitled to such services under a State
Medicaid plan. In the case of a hospital located in a
rural area (that is, an area outside of a Metropolitan
Statistical Area, as defined by the Executive Office of
Management and Budget), the term “obstetrician”
includes any physician with staff privileges at the
hospital to  perform  nonemergency  obstetric
procedures.

c. SubsectienA2 Subdivision 1 b of this subsection
does not apply to a hospital:

(1) At which the inpatients are predominantly
individuals under 18 years of age; or

(2) Which does not offer nonemergency obstetric
services as of December 21, 1987.

2. Payment adjustment.

a. Hospitals which have a disproportionately higher
level of Medicaid patients shall be allowed a
disproportionate share payment adjustment based on
the type of hospital and on the individual hospital's

Medicaid utilization. There shall be two types of
hospitals: (I} Type One, consisting of state-owned
teaching hospitals, and (i) Type Two, consisting of all
other hospitals. The Medicaid utllization shall be
determined by dividing the number of utilization
Medicald inpatient days by the total number of
inpatient days, Each hospital with a Medicaid
utilization of over 8.0% shall receive a disproportionate
share payment adjustment.

b. For Type One hospitals, the disproportionate share
payment adjustment shall be equal to the product of
{i) the hospital's Medicaid uiilization in excess of 8.0%,
times 11, times (i) the lower of the prospective
operating cost rate or ceiling. For Type Two hospitals,
the disproportionate share payment adjustment shall
be equal to the product of (i) the hospital's Medicaid
utifization in excess of 8.0%, times (ii} the lower of the
prospective operating cost rate or ceiling.

¢. No payments made under subdivision 1 or 2 of this
subsection shall exceed any applicable limitaiions
upon such paymenis established by federal law or
regulations,

H. Qutlier adjustments.

1. DMAS shall pay to all enrolled hospitals an outlier
adjustment in payment amounts for medically necessary
inpatient hospital services provided on or after July 1,
1991, involving exceptionally high costs for individuals
under one year of age.

2. DMAS shall pay to disproportionate share hospitals
{as defined in paragraph G above) an outlier adjustment
in payment amounts for medically necessary inpatient
hospital services provided on or after July 1, 1991,
involving exceptionally high costs for individuals under
six years of age.

3. The outlier adjustment calculation.

a. Each eligible hospiial which desires to be
considerad for the adjustment shall submit a log which
contains the information necessary to compute the
mean of s Medicaid per diem operating cost of
treating individuals identified in subdivision H 1 or 2
above. This log shall contain all Medicaid claims for
such individuals, including, but not limited to: (i) the
patient's name and Medicaid identification number; (ji)
dates of service; (iii) the remittance date paid; (iv) the
number of covered days; and (v) total charges for the
length of stay. Each hospital shall then calculate the
per diem operating cost (which -excludes capital and
education) of treating such patients by multiplying the
charge for each patient by the Medicaid operating
cost-to-charge ratio determined from its annual cost
report.

b. Each eligible hospital shall calculate the mean of its
Medicaid per diem operating cost of treating
individuals identified in subdivision H 1 or 2 above.
Any hospital which qualifies for the extensive neonatal
care provision (as governed by paragraph F, above)
shall calculate a separate mean for the cost of
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providing exiensive neonatal care to Individuals

identifiad in subdivision H 1 or 2 above.

¢. Each eligible hospital shall calculate its threshold
for payment of the adjustment, at a level equal to two
and one-half standard deviations above the mean or
means calculated in subdivision H 3 (il) above.

d. DMAS shall pay as an outlier adjusiment to each
gligible hospital all per dism operating costs which
exceed the applicable threshold or threshelds for that
hospital.

4. Pursuant to 12 VAC 30-50-100, there is no limit on
length of tme for medically necessary stays for
individuals under six years of age Thls sectlon prowdes
that consistent with the ERED : & He

CFR 441.57, payment of medlcal assnstance servlces
shall be made on behaif of individuals under 21 years of
age, who are Medicaid eligible, for medically necessary
stays in acute care facilities in excess of 21 days per
admission when such services are rendered for the
purpose of diagnosis and treatment of health conditions
identified through a physical examination. Medical

documentation justifying admission and the continued
length of stay must be attached fo or written on the
invoice for review by medical staff to determine medical
necessity. Medically unjustified days in such admissions
will be deniad.

[ 12 VAC 30-80-115. Fee-for-servive:

Early Discharge
Foliow-up Vieit for Mothers and Newboms,

The early discharge follow-up visit for mothers and
newbormns covared under the provisions of 12 VAC 30-50-220
C shall be reimbursad af the lower of the stale agency fee
schedule or actual charges. FPraviders  qualified  for
reimbursement of this service are those hospitals, physicians,
nurse midwives, nurse practitioners, federally qualified health
clinics, rural health clinics, and health department clinics that
are enrolled as Medicald providers and are qualified by the
appropriate state authorly for dalivery of the service. The
service shall be delivered either by the appropriate
professional who is an employee of the participaling provider
or is under contract with the pariicipaiing billing providers
listed in this section. The siaff providing the follow-up visii, at
a minimum, shall be a registered nurse having training and
experience in matemal and child health. |

Document ingorporated by Reference

Guidelines for Perinalal Care, 1992, Amatican Academy of
Pediatrics and the American Colisge of Obstetricians and
Gynecologists.

“Summary _and Analysis;

VA.R. Doc. No. R96-497; Filed July 17, 1998, 11:43 a.m.

LR RSN NN

Title of Regulation; 12 VAC 30-120-70 et seq. Part il
Home and Communily Bassd Services for Technology
Assisted Individuals {(amerding 12 VAC 30-120-70
through 12 VAG 30-120-120; adding 12 VAC 30-120-115;
repealing 12 VAC 30-120-130).

Statutory Authority: § 32.1-328 of the Code of Virginia.

Public Hearing Date: N/A -- Public comments may be
submitted until October 4, 1996.

(See Calendar of Events section

for additional information)

Basis and Authority: Section 32.1-324 of the Code of Virginia
grants to the Director of the Depariment of Medical
Assistance Services (DMAS) the authority to administer and
amend the Plan for Medical Assistancs in lieu of board action
pursuant to the board’s requiremenis. Sections 9-6.14:7 1
and 9-6.14:9.1 of the Administrative Process Act provide for
this agency's promulgation of proposed regulations subject to
the Governor's review.

Purpose: The purpose of this proposal is to amend the
Technology Assisted Waiver Program to updais the definition
of those eligible to receive sevices and to conform the
financial eligibility criteria to correspond to the current HCFA
interpretation.

The Technology Assisied Waiver
Program provides home and comrmunity-based services (care
coordination and private duty nursing) ko recipients who are
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dependent on a technology as a substitute for a vital function,
e.g., ventilators, trachiostomies, and tube fesdings. The
waiver services allow the recipient to remain in the home
rather than being institutionalized at an increased cost. The
changes to the regulation aliow DMAS to ensure that this
service is only offered to persons who meet all criteria for
service. This will alow DMAS to focus the available limited
dallars te those most in need of home nursing and case
management.

There have been many changes in the administration of the
Technology Assisted Waiver Program since the program
began in 1988. The current regulations no longer accurately
reflect the program which has been federally approved.
Failure to re-conform the agency's existing reguiations to the
current federally approved waiver policies will jeopardize the
agency's standing in potential appeals and lawsuits. Without
regulations which have been duly amended via the
Administrative Process Act, the agency lacks the needed
state authority to expend general funds dollars for these
federally approved policy changes.

A. Definition of Persons Eligible io Receive Services. Cne of
the -criteria used to determine eligibility for technology-
assisted waiver services is the need for substantial and
ongoing skiiled nursing. When waiver services are
requested, it is relatively easy to determine if a child is
dependent on a technology. However, deciding whether the
child needs substantial and ongoing nursing care is currently
being determined using subjective impressions. Decisions
made with this method have been difficult to defend and may
have resulted in recipients with similar conditions not being
freated equally. Agency staff are often overtumed during
appeal hearings when the issue is whether a child needs
substantial nursing care. The use of an objective scoring tool
to determine if a recipient needs substantial and ongoing
skilled nursing services will ensure that such requests are
consistently evaluated. An objective method of measuring
the need for nursing ensures that all recipients are treated
equitably and decisions based on its use are easily defended
during challenges.

The Technology Assisted Waiver Program was originally
developed for coverage of children under the age of 21. In
1891, the technology assisted waiver was amended to allow
persons who are eligible under the waiver prior to their 21st
birthday to remain in the program and continue to receive
services even after they turn 21, as long as they meet the
medical and target population criteria. HCFA approved this
change to the waiver; however, the regulations were never
amended to reflect this change. Currently there are six
persons over the age of 21 receiving waiver services under
this waiver amendment. This regulatory change will bring the
regulations into agreement with the waiver as HCFA has
approved it.

Although these reguiations currenily limit the services to
persons under the age of 21 at the time of program
admission, there are frequent requests for home-based care
for adults (those over the age of 21) whe also meet all the
waiver services criteria except the age requirement. These
adulis must, in the absence of homea-based care, remain in
an institutional setting. In August 1985, HCFA approved an
additional amendment that allows persons over the age of 21,

who are currently residing in a specialized care nursing
facility, o be admitted to the technology assisted waiver
when the cost of their home care is less than or equal to the
cost of their continued care in the nursing facility. These
changes will allow disabled adulis to fransfer io cost-effective,
home-hased services. For young adulis, the opportunity to
reside in the community rather than a nursing facility is
desirable to maintain maximum function, pariicipate in
rehabilitative services, and bescome a preductive adult
member of society.

Persons requesting waiver services must have resided in a
nursing facility, or a higher level institution, reimbursed by
Medicaid, for a minimum of 90 days prior to admission o
waiver services. Citizens and advocacy groups have already
expressed their concerns to DMAS about this requirement.
By restricting this new eligible population to those currently in
a specialized care nursing facility, Medicaid reimbursed home
care will not be substituted for care currently being provided
by community or family support systems. Meeting the 90-day
requirement also ensures that the technology dependent
patieni meets the federal individual cost ettectiveness
standard. 1t is estimated that in the first year that this service
is offered, eight adults will be admitted to waiver services.

B. Financial Eligibility Criteria. In 1994, HOFA issued revised
preprinted waiver form pages to the states. These wording
changes have been incorporated into the proposed reguiation
package and do not affect the type or number of persons
eligible to receive services through the waiver.

Issues:

A, Definition of Persons Eligible to Receive Services. The
use of an objective system for determining eligibility for the
program is an advantage for providers and recipients. Based
on clear, easily interpreted criteria, providers and the public
will be able to easily determine if a potential recipient meets
the criteria for services. This will avoid inappropriate referrals
and allow physicians and other health care workers o
appropriately plan for discharge. This is alsc an advantage to
DMAS because it saves staff time by reducing the number of
unnecessary assessments for services. During the trial
period of the objective scoring too!, there were no appeals of
decisions to deny or terminate services because the child did
not meet the criteria. Based on this experience,
implementation of this system will also result in a significant
savings o the agency in staff time needed for paricipation in
the appeals process.

The policy to allow persons who were admitted to the waiver
prior to their 21st birthday to continue receiving services after
they turn 21 has been in place since 1981. Since that time
there have been no issues arising from this programmatic
change. However, without regulaiory foundation, the six
aduits who are receiving services under this provision will
have to be discharged from the program. [ischarge from the
program wouid result in substantial negative reaction from
nursing providers, physicians, hospitals, and advocacy
groups, and would increase DMAS costs for coverage of
these individuals for institutional care.

The proposed changes in the regulation will improve the
recipients and providers access to technology assisted
waiver services. More recipients will be able to access
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community based services at reduced cost to Medicaid
thereby aveolding prolonged institutionalization, This Is a
primary advariage for young technology dependent adulls
who otherwise would have to remaln In nursing facilitiss away
from sdusational or vocatlonal opportunities, SBeveral young
adults currently in nursing homes are aware that this changs
has been requestad and are anticipating discharge into the
community, Failure to changs the regulation will result in
thase recipienis having lo remain in a nursing facllity at
ingreased anst to Medicaid,

B, Financial Eligibility Criterla.  The ravision of financlal
eligibility oriteria  fo  conform  with HCFA's  curreni
interpretation does not affect providers or reciplents, ltis a
wording change only and dees not affect determination of
atiglbifity.

The agency projscts no nagallve issues Involved in

implemanting these proposed changes,

Fiscal/Budget Impack: There will be no negative financial
impact on providers or recipients from these regulaiory
changes, There are no localities which arg uniquely affected
by thesa regulations as they apply statewide.

A, Definition of Persons Eligible to Receive Services. The
adoplion of an objective scoring system to determine
eligibility for these services will not financially impact
providers or recipients, Reclpients who are determinad to be
insligible for services, would have besn ineligible using the
current subjective systermn.  The objective system may
generate small, yel undetermined, cost savings for DMAS
which is expected to negate the need for additional staff In
the future,

Allowing recipients who began services prior to their 21st
birthday to continue recelving services will have no fiscal
irpact because this change has been in place since 1991,
The six adults currently receiving services under this
provision are monitored to ensure their home-based care
remains no more costly than institutional care. Any increased
financial impact for DMAS has been included in budget
projections since 1981,

The addition of adults in nursing facilities to the target
population for waiver services will be cost effective for DMAS.
Adults will not be eligible for the program unless their home-
based care services will be no more costly than the cost of
their care in a nursing facility. The agency currently
estimates that eight aduits will be added during the first year.
Waiver related costs will be approximately $36,000 ($17,485
GF; $18,515 NGF) per year for each recipient or $288,000
($139,881 GF; $148,118 NGF) for FY ‘97. In comparison, the
approximate cost of caring for these individuals in specialized
care settings (which their medical needs require) is $10,358
per month per individual or $124,296 total funds per year
each for a iotal of $994 368 ($482,964 GF; $511,403 NGF)
for FY '97.

B. Financial Eligibility Criteria. | these changes are not
implemented, Virginia's continued receipt of federal matching
funds might be jeopardized. The agency's total expenditures
for this program in the waiver year December 1, 1992, to
Novernber 30, 1293, were $5,877,100.

An§§y§ 8. The Depanment of F’Ianning and Budgat (E’DPB)
has analyzed the economlc Impact of thls proposed
regulation In accordance with § $-8.14:7.1 G of the
Adminlstrative Process Act and Executive Order Number 13
(94), Section 2-6.14:7.1 G requires that such sconomio
Impact analyses include, but need not be Hmited 1o, the
projected number of businessas or other entitles to whom the
regulation waould apply; the Identity of any localliies and types
of businesses or other enllties particularly affected, the
projected numbear of persons and employment positions to be
affected, the projected costs to aliscted businesses or
entities (o implemeant or comply with the regulation, and the
impact on the use and value of private properly. The analysis
presented below represenis DPB's best astimate of these
aconomic affects.

Summary of the Proposed Regulation. The proposed
regulation amends the current regulation governing the
Technology Assisted Waiver Program. The Technology
Assigted Waiver Program provides homs-based and
community-based services to patients who are dependent on
a technology as a substitute for some vital function (e.g.,
veniilators, tube feedings, etc.). The primary amendments
contained in the proposed regulation are as follows:

1. Use of an objective scoring tool for determining
whether a patient requires substantial and ongoing
rrsing services;

2. Allowing persons who were siigible for the program
prior to their 21st birthday to remain in the program and
continue to recelve benefits after they turn 21, providing
they continue to meet certain criteria; and

3. Allowing persons over 21, who ars residing in a
specialized care nursing facility, to be admitted to the
program if the cost of their home care would be less than
the cost of their current care.

Estimated Economic Impact

ltern 1. The use of an objective scoring ool to determinsg the
need for substantial and ongoing nursing care will have at
least two effects. First, it will simplify the process of making
such decisions, The economic consequence of this effect is
likely to be a reduction in agency resource requirements.
Insufficient information exists at this time to quantify the exact
magnitude of this reduction, however.

Second, the use of an objective scoring ool will reduce the
uncertainty associated with the determination process and,
thereby, reduce the likelihcod that agency determinations will
be appealed. The economic conseguence of this effect is a
likely reduction in the legal and other expenses associated
with the appeals process. DMAS reporis that in the past
approximately three to four decisions were appealed per
year, and each appeal involved roughly ten hours of staif time
in addition to litigation costs, which are highly variable. Mt is
probable that objective scoring will reduce these expenses in
the future. 1t is currently not possible to know the exact
magnitude of this reduction, however.

“ltems 2 and 3. Aduts are not eligible for the waiver program

unless the cost of their home care is less than the cost of
their care in an institutional facility. As a result, the addition
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of these individuals to the program can only reduce medical
costs by providing cost-effective alternatives to institutional
care. DMAS estimates that overall medical expenditures will
be reduced by roughly $88,300 for each adult who qualifies to
enter the waiver program.

Businesses and Entities Particularly Affected. The proposed
regulation particularly affects medical care faciliies and
individuals eligible for the Technology Assisted Waiver
Program.

Localities Particularly Affected. No localities are particularly
affected by the proposed regulation.

Projected Impact on Employment. The proposed reguiation
is not anticipated to have a significant effect on employment.

Affects on the Use and Value of Private Property. The
proposed regulation is not anticipated to have a significant
effect on the use and value of private property.

Summary of Analysis. The proposed regulation amends the
current regulation governing the Technology Assisted Waiver
Program to: (i) require the use of an objective scoring tool in
determining the need for substantial and ongoing nursing
services, and (ii) allow the individuals over 21 to qualify for
the program under certain conditions. These amendments
are expected to have two primary economic effects: (i)
reduce agency resource requitements, and (i) reduce
medical expenditures.

Agency's Response to Depariment of Planning and Budget's
Economic Impact Analysis: The agency concurs with the
economic impact analysis prepared by the Department of
Planning and Budget regarding the regulations conceming
Home and Community Based Care Services for Technology
Assisted Individuals.

Summary:

The proposed amendments (i} provide for the use of an
objective scoring tool for determining whether a patient
requires substantial and ongoing nursing services; (ii)
allow persons who were eligible for the program prior to
their 21st birthday to remain in the program and continue
to receive benefits after they tum 21 providing they
continue to meet certain criteria; and (i) allow persons
over 21 who are residing in a specialized care nursing
facility to be admitted to the program If the cost of their
home care would be less than the cost of their current
care.

12 VAC 30-120-70. Definitions.

The following words and terms, when used in these
rogulations this par, shall have the following meanings
unless the context clearly indicates otherwise;

"Activities of daily living (ADL)” means personal care fasks,
ie., bathing, dressing, toileting, transferring, bowel/bladder
control, and eating/feeding. A person's degree of
independence in performing these activities is a part of
determining appropriate level of care and services.

"Congregale private duty nursing” means nursing provided
to two or more recipients in a group setting.

"DMAS" means the Departmeni of Medical Assistance
Services.

oh—as reg:stered
nurse who is responsuble for ensurlng that the assessment,
care planning, monitoring, and review activities as required
by DMAS are accomplished. This individual may be either an
employee of DMAS or a DMAS contractor.

"Health care coordination” means a comprehensive needs
assessment, determination of cost effectiveness, and the
coordination of the service efforts of multiple providers in
order to avoid duplication of setvices and fo ensure the
individual's access to and receipt of needed services.

“Instrumental activilies of daily iving (IADL)” means social
tasks, ie., meal preparation, shopping, housekeeping,
laundry, money management. A person’s degree of
independence in performing these aclivilies is a part of
determining appropriate level of care and services. Meal
preparation is planning, preparing, cooking and serving food.
Shopping is getting to and from the store, oblaining/paying
for groceries and carmying them home. Housekeeping is
dusting, washing dishes, making beds, vacuuming, cleaning
floors, and cleaning kitchen/bathroom. Laundry s
washing/drying clothes. Money management is paying bills,
writing checks, handiing cash transactions, and making
change.

"Medical equipment and supplies” means those articles
prescribed by the attending physician, generally recognized
by the medical community as serving a diagnostic or
therapeutic purpose and as being a medically necessary
element of the home care plan. liems covered are medically
necessary equipment and suppiies needed to assist the
individual in the home environmeni, without regard to whether

those net-akeady available—under—other-serdees items are

covered by the Plan,

“Objective Scoring Criteria” means the evaluative tool o be
used to determine the appropriateness for an individual's
admission to these services.

“Personal assistance™ means care provided by an aide or
respiratory therapist trained in the provision of assistance
with ADLs or IADLs.

"Plan of care” means the written plan of services and
supplies certified by the attending physician needed by the
individual to ensure optimal health and safety for an extended
period of time.

"Primary caregiver" means either a family member or other
person who takes prirmary responsibility for providing
personal care, assistance with ADLs or IADLs or both, and
other care needs the recipient is unable to provide for
himself.

"Private duty nursing” means individual and continuous
nursing care provided by a registered nurse or a licensed
practical nurse under the supervision of a registered nurse.

"Providers" means those individuals or facilities registered,
licensed, or certified, or both, as appropriate, and enrolled by
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DMAS to render services to Medicaid recipients eligible for
services.

*Respite care services" means temporary skilléd nursing
services designed to relieve the family of the care of the
technology assisted individual (up to age 21) for a short
period or pericds of time (a maximum of 15 days per year or
360 hours per 12-month period). Respite care shall be
provided in the home of the individual's family or caretaker.

"Routine respiratory therapy” means services that can be
provided on a regularly scheduled basis. Therapy
interventions may include: (i) monitoring of oxygen in blood;
{ii) evaluation of pulmonary functioning; and (iii} maintenance
of respiratory equipment,

"State Plan for Medical Assistance” or "the Plan" means
the document containing the covered groups, covered
services and their limitations, and provider reimbursement
methodologies as provided for under Title XIX of the Social
Security Act.

"Technology assisted" means any child,—yeungerthan21

years Individual, defined as chronically ill or severely
|mpa|redwhese—#mess—epd+eabmty—wemdﬁn—me—absense—ef

ehuds—stay—m—a—hespwal—mmag—taeduy—e;—emer—lenyenn
care-ltaciity—This-individual-must-need who needs both a

medical device to compensate for the loss of a vital body
function and substantial and ongoing skilled nursing care to

avert death or further d|sabﬂ|ty—mlhewteshne!egy—ase+9ted

and whose Jﬂness or drsabrhry wou!d in the absence of
services approved under this waiver require admission fo or
prolonged stay in a hospital, nursing facility, or other medical
long-term care facility.

12 VAC 30-120-80. Coveragestatement:  General

coverage and requirements for technology assisted
waiver services.

A. Coverage statement.

1. Coverage shall be provided under the administration
of DMAS for certain technology assisted individuals upde
the—age-of 24 who would otherwise remain in hospitals
(for individuals under 21) or specialized cdre nursing
facifities (for those over 21) for which Medicaid
reimbursement would be made.

B:- 2 The objective of this waiver is to provide for
medically appropriate and cost-effective coverage of
services necessary to maintain these individuals in the
community.

G- 3. Coverage shall not be provided for these services
in board and care facilities or adult care residences.

B. Patient qualifications. A Medicaid eligible technology
assisted individual shall be eligible for services if he meets
the following requirements;

1. The technology assisted individual shall be
determined to need a medical device when the individual
meets one or more of the following categories:

a. Individuals depending at least part of each day on
mechanical ventilators.

b. Individuals  requiring prolonged intravenous
administration of nutritional substances or drugs.

¢. Individuals having daily dependence on other
device-based respiratory or nuiritional support,
including tracheostomy tube care, oxygen support, or
tube feeding.

2. The individual's attending physician must certify the
individual's need for this level of care.

3. In addition to the medical needs identified in
subdivision 1 of this subsection, the technology assisted
individual shall be determined to need substantial and
ongoing skilled nursing care. This determination shall be
made using an objective tool approved by DMAS. The
recipient shall be required o meel a minimum standard
on the Objective Scoring Criteria to be eligible to be
admitted to technology assisted waiver services.

4. In addition to the medical needs identified in
subdivision 1 of this subsection, Medicaid eligible
individuals younger than 21 shall be admitted to this
service only if the anficipated cost fo Medicaid of home
care will be less than the cost to Medicaid of the
individual in a hospital or nursing facility.

5. In addition to the medical needs identified in
subdivision 1 of this subsection, Medicaid eligible
individuals older than 21 must enter this service from a
specialized nursing facility or other comparable or higher
level of care Medicaid-reimbursed institution when it is
determined that the individual will require care from that
institution for an extended period of time or would be
transferred fo a specialized nursing facility for that level
of care, or both. Such other comparable Medicaid
reimbursed institution could be a general acute care
hospital, an inpatient rehabilitation hospital, or other
subacute setting. Before this individual can be approved
for this community-based Medicaid reimbursed service,
the individual must have been residing at the facility for a
minimum of 80 days. At least a portion of the cost for
each of the 90 days mus! have been reimbursed by
Medicaid. If the recipient has been in the facility for more
than S0 days at the time of the request for waiver
setvices, at least a portion of the cost for each of these
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days in the most recent 90-day period must have been
paid by Medicald. An individual older than 21 shall be
admifted to this waiver service only if the anticipated cost
to Medicaid of his home care will be less than the current
average cost of care in a specialized nursing facility.

6. If a person is over age 21 and already a waiver
recipfentt and requires admission fo a nursing facility or
rehabilitation hospital for more than 30 days but less
than 90 days, the recipient will be discharged from the
waiver. To be readmitted to the waiver services, the
recipient must be assessed to determine that the
recipient currently meets the specialized nursing facifity
and waiver criteria. If these criteria are met, the recipient
shall be readmitted to waiver services without having to
first be admitted to a specialized care bed for 90 days.

7. If a recipient over age 21 is discharged from the
waiver for any reason other than admission 1o a
specialized nursing facility or other comparable or higher
level of care for more than 90 days, the recipient must be
admitted to a specialized care facility tevel of care for at
least 80 days before the recipient can be readmitted fo

" the waiver in order to shsure that community care being
provided by other sources is not supplanted by Medicaid
reimbursed cars.

8. The individual shall have a live-in primary caregiver
who accepis responsibility for the individual's health and
welfare or the individual shall be over the age of 21 and
share a home with one or more other waiver recipients.

9. Thase services shall not be available to individuals
while an inpatient in general acute care hospitals, skilled
nursing facilities, intermediate care facilities, “or
infermediate care facilifies for the mentally retarded.

10.  Any individual, regardless of age, who requires
admission to any type of medical care facility for fewer
than 30 days shall again be eligible for waiver services
upon discharge from the facility so long as all other
requirements continue to be met.

C. Patient eligibility requirements.

1. Individuals receiving services under this waiver must
be eligible under one of the following eligibility groups:
ADC and AFDC-related recipients, SS! and $Si-related
recipients, aged, blind or disabled recipienis eligible
under 42 CFR 435.121, and the special home and
community-based waiver group at 42 CFR 435217
which includes individuals who are eligible under the
State Plan if they were institutionalized. The income
level used for the special home and community-based
waiver group at 42 CFR 435.217 is 300% of the current
Supplemental Security Income payment standard for one
person. Medically needy individuals are eligible if they
meet the medically needy financial requirements for
income and resources.

2. Under this waivered service, the coverage groups
authorized under § 1902(a)(10}(C)()Ilf) of the Social
Security Act (42 USC § 1396a(a)(10)) will be considered
" as if they were inslitutionalized for the purpose of
applying instifutional deeming rules. Alf recipients under

the walver must meet the financial and nonfinancial
Medicaid eligibilily criteria and be Medicaid eligible in an
institution. The deeming rules are applied to waiver
eligible individuals as if the individuals were residing in
an Institution or would require that level of care.

3. \Virginia shall reduce its payment for home and
community-based services provided for an individual by
that amount of the individual's total income (including
amounts disregarded in determining  eligibility} that
remains after allowable deductions for personal
maintenance needs, deductions for oiher dependents
and- medical needs have been made according to the
requirements in 42 CFR 435.726.

4. Individuals who are eligible for third party payment for
the afternative institutional services shall not be eligible
for these waivered services. If an individual or their
legally responsible party voluntarily cancels enroliment in
any insurance plan which would have provided coverage
for institutional services in order to become eligible for
walver services, eligibility for the waiver shall be denied.

12 VAC 30-120-90. Covered services and provider
requirements. '

A, Private duty nursing service shall be covered for
individuals up-to-the-age-of-21-qualifiedfor enrolled in the
technology assisted waiver services. This service shall be
provided erly through efther a home healih agency licensed
or certified by the Virginia Department of Health for Medicaid
participation; and with which DMAS has a contract for private
duty nursing or a day care center licensed by the Virginia
Department of Social Services which employs registered
nurses and is enrolled by DMAS lo provide congregate
private duty nursing. At a minimum, the private duty nurse
shali either be a licensed practical nurse or a registered
nurse with a current and valid license issued by the Virginia
State Board of Nursing,

1. For individuals under 21, during the first 30 days after
the individual's admission to the waiver service, private
duty nursing is covered for 24 hours per day if needed
and appropriate 1o assist the family in adjusiment to the
care associated with technology assistance. After 30
days, private duty nursing shall be reimbursed for a
maximum of 16 hours per 24-hour period. The
department may grant individual exceptions, nof fo
exceed 30 fotal days per annum, to.these maximum
limits based on documented emergency needs of the
individual and centinued-aggregate - the case, without
inclusion of additional emergency costs, which continue
tc meet requirements for cost effectiveness of
community services.

2. If the individual is weared-frem no longer dependent
upon the technology, reimbursement may be available
for private duty nursing for a-maximum—si18-hours the
number of hours previously approved in the pfan of care
per 24-hour period not to exceed two weeks from the
date the attending physician cerifies the cessation of
technology assistance.
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3. The hours of private duty nursing approved for
coverage shall be limited by medical necessity and cost
effectiveness.

4. Congregate private duty nursing shalil be limited to a
maximum ratio of one private duty nurse to two adult
waiver recipienfs except when two or more waiver
recipients share a home where ratios will be determined
by the combined needs of the residents.

B. Respite care service shall be covered for individuals up
to-the—age-of-2% who are gualified for technology assisted
waiver services and who have a primary caregiver, other than
the provider, who requires relief from the burden of
caregiving. This service shall be provided by skilled nursing
staft (registered nurse or licensed practical nurse licensed to
practice in the Commonwealth) under the direct supervision
of a home health agency licensed or certified by the Virginia
Department of Health for Medicaid participation and with
which DMAS has a contract to provide private duty nursing.

C. Durable medical equipment and supplies net-etherwise
covered-in—the—State—Plan shall be provided for individuals
qualified for technology services. This service shall be
provided by persons qualified to render it.

1. Durable medical equipment and supplies shall be
necessary to maintain the individual in the home
environment.

a. Medical equipment and supples shall be
prescribed by the attending physician and included in
the plan of care, and shall must be generally
recognized as serving a diagnostic or therapeutic
purpose and being medically necessary for the home
care of the individual.

b. Vendors of durable medical eguipment and
supplies related to the technology upon which the
individual is dependent shall have a contract with
DMAS to provide services.

c. In addition to providing the ventilator or other
respiratory-deviced support and associated equipment
and supplies, the vendor providing the ventilator shall
ensure the following:

{1) 24 hour on-call for emergency services;

{2) Technicians to make regularly scheduled
maintenance visits at least every 46 30 days and
more often if calied;

{3) Replacement or repair
supplies as required; and

of equipment and

(4) Respiratory therapist registered or certified with
the National Board for Respiratory Care (NBRC) on-
cali 24 hours per day and stationed within two hours
of the individual's home to facilitate immediate
response.  The respiratory therapist shall be
available for routine respiratory therapy as well as
emergency care. In the event that the Department
of Health Professions implements through state law
a reguiation requiring registration, cerification or
licensure for respiratory therapists to practice in the
Commonwealth, DMAS shall require all respiratory

therapists providing services to this technology
assisted population to be duly registered, licensed or
certified.

2. Medical equipment and supplies include:

a. All durable medical equipment and supplies which
are covered under the State Plan—See-the-attachment

. and those
medical equipment and supplies, including such items
which may be defined as assistive technology and
environmental modifications which are not covered
under the State Plan but are medically necessary and
cost effactive for the individual’s maintenance in the
community; and

b. Apne&mem%m Nutritional supplements.

Personal ass.'stance
services shall be covered for individuals over the age of 21
who require some assistance with activities of daily living and
instrurnental activities of daily living but do not require and
are able to do without skilled interventions during portions of
their day or are able to self perform or direct their skilled care
needs during the period when personal assistance would be
provided. This service shall be provided by durable medical
equipment agencies contracted with DMAS.

12 VAC 30-120-100. Provider reimbursement.

A. All private duty nursing services shall be reimbursed at
an hourly negotiated fee.

B. Respite care shall be reimbursed at an hourly
negotiated fee.

C. Frior approval for durable medical equipment and
supplies shall be requested from DMAS by the durable
medical equipment provider. The request must be submifted
lo the health care coordinator. Prior approval by DMAS shall
be required for all durable medical equipment and other
medically related supplies furnished under this program
before the individual's admission to waiver services and
before reimbursement. |f additional equipment and supplies
are needed following the individual's admission to waiver
services, the Health-Care-Coeordinator-shall durable medical
equipment provider must obtain BMAS' prior approvatl. This
prior authorization requirement shall apply to all durable
medical equipment and supplies that are covered under the
State Plan or the waiver.

Personal assrstance shaH be re:mbursed at an hourly
negotiated fee.
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12 VAC 30-120-110. Rallent-gualificationand sligibility
requlremenis, Assessment and plan of care
requirements.

+ A. The initial assessment and development of the plan
of care shall be conducted by a-multidissiplinansteam—The
team-—shallinelude an aitending physiclan—a--muse—and-a
sockabworker and a health care coordinator.

& 1. The physicial physician shall be currently certified
by the Board of Medicine and have a currently valid
license o practice medicine in the Commonwealth. The
physician shall have experience in the needs and care of
technology assisted persons and the needs of children if
the individual being admitted o waiver sewices is a
child.

b: 2. The nurse-shall health care coordinator must be a
Fegrstered—nurse currently and-validly licensed to practice
nursing in the Commonwealih. The nurse shall have
experience in the needs and care of technology assisted
persons and the needs of children if the individual bseing
admitted to walver services is a child.

& 3. Other specialists who are cutrently and validly
licensad, registered or cerified to practice their
specialities within the Commonwealth may participate in
the assessment and care planning process. These other
speciaiists shall have experience in the needs and care
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of technology assisted persons and the needs of children
if the person being admitted to waiver services is a child.

e: 4. The health care coordinator is shall be responsible

for ensuring that the assessment, care planning,

monitoring, and review activities required by DMAS are

accomplished and documented consistent with DMAS’

requirements. The—Health-GCareCoordinator—shall-be
; ;

9'“'5.' @ u:nsre iel' &880 a .;ellze- e_et' g—the

2. B. Referral for waiver services and assessment.

& 1. Forindividuals under age 21, a service referral may
originate from either the clinical staff in the hospital
where the individua! is located or from the-clinical-stalf a
health care professional in the community where the
individual is receiving non-Medicaid funded home and
community-based services. For individuals over age 21,
the referral may orginate from the discharge planning
staff in the nursing facility where the individual resides or
from persons in the community who are aware of the
needs of the individual.

b: 2. The health care coordinator shall meet-with-the

! - first
determine that Medicaid would be the source of payment
for the individual’s institutional care if waiver services are
not available. An individual for whom third parly
payment is available for the aiternative institutional care
is not eligible for the waiver service nor is an individual
whose insurance has been voluntarily dropped in
anticipation of waiver application and an assessment for
waiver services is not to be completed.

& 3. Upon receiving parental-orguardian consent from

the adult individual (or a parent or guardian in the case
of a child} to explore the possibility of home care, the
health care coordinator shall arrange for the assessment
process for waiver services. The initial assessment and
development of the plan of care for a potential waiver
participant wilt shall be conducted by the health care

socrdination-multidissiplinary-team coordinator.

d= 4. At the time of assessment, certification from the
attending physician that the individual would otherwise
require continued acute care or skilled nursing facility
care will shall be necessary to continue the assessment
process.

5. Upon the completion of the assessment process the
heaith care coordinator shall make a determination of the
need for substantial and ongoing skilled nursing care.
This determination wifl be made using an objective tool
approved by DMAS. For admission to or continuation in
the technology assisted waiver program, the recipient will
be required to meet a score of 50 or more on the
Objective Scoring Criteria form.

3- C. Development of the plan of care.

& 1 Upon comp!etlon of the medaeal#nursmgmmeﬂenm

requ.'red assessments and a derermmat.ron that the
individual needs substantial and ongoing skilled nursing
care, the plan of care is developed by the heaith care
coordinator.

b- 2. At minimum, the plan of care shall include:

{4} a. A statement of the appropriateness of the home
in which the individual is to be placed.

{2} b. ldentification of the type, frequency, and amount
of nursing care and personal assistance needed. This
shall include the name of the provider agency, whether
the nurse is an BN or an LPN, and verification that the
nurse is licensed to practice in the Commonwealth and
the professional qualifications of the personnel
required fo provide personal assistance. This shall
also contain documertation that the health care
coordinator has verified that the provider agency is an
enrolied provider with DMAS to provide skilled-Aursing

the appropriate waiver services for this-population the
individual.

" {8) ¢. Identification of all other services that are
needed for the individual to be maintained in the
home. The statement shall include, as appropriate,
speech therapy, occupational therapy, physical
therapy, transportation, physician services, the
frequency and amount of service needed, the provider
of the service, and the payment source.

{4} d. A complete list of equipment and supply needs,
and identification of the provider and source of
payment.

{6} e. Identification of the type, frequency, and amount
of care that the family or other informal care givers
shall provide.

{6}—Identification—ot —the—anticipated-—utilization—of
eslp'te' care—during—the—i2 ’.’e Hh—period—afte

£ f. Other referrals for assessment for services (as
needed and appropriate) to include but not be limited
to the school system; Women, Infants, and Children
Program {WIC}; child development clinic services; and
Early and Periodic Screening, Diagnosis and
Treatment Program (EPSDT) services.

{8} g. Identification of the primary care physician in
the community who has agreed to fellow manage the
medical care of the individual in the community.
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9 h
Including a statement from the-multidiselplinary-team
as-well-ae the indlvidual's primary care physlcian, 10 be
signed by the legally responsible adult, atiesting that
the medical care the individual Is to receive in the
home is agreed to by the IegaIIy rasponsible adult and

The appropriateness of the medical cars,

aH others mvo!ved In fhe assessment process raferred
lo in this section,

4: D. Cost effectiveness computations.

a—Yhess 1. Cost effectiveness compuiations shall be
completed by the health care coordinator upon
completion of the plan of care for any individual entering
the waiver.

b- 2. Forindividuals over 21, the hsealth care coordinator
shall be required to document the anticipated cost to
DMAS for the individual's waiver services for a 42 one-
month peried. The health care coordinator shall then
compare DMAS DMAS' costs for the waiver to
anticipated the average costs to DMAS for sontinued

hospitelizatien—of specialized nursing facility care for the
individual,

3. For individuals under 21, the health care coordinator
shall be required to document the anticipated cost 1o
DMAS for the Individual's walver services for a one-
month period. The health care coordinator shall then
compare DMAS' costs for the waiver fo the average
costs to DMAS for continued hospitalization of the
individual.

5: E. Patient selection of walver services.

a- 1. When the determination that the individual's needs
can appropriately and cost-effectively be met in the
community with these waiver services, the health care
coordmator shall gwe the Legaﬂy—;es-peas@ew@y—aﬂd

- aduit
individual or the parent or guardian of a child the choice
of waiver services or heepitalization institutionalization.

b 2. If waiver services are chosen, the apphcanr or ms
legally responsible
eeparate-porsens; adult will also be given the opportumty
to choose the providers of service, if more than one
provider is available to render the services. /f more than
one waiver recipient will reside in the home, one waiver
provider shall be chosen to provide all private duty
nursing services for all waiver recipients in the home.
Only one nurse will be authorized to care for each two
waiver recipients in a home, except in the instance when
adult waiver participants share a home, where nursing
ratios will be determined by the health care coordinator
based on the needs of alf the recipients living together.

& F. DMAS shall review and approve the assessment,

" plan of care, cost effectiveness, and choice of providers prior

to the individual's admission to community waiver services,

and prior to Medicaid payment for any services related to the
waiver serviees plan of care.

¥ 12 VAC 30-120-115. HReeveluation requiremenis and
utlilzation review.

& A. The need for reevaluations shall be determined by
the health care coordinator, Heevaiuaﬂons shan be
conducted by the heatth care ooordlnator at-toaEt-avans-

GONIGEE as requfred by the mdtwcfual & naedsand situarron
and at any time when a change in the individual's condition
Indicates the need for reevaluation.

After-the—firet-thtos

b: B. DMAS is responsible for performing utilization review
at least comi-annually every six months and for the
maintenance of supporting documentation. DMAS shall alse
maintain a copy of the plan of care, the initial evaluation, and
sach reevaluation for & the minimum period eidive—years
required by federal and state law.

e: C. The health care coordinator shall review the plan of
care for appropriateness of the level, amount, type, and
quality of services provided as well as for monitoring the cost
effectiveness of the individual's care in the community.

4 D. Medical necessity of waiver services shall be
reviewed by the health care coordinator.

12 VAC 30-120-120. Appeal of denied coverage,

A. DMAS shall provide the opportunity for a fair hearing
under 42 CFR Part 431, Subpar E, to individuals who are not
given the choice of home and community-based services as
an alternative to temaining—n—the receiving hospital or
entering nursing facility services or who are denied the
amount or type of service of their choice or the provider of
their choice.

B. The individual shall be advised in writing of the denial
and of his right to appeal consistent with DMAS client
appeals (12 VAC 30-110-10 through 12 VAC 30-110-600).

12 VAC 30-120-130.
(Repealed.)
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individual's Name

GBJECTIVE SCORING ERITERLA

Pringipal Diagnosis

HEC Admit Datg
DATE
TECHNBLOGY POINTS
Vent 0 dent tatal 50
i i 45
TFrach 43
C-PAP, BIPAP 25
Ozygen, & 18
2. conti unstable 35
G-tuba i 15 -
G-tube, cont. with reflux 35
NG tube Continuous 40
balus 25
iV therapy  continuous 40

SUBTOTAL TECHNOLOGY

NURSING NEEDS

Suctioning > glhe.

gl4hrs

géhrs+

NG/GT Feeds

qZhrs

q3hes

adhis

Medication  simole

moderale

comulex

cath, gdhis

gAhrs

qiZhrs

od or PRN

Orezsmgs q Ehrs or less

> nBhs

Trath thangz ant care

IV/Hyperat  zontinugus

safon|ee|mlfm|mlmiraleolbajm|o|e| el obe|oiro]wlo;

8-14nrs |
A7 hrs ]
. < 4hrs ]
Soecial T4 0ID i
70
BT i :
0o f i : ;
Soecialited manter Ll bl ! : :
> 3 hase.in last yroor 3 me, cont 5 ! ! i i
Othes ] i
SUBTOTALKURSING i ,
TOTAL POINTS i | | !
DALY NURSILG KOUAS, | ] | | | i |

Sgnature of person comgieing form

Cate

DEFINITIONS
Oxygen, cortinuous- Individual must require oxygen a minimum of 12 hours out of 24.

Oxygen, unstabie, - Dependent on oxygen 24 hours per day plus any 2 of the following:
Diuretics
Albuterol treatments at least g4hrs around the clock
Weight is below 15th percentile for age and gain does not follow normal curve for height
>3 hospitalizations in fast 6 months for respiratory probiems
Daily desaturation below docter ordered parameters and desaturation requires nursing
intervention
Physician ordered restricted fluid intake

G-tube with reflux - Individual has continuous G-tube feeds plus one of the following
swallow study within the last 6 months that demonstrated reflux
aspiration paiebmonia within the last 12 months
need for suctioning due to reflux (not oral secretions) on & daily basis

Simple medication - One or two medications not requiring dosage adjustment

Moderate medication - More than two meds that required clese monitoring of dosage, side effects etc.

Complex medication - $ix or more meds on different frequency schedules OR
Tour or more meds requiring close monitoring of dosage and side effects

Dressings - Sterile dressings only. Trach dressings are not included in this category

Special Treatments - Other treatments that are considered skifled e g nebulizer. ROMis not 2
special treatment.

Specialized 'O monitering - Monritoring that includes judgment of fluid replacement needs
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BOARD OF MEDICINE

t atlon: 18 VAD 88-100-10 2t meg. Certiflcation
of Radloing!eal T@chno!cgy Pragtitioners (REPEALING),

tory Authority: 8§ 54.1-2400, 84,1-2066.8:1 and 54.1-
2956 8:2 Qf the Code of Virginia.

ublie Hearing Daie: August 9, 1996 - 8 a.m.

Pubilc commanta may be submited unill Qctobar 4,
1996,

{See Calendar of Events section

for additional information)

Summary:

Pursuant to Chapter 803 of the 1994 Acts of the
Assembly, the Board of Medicine proposes to repeal its
reguiations governing the cerfification of radiologic
technologisis  practitioners  and promulgate new
regulations for licensure of radiclogic technologists and
radiologic technologisis-limited.  Amendments to §8
54.1-2956.8:1 and 54.1-2955.8:2 mandiated licensure for
certain radiological practitioners by January 1, 1997,
therefore, board regulations for certification would no
fonger be necessary.

VA.R. Doc. No, R98-498, Filed July 17, 1888, 12:03 p.m.

AEXNDEETR

Title of Regulation: 18 VAC 85-101-10 et seq. Regulations
Governing the Licensure of Radiologic Technologists
and Radiologic Technologists-Limited,

Statutory Authority: §8 54.1-2400, 54.1-2958.8:1 and 54.1-
2956.8:2 of the Code of Virginia,

Public Hearing Date; August 9, 1996 - 8 a.m.
Public comments may be submitted untl Qctober 4,
1996.
{See Calendar of Events section
for additional information)

Basis: Chapter 24 (§ 54.1-2400 et seq.) and Chapter 29 (§
54.1-2000 et seq.) of Title 54.1 of the Code of Virginia
provide the basis for these regulations. Chapter 24
establishes the general powers and duties of health
regutatory boards including the power to establish
qualifications for licensure and responsibility to promulgate
regulations. Chapter 29 establishes the Board of Medicine
and authorizes the board to regulate the practice of radiclogic
technologists consistent with public health and safety.
Sections 54.1-2956.8:1 and 54.1-2956.8:2 (effective January
1, 1997) require the board to license radiologic technologist
and radiologic technologistlimited and to prescribe
education, experience, and examination requirements.

Purpgse: The purpose of the proposed regulations is io
repeal current regulations for the certification of radiological
technology practitioners and promulgate new regulations
governing ficensure as mandated by Chapter 803 of the 1994
General Assembly. The board proposes minimal education,
expetience, and examination requirements consistent with its
statutory responsibility to protect public health and safety,

betance: Part 1. Gensral Proviglons: 18 VAT 85-101-10
Daﬂnitions Several naw deflnitlons are proposed to clarify
terminalogy, to explain acrenyims, or o provide the regulatory
framawork for terms used In regulation,

18 VAC B5-101-20 Public Paricipation Guidslines: The
proposad regulation estabilshes the applicable regulation for
public participation In the development of these regulations,

Part It. Ligensure Requirements - Radiclogle Technologist,
18 VAC £5-101-30 establishes the sducational requirements
for radiologle fechnologists, Graduates of an approved
program, which is ena that qualifies the graduate to sit for the
Amarican Registry of Radiclogic Technologlsts (ARRT)
certification examination, ars raquired 10 submit documented
avidence of graduation,

18 VAC 85-101-40 establishes the examination required for
licensure as a radicloglc technoiegist as the ARRT
certification examination and requires that applicants follow
policies and procedures of the ARRT for administration and
passage.

18 VAC 85-101-580 ssiablishes & traineeship for an
unlicensed graduate awaiting the results of the licensure
examination and licensure by the board,

Part lil. Licensurs Requiremants - Radiologic Technologist-
Limited. 18 VAC 85-101-60 establishas the requirements for
submission of an application and fee and completion of a
specified course of training for licensure as a radiclogic
technologist-limited,

18 VAC 85-101-70 establishes the educational requirements
for radiologic technalogist-limited with a2 minimum number of
hours in certain procedures or completion of a ACRRT
approved program.

Part Iv. Licensure by Endorsement. 18 VAC 85-101-80
establishes the criteria for endorsement as a radiologic

-technologist. A person applying for endorsement must meet

credentialing gualifications of these regulations and have
been licensed in ancther jurisdiction. Untii January 1, 1999,
a person may be licensed by endorsement by submitting
evidence of satisfactory practice in Virginia for five or more
years.

18 VAC 85-101-90 establishes the criteria for endorsement
as a radiologic technologist-imited. Until January 1, 1999, a
person may apply for licensure by endorsement by submitting
evidence of satisfactory practice for the past two years.

Part V. Practice of Radiclogic Technologists. 18 VAC 85-
101-100 establishes the general requirement for services
rendered to be parformed upon the direction of a licensed
doctor.

18 VAC 85-101-110 establishes the responsibilities of a
radiclogic technologist to the patient and the delegating
practitianer.

18 VAL 85-101-120 establishes the supervisory
responsibilifies of a radiologic technologist for the actions of

_persons performing radiologic functions under his direction

and establishes that he may supervise no more than four

radiologic technologists-imited or three trainees at any one
time.
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Part VI. Practice of Radiologic Technologist-Limited. 18

VAC 85-101-130 establishes the general requirements for a

radiologic technologist-iimited to perform functions within his
" capabilities and anatomical limits of training.

18 VAC 85-101-140 establishes the individual responsibilities
of a radiologic technologist-limited to patients and to his
supervising radiclogic technologist or doctor.

Part Vi.. Renewal of Licensure. 18 VAC 85-101-150
establishes a biennial renewal of licenses, the requirement
that a radiclogist technoiogist maintain current ARRT
certification or complete 24 hours of continuing education,
and provisions for failure to renew or fees for late renewal.

Part VIll. Fees. 18 VAC 85-101-160 establishes the fees
required for an application for licensure, registraiion of a
traineeship, renewal or reinstatement of licensure, or
verification of licensure to another state.

Issues: The 1993 General Assembly addressed the issue of
. licensure for radiologic technologists in the passage of HJR
665 which crealed a joint subcommittee fo study the potential
risk of harm to the public of unregulated performance of
radiological services, the level of training and expertise
needed, and the effect that licensure of such practitioners
would have on costs and delivery of services. The study was
subsequently continued by General Assembly resolutions in
1994 and 1995 and resulted in the passage of iegislation to
amend Chapter 29 of Title 54.1 to require licensure and the
development of regulations for implementation by January 1,
1997. A report of the work and conclusions of the Joint
Subcommittee to Study the Public Health Implications of
Licensing Radiologic Technology Practitioners may be found
in House Document No. 3 of the 1996 General Assembly. .

Since the amended slatute mandates the licensure of
radiologic technologists and radiologic technologists-timited,
the level of regulation was not an issue in the board's
decision to repeal curreni reguiations which establish
certification and to propose a new set of regulations which
establish criteria for licensure. The statute also granted the
board authority to promulgate regulations which establish
"requirements for approved education programs, experience,
examinations, and periodic review for continuing
competency.”

Therefore, the board did have discretion in the development
of minimal standards for licensure and had to address issues
that were raised during public hearings, meetings of the
legislative commitiee, meetings of the Ad Hoc Advisory
Committee and in written comment from the public.

ISSUE 1:
requirement.

Exceptions or exemptions from licensure

A comment from the Virginia Hospital Association (VHA)
opposed regulation of radiologic technologists arguing that
within hospitals, the risk of harm to the public was not
. gvident, safeguards for the provision of quality care currently
exist, and evidence of inadequate training does not involve
hospitals.

Comments received during a public hearing from speciaity
praciitioners (such as family practice) and from the
chiropractic assoclation requested board consideration of

exemptions in regulations for radiclogical services in those
settings.

Alternatives considered. The board responded to the issue
raised by the VHA by noting that § 54.1-2956.8:1 specifically
excludes employees of a hospital licensed under Title 32.1
from the provisions of the act.  Therefore, no other
alternatives to regulations were considered in response o the
commeni.

The board responded to requests for other exemptions by
noting that § 54.1-2958.8:1 specifically requires licensure for
the practice of radiologic technology. Therefore, the board
may not exempt certain practitioners from the requirements of
the statute. The beoard has discretion in the adopiion of
qualifications for licensure and has attempted to provide
minimal, entry-level standards for licensure for the radiologic
technologists-limited who work under the direct supervision of
a licensed radiologic technologist, a physician, chiropractor,
or poediatrist.

In addition, the statule specifically excludes from the
requirements of licensure doctors of medicine, osteopathy,
padiatry, or chiropractic or dentists in the performance of
radiological functions.

Advantages and Disadvantages. Since the statuie is specific
in its requirements for licensure, there were no salternatives.
The board sought to deal with the issue of economic impact
and accessibility by adopting. rules which set minimal
standards and permit endorsement of the qualifications of
currently practicing radiologic technologisis and radiolegical
technologists-iimited.

ISSUE 2: Standards for approval of education and
examination for Radiologic Technologists

Since the board is authorized by statute to establish
“requirements for approved education programs, experience,
[and] examinations”, the issue considered during public
meetings and in the development of regulations was the level
of competency required for approval.

Alternatives considered.
board included:

Alternatives considered by the

1)  Adoption of standards for board approval of ali
educational programs in radiologic technology.
Regulations (similar to those of the Board of Nursing) for
faculty, institutional resources, cumiculum, clinical
experience, and site reviews would be necessary. The
board did not recommend Alieimative #1 as too
burdensome, intrusive, and costly. While board approval
of radiclogic education programs in Virginia would be
feasible, it would be difficult to evaluale programs in
other states.

2) Adoption of a nationally recognized accrediting body
for approval of educational programs. Aliernative #2 was
recommended as more reasonable and less costly for
ihe board and its licensees. In the process of drafling
proposed regulations, the board-appointed Ad Hoc
Advisory Committee with approval of the legislative Joint
Committee considered accreditation standards from the -
30 other stales that regulate radiologic technology. The
American Registry of Radiologic Technologists (ARRT)
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and the American Chiropractic Registry of Radiologic
Technologists (ACRRT) were the only nationally
recognized accrediting bodies identified and were
therefore recommended by the board.

3)  Adoption of regulations which would accept
satisfactory work experience in lieu of minimal standards
for educational training and passage of an examination.
The board determined that Alternative #3 was
reasonable to permit radiologic technologists currently
practicing in Virginia who are qualified by their
experience but not by education and examination to be
licensed under by endorsement for a period of two years
following the effective date of the regulations.

4) Adoption of a nationally recognized and accepted
examination instead of development of a Board of
Medicine licensure examination. The board proposes
Alternative #4 to provide accessibility to the examination
to applicants for licensure as radiologic technologists in
all parts of the country and mobility of practitioners
across jurisdictions. The board is in the process of
eliminating all  board-developed, administered
examinations for other professions and contracting for
accreditation examination with private agencies. The
examination offered by the ARRT was identified as the
national standard for the profession and recommended
by the board. In the 1994 draft regulations, the board
considered establishing rules for a passing score and
retesting and for additional training after failure,
Proposed regulations are less cumbersome and require
the applicant to follow the procedures of the testing
setrvice,

Advantages and Disadvantages, Advantages of the
acceptance of national accreditation bodies such as the
ARRT and the ACRRT for approval of educational programs
and for administration of the licensure examination are: 1)
Standards for entry as a licensed radiologic technologist in
Virginia are identical to those in other states and will,
therefore, facilitate professional mebility and applications
from outside the state; 2) The responsibility for program
approval will fall to the professional accrediting body with the
resources and expertise to evaluate and monitor educationat
quality; and 3) The utilization of a national accreditation
examination provides a more credible and less costly
standard for applicants and the board.

The advantage of a provision for "grandfathering" qualified
radiologic technologists currently practicing in Virginia is that
it alleviates concerns about availabilty of radiologic
technologists in private practices and about restrictive
regulations which current practitioners would be unable to
meet. In addition, legislation requiring licensure was passed
and draft regulations developed in 1994 with an effective date
of January 1, 1997, in order to give persons providing
radiological services time to meet the educational and
examination qualification.

Possible disadvantages of these alternatives are: 1)
acceptance of national standards for approval of education
and for the examination precludes the board from setting
different criteria or measuring professional knowledge by a
different standard; and 2) acceptance of work experience in
place of an ARRT education and examination for current

radiologic technologists provides no assurance of their
minimal qualification to practice. in beth cases, the board
has determined that the advantages of these aiternaiives
outweigh the disadvantages in providing regulations which
are the least restrictive and most reasonable.

ISSUE 3: Standards for education and examination for
Radiologic Technologists-Limited

Concerns were expressed that licensure requirements in the
1994 draft regulations may be too restrictive for the majority
of persons currently performing radiological services for
specific diagnostics in a doctor's office or other practice
setting. The necessity of hiring only licensed radiologic
technologists-limited who had completed a ARRT approved
course and had passed a ARRT licensure examination would
limit accessibility and increase costs.

Alternatives  considered. The board considered the
comments and proposed fwo altematives to address the
issues of restrictive regulations which would limit access to
radiological services. Draft regulations were changed to:

1) Permit currently practicing radiological personnel to
be ‘'grandfathered" depending on their level of
qualification, practice  responsibilities, and two
consecutive years in practice. Such endorsement for
licensure would only be in effect for two years, until
January 1, 1989,

2) Permit a licensed radiologic technologist-limited to
complete the required training for specific diagnostic
functions within the practice setting (on-the-job), from
courses sponsored by the Virginia Society of Radiologic
Technologists, or from an ACRRT approved program.
Proposed educational requirements delineate the areas
of knowledge and number of hours needed for minimal
proficiency in eguipment operation, radiation protection,
and procedures in the specific anatomical areas of
practice,

Advantages and disadvantages. The advantages of the
alternatives considered and adopted are: 1) radiologic
personnel who have been engaged in practice for two or
more years will be able to become ficensed until 1999 without
meeting educational and examination requirements of
proposed regulations. With grandfather clauses inserted in
regulation, there should be no interruption in services or limit
to access to radiography in doctors' offices; and 2) applicants
for licensure as Radiologic Technologist-Limited will not have
to complete an ARRT approved program or pass a licensure
examination to be qualified.

The possible disadvantage of proposed regulations would be
the lack of a measurable standard, such as an examination to
determine minimal competency. By permilting training for
specific radiological functions and safety by the supervising
practitioner, requiring practice only under direct supervision,
and restricting the instillation of contrast media by those with
the limited license, the board believes that entry requirements
for radiclogic technologists-limited are sufficient to protect the

“public from inappropriate or unsafe use of radiography.

ISSUE 4. Certification of Radiologic Technologists-Limited
for certain anatomical areas
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Pursuant to comments from persons in the profession and
from a study of licensure policies in other states, the board
considered the possibility of an anaiomical-specific license.

Aliernatives considered. A two-tlered licensure system was
recommended by the report of the Joint Subcommitise and
mandated by the statuje. Howsver, the Dboard also
considered but did not propose additional sub-groups with
different requirements for credentialing. in some states, the
basic radiclogic technologist-limited license is supplemented
by additional hours of study in order fo receive an
endorsement for a specific areas of the body (skull or
abdominal). The board did not choose 0 licanse specially
areas but did propose practice standards that specity medical
direction and delegation and performance of functions within
the limits of capabilities and waining.

Advantages and disadvantages. The advaniages of the
board's proposal are: 1) the licensee may acquire additional
areas of expertise without the necessily of additional licenses
or endorsements; 2) the public is protected by requirements
for direction and supervision; and 3) the board hag the ability
to discipline & licensee who acts outside of his tralning and
capability.

The only possible disadvantages is that the board is unable
to ensure that a praciitioner has the specific training
necessary to perform specific fasks. However, other
safeguards established in regulation provide reasonable
assurance of competency and safety.

ISSUE &: MNeed for evidence of coniinuing competency for
renewal of licensure

The joint subcommittee recommended {House Document No.
3, 1896) that "continuing education be required to maintain
assurance of competency." Section 54.1-2856.8:1 provides
that the board may prescribe in regulation for periodic review
for continued competency.

The board determined that such requirements were essential
for radiologic technologists who practice under the direction
of a licensed doctor but who are hot required fo have direct
supervision and may supervise ihe practice of limited
licensees. Evidence presented in the course of the study
indicated thai the field of radiography has changed
dramatically in the past decade and is expecied to continue
advancement. Therefore, the board determined that it was
necessary for continued public assurance for praciitioners
who exercise more independent judgment should continue
their education in order to maintain current knowledge and
expertise. '

Alternatives considered. The board considerad the following
alternatives: 1) a minimum number of hours of active
practice in each biennium; 2) a repori of professional
activities during each biennium; 3) a 160-hour fraineeship for
a person whose license has been inactive for a period of
more than two years; 4) maintenance of ARRT certification;
-or 8) completion of 24 hours of continuing education in each
biennium,

The board determined that the least complicated and most
reasonable afternatives were #4 and #5, the maintenance of
ARRT certification or completion of hours of CE. For those
licensed radiclogic technologists who have been

"grandfathered" and therefore do not hold ARRT cerification,
renswal requiremsnts may be met by completion of 24 hours
of continuing education requirement is 24 hours for each
bisnnium, 12 hours of which rmust he ASHT approved.

Advantages and disadvantages. The advantages of
alternatives proposed are: 1) the public has more assurance
that radiological services will be provided by licensess who
have current knowledge and technique;, 2) radiologic
tachnologists-limited @re not required to have continuing
education; and 3) license#es who may become inactive or only
work part-time may rsiain active licensure by maintenance of
their ARRT certification. The disadvaniage is that licensed
radiclogic technologist will have to atiest o continuing
education for renewal, and a small percentage will be
disciplined by the board for failure to do so.

Advantages and Disadvantages to the Public. Citizen input in
development of regulation in ihe . developmeni of
regulations, the board made every effort to include citizen
input from those engaged in the practice of radiologic
technology in the communily, from those who work in
educational seitings, from associations affiliated with the
practice, and from doctors who employ radiclogical personnei
in their practice. Groups represented at a public hearing held
during consideration of regulations included the Virginia
Academy of Family Physicians, the Virginia Orthopedic
Association, the Medical Socisty of Virginia, the Virginia
Society of Internal Medicine, the American College of
Radiology, Virginia Chapter, the Virginia Urological Society,
and the Virginia Society of Hadiologic Technologists.

In addition, the issues surrounding licensure and draft
regulations were discussed at public meslings of the Joint
Subcommittee to Study the Public Health Implications. of
Licensing Radiologic Technology Praciitioners from 1994 to
1996. Conseduently, the board drafted regulations with a
consideration for any fiscal impact on licensees, especially
smali businesses, and doeas not anticipats a negative impact
on the entities affected by reguiation or on the public,

The advantage of licensure for the public is a higher standard
for performance of radiclegy which may result in a reduction
in the significant risks from overexposure or unnecessary
procedures. The disadvaniage may be that licensed
professionals may command higher salaries and thereby
increase the cost of health care. While there is no direct
evidence of that cccurrence, concern has been expressed.

Fiscal impact Prepared by the Agency:

Number of entities affected by this reguiation. There are
currently 18 certified radiologic technologists in Virginia. 1tis
estimated that 1000 persons may seek licensure as
radiologic technologists and 500 as radiologic technologists-
limited.

Projected cosis to the affected entities: The 1994 draft
regulations suggested the fee for licensure should be $150;
the regulations proposed by the board set the fee at $100 for
radiologic technologists and $50 for radiologic technologists-
limited. If an applicant wishes to work in a trainseship prior to
licensure, a fee of $25 is proposed.

Biennial renewal of licensure was originally proposed to be
$100 but has been reduced fo $75 for radiologic
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technologists and $25 for radiologic technologists-limited.
Additional charges will only apply to a licensee who is late
with renewals, needs verification of licensure to another state,
or must get his license reinstated.

Costs for taking the licensure examination are established by
the ARRT and are currently set at $50. Costs for renewal of
ARRT certification are $12 plus approximately $60 to $100 to
cemplete the required hours of continuing education.

Projected cost to the agency: The agency will incur an
approximate costs of $1,000 for mailing notices and final
regulations to the Public Participation Guidelines mailing list
and for conducting a public hearing during the promulgation
of these regulations. However, every effort will be made to
incorporate those intc anticipated mailings and board
meetings already scheduled.

Since the agency already certifies radiologic technologists, it
is not anticipated that the licensure program will have any
impact on employment levels or direct costs to the board.

Localities affected: There are no localities particularly
affected by these regulations in the Commonwealth. Since
licensure of radiologic personnel in community hospitals is
not required, they are not affected.

Affect on small businesses: There are no direct costs to
medical practices operating as small businesses.
Radiological personne! will individually bear the costs of
applying and maintaining licensure.

Department of Planning and Budget's Economic Impact
Analysis: The Department of Planning and Budget {DPB)
has analyzed the economic impact of this proposed
regulation in accordance with § 9-6.14:.7.1 G of the
Administrative Process Act and Executive Order Number 13
{94). Section 9-6.14:7.1 G requires that such economic
impact analyses include, but need not be limited to, the
projected number of businesses or other entities to whom the
regulation would apply; the identity of any localities and types
of businesses or other entities particulady affected, the
projected number cf persons and employment positions to be
affected, the projected costs to affected businesses or
entities to implement or comply with the regulation, and the
impact on the use and value of private property. The analysis
presented below represents DPB's best estimate of these
economic affects.

Summary of the Proposed Regulation. The proposed
regulation is promulgated in response to Chapter 803 of the
1994 Acts of the Assembly which added § 54.1-2956.8:1 to
the Code of Virginia. Section 54.1-2956.8:1 makes it
unlawful to practice radiological technology without a license
after January 1, 1997, and further requires the Board of
Medicine to develop regutations specifying the appropriate
qualifications for such licensure.

Pursuant to § 54.1-2956.8:1, the proposed regulation:

» Adopts the educational and examination standards set
forth by the American Registry of Radiologic
Technologists {ARRT) for the licensure of radiological
technologists;

= Adopts the educational and examination standards set
forth by the American Chiropractic Registry of Radiologic

Technologists (ACRRT) for the licensure of radiological
technologists-limited;,

» Provides for licensure by endorsement of radiologic
technologists who hold licenses from ciner jurisdictions
that have similar licensing requirements to those
contained in the proposed regulation;

s Provides for licensure by endorsement through January
1, 1999 of radiologic technologists and radiologic
technologists-limited based on prior work experience in
Virginia;

« Sets forth general requiremenis for the practice of

radiologic technologisis and radiologic technologists-
limited;

» Establishes continuing education requiremenis for
radiologic technologists; and

= Fixes various application and licensing fees.

Estimated Economic impact. The proposed regulation is
anticipated to have two economic effects: 1} it will likely
ensure the quality of radiclogic technologist services in
Virginia by guaranteeing that the individuals performing those
services have met minimum professional standards for
education and competency; and 2} it will increase the entry
costs associated with becoming a radiologic technologist in
Virginia.

Quality of Radiclogic Technologist Services. As outlined in
House Document No. 3 of the 1996 General Assembly, there
are two well known public health risks associated with the
improper use of x-ray equipment --- over exposure to harmful
radiation, and mistaken diagnosis caused by poor quality x-
ray films. Akhough under Virginia law, dental and veterinary
technicians are required to meet minimum training and
competency standards, prior to the enactment of § 54.1-
2956.8:1, radiologic technicians employed outside of licensed
hospitals were not. The primary benefit of the proposed
regulation is the protection it offers to Virginia residents from
radiologic services provided by unqualified individuals. It
would be cost prohibitive for DPB to quantify the exact
magnitude of this benefit however.

Increased Entry Costs. The other sconomic effect of the
proposed regulation is that it will increase the minimum costs
associated with becoming a radiologic technclogist in
Virginia. In the wake of the proposed requirements, the costs
of entry into this profession must ai least include the
expenses necessary o meet the educational and
examination standards of the ARRT eor the ACHRT,
continuing education reguirements, and the licensing and
other fees established by DHF. Currently in Virginia, the cost
of becoming a radiclogic technician could presumably be
zero, although it is likely that employer preferences toward
hiring the most qualified applicants induce most radiologic
technicians to invest in professtonal education anyway, even
in the absence of the proposed regulation.

One auxiliary economic effect of these increased entry costs
could presumably be an increase in the wages commanded

by licensed radiologic technologists. In the short-run, such a

wage increase could be driven by a reduction in the number
of available radiologic technicians if a significant number of
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individuals currently working in that professional capacity
failed to qualify for licensure. Provisions in the proposed
reguiation that allow currenily praciicing radiologic
technologisie to be itemporarily licensed by endorsement
shouid effectively preclude such a situation however.

In the long-run though, some upward pressure on wages is
likely to occur as radiologic technologists rationally attempt to
offset the increased costs of eniry occasloned by the
proposed licensing requirements. Whether these increased
wages actually translate into increased medical cosis,
however, will depend on the reiative magnitude of the wage
increase compared to the likely efficiency gains engendered
by additional professional educaiion.

Businesses and Enlities Parizularly Affected. The proposed
regulation particularly affects the estimated 1,000 persons
who would apply for licensure as radiclogic technologists, the
approximately 500 persons who would apply for licensure as
radiologic technologists-limited, and their employers.

Localities Particularly Affected. No localities are particularly
affected by the proposed regulation

Projected Impact on Employment. The proposed regulatioh
is not anticipated to have a significant effect on employment.

Affects on the Use and Value of Privalte Property. The
proposed regulation is not anticipated to have a significant
effect on the use and value of private property.

Summary of Analysis. The proposed regulation establishes
licensing requirements for radiclogic technologists and
radiologic  technologists-limited. These  licensing
requitements are expected to: 1) enhance the quality of
radiologic technologist services in Virginia by guaranteeing
that the individuals performing those services have met
minimum professional standards for education and
competency; and 2} increase the entry costs associated with
becoming a radiologic technologist in Virginia.

Agency Response fo Department of Planning and Budget's
Economic impact Analysis: The agency concurs with the
economic impact analysis from the Department of Planning
and Budgei.

Summary;

FPursuant to Chapter 803 of the 1994 Acts of the
Assembly, the Board of Medicine proposes regulations
govemning the licensure of radiclogic technologists.
Amendments to §§ 54.1-2856.8:1 and 54.1-2956.8:2
mandated licensure for certain practitioners by January
1, 1997, and required the board to develop standards for
education, examination, and experience as requjsite
qualifications.

The board sought to develop minimal regulations which
would assure the delivery of safs, cost-effective
radiological services in the Commonwealth by
establishing standards for tralning and compestent
practice. To ensure that regulations would not have a
negative impact cri the availability of services, the board
has provided for licensure of radiologic technologists-
limited who are lrained in ceriain procedures and who
work under supervision. FRegulations also provide for
licensure by endorsement for persons who have

practiced satisfactorily in Virginia for five or more years
but who would not qualify for licensure by education and
credentialing.

CHAPTER 101.
REGULATIONS GOVERNING THE LICENSURE OF
RADIOLOGIC TECHNOLOGISTS AND RADIOLOGIC
TECHNOLOGISTS-LIMITED,

PART |,
GENERAL PROVISIONS.

18 VAC 85-101-10. Definitions.

In addition to definitions in § 54.1-2800 of the Code of
Virginia, the following words and terms, when used in this
chapter, shall have the following meanings, unless the
context clearly indicates otherwise:

"ARRT" means the American Registry of Radiologic
Technologists.

"ACRRT" means the American Chiropractic Registry of
Radiologic Technologists.

"ASRT" means the American Society of Hadiologic
Technologists.

"Direct supervision" means thal a licensed radiologic
technologist, docltor of medicine, osteopathy, chiropractic or
podiatry is present and is fully responsible for the activilies
performed by radiologic personnel.

"Direction” means the delegation of radiologic functions fo
be performed upon a patient from a licensed doctor of
medicine, osteopathy, chiropractic, or podiatry, to a licensed
radiologic technologist or a radiologic technologist-limited for
a specific purpose and confined to a specific anatomical
area, that will be performed under the direction of and in
continuing communication with the delegating practitioner.

"Traineeship” means a perfod of activity duting which an
unlicensed radiclogic technologist, who is seeking licensure,
works under the direct supetvision of a practitioner approved
by the board.

18 VAC 85-101-20. Public Participation Guidelines.

18 VAC 85-10-10 et seq., Regulations Governing Public
Farticipation Guidelines, provide for involvement of the public
in the development of all regulations of the Virginia Board of
Medicine.

PART I,
LICENSURE REQUIREMENTS - RADIOLOGIC
TECHNOLOGIST.

18 VAC 85-101-830. Educaiional requirernents for radiologic
technologists.

An applicant for licensure as a radiologic technologist shall
be a graduate of an educational program acceptable to the
ARRT for the puipose of sitiing for the ARRT certification
examination and shall submil, with ithe required application
and fee, documented evidence of his graduation from such a
program.
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18 VAC 85-101-40. Examination requirements.
A. An applicant for board licensure by examination shall:

1. Meet the educational requirernents specified in 18
VAC 85-101-30. '

2. Submit the required application, fee, and credentials
to the board no less than 30 days prior to the dafe of
examination or traineeship.

=3 The licensure examination for the radiologic
technologist shall be the ARRT certification examination with
minimum passing score determined by the ARAT.

C. An applicant who fails the examination shall follow the
policies and procedures of the ARRT for successive
attempis.

18 VAC 85-101-50. Traineeship for unlicensed graduate.

A. An unlicensed graduate of an approved program may
be employed as a trainee under the direct supervision of a
licensed radiclogic technologist, doctor of medicine,
osteopathy, chiropractic, or podiatry.

B. The graduate shall submit an application for a
traineeship to the board for review and approval by the
Chairman of the Radiologic Technology Advisory Committee
or his designee.

C. The traineeship shall terminate upon receipt by the
candidate of the licensure examination results. The
unlicensed graduate may reapply for a new traineeship while
awaiting to lake the next examination.

D. An unlicensed graduate may serve in a traingeship for
a period not to exceed two years or through three
unsuccessful atteripts of the licensure exarmination,
whichever comes first. After such time, the graduate shall
apply to the Radiologic Technology Advisory Committee for
approval to continue in practice as a trainee.

PART HI.
LICENSURE REQUIREMENTS - RADIOLOGIC
TECHNOLOGIST-LIMITED.

18 VAC 85-101-60. Application for licensure.

An applicant for licensure as a radiologic technologist-
limited shall submit the required application and fee as
prescribed by the board and evidence of completion of
training as required in 18 VAC 85-101-70.

18 VAC 85-101-70. Educational requirements for radiologic
technologists-limited.

An applicant for licensure as a radiologic technologist-
fimited shall be trained by one of the following:

1. Successfui completion of a program with a minimurn
of the foflowing coursework: '

a. Image Production/Equipment Operation - 25 clock
hours

b. Radiation Protection - 15 clock hours

¢. Radiographic procedures in the anatomical area of
the radiologic technologist-limited's practice - 10 clock
hours

2. An ACRRT approved program.

FART IV.
LICENSURE BY ENDORSEMENT.

18 VAC 85-101-80. Endorsement requirements for radiclogic
fechnologist.

A. A radiologic technologist who has an unvestricted
license in the United States, its territories, the District of
Columbia, or Canada by an examination equivalent to that
required in Virginia at the time of licensure and who has met
all other requirements of the board may, upon
recommendation of the Radiologic Technology Advisory
Committee, be licensed by endorsemeni. Such a person
shall submit to the board along with a completed application
and required fee:

1. Verification of a current, unrestricted license in
ancther jurisdiction.

2. Verification of current certification from the ARRT.

B. A radiclogic technologist who has practiced
satisfactorily in Virginia for five or more years may, upon
recommendation of the Radiologic Technology Advisory
Committee, be licensed by endorsemeni. Such a person
shall submit to the board, along with a completed application
and required foe, evidence of his scope of practice as
documented by a supervising radiologist and a supervising
radiologic technologist. A radiologic technologist may be
initially ficensed by endorsement under this subsection until
January 1, 1999.

18 VAC 85-101-90. Endorsement of previous pracltice for
radiologic technologists-limited.

A radiologic technologist-imited applicant who has
practiced satisfactorily in Virginia for the past iwo consecutive
years as a radiologic technologist-fimifed and who submits
evidence from a licensed docior of medicine, osteopathy,
chiropractic, or podiatry aftesting to such practice shall be
ficensed by endorsement. A radiologic technologist-limited
may be initially licensed by endorsement under this section
untit January 1, 1999,

PART V.
PRACTICE OF RADIOLOGIC TECHNOLOGISTS,

18 VAC 85-101-100. General requirements.

All services rendered by a radiologic technologist shall be
performed only upcon direction of a licensed doctor of
medicine, osteopathy, chiropractic, or podiatry.

18 VAC 85-101-110. Individual responsibifities to patients
and to ficensed doctor of medicine, osteopathy, chiropractic,
or podiatry.

A. The radiologic technologist’s responsibiliies are fo
administer and document procedures within the limit of his
professional knowledge, judgment and skills.
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B. A radiologic technologist shall maintain continuing
communication with the delegating pracftitioner.

18 VAC 85-101-120. Supervisory responsibilities.

A. A radiojogic technologist shall supervise no more than
four radiologic technologists-imited or three frainees at any
one time.

B. A radiologic technologist shall be responsible for any
action of persons performing radiologic functions under the
radiologic technologist's supervision or direction,

C. A radiologic technologist may not delegate radiologic
procedures to any unficensed personnel except those
activiiies that are available without prescription in the public
domain to include but not limited to preparing the patient for
radiologic procedures and post radiologic procedures. Such
nonlicensed personnel shall not perform those patient care
functions that require professional judgment or discretion.

PART VI.
PRACTICE OF RADIOLOGIC TECHNOLOGIST-LIMITED.

18 VAC 85-101-130. General requirements.

A radiclogic technologist-limited is permitted fo perform
radiologic functions within his capabilities and the anafomical
limits of his training. A radiologic technologist-limited shall
not instill contrast media during radiologic examinations. The
radiologic technologist-imited js responsible to a licensed
radiologic technologist, doctor of medicine, osteopathy,
chiropractic, or podiatry.

18 VAC 85-101-140. Individual responsibilities to patients
and licensed radiologic technologist, doctor of medicine,
osteopathy, chiropractic, or podiatry.

A. The initial patient visit shall be made by a licensed
radiologic technologist, doctor of medicine, osteopathy,
chiropractic, or podiatry.

B. The radiologic technologist-limited's first procedure with
the patient shall only be made after verbal or written
cormmunication, or both, with the licensed radiologic
technologist, doctor of medicine, osteopathy, chiropractic, or
podiatry.

C. The radiologic technologist-limited's procedures shall
be made under direct supervision.

D. A radiologic technologist-limited, acling within the
scope of his practice, may delegate nonradiologic procedures
to an unficensed person, including but not limited to preparing
the patient for radiologic procedures and post radiologic
procedures. Such nonficensed personnel shall not perform
those patient care functions that require professional
judgiment or discretion.

PART Vil
RENEWAL OF LICENSURE.

18 VAC 85-101-150. Biennial renewal of license.

A. A radiologic technologist or radiologic technologist-
limited who intends te continue practice shall renew his
license biennially during his birth month in each odd

numbered year and pay to the board the prescribed renewal
fee. '

B. On the renewal application, a radiologic technofogist
shall verify that his ARRT certification s current or that during
the -biennium, he has completed 24 hours of continuing
education, 12 of which shall be ASRT approved.

C. A license which has not been renewed by the first day
of the month following the month in which renewal is required
shall be expired.

D. An additional fee to cover administrative costs for
processing a late application shalf be imposed by the board.

PART Vill.
FEES.

18 VAC 85-101-160. Fees required by the board.

A Unless otherwise provided, fees lisied in this section
shall not be refundable.

B. Application or examination.

1. ~ The application fee for radiclogic technologist
licensure shalf be $100.

2. The application fee for the radiologic technologist-
limited licensure shall be $50.

3. The fees for taking all required examinations shall be
paid directly to the examination services.

4. Upon written request from an applicant to withdraw
his application for licensure by examination, a fee of $25
shall. be retained by the Board of Medicine as a
processing fee.

C. Licensure renewal and reinstatement.

1. The fee for license renewal for a radiclogic
technologist shall be $75 and for a radiologic
technologist-limited shall be $25.

2. An additional fee of $25 fo cover administrative costs
for processing a late renewal application shall be
imposed by the board.

3. The fee for reinstatement of a lapsed license which
has expired for a period of two years or more shall be
$50 and the respective licensure fee and shall be
submitted with an application for licensure reinstatement.

4. The fee for reinstatement of a revoked license shall
be $500.

D. Otherfees.
1. The application fee fora traineeship shall be $25.

2. The fee for a letfer of good standing or verification to
another state for licensure shalf be $10.
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Application fm"a License

ta Practice asa

Radioiogic Technologist— Limited

To the Beard of Medlcine of Virginia:
| herely make applicatian for 2 feense (@ oactice as 2.
Radialogic Technoiogist-Limded i e Commonweaitty

of Virginia and submit the following statemernts.

1. Name irr Full (Plesss Print or Typa)

SECURELY PASTE A
PASSPORT-TYPE
PHOTOGRAPH In

THIS SPACE

PLEASE SIGN PHOTO

Middie/Maican

Paga 2

2. List in corangiegical order 3l professional practices since graduation, inciuding hespial arfiliatiars ana apsences from work, Also list
all pancds at non-professanal activity ar amoloymant for more than three manths. Flease zccewnt for al ime.
Pasition Hald

From To Lacation and Campilets Address

e . DOay

Last fArsc

Strest Clry State- aF Code

Data of Sintr Placa ot Birth Sociai Secumy Number
T Thay T

Graduagon Data Prot. Schoot Degree { Schoat, City, Stata

Plaasa submit address chdnges 0 wiming immediaten.
Please artacn check or money order: Applications wil nat be processed without the appreonate lea.
Ca not submit fee without an application. Lwill be retumed.

APPLICANTS DO NOT USE SPACES BELOW THIS LINE — FOR OFFCE USE ONLY
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Cata
CLASS | LOENSE MUMBER | SUFFIX | SGHCOL CCDE i FEE HOW REG ! BASE STATE
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Proposed Regulations

BOARD OF OPTOMETRY

REGISTRAR'S NOTICE: Chapters 152 and 158 of the 1996
Acts of Assembly transferred the authority for the certification
of optometrists to administer therapeutic pharmaceutical
agents for the treatment of certain diseases and abnormal
conditions of the eye and its adnexa from the Board of
Medicine to the Board of Optomeiry. The Board of
Optometry, by the following proposed action, is amending the
Board of Medicine regulations for TPA-certified optometrists.
These regulations were continued in effect by Chapters 152
and 158 of the 1996 Acts until the Board of Optometry adopts
regulations pursuant to § 54.1-3223 of the Code of Virginia.

The Board of Oplometry is exempt from the provisions of the
Administrative Process Act in accordance with § 9-6.14:4.1 A
18 of the Code of Virginia, which exempts the Board of
Cptometry when specifying therapeutic pharmaceutical
agents, treatment guidelines, and diseases and abnormal
conditions of the human eye and its adnexa for TPA-
certification of optometrists pursuant to Article 5 (§ 54.1-3222
et seq.) of Chapter 32 of Title 54.1 of the Code of Virginia.

Title of Regulation: 18 VAC 105-30-10 et seq. Reguiations
on Certification of Optometrists to Use Therapauiic
Pharmaceutical Agents.

Statutory Authority: § 54.1-3223 of the Code of Virginia.

Public Hearing Date: September 6, 1996 - 9 a.m.
Public comments may be submitted until September 4,
1996.
(See Calendar of Evenis section
for additional information)

Summary;

Section 54.1-3223 of the Code of Virginia requires the
Board of Optometry to promulgate regulations governing
the treatment of certain diseases and abnormal
conditions of the human eye and its adnexa with certain
therapeutic pharmaceutical agents (TPA) by TPA-
certified optometrists as are reasonable and necessary
to ensure an appropriate standard of medical care for
palients, including, but not limited fo, determinations of
the diseases and abnormal conditions of the human eye
and fts adnexa which may be lreated by TPA-certified
optormetrists, treatment guidelines, and the drugs
specified on the TPA-Formulary. As such, the Board of
Optometry proposes the following amendments to Part
IV, Scope of Practice for an Optomelrist to Use
Therapeutic Drugs.

Under the former 18 VAC 85-80-60, Diseases and
Conditions which may be Treated by an Optometrist, the
specific diseases Hordeolum, conjunctivitis, blepharitis,
chalazion, and dry eye have been deleted. Further, the
noninvasive treatment for superficial foreign bodies of
the eye and its adnexa and treatment of superficial
epithelial damage secondary to contact lens wear with
no comneal opacity present has been deleted. The new
language reflects the appropriate use of board approved
therapeutic pharmaceutical agenis for diseases and
abnormal conditions of the following structures of the eye
and its adnexa: fids and adnexa, lacrimal system,

cofnea, conjuncliva, and episclera. Also, the board
déemed the following specific conditions within lhe
purview of TPA-certified optometrisis: glaucoma, under
appropriate  consultation, ocular-related posi-operalive
care, in cooperation with fhe palient's surgsor;, ocular
trauma 1o these tissues and those struciures just listed,
anterior uveitis, and anaphylactic shock.

Under the former 18 VAC 85-90-70, Therapeutic
Pharmacsutical Agenis, all the specific drugs listed havs
been delated and repiaced with drug categories.
Schedule VI iopical anti-allergy, anti-glavcoma, anii-
infective, anti-inflammatory, cycloplegic and mydriatic,
decongestant drugs and their medically appropriate
combinations are approved including overthe-counter
medications appropriate to eye treatmeni. Also, oral
pharmaceutical agents have been added to the formudary
and include narcotic and nonnarcotic analgesics wiich
are limited to Schedule llf and VI and overthe-counter
oral medications appropriate to eye treatment. Lastily,
contact lenses may be prescribed and dispensed for
therapeutic purposes.

CHAPTER 99 30

- - LAGENTS. REGULATIONS ON
CERTIFICATION OF OPTOMETRISTS TO USE
THERAPEUTIC PHARMACEUTICAL AGENTS.

PART 1.
GENERAL PROVISIONS.

18- VALC-85-80-10: 18 VAC 105-30-10. Definitions.

The following words and terms, when used in this chaptsy,
shall have the following meanings unless the contexi clearly
indicates otherwise:

"Approved schoo!” means those optometric and medical
schools, colleges, departments of universities or colleges or
schools of optometry or medicine currently accredited by the
Council on Postsecondary Accreditation or by the United
States Depantment of Education.

"Board" means the Virginia Board of Madisine Oplometry,

"Cerfification” means the Virginia Board of Medicing
Optometry cerlifying an optometrist to prescribe for and treat
certain diseases, including abnormal conditions, of the
human eye and its adnexa and administer certain therapsutic
pharmaceutical agents.

"Certified optometrist" means an optometrist who holds a
current license to practice optometry in the Commonwaalth of
Virginia, is cetiified to use diagnostic pharmaceutical agenis
by the Virginia Board of Optometry, and has met all of the
requiremants established by the Virginia Board of Medisins
Optometry to treat cerain diseases, including abnormal
conditions, of the human eye and its adnexa with ceriain

therapeutic pharmaceuticat agenis.

"Examination” means an examination approved by the
Board of Medisine Opiomelry for cerification of an
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optomsetrist to prescribe for and treat certain diseases,
including abnormal conditions, of the human eye and its
adnexa with cerfain therapeuilc pharmaceutical agents.

"Invasive modality” means any procedure in which human
tissue is cut, altered, or otherwise infilirated by mechanical or
other means. lnvasive modalities include surgery, lasers,
ionizing radiation, therapeulic ultrasound, medication
administered by injection, and the removal of foreign bodies
from within the tissues of the eye. For purposes of this
chapter, the administration of a topical agent specified in 48

wmwm—%apw 18 VAC 105-30-70 is not

considered an invasive modality.

"Postgraduate clinical training” means a postgraduate
program approved by the board to be eligible for certification.

“Protocol” means a prescribed course of action developed
by the certified optometrist which defines the procedures for
responding to any patient's adverse reaction or emergency.

18 VAGC 85-00-20. 18 VAC 105-30-20. Public Participation
Guidelines.

A separate board regulation, 48-VAGC-856-10-10-etseq: 18
VYAC 105-10-10 et seq., which provides for involvement of the

public in the development of all reguiations of the Virginia
Board of Mediecine Optometry, is incorporated by reference in
this chapter.

PART II.
APPLICATION FOR CERTIFICATION EXAMINATION,

18- MAC—85-90-36: 18 VAC 7105-30-30.
certification by examination.

Application for

An applicant for certification by examination shall be made
on forms provided by the board. Such application shall
- include the foliowing information and documents:

1. A complete application form;

2. The fee specified in 8- VAG-85-80-120-oHhis-chapier
18 VAC 105-30-110 to be paid at the time of filing the
application;

3. Additional documents required io be filed with the
application are:

a. A letter from the Virginia Board of Optometry
certifying that:

{1} The applicant holds a current license to practice
optometry in Virginia, and

{2) The applicant is certified to use diagnostic
pharmaceutical agents;

b. Documented evidence of satistactory completion of
the postgraduate optometric iraining approved and
prescribed by the board or documentation of graduate
optometric training equivalent io the postgraduate
optometric training required by the board;

c. Verification of licensure status in other states from
the Board of Examiners in Oplometry or appropriaie
regulatory board or agency.

PART 11
EXAMINATION.

38 VAC-85-00-40. 18 VAC 105-30-40.
cettification.

Examination for

The following general provisions shall apply to optometrists
who apply to take the board's examination for certification to
prescribe for and treat certain diseases, including abnormal
conditions, of the human eye and its adnexa with certain
therapeutic pharmaceutical agents.

A. The certification examination for an optometrist to
prescribe for and treat certain diseases, including abnormal
conditions, of the human eye and its adnexa with certain
therapeutic pharmaceutical agents shail be in one part.

B. A candidate for certification by the board who fails the
examination following three attempts shall take additional
postgraduate iraining approved by the board to be eligible to
take further examinations, as required in +8-VAG-85--00-110
18 VAC 105-30-110.

PART IV.
SCOPE OF PRACTICE FOR AN OPTOMETRIST
CERTIFIED TO USE THERAPEUTIC DRUGS.

18- VAL-85-80-80- 18 VAC 105-30-50. Certification.

An optometrist, currently licensed by the Board of
Optometry, who has completed didactic and clinical training
to ensure an appropriate standard of medical care for the
patient and has met all other requirements and has passed
an examination administered by the board, shall be ceriified
to administer and prescribe certain -therapeutic

pharmaceutical agenis in the treatment of certain diseases,
including abnormal conditions, of the human eye and its
adnexa.

Hea%ed—b»f—an—ep%ememst- 18 VAC 105 30—60 Treatment

guidelines.

A, TPA ceriifled optometrists may treal diseases and
abnormal conditions of the following structures of the human
eve and its adnexa which may be appropriately treated with
pharmaceutical agents as defined in 18 VAC 105-30-70:

1. Lids and adnexa;
Lacrimal system,
Cornea;

Conjunciiva; and

(S N S

Episclera.
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B. In addition, the following may be treated:

1. Glaucoma (with prior consultation with the patient’s
physician or other appropriate physician and excluding
the treatment of congenital and infantile glaucoma).
Treatment of angle closure shall be limited to the
initiation  of immediate emergency care with
pharmaceutical agents as defined in 18 VAC 105-30-70.

2. Ocular-related post-operative care in cooperation with
patient's surgeon.

3. Qcular trauma to the above lissues as in subsection A
of this section.

4, Uveilis, anterior.

5. Anaphylactic shock (limited to the adminisiration of
intramuscular epinephrine.

18 VAC 105-30-70.

18 VAC—85-80-70:
pharmaceutical agents.

Therapeutic

{18—Levocabastne

A. A certified optometrist may administer and prescribe the
following topically applied pharmaceutical agents (Schedule
Vi) or any therapeutically appropriate combination thereof:

1. Anti-allergy;

. Anti-glaucoma;

. Anti-infective;

2

3

4. Anti-inflammatory;
5. Cycloplegic and Mydriatic,
6. Decongestant; and

ré

Over-the-counter medications appropriate to the
treatment of the eye.

B. A certified opfomneirist may prascribe the following oral
pharmaceutical agents:

1. Narcotic and nonnarcotic analgesics limited to
Schedule tif and VI; and

2. Overthe-counter medications appropriate 1o the
treatment of the eye.

C. A certified optometrist may prescribe and dispense
contact lenses for therapeutic purposes.

38 VAG-85-80-80—Standards-el-prastice: 18 VAC 105-30-80.
(Reserved.)

PART V.
RENEWAL OF CERTIFICATION.

18 MAC-85-00-90. 18 VAC 105-30-90.
certitication.

Henewal of

Every optometrist certified by the board shall renew his
ceriification biennially on or before July 1 and pay the
prescribed fee in 48-MAGC-85-90-120 18 VAC 705-30-120 in
each odd number year.

1B VAGC-B85-00-100. 18 VAC 105-30-100.
certification.

Expiration of

An optometrist who allows his certification to expire shall

be considered not certified by the board. An optometrist who

proposes to resume the treatment of certain diseases,
including abnormal conditions, of the human eye and its
adnexa and administer certain therapeutic pharmaceutical
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agents shall make a new abptication tor certification and pay
a fee prescribed in $8-VAC-86-80-120 18 VAC 105-30-120.

PART V1.
POSTGRADUATE TRAINING.

38 MAC8B-80-H0: 18 VAC 105-30-110. Postgraduate
training required.

Every applicant applying for certification to prescribe for
and treat certain diseases, including abnormal conditions, of
the human eye and its adnexa with certain therapeutic
pharmaceutical agents shall be required to complete a full-
time approved postgraduate optometric training program
prescribed by the board or to document that his graduate
optometric program confained equivalent elements to the
postgraduate optometric program approved by the board.

A. The approved postgraduate program shall be the
Ocular Therapy for the Optometric Practitioner #7508
conducted by the Pennsylvania College of Optometry or any
other postgraduate optometric program approved by the
board.

B. Upon completing the required postgraduate optometric
training program, the applicant may apply to sit for the
certification examination administered by the board.

C. The cerification examination shall be a one-part
comprehensive examination in accordance with 18- WAC-85-

80-40-of this-chapter 18 VAC 105-30-40.

PART VI
FEES.

18- VAGC-85-80-120. 18 VAC 105-30-120. Fees required by
the board. :

A. Application fee for the examination to be certified to
prescribe for and treat certain diseases, including abnormal
conditions, of the human eye and its adnexa with certain
therapeutic pharmaceutical agents shall be $300. The
examination fee is nonrefundable. An applicant may, upon
written request 21 days prior to the scheduled examination
and payment of a $100 fee, be rescheduled for the next
administration of the examination.

B. The fee for biennial renewal of certification shall be
$125.

C. The fee for reinstating an expired certification shall be
$150.

D. The fee for a letter of good standing/verification to
another state for a license shall be $10.

E. The fee for reinstatement of a revoked certificate shall
be $750,
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2 List in chronologicat oroder all professional activities sinca graduation (3.g. hospital decartmant, outpatient centers, etc.). AlsQ list alt
periods of ahsences from work and ron-pro i activity or nt far more than ihres months. Please account tar 2l fime.
if angaged i private practice, list all hospizal or other professionai practica.

From To Location and Complete Address Pasition Heid

DHP.0a5.070 =
e e COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA
Board of Optometiry
Department af Health Professiona
6606 West Broad Strest, 4th Floor
Richmard. Virginia 23230-1717 (804) 562-7664
Application to

Practice as a
Certified Optometrist

af Virginia:
To the Board of Optometry Irgini SECURELY PASTE A

PASSPORT-TYPE
PHOTOGRAPH IN
THIS SPACE

1 hereby make application for a Certificate
to practice as a2 Certified Optometrist in the
Cammonwealth of Virginia and submit the
following statements:

PLEASE SKiN PHOTO

1. Name in Full {Plaase Print or Type)

Last First MiddletMaden B
Streat : City Slata ZIF Code
Date of Sith Place of Birth Social Secunty Humber
“wma Day e
Graduatan Qate Prof. School Degres Sehaool, Gity, State
Mo T Bwy | T

Pleasa submi address changes in welting immedrately.
Plaase aftach check or maney arder, Applications wall not be processag without the appropriate fes,
Do not submit fes without an applicatan. # widl be returned.

APPLICANTS DO NOT LISE SPACES BELOW THIS LiNE — FOR QFFICE USE ONLY

APPRAVED BY
TFICATE NUMBER | SUFFIX SCHOOL CORE FEE
] j

Date

HOW REG.

f CLASS CER

i H
, i i

BASE STATE !
]

CEATIFICATE NUMBER EXPIRATION DATE DATE IéSUED

|

ADCRESS CHANGE

STREET SITY STATE 1 Zjp CODE

—
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QOptametry * o
RE. COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA
Form B Board of Optometry

WH Department of Health Professions
6608 West Broad Streee, ath Floor

Richmand, Virginia 23230-1717 (804) 662-7664

Please complete top portion and forward ane farm to each State Board where you hoid or have held an optometry
license, Extra copies may be xeroxed if needed.

NOTE: Some statas raquire @ fee, paid in advam:e.“fur praviding clearance information. Ta expedite, you may wish
ta contact the applicable stata(s).

CLEARANCE FROM OTHER STATE BOARDS

| was gramtxd licenise/certificate # on '
Tha Virginia Board of Optometry requests

by the state of

that | submit evidence that my license/certification in the state of
is in good standing. You are hereby authorized to release any information in your files, favarable, or otherwise,
directly 10 the Virginia Board of Crometry, 6606 West Broad Street, 4th Flaor, Richmend, Virginia 232301717,
Your eartiest attention is appreciated.

Signature Prnt or Type Namg

EXECUTIVE OFFICE OF STATE BCARD:

Pleasa complete and return this farm o the Virginia Board of Gptometry at the above address.
State of
License/Certificate #
Licensed/Certified through (check ona)

Mame of Licensee
Date issued

National Examnination Stata Board Examination

Reciprocity/Endorsement from

License/Cenfficate is Current {apsed

Diagnastic Pharmaceutical Agants

Therapeutic Phamaceutical Drugs
O Yes 0 No

Has applicant’s license/certificata ever been suspended or revokad?

H yes, lar what reason?

Derogatory information, if any

Sighature Titla
Data State Boarg
BOARD SEAL

QOptometry H -
F COMMONWEALTH CF VIRGINIA
Form & Board of Optometry

Dapartment of Heaith Professions
6608 West Broad Street, 4th Floor

Richmand, Virginia 23236-1717 (804) 562-7554

CERTIFICATE OF TRAINING

Every appiicant applying tor certification 1o prescribe for and 1reat cartain diseases, Incfuding aknormal conditlans,
of the human eye and its adiexa with certain therapeutic pharmaceutical agents shall provide evidence of having
completed a full-time approved postgraduate optometric training program, or a fuli-time approved graduate
optametric training program to the Soard. .

| hereby authorize the directar of the postgraduate or graduate training program to releasa to the Vinginia Board of
Optometry the information lsted below in connection with the prc licatl

ing cf my app 1.

Signatura of Appilcant

Itis hereby certified that completed

the program for
Titla of Pesigraduata or Graduate Optomatnc Pregram

fom o]
{Mo/Day/Yr} {Mo/Dayi'Ye)
School of Optometry
Address
City, State, 21P Cade
Program Dlrector Daie

Please returm to! Department of Heaith Professions
Board ¢t Qptemetry
6606 West Broad Street, éth Floor
Richmeond, VA 23230-1717

SCHOOL., SEAL

suonenbsy pesodoid




FINAL BREGULATIONS

For information concerning Final Regulations, see Information Page.

Symbol Key
Roman type indicates existing text of regulations. Itafic ivpe indicates new iext. Language which has been stricken indicates
text to be deleted. [Bracketed language] indicates a substantial change from the proposed text of the regulation.

VIRGINIA HOUSING DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY

NOTICE: The Virginia Housing Development Authority is
exempt from the Adminisirative Process Act (§ 9-6.14:1 et
seq. of the Code of Virginia); however, under the provisions
of § 9-6.14:22, it is requived to publish all proposed and final
regulations.

Title of Requlation: 13 VAC 10-10-10 et seq. Rules and
Regulations - General Provisions for Programs of the
Virginia Housing Development Authority (amending 13
VAC 10-10-80).

Statutory Authority, § 36-55.30:3 of the Code of Virginia.
Effective Dale: July 17, 1996.

Summary:
The amendmenis, jn accordance with legislation enacted
in the 1996 Session of the General Assembly, delefe or
modify certain requirements in the case of the purchase
by the authority of morigage loans held, insured or
assisted by the federal government or any agency or
instrumentality thereof,

Agency Contact: Copies of the regulation may be obtained
from J. Judson McKellar, Jr., General Counsel, Virginia
Housing Development Authority, 601 South Belvidere Strest,
Richmond, VA 23220, telephone {804) 782-1986.

13 VAC 10-10-80. Purchase of morigage loans.

A, The authority may from time to time, pursuant and
subject fo its rules and regulations, purchase mortgage loans
from mortgage lenders. In furtherance thereof, the executive
director may request morigage ienders to submit offers to seil
mortgage loans to the authority in such manner, within such
time period and subject to such terms and conditions as he
shall specify in such request. The executive director may
take such aclion as he shall deem necessary or appropriate
to solicit offers to sell mortgage loans, including mailing of the
request to mortgage lenders, advertising in newspapers or
other publications and any other methods of public
announcement which he may select as appropiiate under the
circumstances. The execuiive directer may also consider
and accept offers for sale of individual morigage loans
submitted from time to time to the authority without any
solicitation therefor by the authority.

B. The authority shall require as a condition of the
purchase of any morstgage loans from a mortgage lender
pursuant to this section that such mostgage lender within 180
days from the receipt of proceeds of such purchase shall
enter into written commitments to make, and shall thereafter
proceed as promptly as practical o make and disburse from
such proceeds, residential morlgage loans in the
Commonwealth of Virginia having a stated maturity of not
less than 20 years from the date thereof in an aggregate

principal amount equal to the amount of such proceeds. The
foregoing requirement in this subsection B shall not apply to
the purchase by the authority of a mortgage loan held,
insured or assistad by the federal government or any agancy
or instrumentalily thereof,

C. At or before the purchase of any morigage loan
pursuant to this section, the mortgage lender shall cerify to
the authority that the mortgage lean would in all respects be a
prudent irvestment and that the proceeds of the purchase of
the mortgags loan shall be invesied as provided in
subsection B of this section or invested in shor-term
obligations pending such investment,; provided, however, that
such certificatiors shall not be required in the case of the
purchase by the authority of a mortgage loan held, insured or
assisted by the federal government or any agency or
instrumentality thereof.

D. The purchase price for any morgage loan to be
purchased by the authority pursuant to this section shall be
established or determined in aceordance with subdidision—{2}
subsection B of § 36-55.35 of the Code of Virginia.

VA.R. Doc. No. R96-48D; Filed July 17, 1996, 8:01 a.m.

I 2 A

Titte of Requlation: 13 YAC 10-160-10 et seq. Rules and
Regulations for Administration of Elderly and Disabled
Low-income Housing Tax Credits (amending 13 VAC 10-
160-10, 13 VAC 10-160-20, 13 VAC 10-160-30, 13 VAL 10-
160-60 through 13 VAC 10-160-80; adding 13 VAC 18-160-
120; and repealing 13 VAC 10-160-40 and 13 VAC 10-160-
50).

Statutory Authority: § 36-55.30:3 of the Code of Virginia.
Effective Date: Juiy 17, 1996,

Summary;

In accordance with legislaiion enacted in the 1996
Sessian of the General Assembly, the amendments for
the adminisiration of elderfy and disabled low-income
housing tax crediis delete or modify certain provisions to
allow for the phasing out of this program subsequent to
June 30, 1996. The amendments also authorize the
exacutive director to increase allocations of lax credils
as necessary {o enabie the owner o comply with the
statutory requirement that the rent be al least 15% less
than the markst rent,

Agency Contact: Copies of the requiation may be obtained
from J. Judson McKeliar, Jr., General Counsel, Virginia
Housing Development Authority, 601 South Belvidere Street,
Richmond, VA 23220, telephone (804) 782-1986.
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CHAPTER 160.
RULES AND REGULATIONS FOR ALLOCATION
ADMINISTRATION OF ELDERLY AND DISABLED LOW-
INCOME HOUSING TAX CREDITS,

13 VAC 10-160-10. Definitions.

The following words and terms, when used in this chapter,
shall have the following meaning, unless the context clearly
indicates otherwise:

"Authority" means the Virginia Housing Development
Authority,

"Board” means the Board of Commissioners of the
authority.

*Disabifity" means (i) a physical or mental impairment
which substantially limits one or more of the major life
. activities of such individual and includes any physiological
disorder or condition, cosmetic disfigurernent or anatomical
loss affecting one or more of the following body systems:
neurological; musculoskeletal; special sense organs;
respiratory, including speech organs; cardiovascular;
reproductive; digestive; genito-urinary; hemic and lymphatic;
skin; and endocrine; or any mental or psychological disorder
such as mental retardation, organic brain syndrome,
emotional or mental illness and specific learning disabilities
(the term "physical or mental impairment” includes, but is not
limited to, such diseases and conditions as orthopedic,
visual, speech and hearing impairments, cerebral palsy,
autism, epilepsy, muscular dystrophy, multiple sclerosis,
cancer, heart disease, diabetes, Human Immunodeficiency
Virus (HIV) infection, mental retardation, emotional illness,
drug addiction (other than addiction caused by current, illegal
use of a controlled substance, and alcoholism) or (i) a record
of such an impairment; or being regarded as having such an
impairment which includes a history of or being misclassified
as having a mental or physical impairment that substantially
limits one or more major life activities; or a physical or mental
impairment that does not substantially limit one or more
major life activities but that is treated by another person as
constituting such a limitation; or a physical or mental
impairment that substantially limits one or more major life
activities only as a result of the atlitudes of others toward
such impairment; or none of the impairments defined above
but the individual is treated by another person as having such
an impairment; provided, however, that any physical or
mental impairment described in (i) or (i) shall be expected to
result in death or shall have lasted continuously during the
immediately preceding 12-month period or shall be expected
to last continuously during the next succeeding 12-month
period.

“Elderly person" means a person who exceeds, by any
period of time, 62 years of age.

“Elderly tenanf’ means (i} an elderly person or (i) a
household in which any member is an elderly person.

“Eligible owner” means any person meeting the criteria for
an eligible owner as set forth in the state code and these
rules and regulations,

"Efigible tenant” means an elderly tenant or tenant with a
disability whose income does not exceed the limit described
in these rules and regulations.

"Executive director” means the executive director of the
authority or any other officer or employee of the authority who
is authorized to act on his behalf or on behalf of the authority
pursuant to a resolution of the board.

"HUD fair market rent" means the rent published by the
U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development for the
Section 8 Rental Certificate Program.

"Income” means gross income (including but not limited to
all salary, wages, bonuses, commissions, income from self-
employment, interest, dividends, alimony, rental income,
pensions, business income, annuities, social security
payments, cash public assistance, support payments,
retirement income and any other sources of cash income)
which is being received by the elderly tenant or tenant with a
disability or is regularly paid to or on behalf of such tenant by
a third party as of the application date. The income of any
person who is living with an elderly person or person with a
disability for the primary purpose of providing care to such
person shall be excluded. All such income, provided it is not
temporary, shall be computed on an annual basis to
determine income for the purpose of program eligibility.

*Market rent” means the amount of rent, as determined by
the authority pursuant to these rules and regulations, charged
to other tenants for comparable units {other than tax credit
units) in the same property or, i there are no such
comparabie units in the same property, for comparable units
in the same market area.

"Owner” means an—applcantlertax—crodits—tndorthese

aueeatl&wefwsueh—amdus—means the owner of the tax credit
unit to whom the tax credits are allocated.

"Person with a disability" means a person having a
disability as defined in these rules and regulations.

"Program” means the elderly and disabled low-income
housing tax credit program described in these rules and
regulations.

"State code” means Aricle 3 (§ 58.1-331 et seq.) of
Chapter 3 of Title 58.1 of the Code of Virginia.

"Tax credit rent" means the reduced amount of rent
charged for the tax credit unit to the eligible tenant. As
provided in 13 VAC 10-160-30, the tax credit rent shall be at
least 15% less than the market rent.

"Tax credits" means the tax credits as described in § 58.1-
339 of the Code of Virginia;

"Tax credit unif” means a unit occupied er-te-be-occupied
by eligible tenants at reduced rents in order for the owner to
be entitled to receive tax credits hereunder.

“Tenant" means a person or household who is applyingter
oscupancy-of-ors occupyings a tax credit unit,

"Tenant with a disability” means {i} a person with a
disability or (i) a household in which any member is a person
with a disability.
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13 VAC 10-160-20. Purpose and applicability,

The follow'ing rules and regulations will govern the
i ity administration of tax credits by the
authority pursuant to the state code,

Notwithstanding anything 1o the contrary herein, acting at
the request or with the consent of the owner, the executive
director is authorized to waive or modify any provision herein
where deemed appropriate by him for good cause, to the
extent not inconsistent with the state code.

The rules and regulations set forth herein are intended to
provide a general description of the authority's processing
adminisiration requirements and are not intended to include
all actions involved or required in the
administration of the tax credits. These rules and regulations
are subject to change at any time by the authority and may
be supplemented by policies, rules and regulations adopted
by the authority from time to time.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary hergin, all

procedures and requirements in the state code must be

complied with and satisfied.
13 VAC 10-160-30. General descripiion.

The state code has-beem was amended by adding a
section numbered 58.1-339 relating to a tax credit for owners
providing rent reduction for eligible tenants.

ing For taxable years beginning on or affer January
1, 1991, through December 31, 3883 1999 any individual or
corporation receiving an allocation of tax credits pursuant to
13- VAC-10-160-70 § 58.1-339 of the Code of Virginia shall,
subject to the provisions of the state code and these rules
and regulations, be entitled to a credit against the tax levied
pursuant to § 58.1-320 or § 58.1-400 of the Code of Virginia,
provided that the following requirements are salisfied:

1. The individual or corporation is engaged in the
business of the rental of dwelling units (as hereinafter
specified) and is subject to the Virginia Residential
Landlord and Tenant Act, § 55-248.2 et seq. of the Code
of Virginia, either by virtue of the provisions thereof or by
virtue of the owner's providing for the applicability thereot
pursuant to § 55-248.5 B of the Code of Virginia;

2. The owner provides a reduced rent to eligible tenants;
anrd

3. The rent charged to the eligible tenants is at least
15% less than the market rent:; and

4. To claim a credit for reduction of renis charged to a
tenant on or after July 1, 1896, a credit for rental
reductions must have been validly claimed on the tax
credit unit for all or part of the month of June 1996 and
such tenant must have been an occupant of such tax
credit unit on June 30, 1996.

The allowable tax credit amount shall be 50% of the total
rent reductions allowed during the taxable year fo the eligible
tenants occupying the tax credit units. The amount of the
rent reduction shall be equal to the market rent minus the tax
credit rent. For this purpose, the tax credit rent shall include

any rental subsidy payable on behall of the eligible ienant
under any governmental ot private program,

If there are comparable units {other than tax credii units) in
the same property, the market rent shall be determined by
the authority to be the rent charged to other tenants for such
comparable units. For the purpose of determining the
amount of rent charged to other tenants for comparable units
in the same property, the authority shall assume that the
other tenants commenced and, it applicable, renewed their
leases as of the same date or dates, and for the same ferm
or terms as the eligible tenants and at the rents in effect on
such date or dates.

If there are no other such comparable units in the same
property, then the market rent shall be determined by the
authority to be the rent charged for comparable units in the
same market area. Such rent shall be (i} the rent most
recently charged for the tax credit unit o & person {who may
be the eligible tenant to be assisted) unrelated o the owner
within the one-year period prior 10 the date of filing of the
application, pius a rental increase in an amount determined
by the authority to reflect increases in rents in the market
area of such tax credit unit since the daie such rent was last
charged, or (i) if no rental history as described in (i) exists,
the HUD fair market rent allowed for a comparable unit in the
same market area {as reduced, to the extent determined by
the authority, for any utilities which are not to be included in
the tax credit rent under the terms of the lease); provided,
however, that the owner may demonstrate to the authority
that the rent for a comparable unit in the same market area is
higher than (i) or (i} above, as applicable, and io the extent
so demonstrated to the satlisfaction of the authority, such
higher rent shall be used.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the market
rent shall in no event exceed 150% of the HUD fair market
rent alfowed for comparable units in the same market area
{as reduced, to the extent determined by the authority, for
any utilities which are not to be included in the tax credit rent
under the terms of the lease).

If the tax credit unit is subsidized or assisied under any
governmental or private program, the comparable units in the
same property or market area, as applicable, shall include
only those units similarly subsidized or assisted.

Because the intent of the state code is to provide tax
credits for the rental of dwelling units only, tax credits may-net
be—allocated-by-the—autherty shall nof be claimed for the
leasing of land only, including without limitation mohile home
lots. Tax credits may be alasated claimed for the lsasing of
both a mobile home lot and the mobile homte located thereon.

To be eligible for the program, & dwelling unit must contain
separate and complete facilities for living, sleeping, eating,
cooking and sanitation. Such accommodations may be
served by centrally located equipment such as air
conditioning or heating. Thus, for example, an apariment
containing a living area, a sleeping area, bathing and
sanitation facilittes and cooking facilities equipped with a
cooking range, refrigerator and sini, all of which are separate
and distinct from other apartments, would constitute a unil.

In order to satisfy the requirement in § 58.1-339 of the
state code that the owner be an individual or corporation
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engaged in the business of the rental of dwelling units, the
owner must interd have intended at the time of application
and must intend at all times thereafter to report, for federal
income tax purposes, all rental and other income and any
related expenses of the tax credit unit with respect to each
tax year for which the tax credits are to be claimed for such
tax credit unit.

The amount of credit for each individual or corporation for
each taxable year shail not exceed $10,000 or the total
amount of tax imposed by Chapter 3 (§ 58.1-300 et seq.) of
Title 58.1 of the Code of Virginia, whichever is less. If the
amount of such credit exceeds the taxpayer's tax liability for
such taxable year, the amount which exceeds the tax liability
may be carried over for credit against income taxes of such
individual or corporation in the next five taxable years until
the total amount of the tax credit has been taken.

Credits granted to a partnership or an electing small
business corporation (S corporation) shall be passed through
to the individual partners or shareholders in propottion to
their ownership or interest in the partnership or S corporation.

The total amount of tax credits which may be approved by
the authority in any fiscal year prior to fiscal year 1996-1997
shall not exceed $1,000,000. Commencing In fiscal year
1996-1997, the total amount of fax credits which may be
approved by the authority in any fiscal year shall not exceed
$250,000. In the case of tax credils to be claimed for any
period after June 30, 1996, no tax credits will be approved for a
unit unfess a tax credit was validly claimed for such unit for afl
or part of the month of June 1996. No tax credits may be
claimed for taxable years after December 31, 1998.

The authority may charge to each owner fees in such
amount as the executive director shall determine to be
necessary to cover the administrative costs to the authority.
Such fees shall be payahle at such time or times as the
executive director shall require.

Solicitati : licati

13 VAC 10-160-40.
{Repealed.)

13 VAC 10-160-60. Eligibility of tenants and verification.

The occupancy of units entitled to tax credits is limited to
elderly tenants or tenants with disabilities whose incomes, as
of initial occupancy of the tax credit unit by such tenants (or, it
any such tax credit unit i& was occupied by such a tenant on
January 1 of the first calendar year for which the tax credits
areto-be were claimed for such tax credit unit, as of such
January 1), de did not exceed 80% of the median income for
the area. Preference in occupancy of tax credit units will-be
must have been given to eligible tenants whose incomes are
were less than or equal 1o 50% of the median income for the
area. The United States Department of Housing and Urban
Development income limits for subsidized programs, as
adjusted by family size, will-be must have been used in
determining such 80% and 50% of median income for the
area.

in the case of tax credils to be claimed for any period after
June 30, 1896, in order to be eligible the tenanf must have
been an occupant of the tax credit unit on June 30, 1996.

Owners shal-be—requiredto—obiain must have obtained
written income verification for eligible tenants who occupy ef
are-expectedto-oceuby a tax credit unit. The verification of
income must be have been sent by the owner to each
employer or the agency providing benefits along with a
stamped, self-addressed return envelope. Such verification
showd must have then be retained by the owner and a copy
submitted to the authority (together with an executed
confirmation of resident eligibility form and the verification of
age or disability} at the time that the eligible tenant is was
determined by the owner to be income eligible. Verification of
income must be have been current as of a date no earlier
than 90 days ptior to the date setferth—in-thepresading
paragraph (see first paragraph in this section) as of which the
income of the eligible tenant is was determined for eligibility

purposes.

With respect to tax credits claimed for rental of tax credit
units to tenants with disabilities, owners
oblain must have obtained a written verification of disability.
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Verification of said disability may—be must have been
obtained from a physician, diagnostic or vocational .
rehabilitation service center or the Social Security
Administration.

With respect to tax credits claimed for rental of tax credit
units to elderly tenants, owners must verify have verified the
age of all persons claiming to exceed 62 years of age.
Verification of Social Security benefits paid on the person's
behalf will-be /s acceptable if a birth certificate sarnob-bs
could not have been obtained; provided, however, that any
person receiving survivor Social Security benefits who dess
did not exceed 62 years of age or dees did not have a
disability is not eligible for occupancy of a tax credit unit,

The initial lease term for all eligible tenants occupying a tax -
credit unit may-net-be must not have been less than a 12-
maonth period.

13 VAC 10-160-70. Review-and-selection-of-application;
Administration of a!l_ocation of tax credits.
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Except as provided in 13 VAC 10-160-120, tax credits shall

not be allocated by the authority after June 30, 1996.
Allocations of tax credils mads by the authority prior to June
30, 1996, shall remain in effect, subject to the provisions of
these rules and regulations.

The amount of tax credits claimed by an owner in any
laxable year for tax credit units shall not exceed the amount of
tax credits aflocated to such owner for such tax credit units.
The executive director may require that owners to whom tax
credits have been allocated chall submit from time to time or
at such specified times as he shall require, written
confirmation and documentation as to the status of ke each
tax credit unit and its compliance with the application and
these rules and regulations. If on the basis of such written
confirmation and documentation and other available

infarmation the executive director determines that the any tax
credit unit does not er-will-net qualify or will not continue to
quality for such tax credits, then the executive director may
termmate or reduce the al|ocat|on of such tax credits

The authority shalt have the right to inspect the tax credit
units and related property and improvements from time to
time, and the tax credit units and related property and
improvements shall be in  a state of repair and condition
satisfactory to the authority. The authority may require the
owner to make necessary repairs or improvements, in a
manner acceptable to the authority, as a condition for
receiving-or qualifying foran-allocation-of-lax—-oredits—or for
cettification to the Depariment of Taxation as described
hereinbelow.

Any material changes to the condition, use or cccupancy of
the tax credit unit or in any other representations, facts or
information, as contained or proposed in the application,
occurring subsequent to the submission of the application for
ihe tax credits therefor shall be subject to the prior wriiten
-approval of the executive director. As a condition to any such
approval, the executive direclor may, as necessary fo comply
with these rules and regulations and the state code, reduce
the amount of tax credits allocated or impose additional terms
and conditions with respect thereto. H such changes are
made without the prior written approval of the executive
director, he may terminate or reduce the allocation of such

tax credits or impose additional terms and conditions with
respect thereto.

owner shall transfer any of the tax creoht umts to a transferee
which is eligible for such tax credits under the state code and
these rules and regulations, such transieree shall thereupon
be entitled to the allocation of tax credits for such tax credit

units and shall, for the purposes of these rules and
regulations, be thereafter deemed the owner for such fax
credits.

13 VAC 10-160-80. Tax credit period.

Each period for which an owner may claim tax credits for
any tax credit unit shall commence upon the date that the tax
credit unit is occupied by an eligible tenant pursuant to a
lease providing for a 12-month term and for the payment of
rent in the amount of the tax credit rent. Such period shall
not commence prior to the allocation of the tax credits by the
authority to the owner, except that if the tax credit unit is so
occupied from the first day of the month in which the
allocation of tax credits is mads, such period shall commence
on such first day of the month. Such peried shall continue
until termination of occupancy as described in 13 VAC 10-
160-80 or until December 31, 1999, whichever occurs first,
However, in no event shall any such period commence and
continue unless the tax credit unit is and remains in a state of
repair and condition satisfactory to the authorily, all
documentation required by 13 VAC 10-180-60 has been and
is submitted to the authority in accordance herewith, and all
other applicable requirements of the state code and these
rules and regulations have been and are satistied. 1f the
owner shall be entitled to claim iax credits on any tax credit
unit for a portion of a month during such period, the rent
reduction shall be calculated pro raia based upon the number
of days in such menth that the owner is so eniitled o claim
tax credits or, with respect to the termination of occupancy,
shall be calculated as provided in 13 VAC 10-160-90.

13 VAC 10-160-90. Maintenance of records; submission
reguirements; termination of ccocupancy.

Owners shall be responsible for obtaining and maintaining
all documentation required by the authority o evidence that
the tax credit units qualify for tax credits under the program.
Owners wilt be responsible for providing this documentation
to the authority for review within 30 days following the end of
each calendar year; provided, however, that the documenis
listed in subdivisions 2 a, b, ¢ and g of this section shall-be
must have been submitted at the time required by 13 VAC
10-160-60, The tax credit unit will not qualify for tax credits if
all required documents, in the form regquired by the authority,
are not so provided. Required documentation to be
submitted to the authority includes, but is not limited to, the
following:

Virginia Register of Regulations

3150



Final Regulations

1. A listing (including dates of occupancy) of all tenants

gy j cobpiad; who
occupied a tax credit unit entitled to a tax credit for that
year.

2. A complete cerification package for each eligible
tenant receiving the reduced rent. The certification must
include:

a. A completed and executed confirmation of resident
eligibility form,

b. Verification of income.

¢. Verification of age or disability.

d. A certification from the tenant verifying:
(1) What unit type/size was occupied,
(2) Number of months said unit was occupied,
(3) The amount of rent paid, and

(4) How many months that amount of rent was paid:,
and

{5) In the case of the tax credits claimed for any
period after June 30, 1996, occupancy of the tax
credit unit by the tenant on June 30, 1996.

e. A certification of the owner that prior to July 1,
1996, preference in occupancy of the tax credit units
was given fo eligible tenants whose incomes are were
less than or equal to 50% of the median income for the
area (the waiting kst for tax credit units during the
calendar year identifying the persons applying for such
units and their incomes shall be maintained by the
owner and shall be available for inspection by the
authority}.

f. Rent rolls for the comparable units in the same
property as the tax credit units setting forth the rents
charged to other tenants, if rents for such comparable
units are to be used to determine the amount of the
rent reduction pursuant to 13 VAC 10-160-30.

g. Copies of leases for each tax credit unit.

f.. In the case of the tax credits claimed for any period
after June 30, 1996, a certification of the owner that a
tax credit for rental reductions was validly claimed on
the tax credit unit for all or part of the month of June
1996, and that the tenant receiving such rental
reductions was an occupant of such tax credit unit on
June 30, 1996.

In the event of termination of occupancy, the rent reduction
shall be calculated pro rata based upon the number of days
determined in the following manner. In the event of death of
the only elderly person or person with a disability occupying a
tax credit unit, the owner must obtain a copy of the death
certificate or must provide other acceptable documentation of
death; and the number of days for which an owner is entitled
to tax credits on such deceased person's tax credit unit shall
be determined by the date of death. If the eligible tenant
abandons the tax credit unit, the earliest of the date the
owner discovers the tax credit unit is vacant, the date any
utility company ferminates service on the tax credit unit, or

the date 30 days after abandonment will be used fo
determine the number of days for which the tax credit unit is
entitled to the tax credit. If the tax credit unit shall not be so
abandoned but the efigible tenant shall not occupy the tax
credit unit for a period of 30 days {or such longer period of
time as the executive director may approve), the end of such
period shall be used to determine the number of days f or
which the tax credit unit is entitied to the tax credit. If the
lease is terminated for any reason other than those set forth
above in this paragraph, the effective date of termination
shall be used o determine the number of days for which the
tax credit unit is entitied to the tax credit.

13 VAC 10-160-120. Authority to increase allocation of
credits. ‘

Notwithstanding anything fo the contrary herein, the
executive director may, in his discretion and without
ratification or approval by the board, increase the amount of
credits allocated to a tax credit unit for the purpose of
allowing the owner to continue to comply with the require-
ment in the state code and these rules and requlations that
the rent charged to the eligible tenant be at least 15% less
than the market rent. Any request for such increase shall
include such information, opinions, certifications and
documentation as the executive director may require.

VA.R. Doc. No. R96-490; Filed May 22, 1996, July 17, 1996, 8:02 a.m.

DEPARTMENT OF SOCIAL SERVICES (STATE
BOARD OF)

Title of Requlation: [ ¥R-845-88-9%. 22 VAC 40-10-10 et
seq. ] Public Participation Guidelines (REPEALED).

Statutory Authority: §§ 9-6.14:7.1 and 63.1-25 of the Code of
Virginia.
Effective Date: September 4, 1996,

Summary:

This regulation describes the way the Stafe Board of
Social Services obtains public input when developing,
revising or repealing a reguiation. This regulation has
been repealed and superseded by 22 VAC 40-11-10 et
seq.

Summary of Public Comment and Agency Response; No
public comment was received by the promulgating agency.

Agency Contact: L. Richard Martin, Jr., Regulatory
Coordinator, Department of Social Services, 730 East Broad
Street, Richmond, VA 23219-1848, telephone (804) 692-
1825. .

VA.R. Doc. No. R96-477; Filed July 10, 1996, 1:12 p.m.

Ak xR AR AL

Title of Regulation: [ YR-848-00-D%:1. 22 VAC 40-11-10 et

seq. ] Public Participation Guidelines.

Statutory Authority: §§ 9-6.14:7.1 and 63.1-25 of the Code of
Virginia.
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1 Septemnber 4, 1996,

This regulation describes the way the Slate Board of
Soclal Services oblains public Input when developing,
ravising or repealing a regulation. The reguiation covers
the following topics: petltions from interested parties,
solicitation of input, public hearings, and withdrawal of
reguiations.

No

pubhc commentwasrecelved by the promu|gat|ng agency

Agency Contacl, Copies of the regulation may be obtained

from L. Richard Martin, Jr., Regulatory Coordinator,
Department of Social Services, 730 East Broad Street,
Richmond, VA 23218-1849, tslephone (804) 682-1825.

[ CHAPTER 11.
PUBLIC PARTICIPATION GUIDELINES. |

PART I
GENERAL PROVISIONS,

[ §-4-% 22 VAC 40-11-10.] Definltions.

The following words and terms, when used in | these
reguiations this chapter ), shall have the following meanings,
unless the context clearly indicates otherwise:

"Administrative Process Act (APA)" means Chapter 1.1:1
{§ 9-6.14:1 st s0q.) of Title 8 of the Code of Virginia.

"Approving authority" means State Board of Social
Services.

"Board" means State Board of Social Services.

"Commissioner" means the Commissioner of the
Dapartment of Social Services or his deslgnee,

"Department” means Department of Soclal Services.

"Division" means organizational entity within  the
depariment, designated by the commissioner, which
develops regulations subject to the Administrative Process
Act.

"Governor's Executive Order" means any policy or
procedure issued by the Governor under § 2.1-41.1 or § 8-
6.14:9.1 A of the Code of Virginia establishing the
administrative policy and procedures for gubernatorial review
and regulatory actions govered by the Administrative
Process Act.

"Person" means an individual, a corporation, a parnnership,
an association, a governmental body, a municipal
corporation, or other legal entity.

[ §1-2: 22 VAC 40-11-20. 1 Application.

These guidelines apply to all regulations [ adepted
promulgated ] by the board.

PART I,
PUBLIC PARTICIPATION,

[ $-2-+ 22 VAC 40-11-30. ] General.

A. The procedures in | §-3 g-raguiation 22 VAC 40-
11-70 ]| shall be used for sohcmng :‘ha Input of inerested
persons in the initial formation and development, amendment
or repeal of regulations In accordance with the Administrative
Process Act. This | reguiation chapler ] does not apply to
regulations exempied or exciuded from the provisicns of the
Administrative Process Act (§ 9-6.14:4.1 [ of the Code of
Virginia] ).

B. The department shall follow the policies and procedures
established by the Administrative Process Act and the
Governor's Executive Order in developing emergency,
proposed and final adoption, amendment or repeal of
regiiations.

C. At the discretion of the approving authority or the
depariment, the public participation procedures in [ §-2-8 22
VAC 40-11-70 ] may be supplemented to provide additional
public participation in the regulation adoption process or as
necessary to meet federal requirements.

D. The failure of any person to receive any notice or
copies of any documents provided under these guidelines
shall not affect the validity of any regulations otherwise
adopted in accordance with this {-regetation chapter],

[ §-22: 22 VAC 40-11-40. ] Petitions from interested parties.

Any person may petition the agency to develop a new
regulation or to adopt, amend or repeal a requlation. The
petition, at a minimum, shail contain the foliowing information:

1. Name of petitioner;
2. Petitioner's mailing address and telephone number;
3. Petitioner's interest in the proposed action;

4. ARecommended new regulation or addilion, deletion,
or amendment to a specific regulation or regulations;

5. Statement of need and justification for the proposed
action;

6. Statement of impact on the petitioner and other
affected persons, and

7. Supporting documents, as applicabie.

The department shall provide a written response to such
petition.

[ §23- 22 VAC 40-11-50.] Solicitation of input.

A. Each division of the department shall establish and
maintain a list or lists consisting of persons expressing an
interest in the adoption, amendment or repeal of regulfations
under its administration, management or supervision.
Persons may request the addition of their name and address
to the list at any time. The lists will be updated as additional
interested pariies are identified. Deletions will be made when
lack of interest is determined by the division as a result of
periodic contact initiated by the division.
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B. The department may form an ad hoc advisory group or
utilize a standing advisory committes to assist in the drafting,
formation or review of a proposal when expertise is
necessary lo address a specific requlatory interest or issue,
or when persons register an interest in the subject of the
regulation and in working with the department.

C. Whenever a division identifies a need for the adoption,
amendment or repeal of regulations under its administration,
management or supervision, it may commence the requlation
adoption process according fo these procedures.

D. The department shall issue a Notice of Intended
Regulatory Action (NOIRA) which describes the subject
matter and infent of the planned regulation for all regulatory
proposals in accordance with the Administrative Process Act.
The NOIRA shall state whether the agency intends to hold a
public hearing.

E. The commissioner shall disseminate the NOIRA 1o the
public by:

1. Distribution to the Registrar of Regulations for
‘publication in The Virginia Register, and

2. Distribution by mail to parties on the list established
under subsection A of this section.

F. The agency shall consider public comment in drafting
proposed regulations.

G, Upon approval by the board of the proposed
requlations prepared by ithe department, the department shall
solicit public comment through:

1. Distribution to the Registrar of Reguiations for
publication in The Virginia Register,

2. Publication of a Notice of Comment Period in a
newspaper of general circulation published at the state
capital and such other newspapers as the department
may deem appropriate, and

3. Distribution of a notice of comment by mail to persons
on the lists established under subsection A of this
section.

[ §24 22 VAC 40-11-60.] Public hearings.

A. The board shall permit public comment concerning the
adoption, amendment, or repeal of a regulation submitted for
its promuigation during the board's regularly scheduled public
cormment period of its authorized meetings in conformity with
the established rules of the board. The board may allow
public comment about a proposed reguiation at a committee
meeting when the proposed reguiation is under consideration
by the committee.

B. When the NOIRA states thatf the department does not
plan to hold a hearing on the proposed regulation, the
department shall schedule a hearing when it determines that
there is sufficient public interest in a proposed regulation
through receipt of requests for a hearing from 25 people or
more.. The hearing may be held at any time during the public
comment period and at such fimes and locations as the
depantment decides will best facilitate input from inieresied
persons.

[ 2.5, 22 VAC 40-11-70.] Withdrawal of regulations.

if the department determines that the process fo adopt,
amend or repeal any reguiation should be torminated after
promuigation .of the proposed regulation by the approving
authority, the department shall present a recommendation
and rationale for the withdrawal of the proposed regulalion to
the approving authority.

VA.R. Doc. No. R96-478 Filed July 10, 1996, 1:1% p.m.
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DEPARTMENT OF MEDICAL ASSISTANCE
SERVICES

Title_of Regulation: State Plan for Medical Assistance
Helating to Diagnosls Related Grouplings.

12 VAC 30-70-200 ef seq, Methods end Standards for
Establishing Payment Rates--Inpatient Hospltal Care,

12 VAGC 30-80-10 et seq. WMethods and Standards for
Establishing Payment Rales-Other Types of Care
(repealing 12 VAC 30-80-140),

Statutory Authority: § 32.1-325 of the Code of Virginia.
Elfective Dates: July 9, 1996 through July B, 1897,

Summary;

1. REQUEST: The Govetnor is hereby requested {o approve
this agency's adoption of the emergency regulation entitled
“Inpatient Hospital Payment System."

2, RECOMMENDATION: Recommend approval of the
Department's request to take an emergency adoption action
regarding “Inpatient Hospital Payment System.” The
Department intends {o initiate the public notice and comment
requirements contained in the Code of Virginia § 9-6.14:7.1,

/s/ Joseph M. Teefey
Deputy Director
Date: June 13, 1996

3. CONCURRENCES:

/s/ Robert W. Lauterberg
Director, Depariment of Planning and Budget
Date: June 26, 1998

/s! Robert C. Metcalf
Secretary of Health and Human Resources
Date: June 27, 1996

APPROVE:

s/ George Allen
Governor
Date: July 3, 1996

FILED WITH:

Jane D. Chaffin
Deputy Registrar of Regulations
Date: July 9, 1996

DISCUSSION

5. BACKGROUND: The section of the State Plan affected
by this action is the Methods and Standards for Establishing
Payment Rates--Inpatient Hospitat Care, Attachment 4.19-A
{VH 460-02-4.1910 or 12 VAC 30, chapter 70).

In Decemnber 1990, the Department of Medical Assistance
. Services {(DMAS) and the Virginia Hospital and Healthcare
Association (VHHA) (formerly the \Virginia Hospital
Association) signed a settlement agreement, putting an end
to a mulii-year litigation brought under the provisions of the
federal Boren Amendment (for a discussion of the Boren
Amendment, refer to the Supplement at the end of this
Decision Brief). This agreement prescribed a reimbursement

methodology for hospitals, to be in effect during state fiscal
years 1992 through 1996. |t also required that starting
January 1895, DMAS and the VHHA would form a Joint Task
Force and develop a reimbursement methodology for the
time period following June 30, 1996, on which date the
agreement would lapse.

DMAS and the VHHA did form the Joint Task Force. The
deliberations of the Task Force produced a reimburgement
system design that is the basis of these regulations. In
support of the nesd to implement the sysiem timely, the 1996
General Assembly authorized implementation of a new
reimbursement system based on DRGs and required that it
be effective July 1, 1996.

The current reimbursement system pays for inpatient
hospital services by means of prospectively determined per
diem rates. Hospitals are paid their per diem rate times the
number of days of care provided. The new system will base
payment on the “case” rather than the day. Each case will be
paid according to the diagnosis and procedure or procedures
that are specific to the case. The greater the complexity of
the case, the higher the payment. This methodology,
referred to as Diagnosis Related Groupings (DRGs), allows
fully prospective pricing of inpatient services while
recognizing that not all patients cost the same to treat. On
the other hand, payment is not grealer simply because the
patient remains in the hospital longer. |t is expected that the
transition to DRGs will increase faimess in the distribution of
payments to hospitals and will increase the incentive to
control costs. It is not anticipated that the new sysiem will
increase the required appropriation for inpatient haospital
services to the agency.

Additional payments to hospitals with a “disproportionate
share” of Medicaid patients will continue under these
regulations but will be targsted to a smaller group of hospitals
that have a very high proportion of Medicaid and low income
patients.

Medical education and capital costs will, during the two-
year transition period, at least, continue to be paid as they
have been in the past -- that is, based on reasonable cost
incurred.

Psychiatric and rehabilitation cases will continue to be paid
on a per diem basis into the foreseeable future.

State teaching hospitals will continue to be treated as a
separate peer group in this methodology.

The change to DRGs wilt not occur all at once. There will
be two years when final reimbursement will be based parily
on DRGs and partly on the current methodology of per diem
rates. This will allow time for hospitals to adjust to the new
system.

7. AUTHORITY TO ACT: The Code of Virginia (1950) as
amended, § 32.1-324, grants to the Director of the
Department of Medical Assistance Services (DMAS) the
authority to administer and amend the Plan for Medical
Assistance in lieu of Board action pursuant to the Board's
requirements. The Code also provides, in the Administrative
Process Act (APA} § 9-6.14:4.1(C)(5), for an agency's
adoption of emergency regulations subject to the Governor's
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prior approval. Subsequent to the emergency adoption
action and filing with the Registrar of Regulations, this agency
intends to initiate the public notice and comment process
contained in Article 2 of the APA.

This regulation will carry out the directive of the 1996
General Assembly (Chapter 912, item 322. J) to
“..implement a fully prospective reimbursement system for
hospital inpatient services...”, using a “...Diagnosis Related
Groups {DRGs) methodology.” This regulation also fulfills the
final terms of the “VHA (Virginia Hospital Association)/Wilder”
settlement agreement. This agreement, signed in 1990,
settled litigation under the federal Boren Amendment, but
lapses on June 30, 1996. Among other things, the
agreement required that DMAS and the VHA {(now the VHHA)
jointly develop a reimbursement methodology to replace the
one that operated under the terms of the settiement
agreement. This regulation implements the methodology that
- has been developed joinily by DMAS and the VHHA, and,
theretore, fuifills this one remaining term of the settlement
agreement.

Without an emergency regulation, this amendment to the
State Plan cannot become effective until the publication and
concurrent comment and review period requirements of the
APA's Article 2 are met. Therefore, an emergency regulation
is needed to meet the July 1, 1996, effective date established
by the General Assembly.

8. NEED FOR EMERGENCY ACTION: The Code § 9-
6.14:4.1(C)(5) provides for regulations which an agency finds
are necessitated by an emergency situation. To enable the
Dirgctor, in lieu of the Board of Medical Assistance Setvices,
to comply with this Assembly mandate, he must take this
emergency adoption action. This issue qualifies as an
emergency regulation as provided for in § 9-6.14:4.1(C)(5)(ii},
because Chapter 912 of the 1996 Virginia Acts of Assembly,
ltern 322.J. requires this regulation be effective on July 1,
1996. This Chapter became effective on April 17, 1996. The
July 1st effective date is less than 280 days from enactment
of this law. As such, this regulaticn may be adopted without
public comment with the prior approval of the Governor.
Since this emergency regulation will be effective for no more
than 12 months and the Director wishes to continue
regulating the subject entities, the Department is initiating the
Administrative Process Act Article 2.

9. FISCAL/BUDGETARY IMPACT: All hospitals that provide
services to Medicaid recipients, except for some leng-term
and government operated hospitals, are affected by this
regulation. For FY '97, DMAS has allocated $484,971,000 for
inpatient hospital services. No budgel impact is forecast.
Hospitals have been consulted, and the VHHA is in support
of the methodology that these regulations will implement.
There are ne localities which are uniquely affected by these
regulations as they apply statewide.

10. BECOMMENDATION: Recommend approval of this
request to adopt this emergency regulation to become
effective July 1, 1896. From its effective date, this regulation
is to remain in force for one full year or until superseded by
final regulations. Without an effective emergency regulation,
the Department would lack the authority io implement the
new reimbursement system. This would mean failtre io
comply with the above cited provision of the 1996

Appropriations Act and with the final terms of the settlement
agreement.

11. APPROVAL SOUGHT FOR VR 460-02-4.1910:1 (12
VAC 30-70-200 et seq.), VR 460-03-4.1930 {12 VAC 30-70-
10 through 12 VAC 30-70-150); VR 460-02-4.1920 (12 VAC
30-80-140).

Approval of the Govemor is sought for an emergency
modification of the Medicaid State Plan in accordance with
the Code of Virginia § 9-6.14:4.1(C}(5) to adopt the following
reguiations:

BOREN SUPPLEMENT

Section 1902(a)(13){(A) of the Social Security Act is
implemented by Titte 42 of the Code of_Federal Regulations
Part 447 Subpart C. This section of the Act "requires that the
State Plan provide for payment for hospital and long-term
care facility services through the use of rates that the state
finds, and makes assurances satisfactory to the Secretary,
are reasonable and adequate to meet the costs that must be
incurred by efficiently and economically operated facilities to
provide services in conformity with state and federal laws,
regulations and guality and safety standards and assure that
individuals eligible for medical assistance have reasonable
access (taking into account geographic location and
reasonable travel time) to ..[care]... of adequate quality."

The referenced lawsuit was brought under the authority of
this language by the Virginia Hoespital Association (VHA) in
March 1986 in respense o a prospective payment system
methodology that DMAS had implemented in 1982. The VHA
alleged in its suit that Medicaid's inpatient hospital payments
were inadequate and its member hospitals would suffer
losses in excess of 350 million. This suit was finally settied
out-of-court in December 1990. The settlement agreement
left the Medicaid inpatient hospital payment methodology
substantially intact while adding Payment Adjustment Fund
feature. This feature provided for the payment to hospitals of
an additional $5 Million in General Funds, plus the
accompanying Federal Financial Participation. In addition,
the VHA with DMAS were required, in this agreement, to
cooperatively develop a new payment system to be effective
July 1, 1996.

Attachment 4.19-A
12 VAC 30-70-200.

The state agency will pay for inpatient hospital services under
the methodologies and during the time periods specified
below. During State fiscal years (5FY) 1997 and 1998, the
state agency’s methodology for inpatient hospital services in
general acute care hospitals will iransition from a per diem
methodology to a DRG-based methodology.  Section |
describes the special rules thai apply during the transition
period. Section I describes the DRG methodology that will
apply (at a specified transition percenfage) during the
transition period and that will remain after the transition is
over. Section Hll describes the revised per diem methodology
that will apply in part during the fransition, but that will cease

- to apply after the transition is over.

For inpatient hospital services in general acute care hospitals
and rehabilifation hospitals, occurring before July 1, 1996,
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raimbursement shall be based on the methodology described
in Supplament 3, which language, until the effective date of
this regulation, wag Aftachment 4.18-A of the State Plan for
Medical Assistance Services. The provisions contained in
Supplement 3 shall not be sffective after June 30, 1998,
except as otherwise provided in this Attachment.

For inpatlent hospital services that are psychiatric or
rehabilitation services, and that are provided In general acute
care hospitals, distinct part units of general acute care
hospitals, freestanding psychiatric facilities licensed as
hospitals, or rehabilitation hospitals, on and after July 1,
1996, reimbursement shall be based on a methodology,
described In I, Il and Il below. This methodology
implements a transition from revised per diem rates taken
from the previpus methodology (Supplement 3) to different
per diem rates that will be used in the context of the DRG
methodology. These services shall not be reimbursed by
means of DRG per case rates. For freestanding psychiatric
facilities licensed as hospitals there shall be no transition
period, but the new per diem rates are to be implemented
effective July 1, 1996. Also effactive for those services
rendered on or after July 1, 1998, the professional
component for the care rendered in such freestanding
psychiatric facilities licensed as hospitals may be billed
separately by the attending professional who s enrollad in
Medicaid. Inpatient hospital services that are provided in
long stay hospitals and state-owned rehabilitation hospitals
shall be subject to the provisions of Supplement 3, which untif
the effective date of this regufation was Attachment 4.19-A of
the State Plan for Medical Assistanice Services.

Transplant services shall not be subject to the provisions of
this Attachment. They shall continue to be subject to §1.1. of
Supplement 1 to Attachment 3.1-A&B.

I. Transition Period Reimbursement Rules. Effective July 1,
1996, the state agency’s reimbursement methodology for
inpatient hospital services shall begin a transition from a
praspeciive per diem to a prospective DRG methodology.
During the transition period, reimbursement of operating
costs shall be a blend of a prospective DRG methodology
(described in Il below) and a revised prospective per diem
methodology (described in il below). The transition period
shall be SFY1997 and 1998, after which a DRG methodology
alone shall be used.

A.  Tentative Payment During the Transition Period.
During the transition period claims will be tentatively paid on
the basis of the revised per diem methodology only.
FPayment of claims based on DRG rates shall begin July 1,
1998,

B. Final Operating Reimbursement During the Transition
Period. During the transition period settlement of each
hospital fiscal year will be carried out as provided in IX beiow.
Each hospital’s final reimbursement, for services that accrue

. to each state fiscal year of the fransition, shall be based on a
blend of the prospective DRG methodology and the revised
per diem methodology. For services to patients admitied and
discharged in SFY1997 the blend shall be 1/3 DRG and 2/3
revised per diem. For services o patients admifted after
June 30, 1996, and discharged during SFY1998 the blend
shall be 2/3 DRG and 1/3 revised per diem. Settlements

shall be completed according to hospital fscal years, but
after June 30, 1996, changes in rates and In the percent of
raeimbursement that is based on DRGs vs. per dism rates,
shall be according to siate fizcal year.  Services In
freastanding psychiatric facifities licensed as hosplials shall
not be subfect to the transition period phase-in of new rates,
or to seftlement at year snd; the new system rales for these
providers shall be fully effective on July 1, 1996, In hospital
fiscal years that straddle the implementation dale (years
starting before and ending after July 1, 1996) operaling costs
must be settied parlly under the old and partly undar the new
methodology:

1. Days related to discharges occurdng before July 1,
1996, shall be sattled under the previous reimbursement
methodology ( see Supplement 3).

2. Giays with admission date before July 1, 1996, and
discharge date after June 30, 1996, shall be settled in
Iwo parts, with days before July 1, 1896, seitled on the
basis of the previous reimbursement methodology (see
Supplement 3), and days after June 30, 1996, settled at
100% of the hospital's revised per diem rate, as
described in i, below. The DRG reimbursement
methodeology shall not be used in the setflernent of any
days related to a stay with an admission date before July
1, 1996.

3. Stays with admission dates on and after July 1, 1996,
shall be settled under the transition methodology. All
cases admitted from July 1, 1998, onward shall be
setiled based on the rates and transition rules in effect in
the stalte fiscal year in which the discharge falls. The
only exception shall be claims for rehabilitation cases
with length of stay sufficient that cne or more interim
claims are submitted  Such claims for rehabilitation
cases shall be seftled based on rates and rules in effect
at the time of the end date (“through” date) of the claim,
whether or not it is the final or discharge claim.

C. Capital Cost Reimbursement. During the fransition
period capital cost shall be reimbursed as a pass-through as
described in Supplement 3, except that paid days and
charges used fo determine Medicaid aflowable cost in a fiscal
period for purposes of capital cost reimbursement shall be
the same as those accrued o the fiscal period for operating
cost reimbursement. Effective July 1, 1998, capital cost shall
be reimbursed as described in !l below. Uniil capital costs

~are fully included in prospective rates the provisions of

Supplement 3 § VII, regarding recapture of depreciation shall
remain in effect.  Reimbursement of capital cost for
freestanding psychiatric facilities licensed as hospitals shall
be included in their per diem rates, as provided in [l below,
and shall not be treated as a pass-through during the
transition period or afterward.

D.  Disproporiionate Share Hospital (DSH) Payments
During the Transition. Effective July 1, 1996, DSH payments
shall be fully prospective amounts determined in advance of
the state fiscal year to which they apply, and shall not be
subfect to seltfement or revision based on changes in
utifization during the year to which they apply. Payments
prospectively determined for gach state fiscal year shall be
considered payment for that year, and not for the year from
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which data used in the calculation was taken. Payment of
DSH amounts determined under this methodology shall be
made on a quarierly basis.

For patient days occurring before July 1, 1996, DSH
reimbursement shall bes determined under the previous
methodology and setiled accordingly (Stpplement 3).
Effective for days occurring July 1, 1996, and after, DSH
reimbursement made through prospective lump sum
amounts, as described in this section, shall be final and not
subject io settlement except when necessary due to the limit
in 2.e. below. After July 1, 1998, DSH reimbursement shall
be as provided in Il below.

1. Definition. A disproportionate share hospital shall be
a hospital that meets the following criteria:

a. A Medicaid utilization rate in excess of 15%, or a
low-income patient utilization rate exceeding 25% (as
defined in the Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act of
1987 and as amended by the Medicare Catastrophic
Coverage Act of 1988}); and

b. At least two obstelricians with staff privileges at the
hospital who have agreed to provide obstetric services
to individuals entitled o such services under a State
Medicaid plan. In the case of a hospital located in a
rural area (that is, an area outside of a Metropolitan
Statistical Area, as defined by the Executive Office of
Management and Budget), the term ‘obstetrician”
includes any physician with staff privileges at the
hospital to perform  non-emergency  obstetric
procedures.

c. Subsection 1.b. does not apply to a hospital:

1) At which the inpatients are predominantly
individuals under 18 years of age; or

2) Which does not offer non-emergency obstetric
services as of December 21, 1987.

2. Payment Adjustment.

a. A disproportionate share hospital's additional
payment shall be based on the fype of hospital and on
the hospital's Medicaid utilization percentage. There
shall be two types of hospitals: (1) Type One,
consisting of hospitals that were state-owned teaching
hospitals on January 1, 1996, and (2) Type Two,
consisting of all other hospifals. The Medicaid
utilization percentage is equal to the hospital's total
Medicaid inpatient days divided by the hospital’s total
inpatient days. Each eligible hospital with a Medicaid
utifization percentage above 15% shall receive a
disproportionate share payment.

b. For Type One hospitals, the disproportionate share
payment shall be equal to the sum of: (1) the hospital’s
Medicaid utifization percentage in excess of 15%,
times 11, times the hospital's Medicaid operating
reimbursement, times 1.3186 in SFY1997, and 1.3782
in SFY1998, and (2} the hospital’s Medicaid utilization
percentage in excess of 30%, times 11, times the
hospital's Medicaid operating reimbursement, times
1.3186 in SFY1997, and 1.3782 in SFY1998.

¢. For Type Two hospitals, the disproporiionate share
payment shall be equal to the sum of. (1} the hospital's
Medicaid utilization percentage in excess of 15%,
times  the  hospital's  Medicaid  cperating
reimbursement, times 1.0964 in SFY1997, and 1.1476
in SFY19898, and (2) the hospital's Medicaid utiiization
percentage in excess of 30%, times the hospitals
Medicaid operating reimbursemeni, times 1.0864 in
SFY1997, and 1.1476 in SFY1998.

d. For hospitals which do not qualify under the 15%
inpatient Medicaid utilization rate, but do qualify under
the low-income patient utilization rate, excesding 25%
in 1.a. above, the disproportionate share payment
amount for Type One hospitals shall be equal to the
product of the hospital's low-income utilization in
excess of 25%, times eleven, times the hospiials
Medicaid operating reimbursement. For Type Two
hospitals, the disproportionate share payment
adjustment shall be equal to the product of ihe
hospital's low-income utilization in excess of 25%,
times the hospital’s Medicaid operating
reimbursement.

e. OBRA 1993 §13621 Disproportionate Share
Adjustment Limit:

(1) Limit on amount of payment. No paymenis mads
under 1L.D.2. above shall exceed any applicable
limitations upon such paymenis established by
federal law or regulations and OBRA 1993 § 13621.
A payment adjustment during a fiscal yaar shall aot
exceed the sum of:

{a) Medicaid allowable costs incurred during the
year less Medicaid paymenis, net  of
disproportionate share payment adjustments, for
services provided during the year, and

(b} Costs Incurred in serving persons who have
no insurance less paymenis received from those
patients or from a third parly on behalf of those
patients. Paymenls made by any unit of the
Commonwealth or local governmeni ic a hospital
for services provided fo indigent patienis shail not
be considered fo be a socurce of third party
payment.

(2} During state fiscal year 1895, the Nmi in ihis
section shall apply only to hospifals which arg
owned or operated by a state or an instrumeriality
or unit of government within the state. During s
year such a hospital, if it is one whose Medicalid
inpatient wtilization rate is at least one standard
deviation above the mean inpatient utiization raig in
the state or if it has the largest number of Medicaid
days of any such hospital in the Commonwealth for
the previous Stale fiscal year, shali be alfowed a
limit that is 200% of the limit described above which
the Governor certifies to the Secretary of the U 5.
Depantment of Health and Human Services that
such amount (the amount by which the hospials
payment exceeds the limit described above) shafl be
used for heaith services during the year.
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3. Source Data for Calculation of Eligibifity and Payment
Adjustment. Each hospital’s eligibility for DSH paymenit,
and the amount of the DSH payment in state fiscal year
1897, shall be based upon Medicaid utilization in hospital
fiscal years ending in calendar year 1994, and on
projected operating refmbursement in state fiscal year
1997, estimated on the basis of 1994 utilization. After
stafe fiscal year 18397, each new year's DSH payments
shall be calculated using the most recent reliable
utilization and projection data available. For the purpose
of calculating DSH payments, each hospital with a
Medicaid-recognized Neonatal Intensive Care Unit
(NIGLY) (a unit having had a unique NICU operating cost
limit under Supplement 3, V.(6)), shall have its DSH
pavment calculated separately for the NICU and for the
remainder of the hospital, as if the two were separate
and distinct providers.

For freestanding psychiatric facilities licensed as
hospitals, DSH payment shall be based on the most
recent filed Meadicare cost report available before the
beginning of the state fiscal year for which a payment is
being calculated.

E. Direct Medical Education (DMedEd). During the
fransition period (July 1996 through June 1998}, DMedEd
costs shall be reimbursed in the same way as under the
previous methodology (see Supplement 3) This
methodology does not and shall nof include the DME
reimbursement limitation enacted for the Medicare program
effective July 1, 1985. Heimbursement of DMedEd shall
include an amount to reflect DMedEd associated with
services to Medicaid patients provided in hospitals but
reimbursed by capitated managed care providers. This
amount shall be estimated based on the number of days of
care provided by the hospital that are reimbursed by
capitated managed care providers. Direct Medical Education
shall nof be a reimbursable cost in freestanding psychiatric
facilities licensed as hospitals. DMedEd will be paid in
gstimated quarterly jump sum amounis and seltled at the
hospital's fiscal year end settlement.

F. Final “Payment Adjustment Fund” {PAF) Payment for
Certain Hospitals. Hospitals receiving payments for Medicaid
patients from managed care providers enrofled in "Medallion
" shall be paid a separate lump sum amount, based on the
continuation of capitation rates during July 1, 1996, through
December 31, 1996, that do not reflect adjustments made to
hospital per diem and DRG payments on July 1, 1996. Each
of these hospitals shall be paid a final PAF amount. It shall
be equal io a hospital specific PAF per diem times the
number of Medallion Il days that occur in the hospital in July
1, 1986, through December 31, 1996. The PAF per diem
shall be based on a revision of the PAF calculation that was
carried out for the SFY1986 PAF payment that was made in
August 1995, The revision shall be the hospital ceiling, DSH

_per diem, and cost report data used in the calculation shail be
from the cost reports that would be used under the PAF
methodology if a SFY1887 PAF calculation were to be done.
The “paid days” dala used in this calculation shall be the
same as thaf used in the SFYT1996 calculation. Pending the
calcilation of the final PAF payment in the settlement of the
relevant time period for the affected hospifals, an interim

~ Indices.

payment shall be made. The interim payment shall be equal
to 1/2 the PAF payment made to the same hospitals for
SFY19986.

G. Adjusting DRG Rates for Length of Stay (LOS)
Reductions from 1995 Appropriations Act. if it is
demonstrated that there are savings directly attributable to
LOS reductions resuiting from utilization initiatives directed by
the 1995 Appropriations Act, as agreed to and evaluated by
the Medicaid Hospital Payment Policy Advisory Council,
these savings, up to a maximum of $16.9 million in SFY1997,
shall be applied as a reduction to SFY1897 and 1998 DRG
rates used for seiflement purposes.

H. Service Limits During the Transition Period. The limit of
coverage for adults of 21 days in a 60-day period for the
same or similar diagnosis shall continue to apply in the
processing of claims and in the per diem portion of seltlement
during the transition peried. This limit shall not apply in the
DRG portion of reimbursement, except for covered
psychiatric cases.  Psychiatric cases are cases with a
principal diagnosis that is a mental disorder as specified in
the ICD-3-CM. Not all mental disorders are covered. For
coverage information, see the Amount, Duration, and Scope
of Services, Supplement 1 to Aftachment 3.TA&B.

12 VAC 30-70-210.

it. Diagnosfis Related Groups (DRG) Reimbursement
Methodology. Reimbursement of operating cosis for cases
which are subject to DRG rates shall be equal to the relative
weight of the DRG in which the patient falls, times the
hospital specific operating rate per case. Reimbursement of
outliers, transfer cases, cases Sstill subject to per diem
reimbursement, capital costs, and medical education cosis
shall be as provided below.

A. DRG Grouper to be Used. The All Patient Diagnosis
Related Groups (AP-DRG) Grouper shall be used in the DRG
reimbursement methodology. Effective July 1, 1996, and
until notification of a change s given, Version 12 of this
Grouper shall be used. DMAS shall notify hospitals by
means of a Medicaid Memo when updating the system fo
later grouper versions.

B. Calculation of DRG Weights and Hospital Case Mix
The relative weight measures the cost, and
therefore, the reimbursement level of each DRG relfative to alf
cther DRGs. The hospital case mix index measures the
hospital's average case mix complexity (costliness) relative to
alf other hospitals.

The relative weight for each DRG was determined by
calculating the average standardized cost for cases assigned
fo that DRG, divided by the average standardized cost for
cases assigned to all DRGs. For the purpose of calculating
relative weights, groupable cases (cases having coding dala
of sufficient quality to support DRG assignment} and transfer
cases (groupable cases where the patienl was transferred to
ancther hospital)l were used. Ungroupable cases and
rehabilitation, psychiatric, and transplant cases were nol
used. DMAS’ hospital computerized claims history file, for
discharges in hospital fiscal years ending in calendar year
1993, was used. All available dala from alf enrolled, cost-
reporting general acute care hospitals were used, including
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dala from stale-owned teaching hospitals. Cost Report data
from hospital fiscal years ending in calendar year 1993, was
also used.

Befora relative weights were calculated for each DRG,
gach hospilal’s lotal charges were disaggregated into
operating charges and capital charges, based on the ratic of
operating and capilal cosl o fotal cost.  Operating charges
and capital charges were standardized for regional variation,
and then both operating charges and capital charges were
reduced to cosis using ratios of cosis-lo-charges (RCCs)
obtained from the Medicaid cosi report database. Direct
medical education cosls were eliminated from the relalive
weight calculations since such costs will be addressed
outside the DRG rates. These steps, detailed below, were
completed on a case-by-case basis using the data elemenis
identified in the following table.

Data Elemments For Relative Weight And Case Mix Index
Calculations

Source
Claims Database

Data Elemenis

Total charges for sach
groupable case

Total charges for each transfer
case

Claims Database

Ratio of operating cosls to tolal | Medicaid Cost Report
costs for each hospital Database
Ratio of capital cosis o total Medicaid Cost Repori
cosis for gach hospital Database
Ratio of DME cosis lo total Medicaid Cost Report
costs for egach hospital Database

Slatewide average labor
portion of operating cosis

Virginia Health Service
Cost Review Council
(VHSCRC)

Federal Register

Medicare wage index for each

hospital

Medicare Geographic Adj. Federal Register

Factor {GAF) for each hospital

RCC for each hospital Medicaid Cost Report
Database

Steps in Calculation of Relative Weights.

1. The lotal chargss for each case were splif into
operating charges, capital charges, and DME charges
using hospital-specific ratios obtained from the cost
feport database.

2. The operating charges obtained in Step 1 were
standardized for regional variations in wages. This
invoived three substeps.

a. The operating charges were multiplied by 59.77
percent yielding the labor portion of operating charges.

b. The labor portion of operating charges was divided
by the hospital-specific Medicare wage index yielding
the standardized labor portion of operating charges.

¢. The standardized labor poition of operating charges
was added to the non-labor porion of operating
charges (40.23 percent) yieiding standardized
operating charges.

3. The standardized operating charges were mulliolied
by the hospiial-specific RCC yielding standardized
oparaling cosits.

4. The capital charges obtained in Step 1 were divided
by the hospital-speciiic Medicare gecgraphic adjustment
factor (GAF} vielding standardized capital charges.

5. The standardized capital charges wers multiplied by
the hospital-specific  cost-to-charge  rafio  yeiding
standardized capital costs.

These five steps were repeated for all groupabie cases
and fransfer cases. Oncs this was done, the cases were
sorfed by DRG category resulling in the tofal cases and
the lotal standardized cost of each DRG. Tolal cost
divided by folal cases vielded the average standardized
cost of seach DRG. The average standardized cost of
each DRG was divided by the average standardized cost
across alf DRIGs yielding the relaiive wefght for each
DRG.  To address the unavailability of charge dala
related fo adult hospital days bevond 21 days, an
adiusiment was estimaled for cenain DRGs and added
fo the weighis as calculated above. This adjusiment for
adult days over 271 is necessary only uniil the first
recalibration of welghts becomes effective in July 1998
(sse 1, beiow),

The relative weighis were then used to calculale a vase-
mix index for each hospiial. The case-mix lndsx for a
hospital was determined by summing for all DRGs the
product of the number of groupable cases and transfer
cases in each DHG and the relative weighi for each
DAG. This sum was then divided by the total number of
cases yielding the case-mix index. This process was
repeated on a hospilal-by-hospilal basis,

. Caleulation  of Standardized Costs Per Case.
Standardized cosls per case werg calculaled using all DRG
cases (groupable, ungroupable, and lransfer cases). Cases
entirely subject to per diem rather than DRG reimbursament
and cases from stale-owned leaching hospitals were not
used.  Using the data elements identified in the following
table, the severn fgeps outlined below were complated on a
case-by-case basis.

Data Elsmsmis For Standardized Costs Per Case
Calculations

Data Elements

Total charges for 2ach
groupable case

Total charges for each
ungroupable casse

Source
Claims Dalabase

Claims Database

Total charges for each iransfer
casg

Claims Database

Ratic of operaling costs to total
costs for each hospiial

Medicald Cost Report
Database

portion of opsrating cosis

Ratic of capiial costs to lotal Medicard Cost Report
cosis for each hospital Database

Ratio ef DME costs to total Medicaid Cost Report
costs for each huspital Databass

Statewide average labor

VHSCRO
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I
Medicare wage index for each

Federal Register
hospital
Medicare GAF for each Federal Register
hospital
RCC for each hospital Medicaid Cost Report
Database
Case-mix index for each Calculated
hospital :
Total number of groupabig Claims Database
cases
Total number of ungroupable Claims Database
cases

Total number of transfer cases | Clairms Database

Steps in Calculation of Standardized Cost Per Case.

1. The tolal charges for each case were split into
operating charges, capital charges, and DME charges
using hospital-specific ratios obtained from the cost
report dafabass.

2. The operating charges obtained in Step 1 were
standardized for regional variations in wages. This
involved three substeps.

a. The operaling charges were multiplied by 59.77
percent yielding the labor portion of operating charges.

b. The labor portion of operating charges was divided
by the hospilal-specific Medicare wage index yielding
the standardized labor portion of operating charges.

¢. The standardized labor poriion of operating charges
was added to the non-labor portion of operating
charges {40.23 percent) yielding standardized
operating charges.

3. The standardized operating charges were multiplied
by the hospital-specific RCC yielding standardized
operating cosis.

4. The capital charges oblained in Step 1 were divided
by the hospitai-specific Medicare geographic adjustment
factor (GAF) vielding standardized capital charges.

5. The standardized capital charges were multipiied by
the hospital-specific  cost-to-charge rafio  yielding
standardized capital cosls.

6. The standardized operating costs obtained in Step 3
were divided by the hospital-specific case-mix index
yielding case-mix neutral standardized operating costs.

7. The standardized capital costs oblained in Step 5
were divided by lhe hospital-specific case-mix index
yialding case-miix neutral standardized capital costs.

These seven siteps were repeated for all DRG cases.
Once this was done, the case-mix neutral standardized
operating costs for all DRG cases were summed and an
average was calculated. This yielded what is referred to
as standardized operating costs per case. A similar
average was computed for capital yielding standardized
capilal costs per case.

D, Calculation of Statewide Operating Rate Per Case for
SFY1957. The statewide operafing rate per case that shall

be used fo calculate the DRG porion of operating
reimbursement for cases admitted and discharged in state
fiscal year 1997, is equal fo the standardized operating cost
per case, updated io the midpoint of SFY1997 and multiplied
by an additional factor. The update shall be done by
multiplying the standardized operating cost per case by the
DR{-Virginia moving average value as compiled and
published by DRIMcGraw-Hill under contract with DMAS.
The additional facior is equal io 0.6247. This factor is the
ratio of two numbers:

1. The numerator of the facior is the aggregate amount
of operating reimbursement, for hospitals included in the
data base used for the calculations described above,
that DMAS and the Virginia Hospital and Healihcare
Association (VHHA) jointly determined would be made
by Medicaid Ir siate fiscal ysar 1997 if the rate
methodology in effect on Jung 30, 1996, were fo
conftinue. This amount was further adjusted by
agreement between DMAS and the VHHA to carry out
specific policy agreements with respect io various
elements of reimbursement.

2. The denominator of the facitor is the estimated
aggregale vperating amount for the same hospitals as in
1. above, calculated using the standardized operating
cost per case and standardized operating cost per day
as caleulated in HC and 1K, and adjusted for inflation as
in 1. above. :

E. Calculation of Statewide Capital Rate Per Case.
(RESERVED)

F. Hospital Specific Operating Raite Per Case. Each
hospital specific operating rate per case shall be the labor
portion of the stafewide operaling rate per case mulliplied by
the Medicare wage index applicable to the hospital's
geographic location plus the nonlabor portion of the statewide
operating rate per case. The Medicare wage index shall be
the one in effect for Medicare in the base period used in the
calculation of the standardized costs per case (1993 for the
calculation of 1997 rates).

G. Hospital Specific Capifal Rate Per Case (Geographic
Adjusiment). (RESERVED)

H. Qutliers.

1. Definition. An oullier case shall be one whose
estimaled cost exceeds the applicable DRG payment
plus the applicable fixed loss threshold.

2. Methodology. Tolal payment for an outlier case shall
. be caiculated according to the following methodology (an
example of the application of this methodology is found
in Supplement 4):

a. The operating cost for the case shall be esiimated.
Operating cost for the case shall be the charges for
the case times the hospital’s operating cost-fo-charge
ratio based on the hospilal's cost report data in the
base period used to esfablish the rates in effect in the
period for which cutlier payment is being calculated.

b. The hospital specific operating cost amount for the
DRG shall be calcufated. This shall be equal to the
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sum of the labor portion of the standardized operating
cost per case times the Medicare wage index, and the
nonlabor portion of the standardized operating cost per
case, multiplied by the relative weight applicable to the
case.

c. The hospital specific operating cost outlier
threshold is calculated as follows:

(1) An outlier fixed loss threshold times the
statewide average labor portion of operating cost
times the Medicare wage index for the hospital, plus

{(2) The noniabor portion of the fixed loss threshold
plus

{3) The DRG operating cost amount for the case (b
above).

d. The case specific excess over the hospital specific
operating outlier threshold is calculated. This shall be
equal fo the difference between the estimated
operating cost for the case (a. abovej and the hospital-
specific operating cost outlier threshold (c. above),
muitiplied by the cost adjustment factor for outliers.

e. The total payment for the case is calculated. This
shall be equal to the sum of the DRG operaling cost
amount for the case (b above) and the case specific
excess over the hospital specific operating threshold
(d. above), multiplied by the factor that is used to
adjust the standardized operating cost per case in D
above.

3. Data element definitions. Factors and variables used
in the above calculation and not already defined are
defined as follows:

a. Qutlier fixed loss threshold: This is a fixed dollar
amount in SFY1997, applicable to all hospitals, that
shall be adjusted each year. It shall be calculated
each year, based on the most recent available
estimates so as fo resuft in a ftotal operating
expenditure for outliers equal to 5.1% of total
operating expenditures, including outliers. In
SFY1997, this amount shall be $15,483.00. If in any
year revised estimates are unavailable the previous
years value shall be used updated for inflation using
the same factor applied to hospital rates.

b. Statewide average labor proportion of operating
cost. This is a fixed percentage, equal to .5977. This
figure may be updated with revised data when rates
are rebased/recalibrated.

¢. Adjustment factor for outliers. This is a fixed factor,
published by Medicare in the Federal Register, and
equal to 0.80. This figure shall be updated based on
changes to the Medicare factor, upen the next
rebasing of the system described in this Attachment.

d.  Medicare wage index applicable to the hospital
This is as published by the Heaith Care Financing
Administration in the year used as the base period.

{. Transfers and readmissions.
1. Transfer cases shall be defined as:

a. Patients transferred from one general acute care
hospital to another, and

b. Patients discharged from one general acute care
hospital and admifted to another for the same or
similar diagnosis (similar diagnoses shall be defined
as ones with the first three digils the same) within five
days of that discharge.

2. Readmissions shall be defined as cases readmitted to
the same hospital for the same or similar diagnosis
within five days of discharge. Such cases shall be
considered a continuation of the same stay, and shall not
be freated as a new admission or case (a separate DRG
payment shall not be made).

3. Exceptions.

a. Cases falfing into DRGs 456, 639, or 640 shalf not
be ireated as transfer cases, but the full DRG rate
shall be paid to the transferring hospital. These DRGs
are designed to be populated entirely with transfer
patients.

b. Cases transferred to or from a distinct part
psychiatric or rehabilitation unils of a general acute
care hospital shall not be treated as transfer cases.

4. Transfer Methodology. When two general acute care
hospitals provide inpatient services fo a patiemt defined
as a transfer case:

a. The transferring hospital shall receive the lesser of
(1} a per diem payment equal to the DRG payment for
the transferring hospital, divided by the arithmetic
mean length of stay for the DRG in all hospilals for
which data are available, limes the patient’s length of
stay at the transferring hospital, and (2) the full DRG
payment for the transferring hospital. The transferring
hospital shall be eligible for outlier payments if the
applicable criteria are met.

b. The receiving hospital, if it is the final discharging
hospital, shall receive DRG payment. A receiving
hospital that later transfers the patiemt to another
hospital, including the first transferring hospital, shall
be reimbursed as a transferring hospital. Only the
final discharging hospital shall receive DRG payment.
The receiving hospital shall be eligible for outlier
paymenis if the applicable criteria are met.

J. Per Diem Reimbursement in the DRG Methodology.
Cases that will continue to be reimbursed on a per diem basis
are: (1) covered psychiairic cases in general acute care
hospitals and psychiatric units of general acute care
hospitals, {2} covered psychiatric cases in freestanding
psychiatric  faciliies  licensed as hospitals, and (3}
rehabilitation cases in both acute and rehabifitation hospitals.
Psychiatric cases are cases with a principal diagnosis that is

"a mental disorder as specified in the ICD-8-CM. Not alf

mental disorders are covered. For coverage information, see
the Amount, Duration, and Scope of Services, Supplement 1
to Attachment 3.1A&B.
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K. Calculation of Standardized Costs Per Day.
Standardized operating cosis per day and standardized
capital costs per day were calculated separately, but using
the same calculation methodology, for psychiatric cases in
general acute care hospitals, psychialric acute care in
freestanding psychiatric facilities licensed as hospitals, and
rehabilitation cases ("per diem cases”). Using the data
elernents identified in the following table, the first five steps
outlined below were completed on a case-by-case basis.

Data Elements For Calculating Total Costs for Per Diem
Cases

Source
Claims Database

Data Elements

Total charges for each acute
care psychialric case

Total charges for each
freestanding acute care
psychialric case

Total charges for each
rehabilfitation cases

Claims Database

Claims Database

Hatio of operating costs to total | Medicaid Cost Report
costs for each hospital Database
Ratio of capital costs to lotal Medicaid Cost Report
costs for each hospital Database
Ratio of DME costs to fotal Medicaid Cost Report
costs for each hospital Database
Statewide average labor VHSCRC

portion of operating costs
Medicare wage index for each

Federal Register

hospital

Medicare GAF for each Federal Register

hospital

RCC for psychiatric distinct- Medicare Cost Report

part unit for each hospital

RCC for each hospital Medicaid Cost Report
Database

Number of acute care Claims Database
psychiatric days af each
hospital

Number of freestanding acute
care psychiatric days at each
freestanding psychiatric
facilities licensed as a hospital
Number of rehabilitation days
at each acute care hospital
and freestanding rehabilitation
hospital

Claims Database

Claims Database

Steps in Calculation of Standardized Cost Per Day.

1. The total charges for the case were split into
operating charges, capital charges, and DME charges
using hospital-specific ratios obtained from the cost
report database.

2. The operating charges obtained in Step 1 were
standardized for regional variations in wages. This
involved three substeps.

a. The operating charges were multiplied by 53.77
percent yielding the labor portion of operating charges.

b. The labor portion of operating charges was divided
by the hospital specific Medicare wage index yieiding
the standardized labor portion of operating charges.

c. The standardized labor portion of operating charges
was added to the non-labor poriion of operating
charges (4023 perceni) yielding standardized
operating charges.

3. The standardized operating charges were multiptied
by the hospilal-specific RCCs yielding standardized
operating costs.

4. The capital charges obfained in Step 1 were divided
by the hospitalspecific Medicare geographic adiustment
factor (GAF) yielding standardized capital charges.

5. The standardized capital charges were multiplied by
the hospital-specific RCCs ylelding standardized capital
cosls.

These five steps were repeated for all per diem cases.
The standardized operating costs for per diem cases
were then summed and divided by the total number of
per diem days yielding the standardized operating cosis
per day for per diem cases. Similarly, the standardized
capital costs for per diem cases were summed and
divided by the total number of per diem days yielding the
standardized capital costs per day for per diem cases.
These two calculations were done separately for
psychiatric cases in freestanding psychiatric facilifies
licensed as hospitals, for psychialric cases in general
acute care hospitals (including distinct part units) and for
rehabilitation cases. ‘

Where general acute care hospitals had psychiatric
distinct-part units (DPUs) reported on their cost repotts,
separate RCCs were calculated for the DPUs and used
in lieu of the hospital-specific RCCs. Since DPU-specific
RCCs are generally higher than hospital-specific RCCs,
this had the effect of increasing the estimated costs of
acule care psychiatric cases. Overall hospital RCCs
were used for freestanding acuie care psychiatric cases
and rehabilitation cases, as well as for psychiatric cases
at general acute care hospitals without a psychiatric
DPU.

L. Calculation of Statewide Operating Rate Per Day. The
statewide hospital operating rate per day that shall be used to
calculate the DRG system portion of operating
reimbursement for psychiatric and rehabilitation cases
admitted and discharged in SFY1997, is equal to the
standardized operaiing cost per day updated to the midpoint
of SFY1997 and muitiplied by an additional factor. The
update shall be done by multiplying the standardized
operalting cost per day by the DRI-Virginia moving average
value as compiled and published by DRI/McGraw-Hill under
contract with DMAS. The additional factor for per diem cases
in general acute care hospitals and rehabilitation hospitals is
equal to 0.6290, and 0.6690 for freesianding psychiatric
facifities licensed as a hospifals. These factors were
calculated so that per diem cases will be reimbursed the
same petcentage of cost as DRG cases based on the dala
used for rate calculation.

Virginia Register of Regulations

3162



Emergency Regulations

Per diem rates used for acute care hospitals during the
transition shall be operating rates only and capital shall be
reimbursed on a pass-through basis. Per diem rates used for
freestanding psychiatric facilities licensed as hospitals shall
be inclusive of capital. The capital-inclusive statewide per
diem rate for freestanding psychiatric facilities licensed as
hospitals shall be the standardized cost per day calculated
for such hospitals adjusted for the wage index and the
geographic adjusiment factor (GAF) and multiplied by the
factor above,

M. Calculation of Hospital-Specific Operating Rate Per
Day. Each hospital-specific operating rate per day shall be
the labor portion of the slatewide operating rate per day
multiplied by the Medicare wage index applicable fo the
hospital’s geographic focation plus the nonlabor portion of the
statewide operating rate per day. The Medicare wage index
shall be the one in effect for Medicare in the base period
" used in the calculation of the standardized costs per case
{1993 for the calculation of 1997 rates).

The hospital-specific rate per day for freestanding
psychiatric facilities licensed as hospitals shall be inclusive of
capital cost, and shall have a capital portion which shall be
adjusted by the GAF and added to the labor and nonlabor
operating elements calculated as described above. The
Geographic Adjustment Factor shalf be taken from the same
time period as the Medicare wage index. -

N. Prospective Per Case Reimbursement of Capilal after
Transition Period (1998). (RESERVED)

O. Indirect Medical Education (IME). Hospitals with
programs in graduate medical education shall receive a rate
adjustment for associated indirect costs. This reimbursement
for IME costs recognizes the increased use of ancillary
services associated with the educational process and the
higher case-rix intensity of teaching hospitals, The IME
adjustment shall employ the equation shown below.

IME Percentage = 1.89 x ({1 + 1 *** - 1)

in this equation, r is the ratio of interns and residents fo
staffed beds. The IME adjustment shall be the IME
percentage, limes 0.4043, times operating reimbursement for
DRG cases and per diem cases.

P. Updating Rates for Inflation. DRG system rates in
SFY1837 shall be as provided in IIF, and IIM. above. Rates
for state fiscal years after SFY1997 shall be updated for
inflation as follows:

1. The statewide operating rate per case as calculated
in 1D above, and the statewide rates per day as
calculated in IL shall be converted to a price level at the
midpoint of state fiscal year 1993, using the same
inflation values as were used to esfablish the amounts
used in ID1. The resulting rates are the base period
operating rales per case and the base period rates per
day.

2. Rates shall be updated each July first by increasing
the 1993 base period rates to the midpoint of the
upcorning state fiscal year using the DRI-Virginia moving
average value as compiled and published by
DRIMcGraw-Hill under contract with DMAS. The most

current table available prior to the effective date of the
new rates shall be used. By means of this method, each
year, corrections made by DRI/McGraw-Hill in the
moving averages that were used {0 updale rafes for
previous years shall automaiically be incorporated as
adjustmenis to the update calculation used for the
upcoming year. For each new year's rate calculation
that uses a base year prior to 1997, the inflation values
shall be the DRI/McGraw-Hill values plus two percentage
points for each year through SFY1997.

Q. Recalibration/Rebasing Policy. DMAS recognizes that
claims experience during the transition period and/or
modifications in federal policies may require adjustment to
the DRG systemn policies provided in these rules. The state
agency shall recalibrate (svaluate and adjust the weights
assigned fo cases), and rebase (review and update as
appropriate the cost basis on which the rate is developed} the
DRG system at least every other year. The first such
recafibration and rebasing shall be done prior to full
implementation of the DRG methodology in SFY1999.
Recalibration and rebasing shall be done in consulfation with
the Medicaid Hospital Payment Policy Advisory Council noted
below.

R. Disproportionate Share Hospital (DSH} Payments after
Transition Period (1998). (RESERVED)

12 VAC 30-70-220.

lil.  Revised Per Diem Methodology. Determination of Per
Diem Rates. Each hospital’s revised per diem rate(s) to be
used during the transition period shall be based on the
hospital's previous peer group ceiling or ceilings that were
established under the provisions of Supplement 3, with the
following adjustments:

A.  All operating ceilings will be increased by the same
proportion to effect an aggregale increase in reimbursement
of $40 million in SFY1997. This adjustment incorporates in
per diem rates the system-wide aggregate value of payment
that otherwise would be made through the "Payment
Adjustment Fund.” This adjustment will be calculated using
estimated 1997 rates and 1994 days.

B. Starting July 1, 1996, operating ceilings will be
increased for inflation to the midpoint of the state fiscal year,
not the hospital fiscal year. Inflation shall be based on the
DRI-Virginia moving average value as compiled and
published by DRIMcGraw-Hill under contract with DMAS,
increased by two percenfage poinis per year. The most
current {able available prior to the effective dale of the new
rates shall be used.

For services to be paid at SFY1998 rates, per diem rates
shall be adjusted consistent with the methodology for
updating rates under the DRG methodology (IIP abovs).

C. There will be no Disproportionate Share Hospital (DSH)
per diem.

D. To pay capital cost through claims, a hospital specific

- adjustment to the per diem rate will be made. At settlement

of each hospital fiscal year, this per diem adjustment will be
eliminated and capital shall be paid as a pass-through.
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V. 8tate Universily Teaching Hospitals. For hospitals that
were slate owned teaching hospitals on January 1, 1986, all
the calculations which support the determination of hospital-
specific rate per case and rate per day amounts under the
DRG relmbursement methodology shall be carried out
separately from other hospitals, using cost dala taken only
from state university teaching hospitals. Rates to be used
effactive July 1, 1998, shail be determined on the basis of
cost report and other applicable data pertaining o the facility
fiscal year ending June 30, 1993. For these hospitals the
factors used to establish rates shall be as listed below
according to the section above where corresponding factors
for other hospitals are set forth: (see 12 VAC 30-70-210)

LD, 0.8432
ILL. 0.8470

V. Reimbursement of non-enrolled general acute care
hospital providers. During the transition period, non-enrolled
general acute care hospitals (general acute care hospitals
that are not required to file cost reports) shall be reimbursed
according to the previous methodology for such hospitals
(Supplement 3, XilA). Effective with discharges after June
30, 1998, these hospitals shall be paid based on DRG rates
unadjusted for geographic variation. General acute care
hospitals shall not file cost reports If they have less than 1000
days per year (in the most recent provider fiscal year) of
inpatient utifization by Virginia Medicaid recipients, inclusive
of patients in managed care capitation programs.

Prior approval must be received frorn DMAS when a referral
has been made for treatment to be received from a non-
enrofled acute care facility (in-state or out-of-state), except in
the case of an emergency or becatse medical resources.of
supplementary resources are more readily available in
another state.

vi Medicare Upper Limit, For participating and
nonparticipating facilitiss, the State agency will pay no more
in the aggregate for inpatient hospital services than the
amount it is estimated would be paid for the services under
the Medicare principles of reimbursement, as set forth in 42
CFR 447.253(b)(2} and/or the lesser of reasonable cost or
customary charges in 42 CFR 447.250,

Vil. Determination of Reasonable and Adequate Rales. In
accordance with Title 42 of the Code of Federal Regulations
§8447.250 through 447272 which implements
§1902(a)(13)(A) of the Social Security Act, the state agency
establishas payment rates for services that are reasonable
and adeguate fo meet the costs that must be incurred by
efficiently and economically operated facilities to provide
services in conformity with state and federal laws,
regulations, and quality and safety standards. To establish
these rates Virginia uses the Medicare principles of cost
reimbursement in determining the allowable costs for
Virginia's reimbursement system. Allowable costs will be
- determined from the filing of a uniform cost report by
participating providers.

ViIli. Cost Reporting Requirements. Except for non-enrofled
general acute care hospitals and freestanding psychiatric
facilities licensed as hospitals, all hospitals shall submit cost
reports.  All cost reports shall be submitted on uniform

reporting forms provided by the state agency and by
Medicare, Such cost reports shall cover & 12-month period,
Any exceptions must be approved by the state agency. The
cost reports are due not later than 150 days after the
provider's fiscal year end. All fiscal year end changes must
be approved 80 days prior to the beginning of a naw fiscal
year. If a complele cost report is not received within 150
days after the end of the provider's fiscal year, the Program
shall take action in accordance with its policies to assure that
an overpayment is not being made. When cost reports are
delinquent, the provider's interim rate shall be reduced io
zero. The reductions shall start on the first day of the
following month when the cost report is due. After the
delinquent cost report is received, desk reviewsd, and a hew
prospective rate established, the amountis withheld shall be
computed and paid. If the provider fails fo submit a complete
cost report within 180 days after the fiscal year end, a penalty
in the amount of 10 parcent of the balance withheld shall be
forfeited to the siate agency. The cost report will be judged
complete when the state agency has all of the following:

A. Completed cost reporting form or forms provided by
DMAS, with signed certification or certifications;

B. The provider's lrial balance showing adjusting journal
entries;

C. The provider's financial statements including, but not
limited to, a balance sheel, a statement of Income and
expenses, a statement of retained earnings (or fund
balance), a staternent of charges in financial position, and
footnates to the financial statements. Multi-level facilities
shall be governed by VII5;

D. Schedules which reconcile financial statements and
trial balance to expenses claimed in the cost report;

E. Hospitals which are pari of a chain organization must
also file:

1. Home office cost report;

2. Audited consolidated financial statements of the chain
organization including: the auditor’s report in which he
expresses his opinion or, If circumstances require,
disclaims an opinion based on generally accepted
auditing slandards, the management reporf, and
footnotes to the financial statements;

3. The hospital's financial statements including, buf not
fimited to, a balance sheet, a statement of income and
expenses, a statement of retained earnings (or fund
balance), and a statement of cash flows;

4. Schedule of restricted cash funds that identify the
purpose of each fund and the amount;

5. Schedule of investments by type (sfock, bond, eic.),
amount, and current market value.

F.  Such other analytical information or supporting
documenis requested by the state agency when the cost
reporting forms are sent o the provider.

IX. Hospital Settfement. During the transition period claims
will be processed and tentative payment made using per
diem rates. Settiements will be carried ouf fo assure that the
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correct biend of DRG- and per diem-based payment Is
recelvad by each hospital and to setlle reimbursement of
pass-through cosis.  There shall be no seltfement of
freestanding peyvehiatre facilities licensed as hospitals excep!t
with respect lo Disproportionate Share Hospital (DSH)
payment, If necassary (see 103).

A, The transfion blend perceniages which determineg the
share of DRG systam and of revised per dlem system
reimbursement that is applicable In a given period shall
change with the change of the state fiscal year, not the
hospital fiscal year.

B. If & hospital's fiscal year doas not end June 30th, its
first year ending after June 30, 1996, contains one or more
months under the previous methodology, a “split” settlement
shall ba done of that hospital's fiscal year. Services rendered
through June 30, 1998, shall be reimbursed under the
. previous reimbursement methodology and sarvices rendsred
after June 30, 1998, will be reimbursed as described in VIIIF,

C. For cases subject to setifement under the blend of DRG
and par diemn rethodologies (cases with an admission date
after June 30, 1998), the date of discharge determings the
year in which any inpaifent sewvice or claim refated to the
case shall be seitled. This shall be true for both the DRG
and the per diem portions of settferment. Interim claims
tentatively pald in one hospital fiscal year that relate to a
discharge in a iater hospital fiscal vear, shall be voided and
reprocessed in the lalter vear so that the interim claim shall
not be included in the settlament of the first year, but in the
setifemant of the year of discharge. An exception to this shall
be rehabiiitation cases, the claims for which shalf be setiled
in the year of the "through” date of the claim.

D. A single group of cases, with discharges in the
appropriate time period shall be the basis of boih the DRG
and the per diem portion of seiflement. These cases shall be
based on claims submitted and/or corrected by 120 days
after the providers FYE. Cases which are based on claims
that lack sufficient information to support grouping to a DRG
category, and which the hospital cannol correct, shall be
settfed for purposes of the DRG poition of settlement based
on the lowest of the DRG weights.

E. Reimbursement for services in freestanding psychiatric
facilities licensed as hospitals shall not be subject to
selflement.

F. During the transition period settlements shall be carried
out according to the following formulas,

1. Setttemnent of a hospital’s first fiscal year ending after
July 1, 1996:

a. Operating reimbursement shall be equal fo the sum
of the Tollowing:

{1) Paid days occurring in the hospital’s FY before
July 1, 1998, times the per diem in effect before July
1, 1896

(2) Paid days occurring after June 30, 1996, but in
the hospital fiscal year, thal are related {o
admissions that occurred before July 1, 1996, times

the revised system per diem that ls effective on July
1, 1986,

(3) DRG system payment for DRG and psychiatric
cases admitted after June 30, 1898, and discharged
within the hogpltal FY times 1/3.

(4) DRG system payment for rehabilftation claims
having a& “from” date of July 1, 1998, or later and a
“through” date within the hospiial FY times 1/3.

{5) Pald days from the cases and claims in 1a(3)
and 1a{4), imes the revised systern per dlem hat is
effactive on July 1, 1896, times 2/3.

b. D&M reimbursement shall be equal fo paid days
from the start of the hospital FY through June 30,
1996, timeas the DEH per diem effsctive before July 1,
1996, There shall be no settlement of DSH after July
1, 1998, as the lump sum amount shail be final.

o. Pass-throughs shall be setlled as praviously based
on affowable cost related to days paid in 1a(1), 1a(2),
and 1a(8).

2. Betllemneni of a hospital's second fiscal year ending
after July 1, 1996:

a. Operating relfmbursament shall be equal to the sum
of the following:

(1) Davs occurring in the hospital FY related fo
admissions that occurred before July 1, 1996, times
the revised sysiem per diem that Is effective at the
time.

(2) DRG system payment for DRG and psychiatric
-cases discharged in the hospital FY, but before
7/1/87, times 1/3.

(3) DRG system payment for rehabilitation claims
having a “through” date within the hospital FY but
before 7/1/97, times 1/3.

(4) Covered days from the cases and claims and in
b and ¢, times the revised system per diem that is
effective on July 1, 1998, times 2/3.

{5) DRG system payment for DRG and psychiatric
cases discharged from 7/1/97 through the end of the
hospital FY, times 2/3.

(6) DRG system payment for rehabilitation claims
having a ‘through” date from 7/1/97 through the end
of the hospital FY, times 2/3.

{7) Covered days from the cases and claims and in
Za(5) and 2a(6), times the revised system per diem
that is effective on 7/1/97, times 1/3.

b, DSH reimbursement shall be the predetermined
fump sum amount.

¢. Pass-throughs shall be settled as previously, based
on allowable cost refated to days paid in 2a(1), 2a(4),
and 2a(7}.

X. Underpayments. When the settfement of a provider fiscal
year indicates that an underpayment has occurred, the state
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agency shall pay the additional amount to the hospital within
60 days of completion of the settlernent.

Xl. Refund of overpayments.

A. Lump sum payment. When the settfement of a provider
fiscal year indicates that an overpayment has occurred, full
refund shall be remitted with the cost report. In cases where
the siate agency discovers an overpayment during desk
review, field audit, or final settlement, the siate agency shall
promptly send the first demand letter requesting a lump sum
refund. Recovery shall be underiaken unless the provider
disputes the state agency's determination of the
overpayment.  If the provider disputes the state agency's
determination, recovery, if any, shall be undertaken after the
issue date of any administrative decision issued by the state
agency after an informal fact finding conference.

B. Offset If the provider has been overpaid for a
particular fiscal year and has been underpaid for another
fiscal year, the underpayment shail be offset against the
overpayment. So long as the provider has an overpayment
balance, any underpaymenis discovered by subsequent
review or audit shall also be used to reduce the remaining
amount of the overpayment.

C. Payment schedule. If the provider cannof refund the
total amount of the overpayment (1} at the time it files a cost
report indicating that an overpayment has occurred, the
provider shall request an extended repayment schedufe at
the time of filing, or (2) within 30 days after receiving the
DMAS demand letter, the provider shall promptly request an
extended repayment schedule.

DMAS may establish a repayment schedule of up to 12
months to recover all or part of an overpayment or, if a
provider demonstrates that repayment within a 12-month
period would create severe financial hardship, the Director of
the Department of Medical Assisiance Services (the
"director’) may approve a repayment schedule of up to 36
months.

A provider shall have no more than one extended
repayment schedule in place at one time. if an audit later
uncovers an additional overpayment, the full amount shall be
repaid within 30 days unless the provider submits further
documentation supporting a modification to the existing
extended repayment schedule to include the additional
amount.

If, during the time an extended repayment schedule is in
effect, the provider withdraws from the Program or fails fo file
a cost report in a timely manner, the oulstanding balance
shall become immediately due and payable.

When a repayment schedule is used to recover only part of
an overpayment, the remaining amount shall be recovered by
the reduction of interim payments to the provider or by lump
sum payments.

D. Extension request documentation. In the request for an
extended repayment schedule, the provider shall document
the need for an extended (beyond 30 days) repayment and
submit a written proposal scheduling the dates and amounts
of repayments. If DMAS approves the schedule, DMAS shall
send the provider written notification of the approved

repayment schedule, which shall be effective retroactive fo
the date the provider submitted the proposal.

E. Interest charge on extended repayment.

Interest charges on the unpaid balance of any
overpayment shall accrue pursuant fo § 32.1-313 of the Code
of Virginia from the date the director's determination becomes
final.

The director's determination shall be deemed o be final on
(1} the due date of any cost report filed by the provider
indicating that an overpayment has occurred, or (2) the issue
date of any notice of overpayment, issued by DMAS, if the
provider does not file an appeal, or (3) the issue dafe of any
administrative decision issued by DMAS after an informal fact
finding conference, regardless of whether the provider files a
further appeal. In any event, interest shall be waived if the
overpayment is completely fiquidated within 30 days of the
date of the final determination. In cases in which a
determination of overpayment has been judicially reversed,
the provider shall be reimbursed that portion of the payment
to which it is entitled, plus any applicable interest which the
provider paid to DMAS.

Xli. Medicaid Hospital Payment Policy Advisory Council. In
order fo ensure the ongoing relevance and fairmness of the
prospective payment system for hospital services, the
Director of the Department of Medical Assistance Services
shall appoint a Medicaid Hospital Payment Policy Advisory
Council. The Council shall be composed of four hospital or
heaith system representatives nominated by the Virginia
Hospital and Healthcare Association, two senior department
staff and ong representative each from the Depariment of
Planning and Budget and the Joint Commission on
Healthcare. This Council will be charged with evaluating and
developing recommendations on payment poficy changes in
areas that include, buf are not limited to, the following: (1)
utilization reductions directly atiributable to the 1895
Appropriations Act utifization initiative and any necessary
adjustments to SFY1397 and 1998 DRG rales; (2) the update
and inflation factors o apply to the various components of the
delfivery system; (3) the treatment of capital and medical
educafion costs; (4) the mechanisms and budget implications
of recalibration and rebasing approaches; (5) Ihe
disproportionate share payment fund and allocation
mechanisms; and (6) the timing and final design of an
outpatient payment methodology.

Supplement 1. (same as before)
Supplement 2. (same as before)

Supplement 3. (Previous 4.19-A)
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Supplement 4. Outlier Methodology Hustration

OUTLIER METHODOLOGY ILLUSTRATION

SUPPLEMENT 4 to Attachment 4.19-a

{dolfar amounts and other values are for itlustration purposes

only}

Step

Step

Step
3

Assume the Folfowing:
Medicare: Fixed Loss Cost
Cutlier Threshold for Fiscal Year
1996

Medicare: Marginal Cost Factor
for Cost Quitliers for Fiscal Year
1996

Hospital X Operating Cost-to-
Charge Ratio

Hospital X Capital Cost-to-
Charge Ratio

Medicare Wage Index for
Hospital X

Statewide Average Labor Portion
of Operating Costs

Hospital X Billed Charges for
Case Y

Total Adjusted Costs per Case
for Hospital X

Reilative Weight for Case Y
Adjustment Factor for DRG
Cases

Calculate Hospital X Operating
Costs for Case Y:

Hospital X Billed Charges for
Case Y

Hospital X Operating Cost-to-
Charge Ratio

Hospital X Operating Costs for
Case Y

Calculate Hospital X DRG
Operating Amount for Case Y:
Total Adjusted Operating Costs
per Case for Hospital X
Relative Weight for Case Y
Hospital X DRG Operating
Amount for Case Y

Calculate Hospital X Cost
Qutlier Threshold for Case Y:
Fixed Loss Cost Qutlier
Threshold

Statewide Average Labor Portion
of Operating Costs

Labor Portion of Fixed Loss Caost
QOutlier Threshold

Wage Index for Hospital X

Wage Adjusted Labor Portion of
Fixed Loss Cost Quitlier
Threshold

Non-Labor Portion of Fixed Loss
Cost Outlier Threshold

$15,150.00

0.8000

0.7200
0.0600
0.9413
0.5977
$100,000.00
$3.115.00

3.1790
0.6197

$100,000.00

.7200

$72,000

$3,115.00

3.1790

$9,902.59

$15,150.00

0.5977

$9,055.16

0.9413
$8,523.62

$6,094.85

Wage Adjusfed Fixed Lcss ‘Cosr - §$14,618.46
Qutlier Threshold:

Hospital X DRG Operarmg +
Amount for Case Y. .
Hospital X Cost Qutlier

Threshold for Case Y

$9,902.59

$24,521.05

Step  Calculate Hospital X Operaling

4 Outlier Amount for Case Y:
Hospital X Operating Costs for
Case Y
Hospital X Cost Outlier -
Threshold for Case Y
Hospital X Operating Outlier
Costs for Case Y
Marginal Cost Factor for Cost X
Outliers
Hospital X Operating Outlier
Amount for Case Y

$72,000.00

$24,521.05
 $47,478.95

0.8000

$37,983.16

Step  Calcuiate Hospital X Total
5 Payment for Case Y:
Hospital X DRG Operating
Amount for Case Y
Hospital X Operating Outlier +
Amount for Case Y
Hospital X Total Amount for
Case Y
Adjustment Factor for DRG X
Cases

$9,902.59

$37,983.16
"$47,885.75

0.6197

$29,674.80

Hospital X Total Payment for
Case Y
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STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION

BUREAU OF INSURANCE
July 10, 1996
Administrative Letter 1996-11

To: All Insurers Licensed to Write Life Insurance or
Accident and Sickness Insurance, Health
Maintenance Organizations and Health Service
Plans Operating in Virginia

Re: 14 VAC 5-180-10 (Formerly Insurance Regulation
No. 34) - Rules Governing Underwriting Practices
and Coverage Limitations and Exclusions for
Acquired Immunodeficiency Syndrome (AlDS)

14 VAC 5-180-50.C.6 (formerly section 6.C.6. of
Regulation No. 34) of the cited reguiation provides the
minimum test protocol that must be followed before an
adverse underwriting decision may be made on the basis of
positive HIV-related test results. This test protocol consists
of: (i} two positive enzyme - linked immunosorbent assay
{ELISA) tests, followed by (i} one Western Blot.

The Bureau of Insurance has recently become aware that
the Food and Drug Administration has approved an oral fluid
test for professional use in confirming the presence of HIV
antibodies. The test protocol for the recently approved test is
the same as that provided in 14 VAC 5-180-50.C.6.

The purpose of this letier is to inform you that the oral fluid
test may be used to comply with 14 VAC 5-180-50.C.6. so
long as the test protocol set forth in the regulation is followed.
Blood tests that follow the test protocol may continue to be
used.

Questions concerning any of the above should be directed
to.
Robert L. Wright
Principal Insurance Analyst
Virginia State Corporation Commission
Bureau of Insurance
Post Office Box 1157
Richmond, VA 23218
(804) 371-9586

s/ Alfred W. Gross
Acting Commissioner of Insurance

VA.R. Doc. No. R96-495, Filed July 17, 1996, 3:45 a.m.

ok ko ¥ AW

July 10, 1996
ADMINISTRATIVE LETTER 1996-12

To: Al Insurers, Health Services Plans and Health
Maintenance Organizations Licensed to Write
Accident and Sickness Insurance in Virginia

Re: House Bill 1026
Section 38.2-3514.2 of the Code of Virginia

Under the provisions of 1896 House Bill 1026, Sections
38.2-4214 and 38.2-4319 of the Code of Virginia will be

amended and reenacted, and a new section, numbered 38.2-
3514.2 will be added. This new section specifies those
conditions under which an insurer, health services plan or
health maintenance organization will be permitted to refuse to
renew those individual policies, subscription contracts or
plans to which this new law applies. The purpose of this
letter is to provide guidance in anticipation of a number of
questions carriers will likely have concerning the
requirements of § 38.2-3514.2, and to clarity Bureau position
with respect to compliance with these requirements.

All contracts marketed on and after July 1, 1996 must
contain renewability provisions in compliance with § 38.2-
3514.2. Non-renewal will not be permitted for reasons other
than those stated in § 38.2-35142.A.  Policies with
*noncancellable” or “guaranteed renewable” provisions must
comply with 14 VAC 5-140 and 14 VAC 5-130, {formerly
Regulations 18 and 22, respectively} as well. Policies with
“conditionally renewable” provisions may be non-renewed
only for one or more of the reasons stated in § 38.2-3514.2.A,
as are applicable. “Conditionally renewable” policies to which
this statute applies, and in force on July 1, 1996 must be
amended on their renewal date so that their renewal
provisions comply with the statutory requirement as well as
any other applicable statutory requirements in place as of the
policy renewal date. Policies with “optionally renewable”
provisions to which this statute applies may not be marketed
on or after July 1, 1996. “Optionally renewable” policies in
force on July 1, 1996 must be amended on their renewal date
to conform to § 38.2-3514.2 and will from that time forward be
considered “conditionally renewable” contracts.

Questions concerning any of the above should be directed,
in writing to:

Jacqueline K. Cunningham

Supervisor

Life and Health Forms and Rates Section
Virginia State Corporation Commission
Bureau of Insurance

P.O. Box 1157

Richmond, Virginia 23218

/s/ Alfred W. Gross
Acting Commissioner of Insurance

VA.R. Doc. No, R96-496; Filec! July 17, 1996, %45 a.m.
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STATE LOTTERY DEPARTMENT

DIRECTOR'S ORDER NUMBER FOURTEEN {(96)

“PICK 3 RACE TRIP CONTEST" FINAL RULES FOR GAME
OPERATION.

In accordance with the authority granted by Sections 9-
6.14:4.1 B (15} and 58.1-4006 A of the Code of Virginia, |
hereby promulgate the “Pick 3 Race Trip Contest” game rules
- for the Virginia Lottery Pick 3 promotional program to be
conducted from Monday, May 6, 1986 through Saturday,
June 8, 1996. These rules amplify and conform to the duly
adopted Slate Lottery Board regulations for the conduct of
instant game lotteries.

The rules are available for inspection and copying during
normal business hours at the State Lottery Department
headquarters, 900 East Main Streset, Richmond, Virginia, and
at each of the State Lottery Department regional offices. A
copy may be requested by mail by writing to: Public Affairs
Division, State Lottery Department, 800 East Main Street,
Richmond, Virginia 23219.

This Director's Order becomes effective on the date of its
signing and shall remain in full force and effect unless
amended or rescinded by further Director's Order.

/s/ Penelope W. Kyle
Director
Date: May 6, 1996

VA_R. Doc. No. R96-484, Filed July 16, 1996, 11:51 a.m.

DIRECTOR'S ORDER NUMBER FIFTEEN (96}

VIRGINIA'S FIFTY-NINTH INSTANT GAME LOTTERY;
"VIRGINIA'S RICHES," FINAL RULES FOR GAME
OPERATION.

In accordance with the authority granted by Sections 9-
6.14:4.1 B (15) and 58.1-4006 A of the Code of Virginia, |
. hereby promulgate the final rules for game operation in
Virginia's fifty-ninth instant game lottery, "Virginia's Riches."
These rules amplify and conform to the duly adopted State
Lottery Board regulations for the conduct of instant game
lotteries.

The rules are available for inspection and copying during
normal business hours at the State Lottery Department
headquarters, 800 East Main Street, Richmond, Virginia, and
at each of the State Lottery Department regional offices. A
copy may be requested by mail by writing to: Public Affairs
Division, State Lottery Department, 800 East Main Street,
Richmond, Virginia 23219,

This Director's Order becomes effective on the date of its
signing and shall remain in full force and effect unless
amended or rescinded by further Director's Order.

/s! Penelope W. Kyle
- Director
Date: May 20, 1996

VA.R. Doc. No. R96-485; Filed July 16, 1998, 11:51 a.m.

DIRECTOR'S ORDER NUMBER SIXTEEN (96}

VIRGINIA'S FIFTY-EIGHTH INSTANT GAME LOTTERY,
“$25,000 DERBY," FINAL RULES FOR GAME OPERATION.

In accordance with the authority granted by Sections 9-
6.14:4.1 B (15} and 58.1-4008 A of the Code of Virginia, |
hereby promulgate the final rules for game operation in
Virginia's fifty-eighth instant game lottery, "$25,000 Derby."
These rules amplify and conform to the duly adopted State
Lottery Board regulations for the conduct of instant game
lotteries.

The rules are available for inspection and copying during
normal business hours at the State Lotiery Department
headquarters, 900 East Main Street, Richmond, Virginia, and
at each of the State Lottery Department regional offices. A
copy may be requested by mail by writing to: Public Affairs
Division, State Loftery Department, 900 East Main Strest,
Richmond, Virginia 23219.

This Director's Order becomes effective on the date of its
signing and shall remain in full force and effect unless
amended or rescinded by further Director's Order.

/s Penelope W. Kyle
Director
Date: June 7, 1996

VAR, Doc, No. R96-486; Filed July 16, 1996, 11:61 a.m.

DIRECTOR'S ORDER NUMBER EIGHTEEN (96)

VIRGINIA'S FORTY-EIGHTH INSTANT GAME. LOTTERY,
"HIGH STAKES"; FORTY-NINTH INSTANT GAME
LOTTERY, “HIGH ROLLER™, INSTANT GAME 303, “BONUS
BINGO™;, AND INSTANT GAME 402, "FULL HOUSE";, END
OF GAME; REVISED.

In accordance with the authority granted by Sections 58.1-
4006 A and 9-6.14:4.1 B (15) of the Code of Virginia, I hereby
give notice that Virginia's Forty-Eighth Instant Game, "High
Stakes,” Forly-Ninth Instant Game, "High Roller,” Instant
Game 303, “Bonus Bingo,” and Instani Game 402, “Full
House,” will officially end at midnight on Thursday, July 4,
1996. The last day for lottery retailers to reium for credit
unsold tickets from "High Stakes,” “High Roller,” “Bonus
Bingo,” or “Full House” will be Thursday, August 8, 1996.
The last day to redsem winning tickets for "High Stakes,”
“High Roller,” “Bonus Bingo” or "Full House” will be Friday,
December 31, 1996, 180 days from the declared official end
of the game. Claims for winning fickets from "High Stakes,”
“High Roller,” “Bonus Bingo” and “Full House" will not be
accepted after that date. Claims which are mailed and
received in an envelope bearing a Uniled States Postal
Service postmark of December 31, 1996, will be deemed to
have been received on time. This notice amplifies and
conforms to the duly adopted State Lottery Board regulations
for the conduct of instant game lotteries.

This order is available for inspection and copying during
normal business hours at the State Loitery Department
headquarters, 800 East Main Street, Richmaond, Virginia; and -
at each of the Stale Lottery Department regional offices. A
copy may be requested by mail by writing to: Public Affairs
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Office, State Lottery Department, 900 East Main Street,
Richmond, Virginia 23218,

This Director's QOrder supersedes Director's Order Number
Seventeen (96), issued June 24, 1996. This Order becomes
effective on the date of its signing and shall remain in full
force and effect unless amended or rescinded by further
Director's Order.

Is/ Penslope W. Kyle
Diractor
Date: June 28, 1996

VA.R, Doc, No, R86-487; Fited July 16, 1936, 11:52 a.m.

DIRECTOR'S ORDER NUMBER NINETEEN (86)

VIRGINIA'S FORTY-FOURTH INSTANT GAME LOTTERY,
"MONEY BAGS"; FORTY-SIXTH INSTANT GAME LOTTERY,
" "ONE-EYED JACK"; FIFTY-THIRD INSTANT GAME
LOTTERY, “FOOTBALL FEVER"; AND FIFTY-FOURTH
INSTANT GAME LOTTERY, “WINNER TAKE ALL"; END OF
GAME,

In accordance with the authority granted by Sections 58.1-
4006 A and 9-6.14:4.1 B (15) of the Code of Virginia, { hereby
give notice that Virginia's Forty-Fourth Instant Game, "Money
Bags," Forty-Sixth Instant Game, “One-Eyed Jack,” Fifty-
Third Instant Game, "Football Fever,” and Fifty-Fourth instant
Game, "Winner Take AH” will officially end at midnight on
Thursday, July 18, 1996. The last day for lottery retailers to
return for credit unsold tickets from "Money Bags,” “One-Eyed
Jack,” "Football Fever,” or "Winner Take All" will be Thursday,
August 22, 1996, The last day to redeem winning tickets for
"Money Bags,” "One-Eyed Jack,” “Football Fever” or “Winner
Take All" will be Tuesday, January 14, 1997, 180 days from
the declared official end of the game. Claims for winning
tickets from "Money Bags,” “One-Eyed Jack,” “Football Fever”
and "Winner Take All” will not be accepted after that date.
Claims which are mailed and received in an envelope bearing
a United States Postal Service postmark of January 14, 1997,
will be deemed to have been received on time. This notice
amplifies and conforms to the duly adopted State Lottery
Board regulations for the conduct of instant game lotteries.

This order is available for inspection and copying during
normal business hours at the State Lottery Department
headquarters, 900 East Main Street, Richmond, Virginia; and
at each of the State Lottery Department regional offices. A
copy may be requested by mail by writing to: Public Affairs
Office, State Lottery Department, 900 East Main Street,
Richmond, Virginia 23218.

This Director's Order becomes effective on the date of its
signing and shall remain in full force and effect unless
amended or rescinded by further Director's Order.

fs/ Penelope W. Kyle
Director
Date: July 3, 1996

VA.R. Doc. No. R96-488; Filed July 16, 1996, 11:52 a.m.
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FORMS

STATE WATER CONTROL BCARD

_Title of Requlation: 9 VAC 25-20-10 et seq. Fees for
Permits and Certificates.

The following form has been filed by the Department of
Environmental Quaility to use in administering 8 VAC 25-20-
10 et seq.

Water Division Permit Application Fee Form, issued July
1996.

Copies of this form may be obtained from Cindy Berndt,
Department of Environmental Quality, P. O. Box 10009,
Richmond, VA 23240, telephone (804) 698-4000 or toll free
1-800-592-5482.

DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY
WATER DIVISION
PERMIT APPLICATION FEE

INSTRUCTIONS

Applicants for individual Virginia Pollutant Discharge Flimination System (VPDES}, Virginia
Pallution Abatement {VPA), Virginia Water Protection {VWP). Surface Water Withdrawal
(SWW), and Ground Water Withdrawal [GWW)] Permits are required to pay permit application
fees except farming cperations engaged in productien for market. Feex are also required for
ragistration for coverage under General Permits except for the generai permits for sewage
treatment systems with discharges of 1,000 gallons per day (GPD) or less and for Corrective
Action Plans for lzaking underground storage tanks. Except for VWP permits, fees must be
paid when applications far permit issuance, reissuanca or modification are submitted.
Applicants for VWP permits will be notified by the DEQ of the faa due. Applications will be
considered incompiete if the proper fea is not paid and will not be processed until the fes is
received.

The permit fee scheduls can be found on the back of this form. Fees for parmit issuance or
reissuance and for permit modification are included. Once you have determined the fee for the
type of application you are submitting, complete this form. The white and yaliow copies of the
form and your check or money order payable to "Commonwealth of Virginia-DEQ™ should ba
mailed to the Department of Environmental Quality, Receipts Control, P.O, Box 13180,
Richmond, VA 23240. The pink copy of the ferm and a copy of your check or money order
should accompany the permit application. The gold copy is for your records. Pleasa direct any
questions regarding this form or fee payment to the DEQ Office to which you are submitting
your applicatian.

APPLICANT NAME: SSN/FIN:

ADDRESS: DAYTIME PHONE: _{ X

Araa Code

FACILITY/ACTIVITY NAME:

LOCATION:

TYPE CF PERMIT APPLIED FOR
(frorn Fee Schedule}:

TYPE OF ACTION: New [ssuance Reissuance Modification

AMOUNT CF FEE SUBMITTED
{from Fea Schedule}:

EXISTING PERMIT NUMBER (if icable}:

DEQ OFFICE TO WHICH APPLICATION SUBMITTED !check onal

I3 Abingdon/SWRO [3 BridgewateriVRD 2 KilmamockiKOD 1 Prince Wiliam/NRO
[1 Richmond/PRO ' Richmond)Headquartars “} RoanckerWCRO "7 Virgimig BonchiTRO

FOR DEQ USE ONLY

White and ¥ollow Copiss - DEQ Accounting Otfice

Date: Fink Copy - DEQ Ragionsl or Permut Pragram Otfica
- Goid Copy - Applicant

oc #:
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Forms

FEE SCHEDULE--APPLICATIONS FOR INDIVIDUAL PERM(TS
EXCEPT FOR VIRGINIA WATER PROTECTION PERMITS.
IDUE WHTH SUBMISSION OF APPLICATION}

1SSUANCES
TYPE OF PERMIT REISSUANCE MODIFICATION
VPDES industrisdl Major $38.000 $4,000
VPDES Municipsl Mujor $7.100 $3.650
VPDES Municipsl Storm Waiat $7.100 43,650
VPDES Industrisl Minot. No Standard Limits $3.400 11,700
VPDES industrlel Miror, Stundard Limita 42,200 51,100
VPDES Irlétnﬂ'il Storm Watar 42,400 $1.200
VPGES Muwiclpsl Minor, $00,000 GPD of Mars 42,500 $1.250
VPDES Municipsl Minor, Mot than 10,000 GPD but Less than 42,000 41,000
100,000 GPD
VP‘I'.)ES Municipsl Minor. More then 1,000 GPD but 10,000 GPD 1,800 3 900
of Lass

YEDES Municipsd Minor, §,000 GPD o Leas 41,400 ¢ Yoo

VPA Indunmist Wastewuter Oparation $3,500 $1,750
VPA tnduntrial Sludge Opsration $2,500 41,250
VPA Municipal Waatewster Oparation 44,500 32,250
VPA Municipil Slutge Qparwtion 42,500 $1,280
GWW Initigl Parmit lar an Existing Withdraws 4 400 . 4 200

GWW Permit for s New or Expanded Withtirawe 32,000 41,000
SWW & for wn Enisting 42,000 41,000
SWW Parenit for a Naw or Expanded Withdrawal 43,000 31,500

FEE SCHEDULE--APPLICATIONS FOR INDIVIDUAL VIRGINIA WATER FROTECTION PERMITS
(APPLICANT WILL BE NOTIF{ED OF FEE DUE BY DEQ)

ISSUANCEf
TYPE GF FERMIT REISSUANCE MODIFICATION
VWP Catagary | Project $3,000 $1,500
VW Cutegory H Project 52,100 $1,050
VWP Categoty Hl Projace 3 Boo 4+ 4p0
VWP Waiver $ 100 5 150

FEE SCHEDULE--REGISTRATION FOR GENERAL PEAMIT COVERAGE

Tha meximum lea lor registration for gendre parmit cova a $200. The specific smount of the fes depends an
the amaunt of tims the Tenersl parmit will remuin in wifaey. Plaats contant the DEQ Office 1o which regustration
iuls ars to be submi {or i n 1ha amount af the 1 dus,
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Title of Regulation: 9 VAC 25-31-10 et seq. Virginia
Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (VPDES) Permit
Hegulation.

The permit application forms to be used by applicants for '

Virginia Pollutant Discharge Elimination Systerm permits have
been filed by the Department of Environmental Quality. The
forms will be used in administering 9 VAC 25-31-10 et seq.
The regulation became effective July 24, 1996, and a
summary was published in 12:20 VA.R. 2651-2652 June 24,
1996. Due to the number of pages, copies of these forms are
not being printed in the Virginia Register; however, a listing of
the forms is printed below.

Application Form 1 - General Information, Consolidated
Permits Program, EPA Form 3510-1, June 1980.

National ~ Pollutant Discharge Elimination System
Application for Permit to Discharge Wastewater,
Standard Form A - Municipal, EPA Form 7550-22 (7-73).

Virginia  Poliutant  Discharge  Elimination  System
(VPDES) Application for a Permit to Discharge
Wastewater, Short Form A, EPA Form 7550-6 (1-73).

Virginia State Water Control Board Fish Farm

Questionnaire, July 1996.

Application Form 2C - Wastewater Discharge
information, Consofidated Permits Program, EFPA Form
3510-2C, revised February 1985.

Application Form 20 - New Sowrces .and New
Dischargers:  Application for Permit to Discharge
Process Wastewater, EPA Form 3510-2D, September
1986.

Application Form 2E - Facilities Which Do Not Discharge
Process Wastewater, EPA Form 3510-2k, September
1986.

Form 2F NPDES, Application for Permit to Discharge
Siormwater, Discharges Associated with Industriaf
Activity, EPA Form 3510-2F, November 1990.

Copies of these forms may be obtained from Cindy Berndt,
Department of Environmental Quality, P. Q. Box 100089,
Richmond, VA 23240, telephone {804) 698-4000 or toll free
1-800-592-5482.

* % & F & R & &

Title of Hegulation: 9 VAC 25-32-10 et seq.
Potlutant Abatement (VPA) Permit Regulation.

Virginia

The Virginia Pollution Abatement Permit Application General
Insiructions for use by applicants for Virginia Pollution
Abaternent permits have been filed by the Department of
Environmental Quality. The forms will be used in
administering. 8 VAC 25-32-10 et seq. The final regulation
was published in 12:20 VA.R. 2652-2667 June 24, 1996, and
it became effective July 24, 1996. Due to the number of
pages, copies of these forms are not being printed in the

Virginia Register; however, a listing of the forms is printed
below:

Virginia Pollution Abaterment Permit Application, General
Instructions, revised 10/95.

Virginia Pollution Abatement Permit Application, Form A,
'All Applicants, revised 10/95.

Virginia Pollution Abatement Permit Application, Form B,
Animal Waste, revised 10/95.

Virginia Pollution Abatement Permit Application, Form C,
Industrial Waste, revised 10/95.

Virginia Pollution Abatement Permit Application, Form D,
Municipal Waste, revised 10/95.

Copies of these forms may be obtained from Cindy Berndt,
Department of Environmental Quality, P. O. Box 10009,
Richmond, VA 23240, telephone (804) 698-4000 or toll free
1-800-582-5482.

Virginia Register of Regulations

3174
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EXECUTIVE ORDER NUMBER SIXTY-FIVE (96)

DECLARATION OF A STATE OF EMERGENCY
THROUGHOUT THE COMMONWEALTH ARISING
FROM HURRICANE BERTHA

Recent meteorological forecasts conceming Hurricane
Bertha predict that the storm could cause storm surge, heavy
rains, flooding, and high winds in the Commonwealth. The
potential also exists for tornadees which could be spawned
as a collateral effect of the hurricane. Should the hurricane
make landfall in those cities and counties which lie generally
east of Interstate Highway 8% in "Tidewater Virginia," as
defined in § 10.1-2101 of the Code of Virginia, flash flooding,
storm surge damage, and wind damage are anticipated in
those areas. Inland areas of the state could also be
impacted by the residual destructive power of Hurricane
* Bertha.

The health and general welfare of the citizens of the
localities which may be affected require that state action be
taken to help prepare for, and should this destructive storm
impact the Commonwealth, to alleviate the conditions which
may result from this situation. | aiso find that these potential
hurricane effects may constitute a natural disaster wherein
human life and public and private property are imperiled, as
described in § 44-146.16 of the Code of Virginia.

Therefore, by virlue of the authority vested in me by § 44-
146.17 of the Code of Virginia, as Governor and as Director
of Emergency Services, and by virtue of the authority vested
in me by Aricle V, Section 7 of the Constitution of Virginia
and by § 44-75.1 of the Code of Virginia, as Governor and
Commander-in-Chief of the armed forces of the
Commonwealth, and subject always to my continuing and
ultimate authotity and responsibility to act in such matters, |
hereby declare that a stale of emergency exists in the
Commonwealth and direct that appropriate assistance be
rendered by agencies of both state and local governments to
prepare for and alleviate any conditions resulting from this
hutricane, and 1o implement recovery and mitigation
operations so as to return impacted areas o pre-event
conditions in so far as possible.

Pursuant to §§ 44-75.1 (3) and (4) of the Code of Virginia, |
also direct that the Virginia National Guard and the Virginia
Defense Force be called forth to state duty to assist in
providing such aid. This shall include Virginia NMational Guard
assistance to the Virginia State Police to direct traffic, prevent
looting, and perform such other law enforcement functions as
the Superintendent of State Police, in consultation with the
Coordinator of Emergency Services and with the approval of
the Secretary of Public Safety, may find necessary.

in order to marshal all public resources and appropriate
preparedness, response and recovery measures 10 meet this
potential threat and recovery from its effecils, and in
accordance with my authority contained in § 44-146.17 of the
Emergency Services and Disaster Laws, | hereby order the
following protective and restoration measures:

1. The full implementation by agencies of the state and
tocal governmenis of Volume |1, Virginia Emergency
Operations Plan (COVEOP) for Peacetime Disasters,

September 1988, as amended, along with its attendant
Annex I-FF, Virginia Hurricane Emergency Response
Plan, and other appropriate state agency plans.

2. Full activation of the Virginia Emergency Operalions
Center (VEOC) and State Emergency Besponse Team
(SERT), which is a mulli-agency working group, to
coordinate implementation of the COVEDF and lo
cooerdinate receipt and evaluation of information related
to the effects of this storm. Furthermore, | am directing
that the VEOC and SERT coordinate state operations in
support of affected localities and the Commonweatth, to
include issuing  mission assignmenis fo agencies
designated in the COVECGP and others that may be
identitied by the Coordinator of Emergency Services, in
consultation with the Secretary of Public Safety, which
are needed to provide for the preservation of life,
protection of property and implementation of recovery
activities. The Coordinater of Emergency Services will
work clossly with involved agencies to identify sources of
tunding to cover costs related to the execution of mission
assignmenis.

3. The authorization to assume conirol over the
Commonwealth's  telecommunications systems, as
required by the 3State Coordinator of Emergency
Services, in coordination with the Department of
Information Technology and with the prior consent of the
Secretary of Public Safety, making ail systems asssis
available for use in providihg adequate communications,
intelligence and warning capabilities for the impending
event, pursuant to § 44-146.18 of the Code of Virginia.

4. The preparation for and if necessary, the evacuation
by tow-lying localities, particularly in the coastal counties
and the Eastern Shore, of cilizens subject to the potential
effects of this storm. Although I have the power to direct
evacuation as authorized in § 44-146.17 (1} of the
Emergency Services and Disaster Laws, | will defer to
the authorities of the governing bodies of local
jurisdictions as to exactly when and to what extent
mandatory evacuation of their localities is implemented.
| wili retain the authority to implement mandatory
evacuation, if warranted. The authority to issue local
praventive evacuation orders is dependent upon the
following . procedures: (a) the declaration by the
governing body of a local emergency as outlined in § 44-
146.21 of the Emergency Services and Disaster Laws;
(b) the judicious and timely use of the manual Decision
Arc process, or any automated decision aids, device or
process, as described in Annex |-FF, Virginia Hurricane
Emergency Response Plan, to determine specific local
evacuation start times; and (¢) prior consultation and
close coordination with the Virginia Emergency
Operations Center {(VEOC) in Richmaond. Violations of
any order to citizens to evacuate shall constitute a
violation of this Executive Order and are punishable as a
Class | misdemeanor, '

5. The cessation of toll collection on evacuation routes.
Coordination and timing of the application of this
measure  will be accomplished by the Virginia
Department of Transportation, in conjunction with the toll
road administrations, logal jurisdictions, and the
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Department of State Police. The general public will be
informed of this action by the best means available.

6. The hosting of evacuees from affected localities by
inland jurisdictions in their public shelters is authorized
and encouraged. To assist host jurisdictions in this
regard, the use of the Sum Sufficient, as defined in § 44-
146.28 (a) of the Emergency Services and Disaster
Laws, to defray authorized and justified expenses
incurred by the host jurisdictions in opening and
operating their public shelters is herewith authorized.
Invoices and payments will be subject to such approvals
and procedures as may be prescribed by the State
Coordinator of Emergency Services in consultation with
the State Comptroller.

7. The activation, implementation and coordination of
appropriate mutual aid agreements and compacts,
including the Emergency Management Assistance
Compact, and the authorization of the State Coordinator
of Emergency Services to enter into any other
supplemental agreements, pursuant to §§ 44-146.17 (5)
and 44-146.28:1, to provide for the evacuation and
_reception of injured and other persons and the exchange
of medical, fire, police, National Guard personnel and
equipment, public utility, reconnaissance, welfare,
transportation and communications personnel, and
equipment and supplies. The State Coordinator of
Emergency Services is hereby designated as Virginia's
authorized representative within the meaning of the
Emergency Management Assistance Compact, § 44-
146.28:1, Code of Virginia.

8. The authorization of the Departments of State Police,
Transportation and Motor Vehicles to grant temporary
overweight/registration/license exemptions o carriers
transporting essential emergency relief supplies into and
within the Commonwealth in order to support the disaster
response and recovery, particularly as regards donation
management.

The axle and gross weights shown below are the
maximurm allowed, unless otherwise posted.

Any One Axle 24,000 Pounds
Tandem Axles {more than 40 inches
but not more than 96 inches
spacing between axle centers)
Single Unit (2 Axles)
Single Unit (3 Axles) 54,500 Pounds
Tractor-Semitrailer (4 Axles) 64,500 Pounds
Tractor-Semitrailer (5 or more Axles) 90,000 Pounds
Tractor-Twin Trailers {5 or more Axles) 90,000 Pounds
Other Combinations (5 or more Axles) 90,000 Pounds
Per inch of Tire Width in Contact
with Road Surface

44 000 Pounds
44,000 Pounds

850 Pounds

In addition to described overweight transportation
privileges, carriers are also exempt from registration with
DMV. This includes the vehicles enroute and returning
to their home base. The above cited agencies shall
communicate this information to all staff responsible for
permit issuance and truck legalization enforcement.

This authorization shall apply to hours worked by any
carrier when fransporting passengers, property,

equipment, food, fuel, construction materials and other
critical supplies to or from any portion of the
Commonwealth for purpose of providing relief or
assistance as a result of this disaster, pursuant to § 52-
8.4 of the Code of Virginia.

The foregoing overweight transporiation privileges and
the regulatory exemption provided by § 52.8.4.A of the
Code of Virginia, and implemented in § 2.3.B of VR 545-
01-1, "Motor Carrier Safety Regulations," shall remain in
effect for sixty (60) days from the onset of the disaster, or
until emergency relief is no longer necessary, as
determined by the Secretary of Public Safety in
conhsultation with the Secretary of Transportation,
whichever is earlier.

9. The discontinuance of provisions authorized in
paragraphs 5 and 8 may be implemented and
disseminated by publication of administrative notice to all
affected and interested parties by the authority | herewith
delegate to the Secretary of Public Safety, after
consultation  with  other affected Cabinet-level
Secretaries.

10. If deemed necessary, the designation of a State
Recovery Task Force under the leadership of the
Secretary of Commerce and Trade io promote public,
private and industrial redevelopment projects and help
sustain long-term community economic vitality in the
aftermath of the disaster. This task force will also assist
in the restoration of critical public health and safety
systems and will do so in close coordination with the
Coordinator of Emergency Services as the individual
responsible for ensuring implementation of short-term
recovety programs.

11. The authorization of appropriate oversight boards,
commissions and agencies to ease building code
restrictions, and to permit emergency demolition,
hazardous waste disposal, debris removal, emergency
landfill siting and operations and other activities
necessary to address immediate health and safety
needs. This state of emergency constitutes a major
medical emergency under the Rules and Regulations of
the Board of Health Govemning Emergency Medical
Services, pursuant to Article 3.01 (§ 32.1-111.1 et seq.}
of Chapter 4 of Title 32.1, Statewide Emergency Medical
Services System and Services, and exemptions
specified in the Rules and Regulations regarding patient
transpart and provider certification in disasters apply.

12. The costs incurred by state agencies and other
agents of the Commonwealth as defined herein and in §
44-146.17, except as defined in paragraph 20, page 9, in
parforming these missions shall be paid out of the sum
sufficient appropriation for Disaster Planning and
Operations contained in liem 42 of Chapter 812 of the
1996 Acts of Assembiy.

13. The implementation by publfic agencies under my
supervision and control of their emergency assignments
as directed in the COVEOP without regard to normal
procedures pertaining to performances of public work, -
entering into contracts, incurring of obligations, or other
logistical and support measures, as delineated in § 44-
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148.28 (b) of the Emergency Services and Disaster
Laws. § 44-146.24 also applies to the disaster activities
of state agencies.

14. The immunity provisions of § 44-146.23 (a) apply to
volunteer, auxiliary and reserve groups including search
and rescue team members (SAR), Virginia Association of
Volunteer Rescue Squad (VAVRS) personnel, Civil Air
Patral {(CAP), member organizations of the Voluntary
Organizations Active in Disasters (VOAD), Radio
Amateur Civil Emergency Services (RACES), volunteer
fire fighters and others when designated as agents of the
Commonwealth for specific disaster-related mission
assignments and identified by the Coordinator of
Emergency Services.

The following conditions apply to the deployment of the

Virginia National Guard and the Virginia Defense Force;

1. The Adjutant General of Virginia, after consuitation
with the State Coordinator of Emergency Services, shall
make available on state active duty such units and
members of the Virginia National Guard and Virginia
Defense Force and such equipment as may be desirable
to assist in pre-storm preparation and in alleviating the
human suffering and damage to property as a result of
Hurricane Bertha.

2. Pursuant to § 52-6 of the Code of Virginia, | authorize
and direct the Superintendent of State Police to appoint
any and all such Virginia Army and Air National Guard
personnel called to state active duty as additional police
officers. These police officers shall have the same
powers and perform the same duties as the regular State
Police officers appointed by the Superintendent.
However, they shall nevertheless remain members of the
Virginia National Guard, subject to military command as
members of the State Militta. Any bonds and/or
insurance required by § 52-7 of the Code of Virginia shall
be provided for them at the expense of the
Commonwealth.

3. In all instances, members of the Virginia Army
National Guard and Virginia Defense Force shall remain
subject to military command as prescribed by § 44-78.1
of the Code of Virginia and not subject to the civilian
authorities of the state or local governments. This shall
not be deemed to prohihit working in close cooperation
with members of the Virginia Departments of State
Police or Emergency Services or local law enforcement
or emergency management authorities or receiving
guidance from them in the performance of their duties.

4. Should service under this Executive Order result in
the injury or death of any member of the Virginia National
Guard, the following will be provided to the member and
the member's dependents or survivors:

(a) Workers' Compensation benefits provided to
members of the National Guard by the Virginia
Workers' Compensation Act  subject to  the
requirements and limitations thereof; and, in addition,

(b) The same benefits, or their equivalent, for injury,
disability and/or death, as would be provided by the
federal government if the member were serving on

federal active duty at the time of the injury or death.
Any such federal-type benefits due to a member and
his or her dependents or survivors during any calendar
month shall be reduced by any payments due under
the Virginia Workers' Compensation Act during the
same month. If and when the time period for payment
of Workers' Compensation benefits has elapsed, the
“member and his or her dependents or survivors shall
thereafter receive full federal-type benefits for as fong
as they would have received such benefits if the
member had been serving on federal active duty at the
time of injury or death. Any federal-type benefits due
shall be computed on the basis of military pay grade
E-5 or the member's military grade at the time of injury
or death, whichever produces the greater benefit
amount. Pursuant to § 44-14 of the Code of Virginia,
and subject 1o the concurrence of the Board of Military
Aftairs, and subject to the availability of future
appropriations which may be lawiully applied to this
purpose, | now approve of future expenditures out of
appropriations to the Department of Military Affairs for
such federal-type benefits as being manifestly for the
benefit of the military service.

5. The following conditions apply to service by the
Virginia Defense Force:

(a) Compensation shall be at a daily rate that is
equivalent of base pay only for a National Guard Unit
Training Assembly, commensurate with the grade and
years of service of the member, not to exceed 20
years of service;

(b) Lodging and meals shall be provided by the
Adjutant General or reimbursed at standard state per
diem rates;

{c) All privately owned equipment, including, but not
limited to, vehicles, boats, and aircraft, will be
reimbursed for expense of fuel. Damage or loss of
said equipment will be reimbursed, minus
reimbursement from personal insurance, if said
equipment was authorized for use by the Adjutant
General in accordance with § 44-54.12 of the Code of
Virginia; and

(d) In the event of death or injury, benefits shall be
provided in accordance with the Virginia Workers'
Compensation Act, subject to the requirements and
limitations thereof.

6. The costs incurred by the Department of Military
Affairs and Virginia Defense Force in performing these
missions shall be paid out of the sum sufficient
appropriation for Disaster Planning and Operations
contained in Item 493 of Chapter 912 of the 1996 Acts of
Assembly.

This Executive Order shall be effective upon its signing,
and shall remain in full force and effect untit June 30, 1997,
unless sooner amended or rescinded by further executive
order. That portion providing for benefits for members of the

“National Guard and other agents of the Commonwealth

herein provided for in the event of injury or death shall
continue to remain in effect after termination of this Executive
Order as a whole.
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Given under my hand and under the Seal of the
Commonwealth of Virginia, this 11th day of July, 1996,

/s/ George Allen
Governor

VA.R. Doc. No. R36-491; Filed July 17, 1988, 9;2% a.m.
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GENERAL NOTICES/EBRRATA

Symbol Key
T Indicales entries since tast publication of the Virginia Register

VIRGINIA CODE COMMISSION "Renswal Notice and Application,” “Application for
Registration as a Pharmacy Interne for Graduates of a

Foreign College of Pharmacy,” and “Instructions for

Notice to State Agencies Graduates of Foreign Schools of Pharmacy”

Mailing Address: Our mailing address is: Virginia Code
Commission, 910 Capitol Street, General Assembly Building,
2nd Floor, Richmond, VA 23219. You may FAX in your
notice; however, we ask that you FAX two copies and do not
follow up with a mailed copy. Our FAX number is: (804) 692-
0625.

Forms for Filing Material on Dates for Publication in
The Virginia Register of Regulations

All agencies are required to use the appropriate forms when
fumishing material and dates for publication in The Virginia
Register of Regulations. The forms are supplied by the office
of the Registrar of Regulations. If you do not have any forms
or you need additionat forms, please contact: Virginia Code
Commission, 910 Capitol Street, General Assembly Building,
2nd Floor, Richmond, VA 23219, telephone (804) 786-3591.

FORMS:
NOTICE of INTENDED REGULATORY ACTION - RRO1
NOTICE of COMMENT PERIOD - RRG2
PROPOSED (Transmittal Sheet) - RR0O3
FINAL (Transmittal Sheet) - RR04
EMERGENCY (Transmittal Sheet) - RR05
NOTICE ot MEETING - RR06
AGENCY RESPONSE TO LEGISLATIVE CBJECTIONS -
RR0O8

ERRATA

STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION
Title; Administrative Letter 1996-7. Change of Zip Code
Publication: 12:20 VA.R. 2697 June 24, 1996,

Correction to Administrative Letter:

Page 2697, Administrative Letter 1996-7, second
paragraph, last sentence, change “This change should
not be filed” to It is not necessary to file such changes to
policies, forms, endorsements, or notices to
policyholders”

BOARD OF PHARMACY

Title of Regulation: 8 VAC 110-20-10 et seq. Regulations
of the Board of Pharmacy.

Publication: 12:21 VA.R. 2787-2799 July 8, 1996.

Correction to Fina! Bequlation:;

Page 2799, column 1, strike form entitied “Application tor
Re-examination (eff.5/93),” do not strike forms entitled

Volume 12, Issue 23 Monday, August 5, 1996
3179




CALENDAR OF EVENTS

Symbol Key
¥ Indicates entries since last publication of the Virginia Register
fes l.ocation accessibie to handicapped
‘& Telecommunications Device for Deaf (TDD)/Voice Designation

cancellation.

NOTICE

Only those meetings which are filed with the ‘Registrar of Regulations by the filing deadline noted at the beginning of this
publication are listed. Since some meetings are called on short notice, please be aware that this listing of meetings may be
incomplete. Also, all meetings are subject to cancellation and the Virginia Register deadline may preclude a notice of such

For additional information on open meetings and public hearings held by the Standing Committeas of the Legislature during
the interim, please call Legisiative Information at (804) 786-6530.

VIRGINIA CODE COMMISSION

EXECUTIVE

VIRGINIA AGRICULTURAL COUNCIL

+ August 26, 1996 - 1 p.m. -- Open Meeting

1 August 27, 1996 - 9 a.m. -- Open Meeting

Best Western Motel, 1467 Carrsville Highway, Franklin,

Virginia.
The annual mesting of the Virginia Agricultural Council.
The agenda will consist of an annual review of finances,
progress reporis on approved projects, and general
business matters. The councit will allot 30 minutes at the
conclusion of all other business for the public to appear
before the council.  Any person who needs any
accommodations in order to participate at the meeting
should contact Thomas R. Yates at least 10 days before

the meeting date so that suitable arrangements can be
made. '

Coniact: Thomas R. Yates, Assistant Secretary, Virginia
Agricultural Council, 1100 Bank St., Suite 515, Richmond, VA
23218, telephone (804) 786-5060.

DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE AND CONSUMER
SERVICES

Virginia State Apple Board

1 August 27, 1996 - 10 a.m. -- Open Mesting
Marrisonburg Animal Healih Lab, 116 Reservoir Street,
Harrisonburg, Virginia. =8

A meeting to (i) review tax collections and revenues for
1995 crop; (i} discuss crop estimates for 1996; and (iii)
review and approve the budget. The board will entertain
public comment at the conclusion of all other business
for a period not to exceed 30 minutes. Any persen who
needs any accommodations in order to participate at the
meeting should contact Nancy L. israel at least five days
before the meeting date so that suitable arrangements
can be made.

Contact: Nancy L. Israel, Program Director, Virginia State
Apple Board, Washington Bldg., 1100 Bank St., Suite 1008,
Richmond, VA 23219, telephone (804) 371-6104 or FAX
(804) 371-7786,

Virginia Aquaculture Advisory Board

Bugust 15, 1996 - 10:30 a.m. -- Open Meeting
Washington Building, 1100 Bank Street, 2nd Floor Board
Roomn, Richmond, Virginia k=

The board will meet in regufar session to discuss issues
related to the Virginia aquaculture industry. The board
will entertain public comment at the conclusion of all
other business for a period not to exceed 30 minutes.
Any person who needs any accommodations in order to
participate at the meeting should contact T. Robins Buck
at least five days before the meeting date so that suitable
arrangements can be made.

Contact: 7. Robins Buck, Secrelary, Virginia Aquaculture
Advisory Board, P.Q. Box 1163, Suite 211, Richmond, VA
23209, telephone (804) 371-6094.

Virginia Horse Industry Beard

August 20, 1996 - 10 a.m. -- Open Meeting

Virginia Cooperalive Extension, Charlottesville-Atbemarle
Unit, 168 Spotnap Road, Lower Level Meeting Room,
Charlottesville, Virginia. &

A meeting to review the budget for the 1995-1996 fiscal
year and to discuss recently awarded grants and the
1997 proposed educational seminar. The board will also
discuss additional avenues to market the esccnomic
impact study of the industry. The board will entertain
public comment at the conclusion of all other business
for a period not to exceed 30 minutes. Any person who
needs any accommodations in order to patticipate at the
meeting should contact Andrea S. Heid at ieast five days
before the meeiing dale so that suitable arrangements
can be made.

Contact: Andrea S, Heid, Equine Markeling Specialist,
Department of Agriculture and Consumer Services, 1100
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Bank 8t., Richwnond, VA 23219, telephone (804) 786-5842 or
(804) 371-6344/TDDR

Virginia lrish Potato Board

T September §, 1998 - 8 p.m. -- Open Mesting
Eastern Shore Agricultural Research and Extension Center,
33446 Research Drive, Painter, Virginia I3

A meeting to discuss programs (promotion, research and
education), the annual budget, and other business that
may come before the board, The board will entertain
public comment at the conclusion of all other business
for a period not to exceed 30 minutes. Any person who
needs any accommodations in order to participate at the
meeting should contact J. William Mapp at least five
days before the meeting date so that suitable
arrangernents can be made.

Contact: J. William Mapp, Program Director, P.O. Box 28,
Onley, VA 23418, telephone (804) 787-5867.

STATE AlIR POLLUTION CONTROL BOARD

August 7, 1886 - 7:30 p.m. -- Public Hearing
Northern Virginia Community College, 8333 Little River
Turnpike, Route 236, Forum Room, Annandale, Virginia.

August 8, 1996 - 10:30 a.m. -- Public Hearing
Loudoun County Government Center, 1 Harrison Street,
Board Room, Lessburg, Virginia.

August 8, 1996 - 7:30 p.m. -- Public Hearing
Stafford County Administration Center, 1300 Courthouse
Road, Board Foom, Stafford, Virginia. '

September 9, 1996 -- Public comments may be submitted
unitil 4:30 p.m. on this date.

Notice is hereby given in accordance with § 9-6.14:7.1 of
the Code of Virginia that the State Air Pollution Control
Board intends to repeal regulations entitled: 9 VAC 5-
20-10 =t seq., Regulations for the Control of Motor
Vehicie Emissions, 8 VAC 5-100-10 et seq,
Regulations for Vehicle Emissions Control Program
Analyzer Systems, and 9 VAC 5-110-10 et seq.,
Regulations for the Conirol of Motor Veshicies
Emissions; and adopt regulations entitled: 9 VAC 9-91-
10 et seq., Regulations for the Control of Motor
Vehicle Emissions in the Northern Virginia Area. The
purpose of the regulation is to require that motor vehicles
undergo pericdic emissions inspection and be maintained
in compliance with emission standards in order to reduce
narmful emissions of hydrocarbons, carbon monoxide and
oxides of nitrogen. The regulation is being promulgated in
response to state and federal laws requiring the emissions
inspection program. The regulation applies to vehicles
that have actual gross weights of 10,000 pounds or less
and are registered in the Gounties of Arlington, Fairfax,
Loudoun, Prince William, Stafford, and Fauguier and the
Cities of Alexandria, Fairfax, Falls Church, Manassas, and
Manassas Park. It requires biennial emissions inspections
in order to register the motor vehicle in the area described

above. The regulation also describes requirsments for
inspection stations, inspectors, repair facilities and repair
tachnicians.

it is further proposed that the board authorize for public
comment the repeal of existing regulations to be replaced by
9 VAC 5-91-10 et seq. Specifically, the proposal is to repeal;

8 VAC 580410 ot seq. Regulation for the Control of
Motor Vehicle Emissions (present program)

8 VAC 5-100-10 et seq. Regulation for Vehicle Emission
Control Program Analyzer Systems (present program)

9 VAC 5-110-10 et seq. Regulation for the Enhanced
Motor Vehicle Emissions Inspection Program in the
Northern Virginia Area (test-only regulations)

Reguest for Comments: The purpose of this notice is to
provide the public with the opportunity to comment on the
proposed regulation and the costs and benefits of the
proposal,

Localities Affected: The following localities will bear a
disproportionate material air quality impact due to the
proposed regulation which would not be experienced by other
localities.

The Counties of Arlington, Fairfax, Loudoun, Prince William,
Stafford, and Fauquier and the Cities of Alexandria, Fairfax,
Falls Church, Manassas, and Manassas Park.

Location of Proposal: The proposal, an analysis conducted
by the department (including: a statement of purpose, a
statement of estimated impact and benefits of the proposed
regulation, an explanation of need for the proposed
regulation, an estimate of the impact of the proposed
regulation upon small businesses, identification of and
comparison with federal requirements, and a discussion of
alternative approaches) and any other supporting documents
may be examined by the public at the Department's Office of
Nonattainment and Mobile Sources Planning (Eighth Floor),
629 FEast Main Street, Richmond, Virginia and the
Department's regional offices (listed below) between 8:30
a.m. and 4:30 p.m. of each business day until the close of the
pubiic comment period.

Fredericksburg Satellite Office
Department of Environmental Quality
300 Central Road, Suite B
Fredericksburg, Virginia 22401

Ph: {540) 899-4600

Springfield Satellite Office

Department of Environmental Quality
Springfield Corporate Center, Suite 310
6225 Brandon Avenue

Springfield, Virginia 22150

Ph: (703) 644-0311

Lorton Mobile Sources Operations
Department of Environmentat Quality
7240-D Telegraph Square Drive

_Lorton, Virginia 22079

Statutory Authority: §§ 46.2-1178.1, 46.2-1179, 46.2-1180
and 46.2-1187.2 of the Code of Virginia.
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Public commenis may be submitted until 430 p.m. on
Monday, September 8, 1996, to the Director, Office of
Nonattainment and Maobile Sources Planning, Department of
Environmental Quality, 629 East Main Street, Eighth Floor,
P.O. Box 10002, Richmond, Virginia 23240.

Contact: David J. Kinsey, Policy Analyst, Office of
Nonattainment and Mobile Sources, Air Division, Department
of Environmental Quality, P.O. Box 10009, Richmond, VA
23240, telephone (804) 698-4432 or (FAX) (804) 898-4510.

ok ok kR K RE

August 9, 1996 -- Public comments may be submitied until
4:30 p.m. on this date.

Notice is hereby given in accordance with § 9-6.14:7.1 of
the Code of Virginia that the State Air Poliution Control
Board intends to amend regulations entitled: 8 VAC 5-
20-10 et seq., General Provisions and 9 VAC 5-80-10
et seq., Permits for New and Modified Sources. The
amendments concern provisions covering prevention of
-significant deterioration and include: (i} revision of the
maximum aliowable increases for particulate matter from
being based on total suspended particulate to being based
on particulate with an aercdynamic diameter of less than
or equal to 10 micrometers; (i) revision of the "Guideline
oh Air Quality Models"; (jii} exclusion of certain pollutants
when delermining whether an emissions increase is
considered significant; and (iv) updating the notification
process to comply with the Code of Virginia and changing
the regulation's internal numbering system to reflect
requirements of the Registrar of Regulations.

Request for Comments: The purpose of this notice is to
provide the public with the opportunity to comment on the
proposed regulation and the costs and benefits of the
proposal.

Localities Affected: There is no locality which will bear any
identified disproportionate material air quality impact due to
the proposed regulation which would not be experienced by
other localities.

Location of Proposal: The proposal, an analysis conducted
by the department (including a statement of purpose, a
statement of estimated impact and banefits of the proposed
reguiation, an explanation of need for the proposed
regulation, an estimate of the impact of the proposed
regulation upon small businesses, identification of and
comparison with federal requirements, and a discussion of
alternative approaches) and any other supporting documents
may be examined by the public at the Departiment's Office of
Air Program Development (Eighth Floor), 629 East Main
Street, Richmond, Virginia, and the department's regional
offices (listed below) between 8:30 a.m. and 4:30 p.m. of
each business day until the close of the public comment
- period.

Southwest Regicnal Office
Department of Environmental Quality
355 Deadmore Street

Abingdon, Virginia

Ph: (540} 676-4800

Woest Central Regional Office
Department of Environmental Quality
Executive Office Park, Suite D

5338 Peters Creek Road

Roanoke, Virginia

Ph: (540} 561-7000

Lynchburg Satellite Office
Department of Environmental Quality
7701-03 Timberlake Road
Lynchburg, Virginia

Ph: {804} 582-5120

Valley Regional Office

Department of Environmental Quality
116 North Main Street

Bridgewater, Virginia 22812

Ph: (540) 828-2595

Fredericksburg Satellite Office
Department of Environmental Quality
300 Central Road, Suite B
Fredericksburg, Virginia

Ph: (540) 899-4600

Piedmont Regional Office
Department of Environmental Quality
4949-A Cox Road

Innsbrook Corporate Center

Glen Allen, Virginia

Ph: (804) 527-5020

Tidewater Regional Office
Department of Environmental Quality
Old Greenbrier Village, Suite A

2010 Old Greenbrier Road
Chesapeaie, Virginia

Ph: (804) 424-6707

Springfield Satellite Office

Department of Environmenta! Quality
Springfield Corporate Center, Suite 310
6225 Brandon Avenue

Springfield, Virginia

Ph: (703) 644-0311

Statutory Authority; § 10.1-1308 of the Code of Virginia.

Public comments may be submitted until 4:30 p.m. August 9,
1996, to the Director, Office of Air Program Development,
Department of Environmental Quality, P.O. Box 100089,
Richmond, Virginia 23240.

Contaci: Karen Sabasteanski, Policy Analyst, Office ol Air
Program Development, Department of Environmental Quality,
P.O. Box 10009, Richmond, VA 23240, telephone (804) 698-
4426.

August 13, 1996 - § a.m. -- Open Mesting
General Assembly Building, 910 Capitol Square, House
Room C, Richmond, Virginia.

A regular meeting of the board.

Contact: Cindy M. Berndt, Department of Environmental
Quality, P.O. Box 10009, Richmond, VA 23240, teiephone
(804} 698-4378.
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ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGE CONTROL BOARD

August 12, 1996 - 9:30 a.m. -- Open Meeting

August 26, 1996 - 9130 a.m. -- Open Meeting

Department of Aicoholic Beverage Control, 2801 Hermitage
Road, Richmond, Virginia k&

A meeting to recelve and discuss reports from and
activities of staff members. Other matters have not yet
been detarmined,

Contact: W. Curlis Coleburn, Secretary to the Board,
Department of Alcoholic Beverage Control, 2801 Hermitage
Rd., P.O. Box 27491, Richmond, VA 23261, telephone (804)
367-0712 or FAX (804) 367-1802.

BOARD FOR ARCHITECTS, PROFESSIONAL
© ENGINEERS, LAND SURVEYORS AND LANDSCAPE
ARCHITECTS

Board for Architects

August 30, 1995 - § a.m. - Open Meeting
Depariment of Professional and Occupational Regulation,
3600 West Broad Street, Richmond, Virginia.

A meeting to conduct board business. Persons desiring
to participaie in the meeting and requiring special
accommodations or interpreter services should contact
the board at least 10 days prior to the meeting so that
suitable arrangerents can be made. The board fully
complies with the Americans with Disabilities Act.

Contact: Mark N. Courtney, Assistant Director, Department
of Professional and Occupaticnal Regulation, 3600 W. Broad
St., Richmond, VA 23230, telephone (804) 367-8514 or (B04)
367-9753/TDD B

VIRGINIA AVIATION BOARD

August 21, 1996 - 9 a.m. -- Open Mesting

August 23, 1996 - 9 a.m. -- Open Meeting

Hotel Roancke and Conference Center, 110 Shenandoah
Avenue, Roanoke, Virginia®8 (Interpreter for the deaf
provided upon request)

A regular bi-monthly meeting of the beoard. Applications
for state funding will be presented to the board, funding
allocations will be announced, and other matters of
interest to the Virginia aviation community will be
discussed. This meeting is being held in conjunction
with the 23rd Annual Virginia Aviation Conference. For
further information on the conference being held at the
Hotel Roanoke and Gonference Center on August 21-23,
1896, contact Betty Wilson at (804) 225-3783.
Individuals with disabilities should contact Cindy Waddell
10 days priar to the meeting if assistance is needed.

Contact: Cindy Waddell, Department of Aviation, 5702
Gulfstream Rd., Sandston, VA 23150, telephone (804) 236-
3630, FAX (804) 236-3625, or (804) 236-3624/TDD &

BOARD FOR BARBERS

August 5, 1996 - 10 a.m. - Open Meeting
Department of Professional and Occupational Regulation,
3800 Wesl Broad Street, Richmond, Virginia

A gengral business meeting. Persons desiring to
paticipate in the mseting and requiting special
accommodations or interpreter services should contact
the departiment at Isast two weeks prior to the meeting
sa that sultable arrangements can be made. The
department fully complles with the Americans with
Disabilities Act.

Contact: Karen W. O'Neal, Assistant Diractor, Depariment
of Professional and Occupational Regulation, 3600 W, Broad
St., Richmond, VA 23230, telephone (804) 367-0500, FAX
{B04) 367-2475 or (804) 367-9753/TDD &

BOARD FOR BRANCH PILOTS

August 6, 1988 - %::30 a.m. -- Open Meeting
Virginia Port Authority, 800 Werld Trade Center, Norfolk,
Virginia &4

A meeting to conduct beard business. Persons desiring
to participate in the meeting and requiring special
accommodations or interpreter services should contact
the board at least 10 days prior to the meeting so0 that
suitable arrangements can be made. The department
fully complies with the Americans with Disabilities Act.

Contact: Mark N. Courtney, Assistant Director, Department
of Professional and Occupational Regulation, 3600 W. Broad
St.,, Richmond, VA 23230-4917, telephone (804) 367-8514 or
(804) 367-9753/TDD B

CHESAPEAKE BAY LOCAL ASSISTANCE BOARD

Morthern Area Review Commitiee

August 13, 1996 -2 p.m. -- Open Meeting

Chesapeake Bay Local Assistance Department, 805 East
Broad Street, Suite 701, Richmond, Virginia.le {interpreter for
the deaf provided upon request)

A meeting to review Chesapeake Bay Preservation Area
programs for the Northern Area. Persons interested in
cbserving should call the Chesapeake Bay Local
Assistance Department to verify meeting time, location
and schedule. No comments from the public will be
entertained at the committee meeting; however, written
comments are welcome.

Contact: Florence £. J. Dickerson, Program Support
Technician, Chesapeake Bay Local Assistance Departiment,
805 E. Broad 8t., Suite 701, Richmond, VA 23219, telephone
(804) 225-3440, FAX (B0D4) 225-3447 or toll-free 1-800-243-

7229/TDD &8
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Southern Area Review Commiitee

August 13, 1996 -10 a.m. -- Open Meeting

Chesapeake Bay Local Assistance Department, 805 East
Broad Street, Suite 701, Richmond, Virginia.te (Interpreter for
the deaf provided upon request)

A meeting to review Chesapeake Bay Preservation Area
programs ftor the Southern Area. Persons interested in
observing should call the Chesapeake Bay Local
Assistance Department to verify meeting time, location
and scheduie. No comments from the public will be
entertained at the committee meeting; however, written
comments are welcome.

Contact: Florence E. J. Dickerson, Program Support
Technician, Chesapeake Bay Local Assistance Department,
805 E. Broad St., Suite 701, Richmond, VA 23219, telephone
{804) 225-3440, FAX (804) 225-3447 or toil-free 1-800-243-
7229/TDD &

CHILD DAY-CARE COUNCIL

August 8, 1996 - 9:30 a.m. -- Open Meeting

Department of Social Services, Theater Row Building, 730
East Broad Street, Lower Level Conference Room, Room 1,
Richmond, Virginia.&l (interpreter for the deaf provided upon
request)

The council will meet to discuss issues and concems
that impact child day centers, camps, school-age
programs, and preschool/nursery schools. Public
comment period will be at noon. Please call ahead of
time for possible changes in meeting time. :

Contact: Rhonda Harrell, Division of Licensing Programs,
Department of Social Services, 730 E. Broad St., 7th Floor,
Richmond, VA 23219, teiephone (804) 692-1775.

July 23, 1996 - 8 a.m. -- Open Meeting

Depariment of Social Services, Theater Row Building, 730
East Broad Street, Lower Level Conference Room, Room 1,
Richmond, Virginia.lel (Interpreter for the deaf provided upon
request)

The council will meet to discuss committees’ work.

Contact: Rhonda Harrell, Division of Licensing Programs,
Department of Social Services, 730 E. Broad Si., 7th Fioor,
Richmond, VA 23218, telephone (804) 692-1775.

COMPENSATION BOARD

August 29, 1996 - 11 a.m. -- Open Meesting

Ninth Street Office Building, 202 North Ninth Street, Sth Floor,
Room 913/913A, Richmond, Virginia.le (Interpreter for the
_deaf provided upon request)

A routine. business meeting.

Contact: Bruce W. Haynes, Executive Secretary, P.O. Box
710, Richmond, VA 23218-0710, telephone (804) 786-0786,
FAX {804) 371-0235, or (B04) 786-0786/TDD 2

DEPARTMENT OF CONSERVATION AND
RECREATION

Beoard of Conservation and Recreation

t August 16, 1996 - 10:30 a.m. -- Open Meeting
Department of Conservation and Recreation, 203 Governor
Street, Room 200, Richmond, Virginia.

The Stermwater Management Committee of the Board of
Conservation and Recreation will meet with Department
of Conservation and Recreation officials to discuss and
comment on proposed amendments to the Virginia
Stormwater Management Regulaiions {4 VAC 3-20-10 et

seq.).

Contact: Leon E. App, Agency Regulatory Coordinator,
Department of Conservation and Recreation, 203 Governor
St, Suite 302, Richmond, VA 23219, telephone (804) 786-
4570, FAX (804) 786-6141, or (804) 786-2121/TDD &

Chickahominy Scenic River Advisory Board

%+ August 15, 1996 - 7:30 p.m. - Open Meeting
Eastern Henrico Government Center, 3820 Nine Mile Road,
Community Room, Richmond, Virginia.

A meeting to discuss river issues.

Contact: Richard G. Gibbons, Environmental Program
Manager, Department of Conservation and Recreation,
Division of Planning and Recreation Resources, 203

Governor St., Richmond, VA 23219, telephone (804) 786-
4132, FAX (804) 371-7899 or (804) 786-2121/TDD &

Nottoway Scenic River Advisory Beard

August 6, 193€ - 7 p.m. -- Open Meeting
Southampton County Office Building, Courtland, Virginia.

A meeting to discuss river related issues.

Contact: Richard G. Gibbons, Environmental Program
Manager, Department of Conservation and Recreation,
Division of Planning and Recreation Resources, 203

Governor St., Richmond, VA 23219, telephone (804} 786-
4132, FAX {804) 371-7899 or {804) 786-2121/TDD &

Board on Conservation and Development of Public
Beaches

T August 26, 1996 - 10 a.m. -- Open Meeting
Marine Resources Commission, 2600 Washington Avenue,
Meeating Room, Newport News, Virginia.les

A meeting to discuss proposals from localities requesting
matching grant funds from the board.

Contact: Cariton Lee Hill, Engineer, Depariment of
Conservation and Recreation, Division of Soil and Water
Conservation, 203 Governor St., Suite 2086, Richmond, VA
23219, telephone (804) 786-3998.
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BOARD FOR CONTRACTORS

Recovery Fund Committee

September 10, 1996 - 9 a.m. -- Open Meeting
Department of Professional and Occupational Regulation,
3600 West Broad Street, Richmand, Virginia,

A meeting to consider claims against the Virginia
Contractor Transaction Recovery Fund. This meeting
wili be open to the public; however, a portion of the
discussion may be cenducted in Executive Session.
Persons desiring to participale in the meeting and
requiring special accommodations or interpreter services
should contact Holly Erickson at least two weeks prior to
the meeting so that suitable arrangements can be made.
The board fuly complies with the Americans with
Disabilities Act.

Contact: Holly Erickson, Assistant Administrator, Board for
Contractors, 3600 W. Broad St., Richmond, VA 23230,
telephone (804) 367-8561.

DEPARTMENT FOR THE DEAF AND HARD-OF-
HEARING

Advisory Board

August 7, 19296 - 10 a.m. -- Open Meeling

Department for the Deaf and Hard-of-Hearing, Washington
Building, 1100 Bank Street, 11th Fleor, Richmond, Virginia.
{interpreter for the deaf provided upon request)

A quarterly business meeting of the advisory board.
Public comment will be received with advance notice.

Contact: Gloria Cathcart, Human Services Program
Specialist, Department for the Deaf and Hard-of-Hearing,
Washington Bidg., 1100 Bank St., 11th Floor, Richmond, VA
23219, telephone (804) 371-7892 {(W/TTY), toll-free 1-800-
552-7917(V/TTY), FAX (804) 552.7882 cor (804) 225-
2570/TDD &

BOARD OF DENTISTRY

1+ August 16, 1996 - 8 a.m. -- Open Meeting

Courtyard by Marriott-Fair Oaks, 112200 Lee Jackson
Highway, Fairfax, Virginia® (interpreter for the deaf provided
upon request)

A meeting to conduct formal hearings on dental licensure
by endorsement applications. This is a public meeting;
however, no public comment will be taken.

Contact: Marcia J. Miller, Executive Director, 6606 W. Broad
St., 4th Floor, Richmond, VA 23230-1717, telephone (804)
662-9906 or (804) 662-7197/TDD B

1 August 27, 1996 - 9 a.m. -- Open Meeting
Department of Health Professions, 6606 Wesl Broad Street,
5th Floor, Richmond, Virginia. (Interpreter for the deaf

- provided upon request)

A meeting of the informal conference committee to hear
disciplinary cases. This is a public meeting; however, no
public comment will be taken.

Contact: Marcia J. Miller, Executive Director, 6606 W. Broad
St, 4th Floor, Richmond, VA 23230-1717, telephone (804)
662-9906 or (804) 662-7197/TDD &

BOARD OF EDUCATION

1 August 12, 1996 - 7 p.m. -- Public Hearing
Central Middie School, Charlotte Court House, Virginia.tes

+ August 13, 1996 - 7 p.m. -- Public Hearing
John Marshall High School, 4225 Old Brook Road,
Richmond, Virginia.

+ August 14, 1996 - 7 p.m. -- Public Hearing
Frank W. Cox _Héqh School, 2425 Shorehaven Drive, Virginia
Beach, Virginia.

+ August 15, 1996 - 7:30 p.m. - Public Heari?g
Carroll County High School, Hillsville, Virginia.

1 August 19, 1996 - 7 p.m. -- Public Hearing
Nandua High School, Onley, Virginia & -

+ August 20, 1996 - 7 p.m. -- Public Hearing
Osbourn Park High School, 8909 Euclid Avenue, Manassas,
Virginia. - :

t August 21, 1996 - 7 p.m. -- Public Hearing
Harrisonburg High School, 395 South High Street,
Harrisonburg, Virginia [ '

Public heaiings to solicit public input on the current
Regulations Establishing Standards for Accrediting
Public Schools in Virginia. :

Contact: Lin Corbin-Howerton, Policy Director, Department
of Education, Division of Policy and Public Affairs, P.O. Box
2120, Richmond, VA 23218-2120, telephone (804) 225-2543,
FAX 1-800-225-2053, or toll-free 1-800-292-3820.

LOCAL EMERGENCY PLANNING COMMITTEE -
ARLINGTON COUNTY/CITY OF FALLS
CHURCH/WASHINGTON NATIONAL AIRPORT

1 August 13, 1996 - 5:30 p.m. -- Open Meeting

Arlington County Emergency Communications Center, 1400
North Uhle Street, 5th Floor, Artington, Virginia B8 (Interpreter
for the deaf provided upon request)

A regular meeting of the planning committee to conduct
general business. For more information contact Captain
Michael Kilby.

Contact: Captain Michae! Kilby, Arlington County Hazardous
Materials Coordinator, 1020 N. Hudson St., Addington, VA
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22201, telephone (703) 358-4652, (703} 358-4644 or (703}
358-4610/TDD &

LOCAL EMERGENCY PLANNING COMMITTEE -
CHESTERFIELD COUNTY

+ September 5, 1996 - 5:30 p.m. -- Open Mesting
% October 3, 1896 - 5:30 p.m. -- Open Meeting
6610 Public Safety Way, Chesterfield, Virginia.

A regular meeting.

Contact: Lynda G. Furr, Assistant Emergency Services
Coordinator, Chesterfield Fire Department, P.O. Box 40,
Chestertield, VA 23832, telephone (804) 748-1236.

VIRGINIA EMPLOYMENT COMMISSION

State Advisory Board

t August 12, 1896 - 9 a.m. -- Open Meeting

Virginia Employment Commission, 502 Viking Drive, Virginia
Beach, Virginia. (Interpreter for the deaf provided upon
request.)

A regular meeting of the board to receive reports from
staff and to discuss matters that may be presented.

Contact: Nancy L. Munnikhuysen, Director, Employer
Relations and Customer Service, Virginia Employment
Commission, 703 E. Main St., Richmond, VA 23219,
telephone {804) 371-6408 or (804) 371-8050/TDD &

DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY

t August 12, 1896 - 7 p.m. -- Public Hearing
Patrick County Administration Building, Rucker Street, 2nd
Floor, Stuart, Virginia.

A public hearing to receive input on the application from
Vaughan Furniture Company, Inc., to construct a
furniture manufacturing facility in the Rich Creek
Corporate Park, Stuart, Virginia.

Contact: Allen Armistead, Department of Environmentai
Quality, Lynchburg Satellite Office, 7701-7703 Timberlake
Road, Lynchburg, VA 24502, telephone (804) 582-5120.

Technical Advisory Committee for Solid Waste
Management Regulations

September 13, 1986 - 10 a.m. -- Open Mesting
Department of Environmental Quality, 629 East Main Street,
First Floor Training Room, Richmond, Virginia B

The Board of Waste Management and the Department of
Environmental Quality are considering the amendment of
the Solid Waste Management Regulations, 9 VAC 20-80-
10 et seq., and have formed a technical committee to
advise them on the contents of the proposed

amendment. This committee will reconvene to continue
their work on this project.

Contact: Wladimir Gulevich, Director of the Office of
Technical Services, Department of Environmental Quality,
P.C. Box 100089, Richmond, VA 23240-0009, telephone {804)
698-4218, FAX (B04) 698-4327, (804) 698-4021/TDD &, o
e-mail at wgulevich@ deq.state.va.us.

VIRGINIA FIRE SERVICES BOARD

t August 22, 1996 - 7 p.m. -- Open Meeting
Holiday Inn of Culpeper, U.S. 29 South, Culpeper, Virginia.

A planning session of the board and a meeting to
discuss fire training and policies. The meeling is open to
the public for comments and input.

Contact: Bobby L. Stanley, Jr., Executive Director,
Department of Fire Programs, 2807 N. Parham Rd., Suite
200, Richmaond, VA 23294, telephone (804) 527-4236.

T August 23, 1996 - 8 a.m. -- Open Meeting
Holiday Inn of Culpeper, U.S. 29 South, Culpsper, Virginia.

A business meeting to discuss fire training and policies.
The meeting is open to the public for comments and
input.

Contact: Bobby L. Stanley, Jr., Executive Director,
Department of Fire Programs, 2807 N. Parham Rd., Suite
200, Richmond, VA 23234, telephone (804) 527-4236.

Fire/EMS Education and Training Committee

t August 22, 1996 - 10:30 a.m. -- Open Meeting
Holiday Inn of Culpeper, U.S. 29 South, Culpeper, Virginia.

A meeting to discuss fire training and policies. The
meeting is open to the public for comments and input.

Contact: Bobby L. Stanley, Jr., Executive Director,
Department of Fire Programs, 2807 N. Parham Rd., Suite
200, Richmond, VA 23294, telephone (804) 527-4236.

Fire Prevention and Contrel Commitiee

1 August 22, 1996 - 8:30 a.m. -- Open Meeting
Holiday Inn of Culpeper, U.S. 28 South, Cuipeper, Virginia.

A meeting to discuss fire training and policies. The
meeting is open to the public for comments and input.

Contact: Bobby L. Stanley, Jr., Executive Director,
Department of Fire Programs, 2807 N. Parham Rd., Suite
200, Richmond, VA 23294, telephone {804) 527-4236.

i.egislative/Liaison Committee

T August 22, 1996 - 2 p.m. -- Open Meeting
Holiday Inn of Culpeper, U.S. 29 South, Culpeper, Virginia.

A meeting to discuss fire training and policies. The
meeting is open to the public for comments and input.
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Contact: Bobby L. Stanley, Jr, Executive Director,
Department of Fire Programs, 2807 N. Parham Rd., Suite
200, Richmond, VA 23294, telephone (804) 527-4236.

Residential Sprinkler Committee

1 August 21, 1896 - 1 p.m. -- Open Meeting
Holiday tnn of Culpeper, U.S. 29 South, Culpeper, Virginia.

A meeting to discuss fire training and policies. The
meeting is open to the public for comments and input.

Contact: Bobby L. Stanley, Jr., Executive Director,
Department of Fire Programs, 2807 N. Parham Rd., Suite
200, Richmond, VA 23294, telephone (804) 527-4236.

BOARD OF FUNERAL DIRECTORS AND
EMBALMERS

1 August 15, 1996 - 9 a.m. -- Open Meeting
Department of Health Professions, 6606 West Broad Street,
Richmond, Virginia.[&

A meeting to conduct informal conferences.
commaent will be taken.

No public

Contact: Elizabeth Young Kirksey, Executive Director, Board
of Funeral Directors and Embalmers, 6606 W. Broad St., 4th
Floor, Richmond, VA 23230-1717, telephone (804) 662-9907;
FAX (804) 662-9493 or (804) 662-7197/TDD B

DEPARTMENT OF GAME AND INLAND FISHERIES
(BOARD OF)

1 August 6, 1996 - 7 p.m. -- Open Meeting

Department of Game and Inland Fisheries, 4010 West Broad
Street, Richmond, Virginia@ (Interpreter for the deaf
provided upon request)

A meeting to receive public comments regarding season
lengths and bag limits for the 1896-1997 hunting
seasons for waterfowl (ducks, geese, and swan).
Wildlife Division staff will present recommendations for
seasons based on frameworks provided by the U. S.
Fish and Wildlife Service. The public’s comments will be
solicited. A summary of the results of this public meeting
will be presented to the Department of Game and Infand
Fisheries Board of Directors at its scheduled August 22-
23, 1996 meeting, at which the board will adopt 1996-
1997 waterfow| hunting seasons and bag limits.

Contact: Phil Smith, Policy Analyst, Department of Game
and Inland Fisheries, 4010 W. Broad St., Richmond, VA
23230, telephone (804) 367-8341 or FAX (804) 367-2427.

T August 22, 1996 - 9 a.m. -- Open Meeting

T August 23, 1996 - 8 a.m. -- Open Meeting

Department of Game and Inland Fisheries, 4010 West Broad
Street, Richmond, Virginia® (Interpreter for the deaf
provided upon request

The board intends to adopt regulations governing the
1996-1997 migratory waterfowl seasons, based on the
framework provided by the U.S. Fish and Wildlife
Service. The board also intends to propose changes in
fish, nongame wildiife, and watercraft regulations, and to
select meeting dates for 1997 board meetings. The
board will solicit comments from the public during the
public hearing portion of the meeting at which time any
interested citizen present shall be heard.

In addition, general and administrative issues may be
discussed by the board. The board may hold an
executive session beginning at 9 a.m. on August 22,
1996, If the board completes its entire agenda on
August 22, it may not convene on August 23, the second
of the scheduled two days of the meeting.

Contact: Phil Smith, Policy Analyst Senicr, Department of
Game and Inland Fisheries, 4010 W. Broad St., Richmond,
VA 23230, telephone (804) 367-8341 or FAX (804) 367-2427.

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH

August 21, 1996 - 10 a.m. -- Public Hearing
3600 Centre, 3600 West Broad Street, 3rd Floor Conference
Aoom, Richmond, Virginia.

September 20, 1926 -- Public comments may be submiited
until this date.

Notice is hereby given in accordance with § 9-6.14:7.1 of
the Code of Virginia that the State Board of Health
intends to repeal regulations entitled: 12 VAG 5-370-1C
et seq., Rules and Regulations for the Licensure of
Nursing Homes, and adopt regulations entitled: 12
VAC 5-371-10 et seq,, Regulations for the Licensure
of MNursing Homes. The proposed reguiations
constitute a  comprehensive  revision of  the
Commonwealth’s existing reguiations addressing nursing
homes, which were adopted in 1980, This area of the
health care field has changed dramatically since then
and the proposed regulations are intended o address
current conditions, while assuring safe, adequate, and
efficient nursing home operations and promoting health
safety and adequate care of nursing home residents.

Statutory Authority: §§ 32.1-12 and 32.1-127 of the Code of
Virginia.

Contact: Nancy R. Hofheimer, Director, Office of Health
Facilities Regulations, Department of Health, 3600 W, Broad

St., Suite 218, Richmond, VA 23230, telephone (804) 367-
2102 or FAX (804) 367-2149.

BOARD OF HEALTH PROFESSIONS

August 23, 1996 -- Public comments may be submitted untit
this date,

Notice is hereby given in accerdance with § 9-6.14:7.1 of
the Code of Virginia that the Board of Health Professions
intends to adopt regulations entitled: Regulations
Governing Standards for Dietitians and Nutritionists.
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The reguiation establishes minimal standards for the use
of the titles of dietitian or nutritionist in accordance with
provisions of § 54.1-2731 of the Code of Virginia. -

Statulory Authority: §§ 54.1-2400 and 54.1-2731 of the Code
of Virginia.

Contact: Elaine J. Yeatls, Senior Regulatory Analyst,
Depastment of Health Professions, 6606 W. Broad St., 4th
Floor, Richmond, VA 23230, telephone (804) 662-9918.

BOARD FOR HEARING AID SPECIALISTS

September 9, 1996 - 8:30 a.m. -- Open Meeting

Department of Professional and Occupational Regulation,
3600 West Broad Street, Conference Room 2, Richmond,
Virginia k&

A general board meeting.

Contact: David E. Dick, Assistant Director, Department of

Professional and Occupational Regulation, 3600 W. Broad.

i, Richmond, VA 23230, telephone (804) 367-8507, FAX
(BU4) 367-2475 or (804) 367-9753/TDD B

STATE COUNCIL OF HIGHER EDUCATION FOR
VIRGINIA

1 August &, 1996 - 1 p.m. -- Open Meeting

State Council of Higher Education for Virginia, Monroe
Building, 101 North 14th Street, 9th Floor, Conference Room,
Richmond, Vlrglnaa. (Interprater for the deaf provided upon
request)

A meeting of the Executive Committee.

Contact: Michael McDoweli, Public Information Director,
State Council of Higher Education for Virginia, 101 N. 14th
St, 9ih Floor, Richmond, VA 23218, telephone (804) 225-
2637.

VIRGINIA HIGHER EDUCATION TUITION TRUST
FUND

August 22, 1986 - 1 p.m. -- Open Meeting
James Monroe Bualdmg, 101 North 14th Street, 3rd Floor,
Richimond, Virginia.te

A regular meeting.

Contact: Diana F. Cantor, Executive Director,
Higher Education Tuition Trust
Buliding, 101 N, 14th St.,
telephone (B04) 746-3634.

Virginia
Fund, James Monroe
3rd Floor, Richmond, VA 23219,

HOPEWELL INDUSTRIAL SAFETY COUNCIL
August 6, 1996 - 8 a.m. -- Open Mesting

September 3, 1996 - 8 a.m. -- Open Meeting

Hopewell Communi& Center, Second and City Point Road,
Hopewell, Virginia. l (Interpreter for the deaf provided upon
request)

Local Emergency Preparedness Committee Meeting on
emergency preparedness as required by SARA Title |l

Contaci: Robert Brown, Emergency Services Coordinator,
300 N. Main St., Hopewell, VA 23860, telephone (804) 541-
2298.

YVIRGINIA HOUSING DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY

1 August 20, 1996 - 11 a.m. -- Open Meeting
Virginia Housing Development Authority, 601 South Belvidere
Street, Richmond, Virginia.

A regular meeting of the Beard of Commissioners to (i)
review and, if appropriate, approve the minutes from the
prior monthly mesting; (ii) consider for approval and
ratification mortgage loan commitments under its various
programs; (iii} review the authority’s operations for the
priot month; and (iv}) consider such other matters and
take such. other actions as it may deem appropriate.
Various committees of the Board of Commissioners may
also meet before or after the regular meeting and
consider matters within their purview. The planned
agenda of the meeting will be available at the offices of
the authority one week prior to the date of the meeting.

Contact: J. Judson McKellar, Jr., General Counsel, Virginia
Housing Development Authority, 601 S. Belvidere Street,
Richmond, VA 23220, telephone (804) 782-1986.

STATEWIDE INDEPENDENT LIVING COUNCIL

t August 7, 1986 - 9 a.m. -- Open Meeting
Department of Rehabilitative Services, 8004 Franklin Farms
Drive, Richmond, Virginia.

A meeting to conduct regular business.

Contact:  Jim Rothrock, Statewide Independent Living
Council Staff, 1802 Marroit Rd., Richmond, VA 23229,
telephone (804) 673-0119, toll-free 1-800-552-5019/TDD and
Voice, or {804) 662-9040/TDD &

ADVISORY COMMISSION ON
INTERGOVERNMENTAL RELATIONS

T Sepiember 9, 1396 - 1 p.m. -- Open Meeting
Riverfront Plaza, West Tower, 901 East Byrd Street, Suite
900, Richmond, Virginia. -

A regular meeting to discuss such matters as may be
presented.
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Contact: Adele Maclean, Secretary, 702 FEighth Street
Oftice Bldg., Richmond, VA 23219-1924, telephone (804)
786-6508, FAX (804) 371-7999, or (804) 786-1860/TDD &

STATE LAND EVALUATION ADVISORY COUNCIL

t August 13, 1996 - 10 a.m. -- Open Meeting
Department of Taxation, 2220 West Broad Street, Richmond,
Virginia &

A meesting to adopt suggested ranges of values for
agricuitural, horticultural, forest and open-space land use
and the use-value assessment program.

Contact: H. Keith Mawyer, Property Tax Manager,
Department of Taxation, Office of Customer Services,
Property Tax Unit, 2220 W, Broad St., Richmond, VA 23220,
“telephone (804} 367-8020.

LIBRARY BOARD

1 August 5, 1896 - 10 a.m. -- Open Mesting
The Library of Virginia, 11th Street at Capitol Square, 3rd
Floor, Supreme Court Room, Richmond, Virginia.

An organizational meeting to provide an orientation to
board members with a brief overview of library programs.

Contact: Jean H. Taylor, Secretary to the State Librarian,
The Library of Virginia, 11th Street at Capitol Squars,
Richmond, VA 23219, telephone {804} 786-2332.

COMMISSION ON LOCAL GOVERNMENT

T September 16, 1996 - 10 a.m. -- Open Meeling
Richmond area; site to be determined.

A regular meeting of the commission to consider such
matters as may be presented. Persons desiring to
participate in the meeting and requiring special

. accommodations or interpreter services should contact
the commission.

Contact: Barbara Bingham, Administrative Assistant,
Commission on Local Government, 702 Eighth Street Office
Bidg., Richmond, VA 23219-1924, telephone (804} 786-6508,
FAX (804) 371-7999 or (804) 786-1860/TDD B

BOARD OF MEDICAL ASSISTANCE SERVICES

T August 20, 1996 - 10 a.m. -- Open Meeting

Department of Medical Assistance Services, 600 East Broad
Street, Suite 1300, Board Room, Richmond, Virginials3
{Interpreter for the deaf provided upon request)

A meeting 1o discuss medical assistance service and to
take action on issues pertinent to the board.

Contact: Cynthia Klisz, Board Liaison, Depariment of
Medical Assistance Services, 800 E. Broad St., Suite 1300,

Richmond, VA 23219, ielephone (804) 786-8099, FAX (804)
371-4981, or toll-free 1-800-343-0634/TDD B

DEPARTMENT OF MEDICAL ASSISTANCE
SERVICES .

August 9, 1996 -- Public comments may be submitted until
this date.

Notice is hereby given in accordance with § 9-6.14.7.1 of
the Code of Virginia that the Depariment of Medical
Assistance Services intends to amend reguiations
entitled: 12 VAC 30-50-95 through 12 VAC 30-80-310.
Amount, Duration and Scope of Services, and 12
VAC 30-80-10 et seq. Methods and Standards for
Establishing Payment Rates—-Other Types of Care.
The purpose of this proposal is to promulgate regulations
which would allow DMAS to require the use of
prescription orders for certain over-the-counter {OTC)
therapeutic products as a first approach to drug therapy
where these products may be used in place of a more
expensive legend-cnly drug. Payment for the more
expensive legend drug would be denied, except in a few
specified conditions, unless initial treatment was initiated
using these less costly OTC drugs and the results of the
OTC therapy were found to be unsatisfactory.

DMAS must implement cost-saving measures in its
covered pharmacy services. Among these,
enhancements to the Point-of-Service (POS) automated
system related to the Prospective Drug Utilization
Review (ProDUR) program have been identified as a
priority.  Additionally, DMAS must develop a Prior
Authorization {PA)} program. The two initiatives, in
tandem, are well suited to implementation in the interest
of economy and patient safety. This OTC program will
enable the partial fulfillment of the required budget
reduction.

Historically, the Joint Legislative Audit and Review
Commission recommended, in 1993, that Medicaid cover
OTC drugs. Also, in 1994, the American Medical
Association adopted a policy which recommended to
physicians that they adopt the practice of prescribing
OTC medications to their patients.

As a result of the increased movement of drug products
from prescription only (legend) to OTC status during
recent years, a large number of effective drug preducts
are avalilable to the public in dosage forms/sirengths
previously obtainable only on prescription. These have
been reviewed extensively by expert panels at the U.S.
Food and Drug Administration (FDA) and deemed safe
and effective, The increased efficacy and cost savings
of using these products justifies the initiation of a
program to enhance the pharmacy services by providing
certain OTC drugs as therapeutic alternatives to costly
legend products.

DMAS expects this proposed policy to have a positive
impact on families because it recommends the
expansion of covered pharmacy services to include
certain  OTC drugs which, at least for the
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neninstitutionalized popuiation, have heretofore not been
covered. This will alleviate some of this financial burden
which has been borne by families.

These savings are a part of the savings which are
required in Chapter 853, liem (E}8), the 1995
Appropriations Act.  This initiative should produce cost
saving in individual patient care in the proposed
categories. The extent will vary with the product
category. Qverall, the initiative should result in cost
savings. While individual patient costs may decrease,
the population served is composed of those having high
utilization problems, such as ulcer patients and patients
suffering with inflammatory diseases such as arthritis.
Therefore, early intervention with these products in a
larger population may result in a smaller decrease in
expenditures tham might otherwise be anticipated.
However, cost savings in the program as a whole may be
significant if this early intervention resuits in fewer
serious complications and hospitalizations.

The numbers of prescribers and pharmacy providers
should not be affected. The program will be
implemented statewide and no negative impact is
anticipated to providers. Recipienis who may have been
taking OTC products in the past with good success, will
be allowed under this initiative to obtain those products
by doctor's orders. This will result in a savings to the
patient, who will now pay only the co-pay instead of full
OTC price. Patient compliance should improve as a
result, thereby decreasing the potential for additional,
more costly therapies. The overall effect is expected to
be cost savings to the public in the Medicaid program.

Statutory Authority: § 32.1-325 of the Code of Virginia.

Public comments may be submitted until August 9, 1996, to
David Shepherd, Pharmacy Services, Division of Program
Operations, Department of Medical Assistance Services, 600
East Broad Street, Suite 1300, Richmond, VA 23219.

Contact: Victoria Simmaons or Roberta Jonas, Regulatory
Coordinators, Department of Medical Assistance Services,
600 E. Bread St, Suite 1300, Richmond, VA 23219,
felephone (804) 371-8850.

*hkhkhk kKKK

August 23, 1996 -- Public comments may be submitted until
this date.

Notice is hereby given in accordance with § 9-6.14:7.1 of
the Code of Virginia that the Department of Medical
Assistance Services intends to amend regulations
entitled: 12 VAC 30-10-10 et seq. State Plan for
Medical Assistance Services: Generai Provisions
and adopt regulations entitted: 12 VAC 30-120-360 et
seq. Part VI, Medallion Il. The proposed regulations
govern mandatory HMO enroliment in accordance with
the 1995 Appropriations Act. Several technical changes
are also being made.

Statutory Authority: § 32.1-325 of the Code of Virginia.

Public commenis may be submitted until August 23, 1996, to
Susan Prince, Program Delivery Systems, Bepartment of
Medical Assistance Services, 600 East Broad Street, Suite
1300, Richmond, Virginia 23219.

Contact: Victoria P. Simmons or Hobera J. Jonas,
Regulatory Coordinator, Department of Medical Assistance
Services, 600 E. Broad Si., Suite 1300, Richmond, VA
23219, telephone (804) 371-8850.

{ August 18, 1896 - 8:30 a.m. -- Open Meeting

f August 19, 19586 - 3 p.m. -- Public Hearing

1 August 29, 1996 - 9:30 a.m. -- Open Meating

Faifax Government Center, 12000 Government Center
Parkway, Fairfax, Virginialef (Interpreter for the deaf provided
upon request)

A meeting of the workgroup to develop alternative patient
focused models for the inclusion of the mentally disabled
population in a mandatory managed care environment
for residents of Noithern Virginia on Virginia Medicaid.

Contact: Neil Skinner, Executive Secretary, Department of
Medical Assistance Services, 600 E. Broad St.,. Suite 1300,
Richmond, VA 23219, telephone (804) 225-4218, FAX (804)
225-4512, or toll-free 1-800-343-0634/TDD &8

Drug Utilization Review Board

August 22, 1996 - 2 p.m. -- Open Meeting
Department of Medical Assistance Services, 600 East Broad
Street, Suite 1300, Board Room, Richmond, Virginia.l&

A meeting to conduct routine business.

Contact: Marianne R. Rollings, Pharmacist Coordinator,
Department of Medical Assistance Services, 600 E. Broad
St., Suite 1300, Richmond, VA 23219, telephone (804) 786-
3820 or FAX (804) 786-0414.

Virginia Medicaid Pharmacy Prior Authorization
Committee

August 12, 1996 - 1 p.m. - Public Hearing
General Assembly Building, 910 Capitol Square, House
Room D, Richmond, Virginia fed

A public hearing to receive comments on pharmaceutical
products that will be recommended for prior authorization
to the Board of Medical Assistance Services.

Contact: David Shepherd, Pharmacy Supervisor,
Department of Medical Assistance Services, 600 E. Broad
St., Suite 1300, Richmond, VA 23219, telephone (804) 786-
3820 or FAX (804) 786-0414.

Pharmacy Liaison Commitiee

August 7, 1996 - 1 p.m. -- Open Meeting
Department of Medical Assistance Services, 600 East Broad
Street, Suite 1300, Board Room, Richmond, Virginia.les

A meeting to conduct routine business.
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Contact: Marianne R. Roliings, Pharmacist Coordinator,
Department of Medical Assistance Services, 600 E. Broad
St., Suite 1300, Richmond, VA 23219, telephone (804) 786-
3820 or FAX {B04) 788-0414.

Prior'Authcrézaﬁdn/\iirginia Health 'Outcomieé'
Partnership Advisory Commitiea

August B, 1996 - 10 a.m. - Open Meeting
Department of Medical Assistance Services, 600 East Broad
Street, Suite 1300, Board Room, Richmond, Virginia &

A meeting o conduct routine business of the committes,
inctuding a discussion of implementation of a prior
authorization program for Virginia Medicaid.

Contact: David Shepherd, Pharmacist Supervisor,
- Department of Medical Assistance Services, 600 E. Broad
St., Buite 1300, Richmond, VA 23219, telephone (804) 786-
3820 or FAX (804) 786-0414.

BOARD OF MEDICINE

Informal Conference Committes

T August 9, 1986 - 2:30 p.m. -- Open Mesting
Department of Health Professions, 6606 West Broad Street,
5th Floor, Richmond, Virginia.

1 August 15, 1896 - 9 a.m. ~- Open Meeling
Sheraton Inn_, 2801 Flank Road, Fredericksburg, Virginia.

August 15, 1936 - 2 a.m. -- Open Meeting .
Department of Health Professions, 6606 West Broad Strest,
5th Floor, Richmond, Virginia.

August 23, 1996 - 9 a.m. -- Open Meeting
Fort Magruder Inn, Route 60, Conference Center,
Williamsburg, Virginia.

+ August 27, 1996 - 9 a.m. - Open Mesting
Sheraton Inn, 2801 Flank Road, Fredericksburg, Virginia.

T September 4, 1926 - @ a.m. -- Open Meeting
Roanoke Marriott Hotel, 2801 Hershberger Road, Roanoke,
Virginia.

T September 13, 1998 - 9 a.m. -- Open Meeting
Fort Magruder Inn and Conference Center,
Willlamsburg, Virginia.

Route 60,

1 September 17, 1996 - § a.m. -- Open-Meeting
Sheraton Inn, 2801 Flank Road, Fredericksburg, Virginia.

The Intormal Conference Committee, composed of three
members of the board, will inguire into allegations that
certain practitioners may have violated laws and
regulations governing the practice of medicine and other
healing arts in Virginia. The committee will meet in open
and clesed sessions pursuant to § 2.1-344 A 7 and A 15
of the Code of Virginia. Public comment will not be
received. '

Contact:  Karen W. F’errme Deputy Execunve Director,
Board of Medicine, 6606 W. Broad. St., 4th Floor, Rlchmond
VA 23230-1717, telephone (804) 662- 7693 FAX (804) 662-
9943 or (804} 662- 7197/TDD @

Credentlais Committee

t August 10,1996 - 8 a.m. -- Open’ Meeimg
Department of Heaith Professmns 6606 West Broad Street,
5th Floor, Board Rooms 3 and 4; Richmond, Virginia &

The committee-will meet in open and Closed session to
conduct. general business, interview and review medical
credentials ~ of - applicants “applying ~ for- licensuré in
Virginia, and to discuss any other items which may come
before the board. The committee will receive public
comments’ of those persons appearing on behalf of
andldates

Contact: Warren W. Koontz, M.D.,, Executive Director,
Department of Health Professions, 6606 W. Broad St., 4th
Floor, Richmond, VA 23230-1717, telephone {804) 662- 9908
FAX (804) 662-9943 or (804) 662-7197/TDD B

Executive Commnttee
t August 9, 1996 - 8 a.m..-- Open Meeting.

Deparntment of Health Professions, 6606 West BroadS’(reet -

5th Floor, Board Rooms 2 and 3, Richmond, Virginia. &

The committee will meet in open and closed session to:
{ih review disciplinary files requiring administrative action;
(i} adopt amendmenis for approval of promulgation of
regulations as' presented; and (i} act on other issues
that come before the board. - The chairman will entertain
public comments on agenda items for 10 minutes
following adoption of the agenda.

Contact: Warren W. Koontz, M.D.,, -Executive. Director,
Department of Health Professions, 6606 W. Broad St., 4th
Floor, Richmond, VA 23230-1717, telephone (804) 662-9960,
FAX (B04) 662-9943 or {B04) 662- 719?/T DD ﬂ

DEPARTMENT OF MENTAL HEALTH, MENTAL
RETARDATION AND SUBSTANCE ABUSE
SERVICES |

August 23, 1996 - 2 a.m. -- Public Hearing

Department of Mental Health, Mental Retardation . and
Substance Abuse Services, James Madison Building, 109
Governor_Street, 5th Floor Conference Room, Richmond,
Virginia.led (Interpreter for the deaf provided upon request)

A public, hearing to receive public. comments on the
Virginia Substance Abuse Prevention and Treatment and
Community Mental Health Services Block Grant
Applications for Federal Fiscal Year 1297. Copies of this
application are available for review at the Office of
Mental Health, Mental Retardation and Substance Abuse
Services, James Madison Building, 12th Floor, and each
community services board office. Comments may be
made at the hearing or in writing by no later than August
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"' 23, 1996, to the Office of the Commissioner, Department
of Mental Health, Mental Retardation and Substance
Abuse Services, P.Q. Box 1797, Richmond, VA 23218.
Any person wishing to make a presentation at the
hearing may call Stering Deal, Ph.D., Office of Mental
Health, Mental Retardation and Substance Abuse
Services, at (804) 371-2148 or (804) 371-8977/Voice
and TDD. Copies of oral statements should be filed at
the time of the hearing. Transtators for the deaf are
available on request.

Contact: Sterling Deal;, Ph.D., Resource Analyst,
Department of Mental Health, Mental Retardation and
Substance Abuse Services, P.O. Box 1797, Richmond, VA
23218, telephone (804) 371-2148, FAX (804) 371-0091, or
(804) 371-8977/Voice and TDD B -

Secretary of Health and Human Resources System
Reform Task Force

August 8, 1996 - 1:30 p.m. -- Open Mesting
Virginia Mussum of Fine Anrs,
Auditorium, Richmond, Virginia.

A meeting to review comments on the proposed system
reform pilot projects proposed by the Department of
Mental Health, Mental Retardation and Substance Abuse
Services/Community Services Board Technicai Work
Group. Final proposals wili be presented to the joint
subcommittee established by House Joint Resolution No.
240 to study the publicly funded mental health system.

Contact: Cheryl Crawford, Administrative Assistant,
Department of Mental Health, Mental Retardation arid
Substance Abuse Services, F.O. Box 1797, Richmond, VA
23236, telephone {804) 371-5682 or FAX {804) 371-0091.

VIRGINIA MILITARY INSTITUTE

Board of Visitors

. September 21, 1996 - §:30 a.m. -- Open Meeting
Virginia Miiitary Institute, Smith Hall, Lexington, Virginia [

A regular meeting. There will be an opportunity for
public comment at approximately 8 a.m. immediatsly
after the Superintendent’s comments.

Contact: Colonel Edwin L. Dooley, Jr., Secretary, Board of
© Visjtors, Virginia Military Institute, Superintendent’s Office,
Lexington, VA 24450, telephone {540) 464-72086.

VIRGINIA MUSEUM OF NATURAL HISTORY

Board of Trustees

August 10, 1996 - 7 a.m. -- Open Meeting B
English Inn, 2000 Morton Drive, Chartottesville, Virginia 8

2800 Grove Avenue,‘

A meeting of the Research and Collections Committee to
discuss (i) appointment of research associates; (ii)
appointment of senior fellow; and (i) revisions to
collections policy.

Contact: Rhonda J. Knighton, Administrative Staff Assistant,
Virginia Museum of Natural History, 1001 Douglas Ave.,
Martinsville, VA 24112, telephone (540} 666-8616 or (540)
666-8638/TDD &

August 10, 1996 - 7:45 a.m. -- Open Meeting _
English Inn, 2000 Morton Drive, Charlottesville, Virginia. B3

A meeting of the Development Commitiee to discuss
development issues related to “Dinosaurs!” exhibit,

Contact: Rhonda J. Knighton, Administrative Staff Assistant,
Virginia Museum of Natural History, 1001 Douglas Ave.,
Martinsville, VA 24112, telephone (540) 666-8616 or (540)
666-8638/TDD ‘&

BOARD OF NURSING

1 August 13, 1996 - ¢ a.m. -- Open Meeting

1 August 19, 1996 - 9 a.m. -- Open Meeting

t August 21, 1996 - 9 a.m. -- Open Meeting

t August 27, 1996 - 9 a.m. -- Open Meeting

1 August 28, 1996 - @ a.m. -- Open Meeting

Department of Health Professions, 6606 West Broad Street,
Fifth Floor, Richmond, Virginia. & (Interpreter for the deat
provided upon request)

A Special Conference Committee will conduct informal
conferences with licensees and certificate holders to
determine what, if any, action should be recommended
to the Board of Nursing. Public comment will not be
received.

Contact: Nancy K. Durrett, R.N., Executive Director, Board
of Nursing, 6606 W. Broad St., 4th Floor, Richmond, VA
23230-1717, telephone {804) 662-9909, FAX {804) 662-9943
or (804) 662-7197/TDD B

BOARD FOR OPTICIANS

1 September 13, 1996 - 10 a.m. -- Open Meeting
Department of Professional and Occupational Regulation,
3600 West Broad Street, 4th Floor, Richmond, Virginia.
(Interpreter for the deaf provided upon request)

An open meeting to discuss regulatory review and other
matters requiring board action. In addition, discussion of
examination, election of officers, monthly budget
stalements enforcement cases and apprenticeship
program will be discussed. A public comment period will
be held at the beginning of the meeting. Persons
desiring to pardicipate in the meeting and requiring
special accommodations or interpretive services should
contact the board at least 10 days prior to the meeting so
that suitable arrangements can be made for appropriate
accommodations. The department fully complies with
the Americans with Disabilities Act. .
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Contact: Nancy Taylor Feldman, Assistant Director,
Department of Professional and Occupational Regulation,
3600 W. Broad St., Richmond, VA 23230-4917, telephone
(804) 367-8590, FAX (804) 367-2474 or (804) 367-
9753/TDDR

BOARD OF OPTOMETRY

t September 6, 1996 - 9 a.m, -- Public Hearing
Department of Health Professions, 6606 West Broad Street,
Fifth Floor, Conference Room 3, Richmond, Virginia.
{Interpreter for the deaf provided upon request)

A public hearing on proposed amendments to 18 VAC
105-30-10 et seq., Regulations on Certification of
Optometrists to use therapeutic pharmaceutical agents.
Amendments to the regulations on diseases and
conditions which may be treated and the listing of
therapeutic  pharmaceutical agents are being
promulgated as provided for in §§ 54.1-3223 and 9-
6.14:4.1 A 18. The board may consider other items of
business as may be necessary.

Contact: Elizabeth A. Carter, Ph.D., Executive Director,
Department of Health Professions, 6606 W. Broad St., 4th
Floor, Richmond, VA 23230-1717, telephone (804) 662-9910
or (804) 662-7197/TDD B

1 September 18, 1996 - 8 a.m. -- Open Meeting

Department of Health Professions, 6606 West Broad Street,
Fifth Floor, Conference Room 3, Richmond, Virginia.
{Interpreter for the deaf provided upon request}

A board meeting to adopt amendments to 18 VAC 105-
30-10 et seq., Regulations on Certification of
Optometrists to use therapeutic pharmaceutical agents.
Amendments to the regulations on diseases and
conditions which may be treated and the listing of
therapeutic  pharmaceutical agents are  being
promulgated as provided for in §§ 54.1-3223 and 9-
6.14:4.1 A 18. The board may consider other items of
business as may be necessary.

Contact: Elizabeth A. Carter, Ph.D., Executive Director,
Department of Health Professions, 6606 W. Broad St., 4th
Floor, Richmond, VA 23230-1717, telephone (804) 862-9910
or {804) 662-7197/TDD ‘B

BOARD OF PHARMACY

August 5, 1396 - 9 a.m. -- Open Meeting
August 6, 1996 - 9 a.m. (if needed) -- Open Meeting

Department of Health Professions, 6606 West Broad Street,
5th Floor, Conference Room 2, Richmond, Virginia.

A formal hearing before a panel of the board. Public
comments will not be received.

Contact: Scofti Russell, Executive Director, Board of
Pharmacy, 6606 W. Broad St., 4th Floor, Richmond, VA
23230, telephone (804) 662-9911.

August 8, 1996 - 2 p.m. -- Public Hearing
Department of Health Professions, 6606 West Broad Street,
5th Floor, Conference Room 2, Richmond, Virginia.

August 12, 1996 - 4 p.m. -- Public Hearing
Cavalier Hotel, Oceanfront and 42nd Streets, Coral Reef
Room, Virginia Beach, Virginia.

August 21, 1996 - 11 a.m. -- Public Hearing
Northern Virginia Community College, 8333 Little River
Turnpike, Seminar Rooms B, C, and D, Annandale, Virginia.

August 27, 1996 - 1 p.m. -- Public Hearing
Roanocke Airport Marriott, 2801 Hershberger Road, N.W.,
Salon D, Roanoke, Virginia.

A public hearing to receive information conceming the
impact of workload and workplace conditions on a’
pharmacist's ability to provide safe and eifective
pharmacy services to the public.

Contact:  Scotti Russell, Executive . Director, Board of
Pharmacy, 6606 W. Broad St., 4th Floor, Richmond, VA
23230, telephone (804) 662-9911.

1 August 20, 1996 - 9 a.m. - Open Meeting
Department of Health Professions, 6606 West Broad Street,
5th Floor, Conference Room 2, Richmond, Virginia.

A board meeting and formal hearing. This is a public
meeting and there will be a 15-minute public comment
period beginning at 9:15 a.m.

Contact: Scotti Russell, Execulive Director, Board of
Pharmacy, 6606 W. Broad St., 4th Floor, Richmond, VA
23230, telephone (804) 662-9911. .

BOARD OF PROFESSIONAL COUNSELORS AND
MARRIAGE AND FAMILY THERAPISTS

August 23, 1996 - Public comments may be submitted until
this date.

Notice is hereby given in accordance with § 9-6.14:7.1 of
the Code of Virginia that the Board of Prolessional
Counselors and Marriage and Family Therapisis intends
to amend regulations entitled: 18 VAC 115-20-10 et
seq. Regulations Governing the Practice of
Professional Counseling. The purpose of the
proposed amendments is to reduce fees for application
processing, registration of supervision, and renewal of
license.

Statutory Authority: §§ 54.1-113, 54.1-2400, and 54.1-3503
of the Code of Virginia.

Contact: Janet Delorme, Deputy Executive Director,
Department of Health Professions, 6606 W. Broad 5t, 4th
Floor, Richmond, VA 23230, telephone (B04) 662-9575, FAX
(804) 662-9943, or (804) 662-7197/TDD &
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August 23, 1896 - Public comments may be submitted until
this date.

Motice is hereby given in accordance with § 9-6.14:7.1 of
the Code of Virginia that the Board of Professional
Counselors and Marriage and Family Therapists intends
o amend regulations entitled: 18 VAC 115-30-10 et
seq. Begulations Governing the Certification of
Substance Abuse Counselors. The purpose of the
proposed amendments is to reduce fees for application
processing, registration of supervision, and renewal of
certificate.

Statutory Authority: §§ 54.1-2400 and 54.1-3503 of the Code
of Virginia.

Contact: Janet Delorme, Deputy Executive Direcior,
Department of Health Professions, 6606 W. Broad St., 4th
Floor, Richmond, VA 23230, telephone (804) 662-9575, FAX
(804) 662-9%43, or (804) 662-7197/TDD &

T August 22, 1596 - 11 a.m. -- Open Meeting
Depariment of Health Professions, 6606 West Broad Street,
4th Floor, Richmond, Virginia [

Apinformat conference will be held pursuant § 9-6.14:11
of the Code of Virginia. Public comment will not be
heard,

Board of
Family
Richmaond, VA

Contact: Evelyn B. Brown, Executive Director,
Professional Counselors and Marrage and
Therapists, 66056 W. Broad St., 4th Floor,
23230, telephone (804) 662-9967.

HOTE: CHANGE IN MEETING TIME AND MEETING
DESCRIPTION

T August 23, 1986 - 8 a.m. -- Open Meeting

Department of Health Professions, 6606 West Broad Strest,
5th Floor, Richmond, Virginia [

An Executive Committee meeting to review credentials,
beginning at 8 a.m. Public comment will not be heard.
At 8:30 a.m. there will be an informal conference held
pursuant to § 9-8.14:11 of the Code of Virginia to
consider credentials. Public comment will not be heard.
At 10 aum. there will be regular meeting to conduct
general board business; consider commitiee reports,
corrgspondence, and any other matters under the
jurisdiction of the board; conduct regulatory review;
consider proposed regulations for marriage and family
therapisis; and consider amendments for proposed
regulation for certified rehabilitation providers. There will
be a 30-minute general public comment period,
beginning at 10;15 a.m.

Contact: Evelyn B. Brown, Executive Director, or Joyce D.
Willizuns, Administrative Assistant, Board of Professional
Counselors and Marriage and Family Therapists, 6606 W.
Broad Si., 4th Floor, Richmond, VA 23230, telephone (804)
662-9912.

BOARD OF PSYCHOLOGY

1 August 6, 1996 - 9:30 a.m. -- Open Meeting
Department of Health Professions, 6606 West Broad Stieet,
5th Floor, Conference Room 1, Richmond, Vlrg|n|a-
(Interpreter for the deaf provided upon request)

A regular meeting of the board. Public comments will be
received beginning at 9:45 a.m.

Contact: M. LaDonna Duncan, Administrative Assistant,
Department of Health Professions, 6606 W. Broad St., 4th
Floor, Richmond, VA 23230-1717, telephone {804) 662-9913,
FAX (804) 662-9943, or (804) 662-7197/TDD &

REAL ESTATE APPRAISER BOARD

August 27, 19986 - 10 a.m. -- Open Meeting
Depariment of Professional and Occupatlonal Regulation,
3600 West Broad Street, Richmond, Virginia &

A general business meeting. Persons desiring to
participate in the meeting and requiring special
accommodations or interpreter services should contact
the depariment at least two weeks prior to the meeting
so that suitable arrangemenis can be made. The
department fully complies with the Americans with
Disabilities Act.

Contact: Karen W. O'Neal, Assistant Director, Department
of Professional and Occupational Regulation, 3600 W, Bread
St., Richmond, VA 23230, telephone (804) 367-0500, FAX
{804) 367-2475 or (804) 367-9753/TDD &

' REAL ESTATE BOARD

August 8, 1996 - 9 a.m. -- Open Méeting
Department of Professional and Occupational Regulation,
3600 West Broad Street, Richmond, Virginia &

A meeting to conduct regu!atory review. Persons desiring
to participate in the meeting and requiring special
accommodations or interpreter services should contact
the board al least two weeks prior to the meeting. The
department fully complies with the Americans with
Disabilities Act.

Contact: Karen W, O'Neal, Assistant Director, Department
of Professicnal and Occupational Regulation, 3600 W, Broad
St., Richmond, VA 23230, telephone (804) 367-8552, FAX
(804) 367-2475, or (804) 367-9753/TDD &

August 22, 1996 - 9 a.m. -- Open Meeting
Department of Professional and Occupational Regulation,
3600 West Broad Street, Richmond, Virginia [

A general business meeting. Persons desiring to
participate in the meeting and requiing special
accommodations or interpreter services should contact
the board at least two weeks prior to the meeting. The
department fully complies with the Americans with
Disabilities Act.
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Contact: Karen W. O'Neal, Assistant Director, Department
of Professional and Occupational Regulation, 3600 W. Broad
Si., Richmond, VA 23230, telephone (804) 367-8552, FAX
(804) 367-2475, or (B04) 367-9753/TDD &

August 22, 1996 - 9 a.m. - Open Meeting
Alcoholic Beverage Control Board, 501 Montgomery Street,
Alexandria, Virginia.&8

A mesting to conduct a fermal hearing pursuant to the
Administrative Process Act in regard 1o the Real Estate
Beard v. Paulette Heins, File Number 93-01863.

Contact: Stacie Camden, Legal Assistant, Department of
Professional and Occupational Regulation, 3600 W. Broad
St., Richmond, VA 23230, telephone (804) 367-2393, FAX
{804) 367-2475, or (804) 367-9753/TDD &

VIRGINIA RECYCLING MARKETS DEVELOPMENT
COUNCIL

Goals Subcommittee

t August 19, 1996 - 2:30 p.m. -- Open Meeting
General Assembly Building, 910 Capitol Square, 4th Floor,
West Conference Room, Richmond, Virginia.

A meeting of the Goals Subcommittee to decide whether
to change or maintain the state goal of 25% recycling.
Please contact Richard Lerner at (804) 237-6666 for
details.

Contact: Paddy Katzen, Special Assistant to the Secretary
of Natural Resources, Department of Environmental Quality,
629 E. Main St., Richmond, VA 23219, telephone (804) 698-
4488,

VIRGINIA RESOURCES AUTHORITY

t August 13, 1996 - 9:30 a.m. -- Open Meeting
The Mutual Building, 909 East Main Street, Suite 607, Board
Room, Richmond, Virginia.

The board will meet to approve minutes of the meeting of
the prior month and to consider other matters and take
other actions as it may deem appropriate. The planned
agenda of the meeting will be available at the offices of
the authority one week prior to the date of the meeting.
Public comments will be received at the beginning of the
meeting.

Contact: Shockley D. Gardner, Jr., Executive Director,
Virginia Resources Authority, P. O. Box 1300, Mutual
Building, Richmond, VA 23218, telephone (804) 644-3100 or
FAX (804) 644-3109.

RICHMOND HOSPITAL AUTHORITY

Board of Commissioners

+ August 22, 1996 - 5 p.m. -- Open Meeting
Richmond Nursing Home, 1900 Cool Lane, 2nd Floor,
Classroom, Richmond, Virginia.

A monthly board meeting to discuss nursing home
operations and related matters.

Contact: Marilyn H. West, Chairman, Richmond Hospital
Authority, P.O. Box 548, 700 E. Main St., Suite 904,
Richmond, VA 23219-0548, telephone (804) 782-1938.

DEPARTMENT FOR RIGHTS OF VIRGINIANS WITH
DISABILITIES

Protestion and Advocacy for Individuals with
Mental Hliness Advisory Council

August 15, 1996 - 9 a.m. -- Open Meeting

Department of Hehabilitative Services, 8004 Franklin Farms
Drive, Koger Center, Richmond, Virginial& (Interpreter for
the deaf provided upon request)

A regularly scheduled bi-monthily meeting of the council.
There will be an opportunity for public comment
beginning at 11 a.m.

Contact: Jim Hobgood, Program Coordinator, Depariment
for Rights of Virginians with Disabilities, Ninth Street Office
Building, 202 N. 9th St., 9th Floor, Richmond, VA 23219,
telephone (804) 225-2042, FAX (804) 225-3221, or toll-free
1-800-552-3962.

SEWAGE HANDLING AND DISPOSAL APPEALS
REVIEW BOARD

August 21, 1996 - 10 a.m. -- Open Meeting

Henrico County Government Center, Administrative Board
Room, Parham and Hungary Springs Roads, Richmond,
Virginia &

t September 25, 1996 - 10 a.m. -- Open Meeting
Ramada Irn, 1130 Motel Drive, Allegheny Room, Woodstock,
Virginia.(e

The board will hear all administrative appeals of denials
of onsite sewage disposal systems permits pursuant to
§§ 32.1-166.1 et seq. and 9-6.14:12 of the Code of
Virginia and 12 VAC 5-610-10, Sewage Handiing and
Disposal Regulations.

Contact: Robert Hicks, Secretary to the Board, Sewage
Handling and Disposal Appeals Review Board, 1500 E. Main
St., Suite 11, P.Q. Box 2448, Richmond, VA 23218,

“telephone (804) 786-1750.
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VIRGINIA SMALL BUSINESS FINANCING
AUTHORITY

Loan Committee

T August 27, 1896 - 10 a.m. -- Open Meeling

1 September 24, 1996 - 10 a.m. -- Open Meeting
Depariment of Business Assistance, 901 East Byrd Street,
18th Floor, Main Board Room, Richmond, Virginia
(Interpreter for the deaf provided upon request)

A meeting lo review applications for loans submitted to
the auihority for approval.

Contact: Cathleen Surface, Executive Director, Virginia
Small Business Financing Authority, 901 E. Byrd St., 19th
Floor, Richmond, VA 23219, telephone (804) 371-8256, FAX
(804) 225-3384, or (804) 371-0327/TDD &

DEPARTMENT OF SOCIAL SERVICES

Divigion of Benefit Programs

1 August 14, 1996 - 10 a.m. -- Public Hearing
Department of Social Services, 730 East Broad Sireet, Lower
Level, Conference Room 1, Richmond, Virginia.

A public hearing will be held to receive comments on the
proposed use of funds for the 1996-1997 Virginia Energy
Assistance Program.

Contact: Cathy N. Olivis, Program Specialist, Department of
Social Services, 730 E. Broad Si., Richmond, VA 23219,
telephone (804) 692-1750.

BOARD OF SOCIAL WORK

+ August 9, 1996 - 9 a.m. -- Open Meeting
Department of Health Professions, 6606 West Broad Street,
5th Floor, Room 4, Richmond, Virginia [t

A regular meeting. Public comment will be received at
9:15 a.m,

Contact: Evelyn B. Brown, Executive Director, Board of
Social Work, 6606 W. Broad St., Richmond, VA 23230-1717,
telephone (804) 662-9914, FAX (804) 662-9943, or (804)
662-7197/TDD B

COMMONWEALTH TRANSPORTATION BOARD

August 14, 1996 - 2 p.m. -- Open Meeting

Department of Transportation, 1401 East Broad Street,
Richmong, Virginial (Interpreter for the deaf provided upen
request)

A work session of the board and the Department of
Transportation staff.

Contact: Robert E. Martinez, Secretary of Transportation,
1401 E. Broad St., Richmond, VA 23219, telephone (804)
786-8032.

August 15, 1996 - 10 a.m. -- Open Meeting

Department of Transportation, 1401 East Broad Street,
Richmond, Virginia.B (Interpreter for the deaf provided upon
request)

A monthly meeting of the board to vote on proposals
presented regarding bids, permits, additions and
deletions to the highway system, and any other matters
requiring board approval. Public comment will be
received at the outset of the meeting on items on the
mesting agenda for which the opportunity for public
comment has not been afforded the public in another
forum. Remarks will be limited to five minutes. Large
groups are asked to select one individual to speak for
the group. The board reserves the right to amend these
conditions. Separate commitiee meetings may be held
on call of the chairman. Contact Department of
Transpoitation Public Affairs at (804) 786-2715 for
schedule.

Contact: Robert E. Martinez, Secretary of Transportation,
1401 E. Broad St., Richmond, VA 23219, telephone (804)
786-8032.

TREASURY BOARD

August 21, 1896 - 9 a.m. -- Open Meeting
James Monroe Building, 101 North 14th Sireet, Treasury
Board Room, 3rd Floor, Richmond, Virginia B3

A regular meeting.

Contact: Gloria Hatchel, Administrative Assistant,
Department of the Treasury, James Monroe Bidg., 101 N.
14th St., Richmond, VA 23219, telephone (804) 371-6011.

BOARD OF VETERINARY MEDICINE

August 10, 1996 -- Public comments may be submitted uniil
this date.

Notice is hereby given in accordance with § 9-6.14:7.1 of
the Code of Virginia that the Board of Veterinary
Medicine intends to amend regulations entitled: 18 VAC
150-20-10 et seq. Regulations Governing the
Practice of Veterinary Medicine. The puipose of the
proposed amendments is to establish approved
providers of continuing education requirements for
retention of documents and conditions for waivers. This
action will replace emergency regulations which became
effective February 6, 1996.

Statutory Authority:  §§ 54.1-2400 and 54.1-3805.2 of the
Code of Virginia.

Contact: Elizabheth A. Carer, Ph.D., Executive Director,
Board of Veterinary Medicine, 6606 W. Broad St., 4th Fioor,
Richmond, VA 23230-1717, telephone {804) 662-7631, FAX
(804) 662-9943, or (804) 662-7197/TDD & ‘
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1 August 13, 1896 - 8:30 a.m. -- Open Meeting
Department of Health Professions, 6606 West Broad Street,
5th Floor, Conference Room 2, Richmond, Virginia,
{Interpreter for the deaf provided upon request)

A meeting to conduct regulatory review and general
board business.

Contact: Terri H. Behr, Administrative Assistant, Board of
Veterinary Medicine, 6606 W. Broad St., 4th Floor,
Richrnond, VA 23230-1717, telephone (804) 662-9915 or
{804) 662-7197/TDD B '

t August 14, 1996 - 9 a.m. -- Open Meeting

Department of Mealth Professions, 6606 West Broad Street,
5th Floor, Richmond, Virginia. (Interpreter for the deaf
provided upon reguest)

A meeting to conduct informal conferences.

Contact: Terri H. Behr, Administrative Assistant, Board of
Veterinary Medicine, 6606 W. Broad St., 4th Floor,
Richmond, VA 23230-1717, telephone (804) 662-9915 or
(804) 662-7197/TDD &

VIRGINIA RACING COMMISSION

% August 21, 1996 - 9:30 a.m. -- Open Meeting -
Tyler Building, 1300 East Main Street, Richmond, Virginia.

A regular meeting to include a report from Colonial
Downs.

Contact:  William H. Anderson, Policy Analyst, Virginia
Racing Commission, P.O. Box 1123, Richmond, VA 23218,
telephone (804) 371-7363, FAX (804} 371-6127 or {804) 371-
6169/TDD &

DEPARTMENT FOR THE VISUALLY HANDICAPPED

Vocational Rehabilitation Advisory Council

September 21, 1996 - 10 a.m.-- Open Meeting
Department for the Visually Handicapped, Administrative
Headquarters, 397 Azalea Avenue, Richmond, Virginia.
(Interpreter for the deaf provided upon request)

The council meets quarterly to advise the Department for
the Visually Handicapped on matters related to
vocational rehabilitation services for blind and visually
impaired citizens of the Commonwealth.

Contact: James G. Taylor, Vocational Rehabilitation
Program Director, Department for the Visually Handicapped,
397 Azalea Ave., Richmond, VA 23227, telephone (804) 371-
3140, toll-free 1-800-622-2155, or {804) 371-3140/TDD B

VIRGINIA COUNCIL ON VOCATIONAL EDUCATION

T August 12, 1996 - 2:30 p.m. -- Open Meeting
Patrick Henry Hotel, Jefferson Street, Roanoke, Virginia.

A council business session.

Contact: Jerry M. Hicks, Execuiive Director, Virginia Council
on Vocational Education, 7420-A Whitepine Rd., Richmond,
VA 23237, telephone (804) 275-6218.

VIRGINIA VOLUNTARY FORMULARY BOARD

1 September 11, 1996 - 10 a.m. -- Public Hearing
Washington Building, 1100 Bank Street, 2nd Fioor, Board
Room, Richmond, Virginia. B

A public hearing to consider the proposed adoption and
issuance of revisions to the Virginia Voluntary Formulary,
The proposed revisions to the formuiary add and delets
drugs and drug products to the fermulary that became
effective on January 15, 1896, and its most recent
supplement. Copies of the proposed revisions to the
formulary are available for inspection at the Virginia
Department of Health, Bureau of Pharmacy Services,
101 North 14th Street, Room 5-45, P.O. Box 2448,
Richmond, VA 23218. Written comments sent to the
above address and received prior to 5 p.m. on
September 11, 1996, will be made a part of the hearing
record.

Contact: James K Thomson, Director, Bureau of Pharmacy
Services, Virginia Voluntary Formulary, James Monroe Bldg.,
101 N. 14th St., Room S-45, Richmond, VA 23219, telephone
{804) 786-4325.

T October 24, 1996 - 10:30 a.m. -- Open Mesting
Washington Building, 1100 Bank Street, 2nd Foor, Board
Room, Richmond, Virginia &

A meeting to consider public hearing comments and
review new product dala for drug products pertaining to
the Virginia Voluntary Formulary.

Contact: James K. Thomson, Director, Bureau of Pharmacy
Services, Virginia Voluntary Formulary, James Monroe Bldg.,
101 N. 14th St., Room 3-45, Richmond, VA 23219, telephone
(804) 786-4326.

VIRGINIA WASTE MANAGEMENT BOARD

August 23, 1996 -- Public comments may be submitted until
5 p.m. on this date.

Natice is heraby given in accordance with § 9-6.14:7.1 of
the Code of Virginia that the Virginia Waste Management
Board intends to repeal regulations entitied: 9 VAC 20-
100-10 et seq., Yard Waste Composting Facility
Regulations and adopt regulations entitled: 9 VAC 20-
101-10 et seq., Vegetative Waste Management and
Yard Waste Composting Regulations. § VAC 20-100-
10 et seq. is being simultaneously incorporated into the
Vegetative Waste Management and Yard Waste
Composting Regulations and are therefore redundant
and unnecessary. 9 VAC 20-101-10 el seq. compiles,
establishes, and provides requirements for certain
faciliies that may be exempted from some or all of the
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Solid Waste Management Regulations or subject to
simplified procedures.

Statutory Authority: §§ 10.1-1402 and 10.1-1408.1 of the
Code of Virginia,

Contact: Robert G. Wickline, P.E., Depariment of
Environmental Cuality, P.O. Box 10009, Richmond, VA
23240-000%, telephone (804} 698-4213.

INDEPENDENT

STATE LOTTERY BOARD

August 28, 1996 - 9:30 a.m. -- Public Hearing

State Lotiery Depariment, 900 East Main Street, Richmeond,

Virginia.
Naotice is hereby given in accordance with § 9-6.14:7.1 of
the Code of Virginia that the State Loitery Board intends
to amend requlations entitled: 11 VAC 5-20-10 e seq.
Administration Regulations. The purpose of the
proposed amendments is o clarify procurement
exemptions and restrictions, clarify board meeting
requirements, remove sections that are duplicative of
Code of Virginia provisions when practical, and
incorperate housekeeping changes.

Statutory Authority: § 58.1-4007 of the Code of Virginia.

Contact: Barbara L. Robertson, Legislative, Regulatory and
Board Administrator, State Lottery Depariment, 800 E. Main
St., Richmond, VA 23218, telephone (804) 692-7774. '

K EEE Rk R

August 28, 1996 - 2:30 a.m. -- Public Hearing

Slate Loitery Departmenti, 800 East Main Street, Richmond,

Virginia.
Notice is hereby given in accordance with § 9-6.14:7.1 of
the Code of Virginia that the State Lottery Board intends
to amend regulations entitled: 11 VAC 5-30-10 et seq.
Instant Game Regulations. The purpose of the
proposed amendments is to clarify revocation or
suspensicn of a lottery retailer's license, autherize
cashing at lottery headquarters, eliminate claim form
requirernents, delete sections that are unnecessary or
duplicative, and make housekseping changes.

Statutory Authority: § 58.1-4007 of the Code of Virginia.

ontact: Barbara L. Robertson, Legislative, Regulatory and
Board Administrator, State Lottery Department, 900 E. Main
St., Richmond, VA 23219, telephone (804) 692-7774.

EERRE KK RS

August 28, 1996 - 9:30 a.m. -- Public Hearing
State Lottery Department, 900 East Main Street, Richmond,
Yirginia.

Notice is hereby given in accordance with § 9-6.14.7.1 of
the Code of Virginia that the State |_ottery Board intends
to amend regulations entitled: 11 VAC 5-40-10 et seq.
On-Line Game Regulations. The purpose of the
proposed amendments is to clanfy revocation or
suspension of a lottery retailer’s license, authorize
cashing at lottery headquarters, eliminate claim form
requirements, revise subscription plan, and make
housekeeping changes.

Statutory Authority. § 58.1-4007 of the Gode of Virginia.

Contact: Barbara L. Roberison, Legislative, Regulatory and
Board Administrator, State Lottery Department, 300 E. Main
St., Richmond, VA 23219, telephone (804) 692-7774.

LEGISLATIVE

COMMISSION ON YOUTH

August 5, 1996 - 10 a.m. -- Open Meeting

General Assembly Building, 910 Capitol Square, House
Room C, Richmond, Virginial@ (Interpreter for the deaf
provided upon request)

A meating to discuss youth gangs in Virginia.

Contact: Joyce Huey, General Assembly Bldg., 910 Capitol
St., Suite 5178, Richmond, VA 23213-0408, telephone (804)
371-2481.

September 24, 1986 - 10 a.m. -- Open Meeting

General Assembly Building, 910 Capitol Square, House
Room C, Richmond, Virginiaf (interpreter for the deaf
provided upon request)

A meeting to discuss status offenders.

Contact: Joyce Muey, General Assembly Bldg., 910 Capito!
Square, Suite 517B, Richmond, VA 23219-0406, telephone
(804} 371-2481.

CHRONCLOGICAL LIST

OPEN MEETINGS

August 5
Barbers, Board for
t Library Board
Pharmacy, Board of
Youth, Commission on

August 6
Branch Pilots, Board for
Conservation and Recreation, Department of
- Nottoway Scenic River Advisory Board
T Game and inland Fisheries, Department of
1 Higher Education for Virginia, State Council of
Hopewell Industrial Safety Council
Pharmacy, Board of
% Psychology, Board of
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Augusi?
Deaf and Hard-of-Hearing, Department for the
- Advisory Board
T Independent Living Council, Statewide
Medical Assistance Services, Department of
- Pharmacy Liaison Committee

August 8

Child Day-Care Council

Medical Assistance Services, Department of
- Prior Authorization/Virginia Health Outcomes
Partnership (PA/VHOP) Advisory Commitiee

Mental Health, Mental Retardation and Substance Abuse

Services, Department of
- Secretary of Health and Human Resources System
Reform Task Force

Realt Estate Board

August 9
1 Medicine, Board of
- Executive Committee
1 Social Work, Board of

August 10
T Medicine, Board of
- Credentials Committee
Museurn of Natural History, Virginia
- Board of Trustees

August 12
Alcoholic Beverage Control Board
T Employment Commission, Virginia
- State Advisory Board
T Vocational Education, Virginia Council on

August 13
Air Pollution Control Board, State
Chesapeake Bay Local Assistance Board
- Northern Area Review Committee
- Southern Area Review Committee
t Emergency Planning Committee - Local, Arlington
County/City of Falls Church/Washington National Airport
T Land Evaluation Advisory Council, State
1 Nursing, Board of
T Resources Authority, Virginia

August 14
Transportation Board, Commonwealth
1 Veterinary Medicine, Board of

August 15

Agriculture and Consumer Services, Department of
- Virginia Aquaculture Advisory Board

T Conservation and Recreation, Department of
- Chickahominy Scenic River Advisory Board

1 Funeral Directors and Embalmers, Board of

Medicine, Board of

Rights of Virginians with Disabilities, Department for
- Protection and Advocacy for Individuals with Mental
lliness Advisory Council

Transportation Board, Commonwealth

August 16

T Conservation and Recreation, Board of
T Dentistry, Board of

August 19
T Medical Assistance Services, Department of
T Nursing, Board of
1 Recycling Markets Development Gouncil, Virginia

August 20 7
Agriculture and Consumer Services, Department of
- Virginia Horse Industry Board
T Housing Development Authority, Virginia
T Medical Assistance Services, Board of
T Pharmacy, Board of

August 21
Aviation Board, Virginia
+ Fire Services Board, Virginia
T Nursing, Board of
Sewage Handling and Disposal Appeals Review Board
Treasury Board
1 Virginia Racing Commission

August 22
1 Fire Services Board, Virginia
- Fire/EMS Education and Training Commmittee
- Fire Prevention and Control Committee
- Legislative/Liaison Committee
1 Game and Inland Fisheries, Board of
Higher Education Tuition Trust Fund, Virginia
Medical Assistance Services, Department of
- Drug Utilization Review Board
1t Professional Counselors and Marrage and Family
Therapists, Department of
Real Estate Board
1 Richmond Hospital Authority
- Board of Commissioners

August 23
Aviation Board, Virginia
1 Fire Services Board, Virginia
1 Game and Inland Fisheries, Board of
Medicine, Board of
1 Professional Counselors and Marriage and Family
Therapists, Department of
T Veterinary Medicine, Board of

August 26
1 Agricultural Council, Virginia
Alcoholic Beverage Control Board
1 Conservation and Recreation, Department of
- Board on Conservation and Development of Public
Beaches

August 27

T Agricultural Council, Virginia

T Agriculture and Consumer Services, Department of
- Virginia State Apple Board

T Dentistry, Board of

1 Medicine, Board of

1 Nursing, Board of

Real Estate Appraiser Board

1 Small Business Financing Authority, Virginia
- Loan Committee

‘August 28
1 Nursing, Board of
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August 29
Compensation Board
1 Medical Assistance Services, Department of

August 30
Architects, Professional Engineers, Land Surveyors and
Landscape Architects, Board for
- Board for Architects

September 3
Hopewell Industrial Safety Council

September 4
t Medicine, Board of

September 5
1 Agriculture and Consumer Services, Department of
- Virginia Irish Potato Board
1 Emergency Planning Committee - Local, Chesterfield
County

September 8
Hearing Aid Specialists, Board for
T Intergovernmental Relations, Advisory Commitiee on

Sepiember 10
Contractors, Board for

September 13
Environmental Quality, Department of
- Technical Advisory Committee for Solid Waste
Management Regulaiions
1 Medicine, Board of
- 1 Opticians, Board for

September 16
’ 1 Local Government, Commission on

September 17
1 Medicine, Board of

September 18
+ Optometry, Board of

Sepiember 21
Military institute, Virginia
- Board of Visitors
Visually Handicapped, Department for the
- Vocational Rehabilitation Advisory Council

September 24
1 Small Business Financing Autharity, Virginia
- Loan Committes
Youth, Commission on

September 25
1 Sewage Handling and Disposal Appeals Review Board

QOctober 3
1 Emergency Planning Committee - Local, Chesterfield
County

October 24
T Voluntary Formulary Board, Virginia

PUBLIC HEARINGS

August 7
State Air Pollution Control Board

August 8
State Air Pollution Control Board
Pharmacy, Board of

August 12
T Education, Board of
T Environmental Quality, Department of
Medical Assistance Services, Department of
- Virginia Medicaid Pharmacy Prior Authorization
Committee
Pharmacy, Board of

August 13
1 Education, Board of

August 14
T Education, Board of
T Social Services, Department of
- Division of Benefit Programs

August 15
T Education, Board of

August 12
T Education, Board of
1 Medical Assistance Services, Department of

August 20
1 Education, Board of

August 21
1 Education, Board of
Health, Department of
Pharmacy, Board of

August 23
Mental Health, Mental Retardation and Substance Abuse
Services, Department of

August 27
Pharmacy, Board of

August 28
Lottery Board, State

September 6
1 Optometry, Board of

September 11
1 Voluntary Formulary Board, Virginia

September 18
T Optometry, Board of

Virginia Register of Requlations

3200





